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July 21-24 
July 27-30 
July 19-22 
July 17-20 
July 16-19 
July 22-25 
July 21-24 

Officers and Board Members 
General Officers 

Moderator ................................................................................. ............................................ :··:· Ti~ Y~r~ 
Assistant Moderator ......................................................................................................... Wrllram mrt 
Clerk .................................................................................................................................. Rand~ B~ya~t 
Assistant Clerk ....................................................................................................................... ~rnre e;rs 
Executive Secretary-Treasurer .......................................................................................... Kerth Bur en 

General Board 

2013 
Alabama: Rick Cash 
Arizona: George Harvey, Jr. 
Arkansas: Tim Campbell 
Assn. of Mexico: Luis Felipe Tijerina 
Atlantic-Canada: Oral McAffee 
California: Millard Sasser 
Colorado: Mark Thomas 
David Marks Heritage: TBD 
Florida: Donnie Hussey 
Georgia: Wayne Miracle 
Idaho: Gene Kissinger 
Illinois: David Shores 

Executive Committee 

2014 
Indiana: Chris Clay 
Iowa: Jim Martin 
Kansas: Zane Brooks 
Kentucky: Venny VanHoose 
Mexico Assn.: Bud Bivens 
Michigan: Gene Norris 
Mid-Atlantic Wayne Hale 
Mississippi: Larry Reynolds 
Missouri: Stan Bunch 
New Jersey: William Brown 
New Mexico: Mark Shores 

Moderator: Tim York, 623 Knollwood Drive, laVergne, TN 37086 
Assistant Moderator: William Smith, P.O. Box 507, Colquitt, GA 39837 
Clerk: Randy Bryant, 2156 54th Avenue, Vero Beach, Fl32966 
Assistant Clerk: Ernie lewis, 1176 CR 1975 N, Cisne, ll62823 

2013 
Tim Campbell (AR) 
Rick Cash (Al) 
David Shores (IL) 

2014 
Chris Clay (IN) 
Stan Bunch (MO) 
Venny VanHoose (KY) 

Board of Trustees of Welch College 
Chairman: Terry Pierce, 763 CR 931, Tupelo, MS 38804 

2014 
Jeff Crabtree (All-CAN) 
Shiloh Hackett (Al) 
Rusty Russell (NC) 

2016 
Michael Armstrong (OH) 
Billy Hanna (GA) 
Terry Pierce (MS) 
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2015 
North Carolina: Billy Keith 
Northeast: Jim Nason 
Northwest: Brent Nix 
Ohio: Edwin Hayes 
Oklahoma: Mike Wade 
South Carolina: Todd Smith 
Tennessee: Glenn Poston 
Texas: Keith Woody 
Virginia: Glen Johnson 
West Virginia: Luther Morgan 

2015 
Glenn Poston (TN) 
Todd Smith (SC) 
Mike Wade (OK) 

2018 
Will Beauchamp (Fl) 
Kenny Simpson (MO) 
Mark Stripling (AR) 



Board of International Missions 
Chairman: Danny Williams, 107 Stratford lane, Winfield, Al35594 

2014 
Janice Banks (OK) 
Jeff Manning (NC) 
Robert Morgan (TN) 

2016 
Greg McAllister (CA) 
Tom McCullough (MI) 
Danny Williams (Al) 

Board of Home Missions 
Chairman: Randy Wright, P.O. Box 4, Guin, Al35563 

2013 
Jerry Atwell (MS) 
Bobby Shepherd (AR) 
Matt Upton (CA) 

Board of Retirement 

2015 
Earl Hanna (SC) 
Ron Parker (LA) 
Tim Stout (OH) 

Chairman: Jack Daniel, 1900 lullwater Road, Albany, GA 31707 

2013 
Rick Cason (GA) 
Craig Cook (TN) 
Jack Ward (NC) 

Board of Master's Men 

2015 
Jack Daniel (GA) 
Rick Dement (MO) 
Mark Ousley (VA) 

Chairman: Rick Stone, 2100 US 60 E., Morehead, KY 40351 

2013 
Ken Oleson (OK) 
Rudy Taylor (MI) 
Jason Vinson (Al) 

2015 
Johnny Fowlkes (AR) 
Eddie Hodges (TN) 
Rick Stone (KY) 

2018 
Nelson Henderson (AR) 
Mark Price (OH) 
Brad Ransom (OK) 

2017 
Bob lewis (TN) 
Robert Thebeau (MO) 
Randy Wright (Al) 

2017 
Danny Baer (NC) 
James Beasley (SC) 
Tim Hall (KY) 

2017 
Clay Burgett (OH) 
Cliff Donoho (TN) 
Tom Harmon (ll) 

Board of Trustees of the Free Will Baptist Foundation 
Chairman: Phil Whiteaker, 122 Lakeland Drive, Cabot, AR 72023 

2013 
Brian Hurst (TN) 
Donnie Miles (SC) 
Wendell Walley (CA) 

2015 
len Blanchard (Al) 
Rick Locklear (MI) 
Phil Whiteaker (AR) 

2017 
Bobby Edwards (TN) 
Waymon Fields (AL) 
Melvin Worthington (NC) 

The Foundation Board also includes the following directors of national agencies: 
Clint Morgan (IM); Matt Pinson (Welch College); larry Powell (HM); Elizabeth Hodges (WNAC); 
Kenneth Akers (MM); Ron Hunter (RHP); Ray lewis (BOR); Keith Burden (EXEC) 
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Board of Randall House Publications 
Chairman: Tim Owen, 1863 Duncan Community Road, Chipley, Fl32428 

2014 
Danny Dwyer (NC) 
Steve Lindsay (Al) 
Randy Scott (AR) 

2016 2018 
Charles Cook (TN) Mark Braisher (OK) 
Tim Eaton (OK) Mike Mounts (OH) 
Tim Owen (Fl) Mike Trimble (MI) 

Commission for Theological Integrity 
Chairman: Matt Pinson, 3606 West End Avenue, Nashville, TN 37205 

2013 Matt Pinson (TN) 
2014 Steve Ashby (OK) 
2015 Craig Shaw (OK) 

Historical Commission 

2016 Paul Harrison (TN) 
2017 Kevin Hester (TN) 

(Acting) Chairman: Robert Picirilli, 206 Stoner's Glen Ct., Hermitage, TN 37076 

2013 David Crowe (TN) 2016 Jeff Cockrell (SC) 
2014 Robert Picirilli (TN) 2017 Jack Williams (TN) 
2015 Eric Thomsen (TN) 

Media Commission 
Chairman: Travis Penn, 10006 Expedition Pl., Noblesville, IN 46060 

2013 Stephen lopes (TN) 
2014 Josh Owens (TN) 
2015 Travis Penn (IN) 

Music Commission 

2016 Adam Carnes (NC) 
2017 Marc Neppl (VA) 

Chairman: Chris Truett, 1936 Banks School Road, Kinston, NC 28504 

2013 James Stevens (TN) 2016 Donnie Burke (CO) 
2014 Kevin Justice (NC) 2017 Doug little (TN) 
2015 Chris Truett (NC) 
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Proceedings 

The 76th annual session of the National Association of Free Will Baptists met July 15-18, 2012, at the Memphis 
Cook Convention Center in Memphis, Tennessee. "God is Faithful" was the theme of the meeting. Ryan lewis 
served as convention manager and Chris Truett was music coordinator. 

Sunday School - July 1 S I 2012 

Sunday School began at 10:00 a.m. with Brian Sargent leading the congregation in singing "Praise Him, Praise 
Him" and "Let There Be Glory And Honor And Praises." Shiloh Hackett led in prayer and introduced the Sunday 
School teacher, Thomas Bee, member of the South Highland FWB Church in Muscle Shoals, Alabama. Bro. Bee 
brought the lesson from Hebrews 7:1-28 on "The Old Priesthood Versus the New Priesthood." 

Sunday Morning - July 1 S I 2012 

Morning worship began at 11:00 a.m. with Brian Sargent leading the congregation in singing "Come Thou 
Fount," "I Will Praise Him," and "Blessed Be The Name." Shiloh Hackett led in prayer and called for the offering. 
Brian Floyd provided the offertory on the piano. The congregation sang "Trust and Obey," "I Will Sing Of My 
Redeemer," and "You Set Me Free." Shiloh Hackett introduced the speaker and The Horse Branch Trio sang "The 
Promise." Dr. Garnett Reid, Professor of Theological Studies at Free Will Baptist Bible College, brought themes­
sage on "God is Faithful: The Essence of His Nature" from Lamentations 3:1-3, 21-27. "Only Trust Him" was sung 
as the invitation and Shiloh Hackett closed the service in prayer. 

Sunday Evening - July 1 S I 2012 

Evening worship began at 7:00p.m. with Joshua Riggs leading the congregation in singing "Great Is Thy Faith­
fulness," "0 God Our Help,""Forever," and "Standing on the Promises." Randy Bryant led in prayer and called for 
the offering. The Mass Choir with soloist David Teague sang "With God." The congregation sang "Never Once," 
"Blessed Assurance," and "Great Is Thy Faithfulness." Randy Bryant introduced the speaker and the Donelson 
Trio sang "Great I Am." Rev. Paul Bryant, pastor of the Cross Creek Free Will Baptist Church in Olive Branch, Mis­
sissippi, brought the message on "God is Faithful to His Promises" from Hebrews 10:23. "My Faith Has Found A 
Resting Place" was sung as the invitation. Diana Bryant, president of WNAC, announced their committees and 
the service was dismissed. 

Monday Evening - July 1612012 

Evening worship began at 7:00p.m. with Glenn Poston, Promotional Secretary of the Tennessee State Associa­
tion, welcoming the convention to Tennessee and Randy Riggs, moderator of the Tennessee State Association, 
presenting gift bags to Tim York, Ryan lewis, and Keith Burden. Joshua Riggs led the congregation in singing 
''The Solid Rock," "Blessed Be The Name," and "Never Once." Keith Burden introduced the speaker and called for 
the offering. Following prayer, the Mass Choir with soloist Stacie Compton sang "Through It All." The congrega­
tion sang "It Is Well" and "I Will Sing Praise." The Cross Timbers Trio sang "Jesus Never Fails" before the message. 
Mike Gladson, pastor of the Cofer's Chapel Free Will Baptist Church in Nashville, Tennessee, brought the message 
on "God is Faithful When We Are Tested" from I Corinthians 10:13. "I Will Sing Praise" was sung as the invitation. 
Clerk Randy Bryant called the seventy-sixth annual session to order and introduced the moderator, Dr. Tim York. 
The moderator appointed the following committees and the service was dismissed. 
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Nominating Committee: 
Mike Wade (OK), Chairman 

larry Reynolds (MS) 

Tim Owen (Fl) 

Will Harmon (AR) 

Ron Helms (MI) 

Stan Bunch (MO) 

Jeff Davis (TN) 

Resolutions Committee: 
Tim Baumgarten (AL), Chairman 

Jim Price (KY) 

Mark Price (OH) 

Billy Hanna (GA) 

Bob Brown (VA) 

Credentials Committee: 
Todd Smith (SC), Chairman 

Billy Keith (NC) 

Jim Brewer (KS) 

oral McAffee (Ati-Canada) 

Millard Sasser (CA) 

Obituary Committee: 
Marcus Brewer (TX), Chairman 

David Weeks (TN) 

Harlen Johnson (IL) 

Luther Morgan (WV) 

Joe Conn (OK) 

Tuesday Afternoon - July 171 2012 

1 30 Th moderator brought the message from 
Moderator Tim York called the business session. to order a;h: I pkm. d ~he Credentials Committee report. Mo-

:i~:~:~~i::~:::~:~v:o;~:~:pu;;~~~~::~nel~~l;g~~:~~~he ~l~r~rre~e: the General Board report. Motion passed 

to receive the report and adopt it item by item. 

Motion carried to adopt Item 1 of the General Board report. 

Motion carried to adopt Item 5 of the General Board report. 'ld' S 
f th E cutive Office ONE Magazine, and SUI mg er-

Executive Secretary Keith Burden gave the report 0. e xe . ' Bill and Geneva Walker 
vices. Auditor Terry Hill gave the financi~l reports. Mot ron ~asse~l to ~e~~::~h~:~~ho~ood;, and Gary Fry were 
were recognized for their years of serviCe for the ~onventron. en o , 
recognized for their service on the Executive Commrttee. 

Motion carried to adopt Item 2 of the General Board report. 

Motion carried to adopt Item 3 of the General Board report. 

Motion carried to receive Item 4 of the General Board report. . 
Director Ken Akers gave the Master's Men Department report. Motion carried to recerve the report. . 

Director Ray Lewis gave the Board of Retirement and Insurance report. John Brummitt gave the finanCial re-

port Motion carried to receive the report. . J . (NC) 
C~ris Truett gave the Music Commission report. Motion carried to receive the report. Kevm ustiCe was 

elected to the 2014 term on the commission and Doug little (TN) was elected ~o t~e 2017 te~m. 
Motion passed to elect the General Board members nominated by the Nommatmg.Co~mittee. . 

Motion passed to elect the Executive Committee members nominated by the Nommatmg Co~mhrttee. (TN) 
· · M f arried to receive the report. Ertc T omsen Jack Williams gave the Historical Commrssron report. o ron c 

was elected to the 2015 term on the commission and Jack Williams was e.lected to the 2017 term. was 

T . Penn gave the Media Commission report. Motion carried to recerve the report. Stephen Lopes (TN) 
ravrs d M k Neppl (VA) to the 2017 term elected to the 2013 term; Josh Owens (TN) to the 2014 term, an ar . . · 

The clerk read the recommendation from Free Will Baptist Bible College regardmg rts proposed name 

change. 
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The clerk read the proposed change in the Free Will Baptist Foundation's charter that was introduced during 
last year's convention. Foundation Board Chairman Phil Whiteaker offered explanation for the changes. Motion 
carried to amend the charter of the Free Will Baptist Foundation. 

Director David Brown gave the Free Will Baptist Foundation report. Richard Davis gave the financial report. 
Motion carried to receive the report. 

Executive Director Elizabeth Hodges gave the Women Nationally Active for Christ report. Motion carried to 
receive the report. 

Tuesday Evening - July 17, 2012 

Evening worship began at 7:00 p.m. with the YET Reunion Choir singing "I Lift My Hands." The congregation 
sang "A Mighty Fortress" and "Everlasting God." David Shores welcomed the body to the service and called for 
the offering. Following prayer, the Mass Choir, featuring Roger Ridgeway, sang "Defender." The congregation 
sang "Never Once" and "Through the Storm Medley." David Shores introduced the speaker and the National 
YET Team sang "No Other Name." Jon Cannon, pastor of the Victory Free Will Baptist Church in O'Fallon, Illinois, 
brought the message on "God Is Faithful To The Persecuted" from I Peter 4:12-19. "Lord, I Give You Me" was sung 
as the invitation and the service was dismissed. 

Wednesday Morning - July 18,2012 

The business session began at 9:00 a.m. with Assistant Moderator William Smith reading from Philippians 
2:5-8 and then leading us in prayer. 

Motion carried to elect Stan Bunch (MO} to the General Board for the 2014 term in place of Gary Fry. 
Director Ron Hunter gave the Randall House Publications report. Michael Lytle gave the financial report. Mo­

tion carried to receive the report. Edwin Hayes was presented a plaque in recognition of his 24 years on the 
Randall House board. Mark Braisher (OK), Mike Mounts (OH}, and Mike Trimble (MI) were elected to the 2018 
term on the board. 

Director Larry Powell gave the Home Missions Department report. Chaplain Lt. Col. David Spears, who passed 
away on December 25, 2011, was eulogized by Chaplain Col. Terry Austin and Randy Wright led in prayer. Lt. Col. 
Spears' wife, Wanda, was presented a plaque honoring Lt. Col. Spears. Motion carried to receive the report. 

Director Clint Morgan gave the International Missions Department report. Rob Conley gave the financial re­
ports. Danny Williams honored the memory of Paul Creech for his service as a board member and former mis­
sionary. Randy Wilson was presented a plaque recognizing his service on the board. Debbie Griffin and Stan 
and Brenda Bunch were presented plaques recognizing their service as missionaries in Japan and Panama, re­
spectively. Motion carried to receive the report. Janice Banks (OK) was elected to the board for the unexpired 
2014 term. Nelson Henderson (AR), Mark Price (OH), and Brad Ransom (OK) were elected to the 2018 term on 
the board. 

Motion carried to adopt Item 7 on the General Board report. 

President Matthew Pinson gave the Free Will Baptist Bible College report. Craig Mahler gave the financial re­
port. Tom Sass was recognized for his 40 years of service as the Vice President for Financial Affairs. A. C. Allen was 
recognized for his service to the board. Motion carried to receive report. William Beauchamp (FL), Ken Simpson 
(MO), and Mark Stripling (AR} were elected to the 2018 term to the board. 

The clerk read the statement from the Free Will Baptist Bible College Board of Trustees "Recommendation 
Regarding Name Change of the College." It reads, "On July 16, 2012, the Board of Trustees of Free Will Baptist 
Bible College, after reconsidering the recommendation it made to the body of the National Association of Free 
Will Baptists on July 19, 2011, to change the college's name to Welch College, voted to recommend to the body of 
the National Association: "that the name of the college be changed to Welch College, that the college's Charter 
and By-Laws and Rules of Decorum be amended to reflect the change, and that the By-Laws of the National 
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. . Will Baptists be amended to reflect the change." 
Assooatton of Free . f the change and shared a video concerning the change. Motion 

P . dent Matthew Pmson gave the reasons or 
~edst h nge the by-laws and name of the college to Welch College. 

carne to c a 

Wednesday Afternoon - July 18, 2012 

. . began with Assistant Clerk Ernie Lewis reading from 2 Corinthians 4:1-6 and leading in 
The busmess sess10n 

prayer. I B d rt David Williford Vice President for Institutional Advance-
The clerk read item 6 of the Genera oar repo . .' 

th ex lanation for the request. Motion carried to adopt ttem 6. . 
ment, gave e P . . lo ical lnte rity report. Motion carried to recetve the report. 

Leroy Forlines gave the Commts_stOn foLr Theo l F Forli~es for his fifty years of service on the commission. 
Matthew Pinson made a presentation to eroy an ay . . 
Kevin Hester was elected to the 2017 term on the commts~ton. 

Ron Hunter gave the NYC report. Motion carried to receiVe the report. . 
The clerk read the Registration Committee report. Motion carried to rec~tve the report. 
Keith Burden gave the Budget Committee report. Motion carried to recetve the report. . . f 

I d b . d o presentation of deceased mmtsters rom 
The clerk re~d ~he Obituary Commt~tteet~~do~rf~l;:~en:o~ ~;e~ce and Marcus Brewer led in prayer. 

our state assooattons. The congrega ton s . 
The clerk read the Resolutions Committee report. Motion carried to rec~tve the repl octrt. d· Moderator Tim York 

· · c · ttee The followmg were e e e · ' 
The cl~rk read the final rewp~1r1~ oftsh~~~m{~~a) t~;rk o;:n~Y Br~ant (FL), Assistant Clerk, Ernie Lewis (IL). 

(TN), Assistant Moderator, I tam ' ' 
Motion carried to adjourn and Bill Evans led in prayer. 

Wednesday Evening - July 18,2012 

. Ak rs sharin about Impact Memphis. Joshua Riggs led in prayer 
Evening worship began at 7:00p.m. wtth Ken. : "H g Marvelous " Ryan Lewis welcomed the congrega-

and led the congregatio~ in singi_ng "Jes~s ~esst_ah and e ino:hile Truth ~nd Peace sang "Hope of the Nations." 
tion and our home and mternattonal mtsstonanes cam k f the evening The Mass Choir with soloist Fawn 
Ryan Lewis called for the offering and introdu_ced th~ spea er ~;h Blue Po in~ Free Will Baptist Church in Cisne, 
Gibson sang "Not Guilty" as the offertory. Erme LewiFS, pa~to.~ fo mel John 1"6-10 "Jesus Paid It All" was sung as 

h h on "God is Faithful to orgiVe ro · · 
Illinois, broug t t e messag~, . "" Once " and "Jesus Paid It All" was sung by the congregation. 
the invitation and a finale of Glonous Day, . Never A , . r f Free Will Baptists, invited the body to the 
Randy Bryant, Executive Director of the Flonda _State s~ocl~ ton o 
2013 convention in Tampa, Florida, and the serviCe was dtsmtssed. 

Credentials Committee Report 

. h . ed the letters from the following countries, states, and local 
we the Credentials Comm1ttee, ave examm 

churches and find them to be in order as presen~ed below:. esented b five delegates: Alabama, 
1. From the following state asso_ciati~ns_ whiiCd~ are ~ntttl:d K~n~~c~~~ichigan, ~ississippi, Missouri, North 

Arkansas, California, Florida, Georgta, llhnots, n lana, ansa : . . ' . . . 
Carolina Ohio Oklahoma South Carolina, Tennessee, Texas, Vlrglma, and West Vlrgmta. . 

2. Fro~ thef following ~istrict associations which are ~ntitled to b~ represented by three delegates: Anzona, 

Canada, Colorado, lowaf Mexico Association, Mid-AtlantiC, New MexiCO, an~ :o~th:::t~elegate· Waipahu Free 

3. From the following lo~~l chuFrcheWs ~11h8ich :~ ;~~~~~~;~t~~r~~~.r~~~g~nelsla~ds, Centerton Free Will Baptist 
Will Baptist Church of Hawau, the ree I ap I 
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Church of New Jersey, Twin Valley Free Will Ba tis . . 
Church of South Dakota. P t Church of Wlsconsm, and Harvest Time Free Will Baptist 

4 .. We recommend that delegates from Idaho, Association of . 
contmgent upon representation fees being paid a d th Mexl.co, and the Northeast Association be seated 

5 n e report rece1ved 
. We ~ecommend that delegates from the countries st .' . . . 

churches hsted above be seated for this se . I . ' a.te assooatJOns, dlstnct associations and local 
sslon, a ong With the1r other d 1 ' 

6. We recommend that all lay delegates ent'tl d e egates who are properly registered. 
b d b . 1 e to representation b · t f h · .. oar s e seated If properly registered. Y VIr ue o t elr positiOns on standing 

Submitted by the Credentials Committee: 
Todd Smith (SC), Chairman 
Billy Keith (NC) 
Jim Brewer (KS) 

Oral McAfee (Atl-Can) 
Millard Sasser (CA) 

General Board Report 
The General Board of the National Association of Free . . 

of the Memphis Cook Convention Center in Memphis ~ Will Baptists met Monday, July 16, 2012, in Ballroom A 
A 

1 
f . , ennessee. 

sa resu to this meeting, we offer the foil . . owmg recommendatiOns· 
1: We heard the reports of the Executive Office ONE Ma a . . . . 

~etlrem~n~ and Insurance, Free Will Baptist Fou~dation ~o zme, ~n~ BUJldmg Services, Master's Men, Board of 
tJOnal MISSions, Free Will Baptist Bible Colle W ' . me MISSions, Randall House Publications lnterna-
lnt ·t H' · ge, omen Nationally Active~ Ch · c . ' 

egn y, lstoncal Commission, Music Commission Media . . or nst, om mission for Theological 
mend their reports be received and budgets adopt~d. CommiSSion, and the Budget Committee. We recom-

2. We recommend the reaffirmation of the resolution de I . 
1995 convention; that we support the official t . P onng all forms of racism that was adopted at the 
study on "Racism, the Bible and the Church" ps abtl~mh edntblssued by the Executive Office and recommend the Bible 

u IS e Y Randall House 
1995 Resolutions Committee Report . 

Resolution #2 - Resolution Concerning Racism 

Whereas, all people are created in the image of God (Genesis 1:26) and 
Whereas, all people have descended through "one blood" t Ad (, 
W~ereas, God desired for all people to be saved (2 Peter 3:9;~m am Acts 17:26) and, 

Be It resolved that the National Association of Free Will B r 
pledge to proclaim the Gospel freely to all men f ap lsts do hereby condemn racism in any form and do 

3 W o every race. 
. e recommend that beginning with the 2013 . 

hotel room charge be assessed at the time of bookin~~nvention, a non-refundable but transferable first night's 
4. The date for the 2018 · . 
5 W convention Will be adjusted to July 22-25 in Little Rock Arka 
: . e recommend that the David Marks Herita e Associ . ' nsas. 

sooatJOn and given a seat on the General Board (t: be listed a~JOn be accepted as a me~ber of the National As-
6. We recommend that Free Will Baptist Bible Colle e etween Color ad~ and Flonda.) 

ber to February effective February 2013. g be allowed to change Its emphasis month from Decem-

7. We recommend the requ t f I . 
es o nternatJOnal Missions to amend the By-Laws ofTh H . 

e anna ProJect. 
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RESTATED AND AMENDED 
BY-LAWS 

OF 
THE HANNA PROJECT 

ORGANIZATION. OBJECTIVES. AND PURPOSES 

1.1 Organization. THE HANNA PROJECT is a nonprofit corporation organized under the laws of the State 
oflennessee. 

1.2. Office. The Corporation shall maintain its principal office in Antioch, Tennessee or such other place 
within the United States of America as determined by the Board of Directors. 

1.3. Objective and Purposes. The Corporation is a Non-Profit Corporation as defined by the Tennessee 
Non-Profit Corporation Act, T.C.A. § 48-51-101 et. seq. The Corporation shall have and be entitled to exercise all 
powers which a Non-Profit Corporation of its nature may have and exercise under the laws of the State of Ten­
nessee, now in effect or hereafter amended, subject to the limitations contained in the Internal Revenue Code in 
accord with retaining its status as an exempt charitable organization. 

The Corporation is organized exclusively for educational, charitable and religiouspurposes under §501(c)(3) of 
the Internal Revenue Code, as a non-governmental organization, with the purpose of meeting the physical and 
spiritual needs of hurting people around the world. 

II 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

The Board ofTrustees shall be considered the same as a Board of Directors. 
2.1. Number and Term of Trustees. The Board of Trustees shall be composed of a minimum of three 

members but not more than six members, who shall serve a term of three years. 
The Incorporator shall appoint the original Board of Trustees and their terms are to be arranged so that they 

expire in groups of not more than two annually. To institute the original process, the original Board shall be ap­
pointed for the following terms; not more than two of the Trustees shall be elected to serve a term of one year, 
not more than two of the Trustees shall be elected to serve a term of two years and not more than two Trustees 
shall be elected for a term of three years. 

2.2 Authority ofTrustees. The Trustees shall act in their Trustee capacity only as a Board and individ-
ual Trustees have no power to act for the Corporation without prior specific Board authority, unless specific au­
thority is set out in the Bylaws. The Board shall institute the overall programming and policy of the Corporation 
and the Administrative Director of The Hanna Project (THP) shall supervise and administer its operation. 

2.3. Qualification ofTrustees. Each Trustee shall hold membership in a regtllar Free Will Baptist Church 
that belongs to a Free Will Baptist District, or State Association, or to a church, which is recognized by the Na­
tional Association as being affiliated. 

2.4. Regular and Special Meetings. The Board of Trustees shall set the time, occasion, or place of the 
annual meetings of the Board of Trustees which thereafter may be held without notice. Special meetings may 
be held at any time upon the call of the Administrative Director of THP and/or upon the call of the Chairman of 
the Board of THP. Notice and purpose of such special meetings shall be in writing postmarked or otherwise 
communicated at least one week before the meeting. 

2.5 Quorum. A Quorum shall consist of a majority of the duly elected Trustees and a majority vote of the 
Trustees present shall decide the issues brought before the meeting. 
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2.6. Compensation and Expenses. Trustees shalf serve as h . . 
curred in connection with the performance of their official duties m sue wr_thout compensatron. Expenses in-
of the Board ofTrustees. A Trustee shalf not be precluded f . ay b~ rermburs~d t~ Trustees upon approval 
from receiving compensation for such services. rom servrng t e Corporatron rn any other capacity nor 

2.7. Election of Trustees. Trustees shall be nominated b h . 
International Missions of the National Association of Free w· y t ~ Genera!, Dr rector of t~e Board of Foreign 
Missions"), with the approval of the Board offrtlstees fth B rlf B;p;rst, f~c. ( Board of _Forergn International 
rector of Field Operations irt of the Board of Forei I ~ e ?ar o ~or~rgn International Missions. The Di­
of THP. The Director of Financial OperationsJ~F; ~r~at~naldMrssrons shalf _serve as Chairman/President 
as the Secretary/Treasurer ofTHP. o e oar of International Missions shall serve 

2.8. Salaries of Corporate Officers The salar f th Ad . . . . 
fixed by the Board of Trustees, with the a~provaf of iho G e 7'~rstratrve Dr rector of the Ha~na Project shalf be 
Missions. The salaries of all other salaried emplo e ;n:rac Drrecto~ of the Board of Forergn International 
Director within the context of the annual buleets o t e orporatron shall be fixed by the Administrative 

ge . 
. 2.9. Removal ofTrustees and Officers. The General Direct f . . 

srons may remove any Trustee or the Administrative Dir t or_o the_ Board ~f Forergn International Mis-
with the Chairman/President of THP The Ad . . ec o~-~t a~y trme wrth or wrthout cause, in consultation 
General Birector of the Board of Foreign Missions ~~~~rs:~atrve B~rector shalf hold office at the discretion of the 
Administrative Director ofTHP. · 0 er employees shalf hold office at the discretion of the 

Ill 

OFFICERS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES & CORPORATION 
ELECTION AND DUTIES 

3 .1. Officers. The officers of the Board of Truste h II . . 
man, and Secretary/Treasurer. The officers of the Cor es ~- a ~~sf rst o~ a Charrman of the Board, Vice-Chair-
surer. pora IOn s a consrst of a President and Secretary/Trea-

. 3.2. Election and Term. The Director of Field Operations f h . . 
SIOns shalf serve as Chairman/President ofTHP. The Direct t-o t ~Board of F~rergn International Mis­
lnternational Missions shaU serve as th S oro Frnane~al Operatlons/CFO of the Board of 
elected from and by the Board ofTrustees for: t:r%e:;~/Treasur~r o_f TH~. The remaining officers shalf be 
the Board and they shalf serve until their respectr·ve e year begrnnrng wrth the regular annual meeting of 

successors are elected 
3.3. Chairman of the Board/President. The Chairman f h . . 

Board ofTrustees except when he directs or in his absence th ~- t e B~ard shalf presrd_e at all meetings of the 
hold the office of President. The Chairman/President shalf er~ rce ~h~rrma~ shalf presrde. The Chairman shalf 
i~cident to the two offices and shalf carry out the direction~ f ~rm a t e dutres and have ~he powers_ commonly 
trons irt of the Board of Foreign International M' . hoff t e Board of:rustees. The Dr rector of Freid Opera-

. . rssrons s a serve as Charrman/President of THP 
3.4. Vrce Charrman. The Vice Chairman ofTHP shalf ~ . . 

monty incident to the office and shalf have oth per orm all the dutres and have all the powers com-
by the Board of Trustees The Vice Chairman she;,r;we~~ and ~erform other duties as may be assigned to him 
Chairman directs or in th~ Chairman's absence. resr e at t e meetings of the Board of Trustees when the 

3.5. Secretary/Treasurer. The Secretary/Treasur h II . 
ers ~ommonfy incident to his office and shalf have other ::s a perform all the dutre~ and have all the pow-
to hrm by the Board ofTrustees. He shalf kee the minu p ers and pe~orm other dutres as may be assigned 
have charge of all Corporate books and recor:s The D" te~of all;~~ mee~rngs of the Board of Trustees and shalf 
International Missions shall serve as the S. e t lre/T oro rnane~al Operations/CFO of the Board of 

ere ary reasurer ofTHP. 
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IV. 
ADMINISTRATIVE DIRECTOR 

4.1. Election and Term. The Administrative Director ofTHP shall be nominated by the Chairman/Presi-
dent of THP in consultation with the General Director of the Board of International Missions and 
approved by the Board ofTrustees. The Administrative Director ofTHP shall serve until removal, resignation or 
death. 

4.2 Removal The Administrative Director may be removed at any time with or without cause by the 
General Director of the Board of Foreign International Missions in consultation with the Chairman/Presi· 
dent ofTHP. The Administrative Birector shall hold office at the discretion oft he General Birector of the Board of 
Foreign Missions. 

4.3 Authority and Duties. The Administrative Director ofTHP shall implement the programming and 
policy of the Board of Trustees and shall administer the daily affairs of the Corporation, carrying out all respon­
sibilities delegated to him by the Board of Trustees. His duties shall include, but not be limited to (1) the ad­
ministration of all Corporate funds; (2) fundraising; (3) the preparation of bi ann1:1al reports as required or 
requested by the Board ofTrustees, which shall be given to the Chairman/President ofTHP; (4) the prepara­
tion and proposal of an Annual Budget, which shall be approved by the Chairman/President ofTHP, the Board 
ofTrustees, and the General Director of the Board of Foreign International Missions; (5) the organization and 
management of q1:1arterly periodic meetings and an Annual General Session, which shall include the Board 
ofTrustees and the Advisory Council (as necessary); and (6) the presentation of all proposed projects to the 
Corporation's Board ofTrustees for approval, which shall then be presented to the General Director ofthe Board 
of Foreign International Missions for presentation to the Board of International Missions for final ap­
proval. 

V. 

ADVISORY COUNCIL 

5.1 Election and Term. The General Director of the Board of Foreign International Missions shaH in 
consultation with the Chairman/President of THP and Administrative Director of THP as deemed 
necessary and appropriate for the furtherance of the Corporation may nominate a minimum of seven 
rn three (3) individuals, who meet the membership requirements, to serve on an Advisory Council. The candi­
date must then be approved by the Board ofTrustees. Members on the Advisory Council shall serve three (3) year 
terms, with three successive terms permitted. 

5.2 Membership Requirements. Any individual may become a member of the Advisory Council so long 
as they meet the following requirements: (1) Followers of the Christian faith; (2) They receive an invitation to join 
the Coundl from the Administrative Director; and (3) They pledge to, and do, actively support the projects and 
efforts ofthe Corporation. 

5.3 Removal. Membership may be removed at any time if a member fails to fulfill any one of the mem-
bership requirements listed above. Membership may be removed by the Administrative Director of THP's rec 
ommendation and a majority vote of the Advisory Eot1ndl, with the member in q1:1estion not being permitted 
to vote in consultation with the Chairman/President of THP and General Director of the Board of 
International Missions. 

5.4. Duties. Members of the Advisory Counsecil shall advise the Administrative Director on issues in-
volving strategic development, budgeting, project selection and fundraising, and such other matters as the Ad­
ministrative Director ofTHP shall deem necessary. Members shaH may receive, from the Administrative Direc­
tor, regular information sheets, the annual project activity reports, and financial reports, and may attend, as 
requested by the Administrative Director of THP, the Annual General Sessions Meeting without voting 
privileges, and may proposed suggest projects to the Administrative Director. 
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5.5. Compensation and Expenses. Members of the Advisory Counffl:il shall serve as such without com-
pensation. Expenses incurred in connection with the performance of their duties may be reimbursed to the 
members upon approval of the Board of Trustees. 

VI 
TRANSAOIONS WITH TRUSTEES AND MEMBERS OF THE ADVISORY COUNCIL 

6.1 No contract or other transaction between this Corporation and any of its Trustees or Members of 
the Advisory Council shall be void or voidable if such contract shall be approved or ratified by an affirmative vote 
at any meeting of the Board of Trustees by a majority of the Trustees and the General Director of the Board of 
For!!ign International Missions. The subject Trustee or Member! of the Advisory Council shall have no voice or 
vote concerning the approval or ratification of his action. Further, no Trustee or Member! of the Advisory Council 
shall be liable to account to the Corporation for any profit realized by him from or through any such contract or 
transaction ratified or approved as aforesaid. 

6.2. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the Corporation shall not lend money to or use its 
credit to assist its Trustees, officers, or Members of the Advisory Council, whether or not employees. 

VII. 

CONTRAOS. LOANS. AND CHECKS 

7 .1. Contracts. The Board ofTrustees may authorize any officer or officers, agent or agents, to enter into 
any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the Corporation, and such 
authority may be general or confined to specific instances. 

7.2. loans. No loans shall be contracted on behalf of the Corporation and no evidences of indebted-
ness shall be issued in its name unless authorized by a resolution of the Board ofTrustees, with the approval of 
General Director of the Board of For!!ign International Missions. Such authority may be general or confined to 
specific instances; provided, however, no loans shall be made by the Corporation to its Trustees or officers which 
are prohibited by T.C.A. §48-58-303. 

7.3. Checks and Other Instruments. All checks, drafts or other orders for the payment of money, notes or 
other evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of the Corporation shall be signed by such officer or officers, 
agent or agents of the Corporation and in such manner as shall from time to time be determined by resolution of 
the Board ofTrustees. 

VIII. 
MISCELLANEOUS 

8.1 . Written consent. Whenever the Tru5tees of this Corporation are required or permitted to take any 
action by vote, such action may be taken without a meeting, upon written consent setting forth the action so 
taken, and signed by all of the Trustees entitled to vote thereon. 

8.2. Contracts and notes. Contracts in the regular order of business shall be executed by the Adminis-
trative Director or by a person designated with that authority by the Board of Trustees as directed by written 
resolution. 

8.3. Fiscal year. The fiscal year of the Corporation shall begin on the first day of January of each year and 
shall end on the last day of December next following. 
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IX. 

AMENDMENTS 

These By-laws may be amended as follows: 
The General Director of the Board of For!!ign International Missions, at any regular annual me_et­

in~ !~at a special meeting called for that purpose, shall_ present the Board of fnnt!!!!5 of the Board of For!!lgn 
International Missions with the proposed amendment, 

(2) The Board of trtl5tee5 of the Board of For!!ign International Missions shall take thhe amend~ent 
h dment until its next meeting subsequent tot e annua ses­

under consider~tio~,;nd s_h~~l not/:r:ee o~~l ;:;~~s The Board of International Missions shall provide 
sian ~f the ~atlona ssocla IOn o endments to the Executive Committee of the National Association of 
offic•al.notlce ?f propose~ am ve referenced National Association annual session. Approval 

:;~~e~~!~~:~~s;:;~i·r~:·:;~:~~~:sb:ote of the Board of fnntee5 of the Board of Foreign International 

Missions. 

Certification 

These By-laws were duly Restated and Amended on this the -bt __ day of Jantlary 2994 ----

Markings legend: 
Proposed For Deletion (Strikeotlt) 
Proposed for Addition (Bold) 

Secretary 
Board ofTrustees ofthe Hannah Project 

Nominating Committee Report 

Randall House Publications M k B . h (OK) 
. ar ra1s er 2018 Replacing Mark Bra1sher (OK):··:·:······ · ······················ M'k Mounts (OH) 

Replacing Edwin Hayes (OH) (mehglble) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . I. :Trimble (MI) 
M.k T . bl (MI) ......... Mlk Replacing 1 e nm e · .. · · .... · · .. · .. · · .. · .. · .... 

International Missions Bob Brown (VA) 
2014 Replacing Paul Creech (GA) (deceased) · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · d (AR) 

Nelson Hen erson 2018 Replacing Nelson Henderson (AR) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Mark Price (OH) 
Replacing Mark Price (OH) · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ................. 

8
' d R (OK) 

(OK) (. 1. 'bl ) ra ansom Replacing Randy Wilson me 1g1 e ..... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 

Free Will Baptist Bib I~ ~~liege Will Beauchamp (FL) 
2018 Replacing A. C. Allen (SC) (mehglble) · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · im son (MO) 

I . K s· (MO) .. .. ...... .. ... Ken S p Rep acmg en Impson · · · · .. · · · ........ · .. · M k Stripling (AR) 
Replacing Mark Stripling (AR) . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ar 
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Commission for Theological Integrity 
2017 Replacing Leroy Forlines (TN) ..................................... Kevin Hester (TN) 

Historical Commission 
2015 Replacing Darrell Holley (FL) (resigned) ............................ Eric Thomsen (TN) 
2017 Replacing Jack Williams (TN) ..................................... Jack Williams (TN) 

Music Commission 
2014 Replacing Daron Dwyer (NC) ......... . ........................... Kevin Justice (NC) 
2017 Replacing Doug Little (TN) ......................................... Doug Little (TN) 

Media Commission 
2013 Replacing Monte McKenzie (GA) (resigned) ....... ... .......... ... Stephen Lopes (TN) 
2014 Replacing Keith Fletcher (IL) (resigned) ............................. Josh Owens (TN) 
2017 Replacing Kevin Norris (MI) (resigned) . .. .... . ..... .. ................ Marc Neppl (VA) 

General Board 
2014 Missouri (Replacing Gary Fry) .......................................... Stan Bunch 
2015 North Carolina (Replacing Billy Keith) ............. . ...................... Billy Keith 

Northeast (Replacing Jim Nason) ........................................ Jim Nason 
Northwest (Replacing Brent Nix) . ........................................ Brent Nix 
Ohio (Replacing Mike Stokes) ......................................... Edwin Hayes 
Oklahoma (Replacing Mike Wade) ...................................... Mike Wade 
South Carolina (Replacing Todd Smith) .................................. Todd Smith 
Tennessee (Replacing Glenn Poston) .................................. Glenn Poston 
Texas (Replacing Keith Woody) ........................................ Keith Woody 
Virginia (Replacing Glen Johnson) .................................... Glen Johnson 
West Virginia (Replacing Luther Morgan) ...... . ......... ... . ... . ..... Luther Morgan 

Executive Committee 
2014 Replacing Gary Fry (MO) (resigned) .... ... ......... ............... . Stan Bunch (MO) 
2015 Replacing Mike Wade (OK) ......................................... Mike Wade (OK) 

Replacing Keith Woody (TX) ....................................... Todd Smith (SC) 
Replacing Glen Johnson (VA) (ineligible) .......................... . Glenn Poston (TN) 

General Officers 
Moderator: Replacing Tim York (TN) .............. . .......... . .............. Tim York (TN) 
Assistant Moderator: Replacing William Smith (GA) .................... William Smith (GA) 
Clerk: Replacing Randy Bryant (FL) ........ . ................. .......... . Randy Bryant (FL) 
Assistant Clerk: Replacing Ernie Lewis (IL) ................................ Ernie lewis (IL) 

Nominating Committee 
Tim Campbell (AR), Chairman 
Cliff Donoho (FL) 
Carl Cheshier (OK) 
Venny VanHoose (KY) 

Chris Clay (IN) 
Danny Thompson (AL) 
Billy Keith (NC) 
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National Youth Conference Report 

NYC Attendee 2,236 

NYC Child Attendee 149 

NYC Grades 1-3 306 

NYC Grades 4-6 440 

NYC Grades 7-12 765 

NYC Preschool Worship 110 

NYC Staff 166 

Total NYC 4,172 

Speakers: 
Josh Baer 

David Outlaw 

Darin Gibbs 

Sean McDowell 

NYC Competition Entries: 

956 

Reach That Guy: 

381 participants 

1,418 hours donated 

10 service centers 

Buck-a-Week Offering: 

$2,749.67 

YETeam: 
... ministered alongside Home Missions through church plants in Texas. 

... led teen worship during convention without adults on stage. 

Truth & Peace had 103 student leaders. Their leadership at this conference is unquestionably 

needed and felt. 
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Registration Report 

National Convention 
Board/Commission Member 
licensed Minister · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 47 
l ocal Church Deleg~t~ · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 16 
NAFWB Attendee ..... . ............ . ...... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 6 
NAFWB Staff ..... : :: ......... .. . ........ · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·. 2487 
Ordained Deacon · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 24 
Ordained Minister. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 118 
State Delegate . .. : : : : :: : : : : : :: : : :: ::: : : : : · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . 606 Total ... . ....... . ........ ...... 61 

• • • • • • • • • • • . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3365 

National Youth Conference 
NYC Attendee ........ . ............ . 
NYC Child Attendee ...... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . 2235 
NYC Grades1 -3 ... . ... . ... . ................................... . 149 
NYC Grades 4-6 · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 306 
NYC Grades 7-12 · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 440 
NYC Preschool Wo~~hi.p · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 765 
NYC Staff ................... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · .. 110 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 166 Total ................................. . 
•••••••• . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4171 • • • • • • • • • • • • 

Women Nationally Active For Christ 
WNAC Attendee 
WNAC local Dele·g~t~· : : : : : : : : : : :: :: : : · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 626 
WNAC Missionary ................... : · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·. 37 
WNAC National Executive Committee · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 46 

WNAC S ff 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5 ta . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ..... 

WNAC State·o~ie·g~t~·: :: :::::: : ::: ............ · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 1 
WNAC State Field Worker · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 105 
WNAC State President · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 6 
T .. • . • . . . • • • ... • . ' . ' . 12 • otal · · · · · · · · · · · · · ............ . 

• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • 1131!1 

Total Unduplicated Attendance: SSS9 
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Budget Committee Report 
The National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc .. has approved in this convention the 

following budgets for 2013: 

Executive Office (Includes:) 
$ 857,907.00 

Administrative $ 422,407.00 

Convention ~J~.~QQ .OO 

Free Will Baptist Bible College 
4,790.793.00 

(Includes $1,255,000.00 in unrestricted gifts) 
Free Will Baptist Foundation 

521,177.00 

Home Missions 
5,000,000.00 

International Missions 
7.000,000.00 

Master's Men 
145,443.00 

Retirement and Insurance 
475,000.00 

Randall House Publications 
5,217,000.00 

Commission for Theological Integrity 7,900.00 

Historical Commission 
3,560.00 

Media Commission 
3,000.00 

Music Commission 
4.1QQ.QQ 

TOTAL $ 24,025.880.00 

All these ministries receive funds through The Together Way Plan except Randall House 

Publications which is self-sustaining. 
The Budget Committee recommends that gifts received through The Together Way Plan be 
allocated to the national ministries on the following basis: 

1. Underwrite the Executive Office Administrative Budget above 
designated gifts. not to exceed 45% of cooperative gifts. 

2. Disburse the balance of cooperative gifts to the following 
national ministries according to these percentages: 

Free Will Baptist Bible College 
International Missions 
Home Missions 
Retirement and Insurance 
Master's Men 
Free Will Baptist Foundation 
Commission for Theological Integrity 
Historical Commission 
Mus1c Comm1ssion 
Med1a Commission 

TOTAL 

Respectfully Submitted. Your Servants. 

Keith Burden, Executive Secretary 
Matt Pinson. President of Free Will Baptist Bible College 
David Brown. General Director of Free Will Baptist Foundation 
larry Powell. General Director of Home Missions Department 
Clint Morgan. General Director of International Missions Department 
Kenneth Akers, General Director of Master's Men Department 
D. Ray Lewis. General Director of Retirement and Insurance Department 
Ron Hunter. General Director of Randall House Publications 
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23.0% 
23.0% 
18.0% 
14.0% 
14.0% 
6.0% 
0.5% 
0.5% 
0.5% 
0.5% 

100.0% 



Obituary Committee Report 

We, the Obitua~y Committee, met ~n! uesday, July 17, 2012, at the Memphis Cook Convention Center to review 
the reports submitted by stat~ assoo~tiOns and individuals. We submit the following report of ministers and 
deacons who passed away dunng the t1me period of January 1-December 31, 2011. 

Alabama Oklahoma 
Rev. Richard Cordell 
Rev. Hallmark 
Rev. Carlton Lambert 
Rev. Eugene Howard 
Rev. E. R. Mayo 

Arkansas 
Rev. Joseph Hubbard 
Rev. George Latham 
Rev. Jerrell Willingham 
Rev. Paul Newton 

Elwood, Vines , Deacon 

Colorado 
Rev. Ray Jones 

Florida 
Rev. Floyd Coleman 
Rev. Willie T. Jones 
Rev. Cecil Williamson 

Georgia 
Rev. R. Paul Creech 
Rev. Jimmy Smith 

Illinois 
Rev.Deon Walker 

Wesley Conner, Deacon 
Bill Johnston, Deacon 

Mississippi 
Rev. D. W. Jones 

Ray Walley, Deacon 

Missouri 
Harold Dake, Deacon 
Ben Pohnert, Deacon 
Fred Ussery, Deacon 

Ohio 
Rev. Vernal Fairchild 
Rev. James Smith 
Rev. Clyde VanHoose 
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Rev. J.A. Fergueson 
Rev. Bill Jones 
Rev. John Maxwell, Jr. 
Rev. Wilburn l. Redfearn 
Walter Jennings, Deacon 

South Carolina 
Rev. Joe Cagle 

Tennessee 
Rev. Bert Tippett 

Kenneth Ross, Deacon 

Lt. Col. David Spears, Chaplain 

Texas 
Rev. Melvin Fuller 
Rev. Elihu Mayo 

Paul Gillentine, Deacon 
Morris "Bogy" Gustavus, Deacon 
Verlan Pegues, Deacon 

West Virginia 
Rev. Joe Dolen 
Rev.RogerLandy 

Rev. James Mounts 
Rev. James Harold Shafer 
Rev. W. Press Vance 
Rev. Tom Williams 
Rev. Roger Wren 

Bob England, Deacon 

Obituary Committee: 
Marcus A. Brewer (TX), Chairman 
Joe Conn (OK) 
Harlen Johnson (ll ) 
Luther Morgan (WV) 
David Weeks (TN) 

Resolutions Committee Report 

Whereas the Executive Office has successfully planned and provided another encouraging national conven-

tion; 

and 
Whereas all of our national departments have encouraged us with their respective reports; 

and 
Whereas the Tennessee State Association and its Executive Director, Rev. Glenn Poston, his staff, and his vol-

unteers, have graciously hosted this 2012 convention; 
Be it resolved that this body show its appreciation by a rising vote of thanks. 

Resolutions Committee: 

Rev. Mark Price (OH), Chairman 

Rev. Billy Hanna (GA) 

Rev. Bob Brown (VA) 
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The Executive Secretary's Report 

2011 

Preparing an annual report for th is convention is a challenging task that 
encompasses a three-year time period. First, we look at the past by giving an account 
for the previous year and its activities. Next, we look at the present and attempt to 
analyze current conditions. Finally, we look to the future and try to anticipate the 
coming year as we submit proposed budgets for our ministries. Obviously, none of this 
is an exact science. 

During 2011, the Executive Office served the denomination in a variety of ways. 
We had a presence at practically every state or district annual meeting, building new 
relationships and strengthening existing ones. We planned, coordinated, and helped 
carry out a successful convention in Charlotte, North Carolina. 

Our office continued to produce and/or offer valuable resources to our churches 
such as the Free Will Baptist Yearbook, Treatise, REJOICE Hymnal, ONE Magazine, and 
the national Leadership Conference, just to name a few. We receive and distribute The 
Together Way funds and manage the National Offices Building. 

All of this has been accomplished in the face of dwindling resources and 
escalating expenses. The Executive Office staff is to be commended for their 
faithfulness, dedication, and commitment to excellence in spite of these challenges. 

Having passed the midway point in 2012, we see promising, encouraging signs. 
Although we see no evidence of an imminent turnaround in the economy, many Free 
Will Baptists faithfully continue to support the Lord's work. Thankfully, denominational 
ministries facing extraordinary challenges have witnessed significant progress of late. 

While no one would dispute that there's plenty of room for improvement, there 
is justifiable grounds for rejoicing over what the Lord is accomplishing in and through us. 
Souls are being saved. New converts are being discipled. Churches are being built here 
and around the world. Young people are being trained for Christian service and ministry. 
Collectively, we are fulfilling the Great Commission. 

I am not suggesting we should be satisfied. We can do better ... we should do 
better ... and by the grace of God, we will do better! 

Preparing a budget for 2013 is like shooting at a moving target! We have 
attempted to strike an appropriate balance between fiscal conservatism and biblical 
faith. Therefore, we present these budgets for your consideration and approval on the 
basis of the combined faithfulness of our God and denominational family. 

Thank you for your prayers, encouragement, and the opportunity to serve you. 

Keith Burden, CMP 
Executive Secretary 
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Tracking The Together Way Totals 

DESIGNATED 

2002 
3,253,772.40 

81% 
2003 

2.64% 

3,515,300.09 8.04% 
82% 

2004 
3,631 ,305.92 3.30% 

82% 
2005 

3,946, 786.84 8.69% 
83% 

2006 
4,193,622.91 6.25% 

83% 
2007 

4,168,077.00 -0.61% 
83% 

2008 
4,083,286.89 -2.03% 

82% 
2009 

3,970,587.35 -2.76% 
82% 

2010 
3,719,114.31 -6.33% 

82% 
2011 

3,557,541.45 -4.34% 
81 % 

CO-OP 

738,744.13 
19% 

770,780.99 
18% 

782,642.76 
18% 

813,333.89 
17% 

832,178.34 
17% 

874,548.07 
17% 

892,767.28 
18% 

877,543.24 
18% 

830,020.39 
18% 

839,056.49 
19% 

TOTAL 

0.37% 3,992,516.53 

4.34% 4,286,081.08 

1.54% 4,413,948.68 

3.92% 4,760,120.73 

2.32% 5,025,801 .25 

5.09% 5,042,625.07 

2.08% 4,976,054.17 

-1.71% 4,848,130.59 

-5.42% 4,549,134.70 

1.09% 4,396,597.94 

The Together Way Totals Increase from 2002-2011 
0 . ted 9 34o/ CO-OP 13.58% es1gna · 10 
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2.21% 

7.35% 

2.98% 

7.84% 

5.58% 

0.33% 

-1.32% 

-2.57% 

-6.17% 

-3.35% 



""' 
Hill, Harper & Associates 
Certified Public: Accountants 

Executive Committee of the 

bdcpcndcgl Audl!oa' Report 

General Board oftbe National 
Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. 

We have audited the statements of financial posi tion of the Executive Office of the National Association of Free 
WiU Baptists, lnc .. (a nonprofit organization) as of December 31, 20 II and 20 I 0, and the related statements of 
activities and changes in net assets, and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statemeots are the 
responsibility of the Executive Office's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
financial statements based on our audits. The prior year summarized comparative infonnation bas been derived 
from the financial statements and, in our report dated March I S, 20 II, we expressed 110 unqualified opinion on 
those financial statements. 

We conducted our audits io accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Those standards require that we plan and perfonn the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about 
\lohether the financial statements are free of material misstatemenL An audit includes examining. on a test 
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes 
assessing the aecounting prln;:iplcs used and significant estimates made by managemenL as well as evaluating 
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our 
opinion. 

In our opinion. the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Executive Office of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc., as of 
December 31, 2011 and 20 I 0, and changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in 
confonnia:y with accounting principles generally accepted in the United Slates of America. 

Franklin, Tcoo~ 
April 2, 2012 
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EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE NATIONAL 
ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL HAPTlSTS, INC. 

Statements of Financial Position 

December 31.20 11 and 2010 

Current assets: 
Ca!>h in bank . 
Fund~ held by Fn..~ Will Bapll~ L Foundation 

Receivables: 
Randall House royalties 
Other departmental and agency charges 

Total receivables 

f "Free Will BapList Convention SemlOrl~o" Inventory o 
Prepaid expenses 

Total current assets 

Fixed assets: 
Ofllce eqwpment and furniture 
Automobilel-

~!.accumulated depreciation 

Net fixed assets 

Other assets: 
Dcposit~o for future com•cntions 

l..jWiities and Net Assets 

Current liabilities: 
bl . nd accrued c:tpenloes 

Accoums paya e a , fcc for 2012 convention 
Advance payment- Tennessee state 

Disaster relief funds . 
1 

. 
Fu,nd~ held for Church on the Ridge building •mprovcmcn s 

Total current liabilities 

Net assets (deficit): 
Unrestricted: 

Execut i vc Ofllce 
Net lnvel>tmem in Equipment 

Special Projects 
Convention Fund 

Total net assets 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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s 347.514 367.239 
15.887 10,865 

383 1.926 
2,172 294 

2,555 2.220 
4,452 

6,618 

370.408 386,942 

4 1,631 41.631 
17.500 25.720 

59.131 67.351 
55.978 62.543 

3.153 4.808 

23.447 22.947 

397,008 414,697 

s 24,774 25.142 
42.000 

6.780 36.103 
15,887 1 1.115 

89.441 72.360 

315.455 298.198 
3.153 4.808 

60,761 76,165 
(7 1.802) (36.834 

307,567 342.337 

s 397.008 414.697 
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' 

Revenues! 

EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE NATIONAL 
ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 

Statements or Activities and Changes in Net Assets 

•·or the yean ended December 31,2011 and 2010 

Executive Special Convention 
Qt.rjg P[l;!ject, f.J.m4 

s 4.396,597 

2011 2010 
Thta!s TQt.i!!s 

4.396.597 4.549,1 34 
The Togcth~r Way Plan 
Disbursed to agencies 

and dcpanmcnts 
Executive Office portion 

of Tog~tht:r Way Plan 

_ _14.003.~52) 
-···-·--·--.... _ -·--·- .J.~ ,003 ,4 :') .?1 ~.160.~0~ 

Hymnal royalties 
Sales: 

Free Will Baptist Convention Sermons 
Gifts and offerings 
Convention revenues 
Gain from insurance pi'OCC(Xjs 
Other income 

Tolal revenues 

Cost or sales: 

393.145 

2,352 

4,425 

- ----~!27 

~1 3.~~ 

- - · - -

7,619 

20,8R4 

973 -------
29.476 

Fn.-e Will B~plist Convention Sermons 
..... ...... ' ........ ...... .. -· 3?..!?.:!.1 

Net revenues 

Expenses or operation..~: 
Ex OCUli ve Oflice 
Special Projects 
Conv~tion Fund 

Total expenses 

Increase (decrease) in net assets 
Net assets ( deflcil): 

Beginning or year 

Endoryur 

397,447 

•••- ·--•e•- _,.,._,,_ ,_ 

397.447 

15.602 

____ 3.03~ 

S~}!8,~8 

~ IK.~mpanying notes to finaociar statement~ 
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5.1 39 

·-···- ···- -····· ·-·--- · .. ·•· .. 
5,139 

( 1.5,404) 

__ _ ... JA!E5 

- 60.7§ 1 

393,145 

7.6 19 

8,615 
310.866 

20.8R4 
10,967 

3 10.866 
4.425 

9.980_ --~·Q..!!Q_ 

397,447 
5. 139 

, __ }~~:tf..?. ' _ _ }~.~~?..~ .. 
364,429 767,015 

(34,968) (34,770) 

---- Q6,tl~4) __ }~2,337_ 

(1 ~.~1]71 :;,- 30~!5§7 

388,9:!6 

I I ,O.l:'i 

13,286 
319,740 

419,765 
16,5 18 

__ }~!~1~. 

832,879_ 

(59,724) 

__ :4:9,?~06 1 

34~~~17-

EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE NATIONAL 
ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 

Statements of Functional Ex~ll~ 

h nded De..-embei"J I,2011 and2010 For t e years e 

Executin SpKilll ConY en lion 

Qftice Project.~ fmHI 
Expenses or operations: 

78.928 s 112,938 Saiaries 
20,000 Housing allow11nce 

Employee fringe benefits 
42,286 

211 
and health in~urunce 

20.246 Payroll tiiX~ 17,463 116.433 Support 10 One Magazine 
34,077 

38.630 
Office rental 

22,531 Travel 
6,580 83 5.555 

Supplies, office expense 
7,125 Copier lease 

4,928 
E.xccmive Committee 

and General Board 2.564 
1.654 Dt"Precialion 4,263 4,759 Legal and audit 
2.01!5 13.723 Printing and promotion 422 733 Postage 1 mail services 322 3,196 TeiCfJhonc . 

240 International Fellowship 
4.338 Royalties and management fee 

718 Church direclOry 
Auditorium and other 

192,708 
convention ser"t'ices 

Pt:rformance penally- hotel room usage 
1.238 

Steering Committee 
1,633 

Publications Committee 
3.005 Nominating Commiucc 
1,400 

Other 

Total expenses $ 391~I. ~..!32_ -- 3~,:472 

SH accompanying notes to finaodal st.atemrnU. 
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2011 2010 I 
Total~ Totals I 

I 191,866 194,105 

20,000 20.000 

42,286 41,123 

20.457 22,079 
133,896 126.968 
34.077 34.077 

I 6 1.161 74.334 
15.488 I 12.218 

~ 7.125 7,560 

7,492 8,463 

1.654 2.334 
9 ,022 5,8, 2 

15,808 18,712 
1,155 1.584 
3.,518 4,879 

240 348 
4,338 15,7 19 

718 724 

192,708 209,001 
24,250 

1,238 
1,633 1,996 

3,005 2,123 

1.400 1.200 

- 761,9 '-~-- - _ 832,~72_ 

:: 



EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE NATCONAL 
ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 

Statements of Cas h Flo ws 

For the years ended December 3 1, 2011 and 2010 

Ca h Flows from Ooerati~ A(1i\ities 
0ctTC.ISC In net <1.\M!I~ -

Adju\lmenl\ to reconcile change in net .L~scr' to 
net uper<Hmg •ll:lr\ rtre' : 

Dcprcc•ation 

Change in depo~ll' for future conlentmnc, 
( lncrc:r~cl dccrea~c in: 

RLX'Ci\'ahlc~ 

Inventory of "Free w· 1J B 
P , . 1 aptl\1 Con\cntion Sermon<." 

rcpard ex rcn~e, 
l ncrea~e (decrease) rn: 

AdvilllCc payme 1 T n · cnne'-'L'C Mate fee for .,0 I"> . 
Funds held for Church . . . -. - con.,.enllon 
Fund' hel·' ,. D on the Rrdgc huddrng rmr>rm·emcnts 

u or 1\3\lcr Rehef 
Account-' payable and uccrucd t!xpcn,cs 

Net c>pcra tmg ilt:ll 1 itr~ 

~rease in cash and rash equivalents 
Cas h and cash equivalent~: 

Beginning of year 

End of )ear 

Cash and cas h equivaJents consist of: 
C'~h 10 bank 

Fund' held hy F ree Will BapiJ'I Foundation 

20!1 

( 3~. 770) 

1.65~ 

(500) 

035) 
1~.452) 

6.618 

42.0()() 
4.772 

C29.:l22) 
!J6X) 

( 14.703) 

( 1~.703) 

378.104 

J6J.401 

347.514 
15.887 

s 363.401 

See accompanying notes to financiaJ statement~. 
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(59.724) 

2.H5 
(2,203) 

( 17-1 J 

(6.611l) 

1.411 
36.103 
11.464 

(17 .-10-1 J 

117.404) 

395.501( 

378.104 

367.239 
10.865 

378.11)-1 

EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE NATIONAL 
ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31. 2(1 J I a nd 20 I 0 

The E .t.a:utive Office operate\ under the ausp1ccs of the National A~MJCiation ol Free Will Baptist~. Inc., and " 
governed hy rhc E-.:ecuiiiC Commmc.: of !he General Board tlf the 'atronal Assocratron of Free Will Bapti'''· Inc. 

(I ) Summary of Sie,oilicanl Accountim: Policies 
Basis of 1-'resentatjon 
Tht! fmancJal ~latcmenl \ of the Execuuve Office haw been prepared on the llccrual bas•~ ol a..:counting. 

A~ rtx~ulfcd by gen~;;rall y acc.:cptoo ac.:cuunung pnnciph.:~. The E.xe<.·uuw Olfi<X rcpon~ rnfomtatiun reganhng 11~ 
financial (XJ:>illon .u1d .u;t1viu.:~ according to three da.'>~C:. of net a.'>'e~. a.'> applicabh;; 

Unrestricted net asset\- Net a$SCL~ not subject 10 donor itnJ)(l~Cd slrpulati11n~. Unrcstric!ed net a'scl~ may he 

dt!\rgnatcd for '>peclfic pufJXl:.e<i by acuon of the gmeming hody T he amowll nf unrestricted net a\.'tCI!. '' 
pr!!:>ent.:d in !he ~tatcnlCnt' of financial positiun. and lhe n.:t cbanj!e i~ pre~emcd in the ~latcrncnh uf ac.:l rvJLi.:, . 

The Ex<X:utivc Office docs not ha~oc amount~ to rcpon 111 the remmning two cla"c.' nf net u"ct~ ~'>hich arc: 
Tcmporanly and Permanent!) Rl!.'>triclcd N.:t "''Ct\. 

Fund~ received which arc dc,ignatcd hy the donor to he rmn,ferrcd 10 rhrrd panic~ arc accounted for as lrability 
tmn>.rcti<m'. (The Together Wa) Plan. Di,a!>tCr Rdief Fund~ and Church on the Ridge). 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
For purpo'e~ of the statcnJCnh of ca'h flo~'>~. all ca\h fund'>. ca\h bank accounts and highly hqurd dch! in,rrurnem' 
purchased with an onginal mmurity of rhrcc month' or les~ arc corhidered 10 be ea\h and cash equivalents. 

~<::ail: Value_Mfasurem~ 
Fair \"aluc 1\ defined a' !he pnce thai would he nx:eivcd to ~ell an 3.\\ct or paid to rran<;fcr a liability in an orderly 
lransactron between market participants at the mea~urcmem dare and set~ our a fair value hrcrarchy wtuch g1vc' 

!he highe<;L prionty to ob~enable rnput~ ~uch ill> 4uoted pnc~ in active market~ for idcnlieal as!>t!l~ or liabi lities 
(level I), the next hrghesl pnunty to inpub from ob,o:rvabk data other than quOied pnce~ (l..e\d 2> .md the 
lo\\e\t priority to unob,crvabk inpul\ ILe1el 3). Input' an: broadly delin~..'l.l as a.-.~umption., marker participant' 
~'>ould u.'tc in pricrng an ;r~~etur hahrlity. ror the year.. emk'l.l December II. 2011 and 2010. fund\ held by FrL'C 
Will Bapll\1 Foundation were valuc:d at market u'ing Level 2 inpuL<.. 

The carryrng value of caJ.h. account~ rcccll'ah lc. accoun ts payable and <~Ccrued expcn'c' approximate fa1r value 
becau~e of the 'hort m;uuril)' of thc\C in'trumcnt,. The carrymg value<. of liabihti~ are not materiaUy different 
fmm tJ1e C\limat~..'l.l fair value' of thc!.c in\lrumenh. 

~ounts Rerejvable 
Ac~·ounts n.:ccivahlc arc deemed 10 be fully colk<t:ti b le hy managemcn1 and no rc~crvc i~ considered ncccs~ary. 

Fixed Assets 

Furniture and equipmcnl are recorded a t I..'Ol>l or at fair value a.'> of the date contributed. ExpendJturcs for 
acquisition of assc1s in exec:.~ of $500 arc capitalized and dcprecra!cd over thetr usable lives on !he '>trarghr line 
merhod. Expcnduure!. for mainrcnancc and repairs, renewal'>. and bettemlents thai do nor !>igni!icantly extend 
the Ul>eful hfe'~ of a~:.ets are expensed as. mcurred 

Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial staremenLs requrrcl- management 10 make e\llmateJ. and a.'sumpuon\ that affec1 !he 
reponed amount'> o f ru.~LS and hltbrliti~ and drsclo'>ure of conringo:nt a.'>~cts and lrabiJiti~ Ill the date of the 
!inandaJ ~l<llCillCnt s and the reponed amounts of revenues .rnd expens~ dunng !he reporting pcnod. Actual 
Tel.ulu. could d!ller from tho~ c:.tiffiiJtes. 

Subseauent Events 
Subs~..-qucm cvCnl!> have been cvalu<lltXI for potcnuaJ l'l'COgmuon and dlsclo<>urc through Apnl 2. 2012. the date 
these financull suucmem:. were available to be i.'sued. 
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EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE NATIONAL 
ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

( 1) Summary or Si&nificant Accountin& Policies. continued 
Income Taxes 
The Executive Office is exempt from Fe.dcral and ~tate income taxes: accordingly. no provi,ion for in.:omc taxe-. i~ 
made in the account, . There ., no unrelated bus inc:-.' •ocume for 20 II and 20 I 0. Furtht..'f. management hclic~e.~ 
that The Executive Office has no act•vitic' which will leallto IIICOITlC taxe~ hcmg levied. 

Compensated Absences 
Employet.-.; of the Execull\C Offiet- are entit led to pa•d \acat•on. \ick day<. and pcr..onal day.. uff. depending on 
job cla~~llication. length of servit·c und other factorl>. It i~ impractical to e~timatc the amount of comperu.ation for 
future ab,cnce' and accordingly. oo hab1lity has bet.-n recorded in the accompunymg financial st:ucment~ The 
Executive Office's pohcy ~~ to rccogni1e the co<.t of compen~ated ab,enccs when acrually pa1d to the employee~. 

Chan&es in Presentntion 
Certam amount.; in the prior penod financial ~tatement' may have hccn rcclas,1tied to conform to current 
presentation. Thc.>e changes. if any, had no effect on net a<.seL<. as reponed 

Comparntive Information 
The financial \tatements mcludc certain prior-year ~ummari1ed comparative mfom1ation m total hut not by net 
asset class. Such information doe.\ not indude sufficient detail to coru.titute a prc\entatioo tn confonnity wllh 
generally accepted a~.o-counting princ1ple' Accord1ngly. such mfonnation ~hould he read in COnJunction with 
linanc1al statement~ for the year ended JA-occmhcr 31. 20 I 0. from wh1ch the 'ummari1cd information was dcm·cd. 

(2) Pension 
The Executive Office panicipatcs m the master pen.,.on plan of the Board of Retirement and ln.wrancc of the 
National Association of Free Will BaptiSt\. Inc. The plan 1s ~'Ontnbutory and i' matched up to a max1mum of 5rf­
of compensation. Employees may panic1pate at date of employment. Pens1on expen'c amounts to $9.343 in 2011 
and $9.343 in 2010. The pen~ion plan i~ a defined contribution plan. Under the plan. an account " mamtamed for 
each part1c1pant and upon relircment the purtk1pant can either receive a lump-!>um distribution or pun:hase of one 
of !tCVCnll type.' of annuity contracts 

(3) Operatin& Leases 

(4) 

(5) 

(6) 

11lc Executive Office has entered into noncancclahlc lea~e arrangements rclaLing to a copy machine. Total 
expcno;es amounted to $7.125 in 20 II and S7 .560 in 20 I 0 The rnimmum annual payment~ required are $6.271 for 
2012 through 201 3; and $2,614 for 20 14. 

Fun her, the Executive Office rents office space from the National Office Building located in Antioch. Tennes~cc. 
Tht: lease agreement is cancelable wi th 90 day wntten not1ce. Office lea!>e expense amounted to $34,077 m 2011 
and 2010. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 
The Executive Office ~erves the Free W11l Bapust denomination wuh re,pect to convention planmng and other 
admmtstrative 'erv1ccs. The Executive Office ha~ an accounting risk of loss to the extent of un~ecured 
accounts receivable and fun<h held by Free Will Baptist Foundation. Further. bank balance!. in excess of the 
amount of FDIC inJ.urancc are ~ubject to rbk. of a<..-counting IO!t!t . Management d~ not anticipate nonperformance 
by the fmanciallnstitution!t. 

One Maeazine of the National Association of Free WiD Baptists 
The denomination began the publication • One Magazine - in 2005 to combme the publication~ of ccn am Free 
Will Baptist agcncie-. and organizauons. One Magazine IS funded hy contributions from each of thc'>e agcnc1cs 
and organi7.ations. The Executive Office pmvided S 133.896 in 20 II and S 126.968 m 2010. 

Commitments for Future Conventions 
Contractual obligauons for facility use at future conventions bave been executed through 2019. Deposits 
amounting to $23.447 in 20 11 and $22.947 in 2010 are recorded as other assets. Additional cost' for facilitie\ 
only through 20 19 amount to approximately $300.000 and are paid in the respective year of the convention. 
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RXF.CUTIVE OFFICE OF THE NATI?N.AL . 
AS~O~lA TION OF FREE WILL BA~!TS. INC. 

Notes to F'maocia1 Statements, conttn 

Th T , •ther Way Plan 
be Way Plap . , · f mh r~eivcd from e ogc 

The Togd r hie fur receiving and dJ'burs•ng u ~ , . nd c:oon.•rauvc fund' are 
Office 1' re-.pon" ·A" Department or ag~.;nc~ · a ··-The Exccuuve ._ . arc disbur'>ed 10 the nan""' . . th.:se tran~action' for 

Dc~ignated contnnuuon' 1 The follow1ng summar11~ 
program. . rllonate .,baring arrangernen . 
disbu~ed based on th~ ~~~Oil a' compared to 20llllotah. 2011 2010 
the year endoxi I:X't:emhcr , . I.u.liD. 

Receipts: 
Alabama 

t\rkan'~ 
Califomia 
Color.1do 
Florida 
Gcorg.1a 
111inob 
Indiana 
Kentucky 
Mich1 gan 

Mi~~ouri 
New Mexico 
North Carolina 
Ohl(l 
Oklahoma 
South Carohna 
Tennessee 
Texa!> 
Utah 
Virginia 
W~t Vtr~'lma 

Canada 
Nonhw~t A~~ociauon 
Contribution' totahng $2.500 or les~ 

Total recc1pts 

Disbursements: 
Executive Office 
Free Wtll Baptb t Bible College 

FWB Foundation 
Horne Misstons 
lntemauonal Mi"1nn~ 
Master'' Men 
Retirement & ln~urance 
Commi,~ion for 111eological tnu:gnry 

Histoncal CommissiOn 
Medul Commi~~ion 
Music CommissiOn 
H.tU~ale Free Will Baptbt College 

Other 

Total disbun.cmcnts 

DesjgnateO Cooperative 'I!!lru 7 13.R48 
~6 9 •01 13.52 

4. I£ ... 763.597 
., :!!3.34 1 876.353 

653.01~ I •.£. •q 14A73 
14.649 .. , ... 

10 
458 

.t()R.793 
136.731 

1o.& n 
115 

209.3~ 
625 

431.161 
8,484 

38,109 
I 83.498 
543,273 
617.578 
151.25 1 
110,441 

6.lS27 
4.729 
31.3~5 

818 

s 15.570 
259.931 

2.417 
764.770 

2.354.968 
8,578 
5.196 

704 
416 
734 
831 

41.903 
101.523 

$ 3.557,541 
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4.707 4.717 39.204 
6.5 26 I 1.366 

f>.(>6
8 9 403 5 I 2.659 

20.610 42 . . 91 2W 
26.165 I 62J:!96 I . . 

1.1 I 5 17.928 I 8,277 
8,755 11.690 

~:~~ 218.358 21 5.295 
)6.t 9.689 9.062 9

•( L3L.L\8 699.756 
205.487 u "..,... 

875 9.359 10.091 
37,108 75.2 I 7 60.742 

5 224.613 228.430 4 1.
1 
L 9"9 667,159 

167.656 710. 1;6 619.494 
548 618. -

37.715 188.966 175,054 
6.45 I 116.892 204.915 
1.912 1.912 3.438 

6 8,173 10.376 
IJ4 4 os~ 6. 183 . _, 
I ,454 
1.234 32.579 60.97 I 

000 2.876 
2·000 2

' I 039 
1.381 2.199 . 

377.575 
106.141 
27,689 
t!3.067 

106.142 
64,1)()7 
64.607 

2.307 
2.307 
2.307 
2.307 

839,056 

4,.;!96.597 4 549.134 - •-.-

393.145 
366.072 

30.106 
847.837 

2.461.110 
73,185 
69.803 

3.01 1 
2.723 
3.04 I 
3.138 

4 I .903 
101,523 

4,396.597 

388,926 
36lS.290 

30,006 
936.961 

2.524,946 
7 I ,863 
68,31 I 

2,881 
2.669 
2,91 I 
2.999 

44. 142 
104.229 

4,549~4 



Executive Office 

2013 
EXECUTIVE OFFICE 

ADMINISTRATIVE BUDGETS 
FINANCIAL REPORT 

2011 2011 2012 
PROJECTED EXPENSES Budget Actual a' Budget 

Salaries $189,689.41 $181 ,221 .20 $185,659.55 
Housing 20,00000 20,000 04 20.000.00 
Socral Secunty 21,167 35 20.246 06 20,64172 
Retrrement 9,484.47 9,342 84 7,074.64 
Employees Insurance 32,874 48 30,455 92 35,998.71 

(OentaiiOisabilrty/HealthllifefTravel) 
Conventron Rermbursements (81 ' 165 33) (76,175 28) (n,15171) 
Audrtrngllegal 3,500.00 4,758 50 
Coprer Lease 7.50000 7,125 26 
EqUipment Maintenance 500.00 000 
Computer Supplies 3,000.00 3,054 31 
Executrve Committee 3,000.00 2.563 60 
General Insurance 4.000.00 2,487.24 
lnt'l Fellowship of FWB Churches 240.00 24000 
Leadershrp Conference 100.00 000 
OHrce Rental 34,076.88 34,076 88 

($1 14 per sq. ft. x 2,491) 
OHice Supplies/Expense 2.500.00 1,216.20 
Other 100.00 000 
Postage 1,000.00 73298 
Printing 1,000.00 652.65 
Promotion 2,000.00 1,432.41 
Books/Dues/Registrations 2,000.00 2,309.80 
Telephone 3,250.00 3,196 27 
Travel 37,077.98 22.531 43 
Christmas Bonus (Extra Week's Salary) 1,641.22 7,017 79 
Extra Week Ret. 1n lieu of 4th week 1,641 .22 874.12 

vacat1on begrnnrng 16th year of service 
One MagazJne 116,433.44 116,433 48 
Contingency Fund 0..00 Q.QO 

Totals $41§,§11.12 S3~5.Z~J.ZQ 

PROJECTED INCOME 

The Together Way Plan 
CooperatiVe Gifts $390,611.12 $377,575.25 
Des~gnated Gifts 19,000.00 15,569.18 

Travel Rermbursement 2,000.00 849.24 
Other Income 5,000.00 19,407.88 
Surplus Revenue from 2011 0.00 Q.OO 

Totals $41§,§11.12 i11J.40] .55 

•Budget comparison does not Include depreciation expense. 
••Includes employee's Insurance reimbursement • 

3.100.00 
7.600.00 

100.00 
2,000.00 
2,500.00 
2.250.00 

240.00 
25.00 

34.076.88 

1.750.00 
s1 .n 

700.00 
700.00 
500.00 

2,000.00 
3.250.00 

30,000.00 
0.00 
0.00 

116,433.44 
Q..QQ 

$399,500.00 

$375.000.00 
16,000.00 
1,000.00 
7,500.00 

Q.OO 

$3~~.500.00 

Budgets 

2013 
Budget 

$214,758.70 
20,000.00 
22,965.99 
11 ,625.49 
41 '140.53 .. 

(96, 736.26) ••• 
3,986.00 
7.400.00 

100.00 
2,500.00 
2,500.00 
3,000.00 

240.00 
25.00 

34,076.88 

1,500.00 
0.00 

750.00 
1,000.00 

750.00 
2,500.00 
3,250.00 

27,000.00 
0.00 

1,641 .22 

116,433.44 
Q..QQ 

$422,40§.99 

$385,000.00 
16,500.00 
1,000.00 

10,000.00 
9,906,99 

i422,40§.9~ 

... Expennslncluded In Convention Budget consists of the following : 
Convention Manager, Registration and Aaalstant Registration Coordinator's Compensation Packages. 
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Executive Office 
Salary Breakdown 

sALARY BREAKDOWN 

2011' 2012 2013 

Executive Secretary 
S44 166 n $45.450. 11 (2 0°o) 

S45,366 77 Salary 
20,000.00 20,00000 20,000.00 

Housing and Utilities 
9 ,617 52 (15 30°1•) 10 013.67 (15 30"·) 10.001 12 (15 30"'c.) 

3,272.51 (5~.) Soc1al Security 
2,266.34 (5°1>) 000 

Retirement 
6,652 13 7,303.16 

Insurance (Health/DentaJJLrfe) 6,229.21 
474 75 471 96 

DlsabllityfTravel 461 .33 
Q,.QO Q,.QO 

Chnstmas Bonus Q..QO 
NOTE: Office car furn1shed. 

84,346.76 61 ,31117 66.511.62 

58,979.29 (2.0'l'o) Execuuve Administrator 
58,979 29 57.82263 

4,511.92 (7.65"o) Salary 
4,511.92 (7.65"·) 4.423.45 (7 65%) Social Security 

2.691 t4 (5°\.) 2.948.96 (5°o) 
Retirement 2,948.96 (5°o) 

13,512.31 14,444.69 
Insurance (Health/DentaJJLife) 12,263.92 

40763 406.80 
DrsabihtyfT ravel 414 64 

!LQQ Q...QQ 0.00 Chnstmas Bonus 
NOTE. Offace car fum1shed. 81 ,291 66 79 138 73 79057 56 

Execu1we Accountant 
45.454 15 46.363.23 (2 O"o) 

Salary 46,363 23 
3,477 24 (7 65"'o) 3.546 79 (7 65"\.) 

Social Secunty 3.614 99 (7 ss•.) 
2.272 71 (5°o) 2.318.16 (5%) 2,318.16 (5"1.) Retirement 
7 129 02 7.591 .32 6,480.93 

273.54 Insurance 
268.16 D1sablhty 273.54 

00.0 0,.00 
Christmas Bonus ~100 

59,942.45 58.601 30 60,093.05 

Yearbook Coordinator! 
Registration Coord1nator 

36,980.12 36.215.80 38,980.12 (2.o···> 
Salary 

0.00 2.246.65 
Vacation Days/Retirement 0.00 

2 923.51 (7 650fo) 3,154.02 (7 .65%) 
Social Secunty 3,039.32 (7 65%) ' 1,949.01 (5%) 1,910.79 (5°1o) Retirement 1,949 01 (5%) 

7.129.02 7,591.32 
Insurance 6,480.93 

225.47 229.98 22998 Disabtlity 
0,.00 0,.00 

Chnstmas Bonus lli.~ 

51 ,428.98 50,404 59 54,153.30 

Assistant Yearbook Coordinator/ 
RegiStration Coordinator 

000 22.737 10 (2 O"o) 
Salary 0.00 

1. 739.39 (7 .65° o) 
Soctal Secunty 1,136.86 (5•.) 
Rehrement 4.428.27 
Insurance 134.15 
Drsablllty 0,.00 
Chnstmas Bonus 

30,175.77 

'No ralaes were g iven in 2011. 
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Convention 

CONVENTION BUDGETS 
Financial Report 

National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. 

PROJECTED REVENUE 
Sooth Fees 
Host State (Tennessee) 
Loca~ Church ReJ)(esentation Fees ($150) 
Offenngs 
Printing Income 
Reimbursements 
State Representatioo Fees ($150 per church) 
Trucl< Reimbursement 
Other 

TOTALS 

PROJECTED EXPENDITURES 
Auditorium 
Printing and Promotion 
Convention Offi~ 
Convention Personnel 

Meals 
Travel 
lodging 

Convention Officials 
Voluntoor Staff 
Honorariums 
Decorator Services 
Meal Functions 
Executive Committee 

Meal and Motel Expenses 
Pre-Convention Expenses 
National Committee Expenses 

Sub-Totals 

Surplus Revenue 

{Operating Capital lor Future Cooventions} 

TOTAlS 

July 15-18,2012 
Memphis, Tennessee 

2011 
Budget 

$28,000.00 
40.000.00 

1,000.00 
9,000.00 

10,000.00 
5,000.00 

230,000.00 
1,450.00 

50000 

32Y..SO.QO 
~-

155,800.00 
33.063.47 

105,272.24 

4,812.00 
6,214.40 
7,345.50 
5,442.50 
6.813.90 
1,000.00 
8,318.00 
1,170.10 

3.600.00 
17,246.70 
14 ooo.oo 

370,698.81 

(45 748.81} 

S32USQ.OO 

"Budget COmPIIri•on does not Include deprecl.tiOI'I expen.., 
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2011 
Actuars• 

$32,856.50 
40.000.00 

900.00 
8,614.68 
9,868.82 
6.507.96 

227,240.n 
2,422.65 
1.05116 

32L4§~ 

170,496.67 
31.185.71 
99,894.74 

4,995.09 
s.sn.37 
1,318.20 
5,447.40 
6.131.40 
1,400.00 
8 ,831.53 
1,145.95 

3.20000 
11,704.17 
11,801.26 

364,429.49 

(34966.~) 

$329.462.54 

Budgets 

2012 
Budget 

$26,000.00 
42,000.00 

1,000.00 
8.500.00 
9,000.00 
6,500.00 

340.000.00 
2,000.00 

50000 

~00 

164,406.60 
31 ,563.47 

142,173.00 

4,512.00 
5,410.25 
3.462.97 
4,747.34 
s.na.9a 
1,600.00 
9,350.00 
1,917.84 

3,200.00 
21,300.00 
1~ OOO.QQ 

414,480.45 

21,019.55 

.1:!35,500.~ 

CONVENTION BUDGETS 
Financial Report 

National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. 

PROJECTED REVENUE 
Booth Fees 
Host State (Tennessee) 
Local Ctlurch Representation Fees ($150) 
Offerings 
Printing Income 
Reimbursements 
State Representation Fees ($150 per church) 
Truck Reimbursements 
Other 

TOTALS 

PROJECTl:.D EXPENDIT\JRES 
AUDITORIUM 
Rental/Arena/Meeting Space 
Flowers 
Other 

First Aid Staff 
Liability, ASCAP, BMI, CCLI Insurance 
Music/Equipment 
Offering Buckets 
Signs 

July 15·18, 2012 
Memphis, Tennesaee 

Sound SystemJStage Hands!AV Equipment 
Boom/Rigging 
Usher Badges/Usher Room Table. Chairs 

Police Security/Badge Checkers 
Streaming Video Elcpense 
General Board AV 

TOTALS 

PRINTlNG AND PROMOTION 
Convention Materials 

Digest of Reports 
Programs 

Photos 
Pre-Convention Printing/Art 
ONE Magazine 

TOTALS 

9,000.00 
3,000.00 

100.00 
3,500.00 

17 463.47 

33,063.47 

A-47 

8,434.99 8,000.00 
2.960.07 3.000.00 

0.00 100.00 
2.327.17 3,000.00 

17.463,48 17.463.11 

31,185.71 31,583.47 I 
l 
t 

I 

l 



----

Convention 
Budgets Budgets convention 

2011 2011 2012 
2011 2011 2012 Budget Actuals Budget 

Budget Actuals Budget 
CONVENTION OFFICE 

CONVENTION OFFICIALS Audit 
$5.000 00 $4 263 44 $5,00000 Moc~«ator - Tim York 

$30000 $300.00 $25000 
Convention Manager Package 

62.599 28 62.599 32 65.264 68 Travel 
216 00 21600 216 00 

OffiCe Car 
000 0.00 12' ()()() 00 Meals (18 meals@ $12 00 each} 

833 40 827 16 10800 
Convention Manager Computer 

000 0.00 3.00000 Lodging (6 mghts@ $18 00) 
1QQ.OO 400.00 4QQJlQ 

Convention Courtesy Car 
5000 000 50.00 Honorar1um 

1,749.40 1,743.16 974.00 
Equ1pment Rentals 

Computers Pnnters 
500 00 977 56 90000 Clertt • Randy Bryant 

25290 252.90 500 00 
Copters (3)/Paper 

2.50000 1.976.94 3.09500 Travel 
21600 216.00 21600 Furn1ture/Rad1os, etc. 

1,035 00 924.00 1.775 00 Meals (18 meals@ $12.00 each) 
725.40 839.02 741 78 Information Tables 

000 000 8800 Lodg1ng (6 nights@ $123 63) 
400 00 400.00 40Q.OO Media Room Tables 

1,857.78 
000 000 20000 Honoranum 

1,594.30 1,707.92 
OH1ce Expense/Supplies 

3,00000 1 676 86 3,500 00 Postage 
50000 422.37 50000 Assistant Moderator - William Smith 

216.00 216.00 216.00 Pre-Reg1strat1on Salanes 
1261120 12.611 20 29,23509 Meals (18 meals@ $12.00 each) 

~4Q 719.16 74.1~ 
Payroll Taxes 

964 76 964 76 2,236.48 Lodg1ng (6 nights@ $123.63) 
1,049.40 935.16 957.78 Pre-Reg1S1ra11on Staff 

3,20000 2 752.50 3,696.00 Payroll Taxes 
3 1200 21058 282.74 Aaalatant Clerk - Ernie lewis 

216.00 21600 21600 Pre-Reg1strabon (Supplies. Postage) 
9 500 00 7,399.83 8.000 00 Meals (18 meals@ $12 00 each) 

833.40 845.16 741 78 Reg,strallon (Supplies) 
1.50000 1,143 22 1,500.00 Lodging (6 mghts@ $123 63) 

1.049.40 1.Q61.16 957.78 Reg1strat1on Computers!Pnnters 
1 900 00 1,65000 1,750.00 Telephone/Internet 

tQQ.QO m!.§ 100.00 
5,442.50 5,447.40 4,747.3-4 

TOTALS (Includes applicable tax and park ing) TOTALS 
105,272.24 99,894.74 142,173.00 

VOLUNTEER STAFF 
797 40 366.30 865 41 CONVENTION PERSONNEL 

Impact Coordinator - Ken Akers MEALS 
Lodging (7 n1ghts@ $123 63) Debbte Burden (24 meals @ $12 00 each} 

28800 28800 28800 
664 50 570.50 618 15 Kerth Burden (33 meals@ $12.00 each) 

39600 396.00 39600 Keyboardist - Deena Armstrong Vernon Florence (18 meals @ $12 00 each) 252 00 25200 21600 Lodg1ng (5 mghts@ $123 63) 

741 78 

Dan Goodfellow (24 meals @ $12 00 each) 
28800 288.00 28800 

797 40 756.60 Melody Hood (27 meals@ $12 00 each} 324.00 324 00 324.00 Music Coordinator - Chris Truett Steve Pate (18 meals@ $12 00 each) 
21600 21600 216.00 Lodg1ng (6 n1ghts@ $123 63) Eric Thomsen (24 meals@ $12 00 each} 
252.00 252.00 288.00 

Photographer - Rodney Yerby 741 78 
Ryan Lew1s (33 meals@ $12.00 each) 

39600 396.00 396.00 
797 40 756.60 Convention Interns (8) 

2.400 00 2.583.09 2.100.00 Lodg1ng (6 mghts@ $1 23.63) 

618.15 833.40 1.05120 TOTALS 
4,812.00 4,995.09 4,512.00 Pianist - Brian Floyd 

TRAVEL Lodg1ng (5 nights@ $123 63) 

930 30 798.70 865 41 Debbie Burden 
000 0.00 0.00 Taping - Mike Anderson Ke1th Burden 

30000 250.00 250.00 Lodging (7 mghts@ $123 63) Vernon Florence 
550.00 56580 527.25 Dari Goodfellow 
30000 300 00 250.00 Translator Rooms 

1,329 00 1,201.00 618.15 Melody Hood 
30000 306.40 25000 lodging (5 n1ghts@ $123 63) 

000 0.00 9000 Steve Pate 
30000 30000 25000 Lodg1ng (5 nights@ $18.00) EriC Thomsen 
46440 50090 25000 

~ 630.50 618 15 Ryan Lew1s 
30000 21269 250.00 Usher Coordinator - Billy Walker ConventiOn Truck (Fuet!Meals!Tratler Rental) 2.90000 3 769 02 2,583.00 Lodg1ng (5 mghts@ $123 63) 

5,ns.98 

Staff Expense Money 
800.00 672,56 80000 

6,813.90 6,131 .40 TOTALS (Includes applicable tax and parking) TOTALS 
6,214.40 6,en.37 5,410.25 

HONORARIUMS 
20000 20000 200.00 LODGING 

Thomas Bee 
20000 200.00 20000 Ke1th Burden ( 11 n•ghts @ S 18 00) 

132 00 000 198.00 Garnett Reid 
20000 200.00 20000 Vernon Florence (5 mghts @ $123.63) 

725 40 000 Paul Bryant 
200.00 20000 20000 618.15 Dan Goodfellow (7 01ghts@ S18.00) 

93030 0.00 M1ke Gladson 
20000 200.00 20000 126.00 

200.00 
Melody Hood (8 OIQhts@ $18.00) 

96720 958.88 14400 Jon Cannon 
20000 0.00 Ryan L9W1s (11 n1ghts@ $18.00) 

198 00 19083 Em1elew1s 
20000 200.00 200.00 198.00 

Pastor's Conference Speaker-Rick Cash 
200.00 

Steve Pate (7 nights@ 510.00) 
93030 

20000 20().00 
6000 70.00 

Pastor's Conference Speaker-Gary Fry 
Eric Thomsen (7 mghts@ $18 00) 

797 40 827 16 12600 Convention Interns (14 nights@ $141 63) 
2.664 90 1,804.04 1,982.82 1,600.00 1,400.00 1,600.00 CompRooms 

Q.QQ (2.522.71) Q.QQ TOTALS 

TOTALS (Includes applicable tax and parking) 7,345.50 1,318.20 3,462.97 
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Hill, Harper & Associates 
Certified Public Accountants 

Executive Committee of the 

lrukpendcat Audltoa' Report 

General Board ofthe National 
Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. 

We have audited the slatements of lioancial position of Bulfdmg Serv1ces Fund of the National Association of 
Free Will Baptists, Inc., (a nonprofit Organization) as of December 31, 20 II and 20 I 0, and the related 
statements of activities and changes in net assets. and cash Oows for the years then ended. These financial 

statements are the responsibility of Building Services' management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion 
on these financial statements based on our audits. rhe prior year summarized comparative information has 
been derived &om the financial statements and. in our repon dated March 15. 20 I I, we ex:pressed an 
unqualified opinion on those financial slatements. 

W.: conducted our audits in accordance with auditing swndards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable a~surance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, oo a test 

basis. evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating 
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our 
opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements reterred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Building Services Fund of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc., as of 
December 31, 20 II and 20 I 0, and changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Fl'llnk:Jia, TeDJI~ 
April 2, 2012 

I.....,WilH IIM r)puoll-
ro~o,....,.. 

E....., R. UaiJOOI' 

6JS 417 • 6.1S1 

...... ~ 
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BUiLDING SERVICES FUND OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF 

FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 

Statement'i of FiiUincial Position 

December 31 , 2011 and 20 10 

Current assets: . • .. 
Cash and cal>h equivalents. 

ca,h in bani. 
bel·• h'- Free Will Bapti~t Fuundatllln Fumh u ' 

Al-cOUDt' rcce1vablc 

Total current assets 

Property, plant and equipment: 
Land and land lmpro,.cm.."flL~ 

Building 
Build1ng ;.:nico <lqwpment 
Departmental work~talion.' 

Lcs~ accumulated dcpreciauoo 

Liabilities 

Net assets: 

· ment Net property, plant and eqwp 

Unrestricted net as.o;ets: 
Uodesignated : 

On.' rat ion · 
r- . """'" plant and eqUipment et 10, ~tment 10 pro,.-·.,· 

Designated: . 
StcwM<hhip promouon 
Resenc for telephone S)'!>tem replacement 

Total net assets 

t financial stalemt:nts. Set! accompanying notes o . 

A-SS 

2011 2010 

s :! 16.022 164.749 

~9.683 ~7 .460 

265.705 212.209 

7.19~ UU70 

:!72.899 :!30.579 

218.896 218.896 

1.563.210 1.5l>3.21 0 

125.107 I J 5.822 

77,228 77.228 

1.984.441 1.975.156 

1.481.773 1,410.187 

502.66M 564.969 

$ 775,567 795.54M 

$ 

223.216 183.119 

502.668 564.969 

725.884 748Jl88 

18,492 23.024 

31.191 24.436 

49.683 47.460 

775.567 795,548 

$ 775,567 795,548 
-



BUILDING SERVICES FUND OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF 
FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 

Statement-; of Acthities and Chang~ in Net A'!>el!. 

Fo,- the years ended December 31 . 20 1 I and 2010 

20 1 I 

R~erve for 

;tewardship 
Telephone 

S)slem 
Revenues: 0-l.lerali!Jn'i Educalli_ln Relllill:rments Total. 

Buildmg rental 

Rcirnbur~cmcnt from dcparlmt!nt!o 
lntert:\1 income 
Other 

Net revenues 
Expenses: 

Expenses incurred for departments: 
Emplo)'L'C ht-ncfir, 
Ste"-anhhrp office c~pcn'c 
Lcadc~hrp confereO<:c 
Propcn) and IJabJill) tn\urance 
Telephone 
Ma1lmom and other 

Building operating expense~: 
Sal;mc' 
Paymll I.Jlt" 

Employ .. :c hent!fil, 
Janironal ~cr> ICL'l> 
DcprL'Ctution 
Audu and legal 
Genc:ral irl\uram.:c 

Supplre' and office cxpcn'c 
Utrhric' I telephone 
Rcparr~ and maintenance 
Mallroum and other 

TotaJ expenses 

Excess of expenses over revenues 
F:~pendilur~ for stewardship education 
Provision for telephone system replacement 

Decrease in net assets 
Net assets at beginning or year 

Net assets at end of year s 

See accompanying notes to financiaJ statemenrs. 

'j, :!7lJ.710 
415.150 

I.JO I 

6<J6,161 

:?o5.07J 
5.174 

22.575 
45.111 
17.896 
63.572 

419.401 

71.453 
5.406 

:?7, 194 
34.543 
71.586 
4.345 

15.737 
9.509 

36,617 
9,724 

11 ,964 

298.138 

717 .. 'iJ9 

(2J .378 ) 
5.174 

(t\.000 ) 

(22.:?04 J 
748.088 

725.1!84 

A- S6 

642 

6-12 

642 
15.174) 

(4.53.:?) 
.:?3,024 

18,492 

755 

755 

755 

6,()(XJ 

6.755 
24.436 

31.1\11 

279.710 
415,150 

1.397 
1.30 I 

697.55!) 

265,073 
5.174 

.:?2.575 
45, 111 
17.896 
63,572 

419.401 

71.453 
5.466 

27.194 
34.543 
71.586 
4.345 

15.737 
9,509 

36,617 
9,724 

11.964 

298.138 

717.539 

( 19.981) 

( 19.981) 
795.548 

775.567 

2010 
Totals 

280,030 
443.892 

1.450 
1.484 

7:?6.856 

282.344 
4.846 

23.859 
46.548 
.:?6.279 
66.249 

450.125 

68.607 
5.337 

.:?4.831! 
37,483 
74,767 

2,679 
17.813 
14.199 
36,900 
25.521 
II ,912 

320,056 

770.11!1 

(43.325) 

143,325) 
838.1!73 

795,548 

BUILDING SERVICES FUND OF ~HE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF 
FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 

Statement<~ of ca~h tlo"~ 

nded December 31.2011 and 2010 For the years e 

11 Operating Activities {;ash flowsrom 
()ecrcusc 10 net assets . 

'r-llill'' a~IIVIIIC\ , 'I decrcru.e m net a~~cl~ to net ope ' .., Ad U!>Ulll!llb to tL--conc• e J . 
Depreciauon 

Decrease in reccrvahles 

Net operating anivirico; 

Cash Fins from Investing Ac~vi~es 
Purchase of propcny and eqmpmcm 

el mvc~ting activ 1Uc~ 

. h nd cash equivalents 
Increase m cas 

8 
. . 1 ts t beginning of year 

Obh and cash eqwva en • a 

Cash and cash equi,alents. at end of yur 

Ca~b and cash equivalents consists of: 
Ca!oh in bank 

b F Will Bapti,1 Fmmda11un Fund~ held )' ree 

Sft accompanying notes to financiaJ statements. 

A-S7 

~ 

s (19.9&1! 

71.586 

11.176 

62.781 

l9.285) 

(9.:!1551 

53.496 
212.:!09 

s 265.705 

s 216.022 
49.61!3 

s 265.705 

lllli) 

(43.3251 

7-U67 

13.370 

44.812 

('25.278) 

t25.278l 

19.514 
192.675 

212,209 

164.749 
47.460 

212.20\1 



BUILDING SERVICES FUND OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF 
FREE WllJL BAPTISTS, INC. 

Notes to FJnandal Statements 

December Jl, 2011 and 20lO 

Building Services operates und~'f the auspices of the N I' 
management commill.:c chaired by t".' ._. . . . a IOnal Assr~t;iation of Free Will Baptisls. Inc. II.JJ·' . 
The ne cXtX:UIIve Sl'CfCl'try of h N . , u IS gov~::med by a 

. m;magcment commillt.'C is I."'mposcd of th d' . ' . I e atJonal Association of Free Will Bapti~ts Inc 
Facrhty. e lfectors of the lkpanmcnrs which occupy the N . l , . 

· at1ona Offices 

(I) Summary of Significant Accounting Policiss 
Basis OfPreseqtation 

The financial sratemems of Building Services h b 
. . . . . ave een prepared on the accrual oasis of account in 

As rcquu·cd hy generally accepted . . . g. 
. . . . . account1ng pnnc1pleli. Building Sc: .· . . 

JXI!'IltiOn and acttvUit:S aL'COrding to three cla~ses of net as•-t ,."''CCS reports mformat lon rcgaming its financial 
· · ·"" s, as app tcahle: 

Unr<.-s tricted net assets • Net assets not suh·i·~·t t ·'· . . d · · · ,~~ o u.mur Imposed ~t 1 · 
es•gnarcd for specific purposes hy action of the ovallin . . •pu auons. Unn:strictt.'d net assets nllly be 

presented in the statements of financial ..... ,. 't. B d ,._ g b()dy. The amount of unrelitricted net assets is 
"' ·'' •on, an t • .., net change · · · · · · 

Building s . · d 1~ pre."Cnled 10 the statements of activities. 
ervJces Ot.-s not have amount~ to '"""" · .__ . . Te .1 . -,.. .... m IrK; remammg two cl· . . f . 

mporan y and Pt:nrutnently Restricted N A . a~~es o nt.1 assets whu.:h arc; et ssets. 
Casb and Cash Eguivalfnrs 
For purpose~ of the staiCmcnt of ca.~h nows B . ld. S . . 
liquid dcht instrumems purchased with an . •. _u•a/ mg c:"•ce.~ con.~tdcrs all cash funds, ca.~h hank accounts and h. hi 

ong• n· matunty of three months or l·s be . . '!! y 
Accounts Receivable c. s to ca~h and cash equivalents. 

Account~ receivable are deemed 1 b f 
o e ully collt-ctible by management and flO . . 

Pro"" rt .., . reserve IS cons rdered IIC\:essary 
-o<><-Y· !:.!ant and Egwpment · 
Property, plant and equipmt..-nt are nx:nrdcd . I . . 
a<V> · .. f a cost or at fa1r v<~lue a r ,_ __ .• 
..,ulsllron o assets in excess o f $2 000 ar •. . . )' s o luc uate contrihut<.•tJ. Expenditures ~ 

method. ExpeodituTt:S for mainten~ce an~ <:<!pH~ Lled and depredated over tlk.'ir us:~blc li Veli on the strai ht I' or 
the IL~ fi I l'fi f l'epliii'S. renew-,ds and /Je(t h , g me 

e u ' es o assets are expensed as incurred. . ' erments t at do nor significantly extend 

Use of F./)timate:~ 

The preparation of financial statements """' · . 
reported · ...,uues management to make ( 

. amounts of as.~l'IS and liabilities and disclosure of . es zmate~~ and assumpliol'lS that affect the 
tinanctal statement.~ and the reported amo . f contmgcnt a!iscts and li:~hilitie.<; at rhe date of the 
results ~"'uld differ from ttlose estimates. unts o revenues and c;~;pcn.~ during the reporting period. Actual 

fair Value Mt:asunments 

The carrying value of cash, accounts receivable 
because of the h · • account~ payable and accrued 

· . s ort_ maturity of these instruments. 7ne ca i . . . .e_:~~_penses approximate fair value 
from the e.<;t•mated fazr values of these instruments. rry ng V<~lues of llah•hues are not materially different 

Compen~ated Absences 

Employees of Building Servi~ are emir led to . . . . 
classification, length of serv,··- and "- r pa•d vacatJon, p:ud stck days and personal daVit off ..... .....,..... ' ...1.. 
(. ~-- Olna .actOf'S II . . . . J" • uc:,~ .. umg on 1"" 
Borl~ture ab_sences and accordingly, flO liahility has b:n'':;;:al. to estimHtc t.hc amount of compensation 

uJ ng ServJces' policy is to recogni7..e the cost of compe cd h rn the accompanying financ ial statements. 
loromr Tan:~ n...at a .c;ences when actually paid to employees. 

~uilding Services is c.llempr from Federal and state i 
rn the accou 1 The . IICOmc taJtes; liUXlrdingly no · · (; , 

. . ~ s. ·re IS no unrclatcd business income fUf' 2011 • provlston or mcomc ta:~~Cli is made 
Bulldmg Servrces has no activities which will lead to inoo"""t be.antl 2?10. Further, managcmt.'llt hclicvcs that 

""" ax~ mg lev1ed. 

A-sa 

BUILDING SERVICES FUND OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF 
FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 

Noles to Financ.ial Statements. continued 

( 1) Summan M.S!enifkant Accounting .f!ylicii!S. contiq~ 
Qm,~g; jn Prrscnhtlion 
Certain amounts in the prior period financial statcmcms may have been reclassified HI conform to current pre~entation. 
These changes, if uny. had no effect on net a<>sets as reported. 

Subs<quent Event:! 
Subsequent evelllli have hcen evaluated for po1cntial recognition and disdosure thn>ugh April 2, 2012. the date 
t'lwlc financial state~TJ~::nl~ were available to be issued. 

(2) Conmaratin lnforttllltion 
Tile financial statements include ccnain prior-year summarized comparative information in total but not by net assets 
as designated. Such information docs not inclodc sufficient dc..1ail to t.-onstitule a presentation in confomtity with 
generally wx:ept~'l.l accounting principles. Accordingly, sucb information should be read in conjunt.1ion wi th linaOl-ial 
sl.atements {or the year ended D«:emher 31. 20 I 0. from which the summ<~riled information was derived. 

(3) Pe~iOIJ 

Building Services participates in the master pcn~it>n plan of the Board o { Retirement and Insurance of the National 
Association of Free Will Bapti~ts. Inc. The plan is contributory and is matched up to a maximum of 5% of 
compensation. Employees may participate at dare of employment. Pension expense alll<,Untoo to $3,756 in 2011 
and $3,682 in 20 10. The pension plan is a defined contribution piM. Under the plan, an account is maintained for 
each participant and upon retirement the participant c11n either receive a lump-sum distribution or purcha~e one o( 

seVeJ".tl types of annuity contr.trt~. 

(4) ~rating L~ 

Building Services hao; entcrod into nonl·an(.-elahlc lca.~e arr.mgernents relating tu mailing equipment. Total ren! 
expenM: amounted to $5.964 for 2011 and 2010. The minimum payments required an: $5.964 for 2012 • 20\3. 

(S) Rentallncome 
Building Services rents office space of the Nati()nal Office Building located in Antioch, Tennessee 10 various 
denominatiooal agencies. T he lease covers a period of one year. to be renegotiated and rcne"'-ed by mutual agrcerncn1 
eiTa:tive January I of each year. Ea£h lea . ..e agrcc~TJ~::nt ill cancclahle by eitht.'l' pany with a 90 day written notice. 
Rental income amuuntcd lo $279.710 in 201111nd $280,030 for 2010. Rentals for 2012 ure expected to appro~imate 
20 II levels. 

(6) Concentration or Cm!it Risk 
Building Services holds real property which is used to house L'Citain departments and agencies of the N~tional 
Association of Free Will Baptists. Further, Building Servk:es provide~! group benefit and other servi~ whicb are 
billed to the rcspcctive departments at the appropriate CU!>t!;. Certain receivables remain from year 10 year relating to 
these afon:mentinncd servi(;es. Building Services has an accounting risk of kJss ro the extent of the balances of tht:st: 
unsecured aL.'t:ountli receivable and funds hdd by Free Will Baptist foundation. further. bank balances in exce.~s of 
the amount o f FDIC insurance is subjcct to risk of accounting loss. Management does n01 anticipate nonperformance 
by the financial institutions. 

(7) Imienatiom o[ Unrestrirted Net Assets 

Strward.o;hip Pro11'1!lfuill 
Fund'> accumulated fmm operation.~ have been :<.el aside to provide material 
to foster special giving for variou.~ department., of the National Association of 
Free Will Baptists. 

Resent Cor Telephone System Rep!actment 
&tablishcd to fund the future need to purchase a telephone system. 

A-59 



PROJECTED INCOME 

2013 
BUILDING SERVICES 

BUDGETS 
FINANCIAL REPORT 

2011 
Budget 

2011 
Actuels• 

Square Footage (20,330 @ $1 .14 == $23,176.20 mo.) 

Total Income 

PROJECTED EXPENSES 

Audrt & Legal 
$4,000.00 $4,345.00 Replacement Reserve 
6,000 00 6.00000 General Supplies 
4.50000 4,033 19 Insurance (Employee) 

22,959 47 23,43828 Insurance (Plant) 
25,00000 15.736.96 Janrtorial Servrces 
35,00000 34,541 86 JanrtonaJ Supphes 
3,500 00 3.252.78 Marl Room 

Marl Truck 11 ,000 00 8.997 71 
2.500.00 2,48617 General Marntenance!Contrngency Fund 

33,828 45 9.723.65 Network Expense 
6,500.00 2,043.43 Payroll Taxes (Employer's S.S) 
5,585 74 5,466 18 Postage Meter/UPS 

500.00 180.08 RetJrement (Includes Ret. in Lieu of 4th Week Vacation) 
4,326.23 3,755.52 Salarres 

69,677.98 70,251 63 Telephone 
5,000 00 4.409.41 Utrlrtres 

37,950.00 32.207 49 Christmas Bonus/Extra Week's Salary 
1,201 .73 1.201.74 Other 
1,000 00 480.00 

2012 
Budget 

$4,000.00 
6.000.00 
5.00000 

25,218.55 
22.000.00 
30.000.00 

1,000.00 
9,00000 
2.200.00 

50,478 21 
6.500.00 
5,330.36 

500.00 
3.124.50 

69,677.98 
5,000.00 

35.000.00 
0.00 
Q.OO 

Total Expenses 
S.ZSO.Q29..00 $2J2.5.51 .Q8 ~ 

·sudget comparison does not Include depreciation expense. 
••Includes employee's Insurance reimbursement. 

A-60 

2013 
Budget 

$278.11 4.40 

$4,000.00 
1,200.00 
5.000.00 

26,385.62 ... 
22,000.00 
35.000.00 
3.500.00 

10,000.00 
2,500.00 

32.867.95 
4.500.00 
5,629.95 

500.00 
3,956.80 

73,594.08 
10,000.00 
37,000.00 

0.00 
500.00 

S~Z8.l14,4Q 

BUILDING SERVICES 
SALARY BREAKDOWN 

Mamtenance Supenntendentl 
Mall Room Supei'VISOI 

Salary 
Soc•aJ Secunry 
Insurance (Dentai/Healthlltfe) 
Otsabtllly 
Ret~rement 
Christmas Bonus 

Receptionist/Phone System 
Admtntstrator/Assistant Bookkeeper 

Salary 
Soctal Secunty . 
Insurance (Dentai/Health!Ute) 
Otsab•hty 
Rettrement 
Chnstmas Bonus 

AsSistant Recepl1on•st1Phone System 
Admrnrstrator/ASSISiant Bookkeepef 

Salary 
Soc1al Secunty 
Insurance (Dentai/Heatthll.Jfe) 
Otsabrllty 
Rebrement 
Chnstmas Bonus 

Part-ume Worller 
Salary 
Soctal Secunty 

2011 2012 

$32,815.84 (2 0°o) 
2 .558 69 (7.65'1'o) 

16,4 14 46 

$32.81584 

193 61 
1 ,640 79 (5°"') 

631 .07 

54,254 46 

29,674. 14 (2 oo.) 
2,313.73 (7 65"•> 
6,176.32 

175.08 
1 ,483 71 (5°~) 

570.66 

40.393.64 

000 

75 days 

7.188 00 (2 O~o/11 .98 hr) 
549Jl8 (7 65°1.) 

7,737.88 
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2.510 41 (7 65°o) 
18.055 91 

193.61 
1,640.79 (5"o) 

000 

55.216.57 

29.674.14 
2,270.07 (7 .65%) 
6,793 95 

175.08 
1 ,483 71 (5%) 

0.00 

40.39695 

000 

75 days 
718800 (11 98 hr.) 
.549....® (7.65%) 

7,737 88 

2013 

$33,472 16 (2.0"o) 
2.560.62 (7.65%) 

19.373.99 
197 49 

1,673.61 (5%) 
0 .00 

57.277 86 

30,267.62 (2.0"'o) 
2 315.47 (7.65"o) 
7.289.91 

178.58 
1 ,513.38 (5"o) 

0..00 

41 ,564.96 

2,522.30 (2 ooo) 
192.96 (7 65%) 
607.49 

14.88 
126 12 (5~., 

rulQ 

3.463 75 

75 days 
7.332.00 (2.0o.J12 22 hr ) 

5§_()J!!l (7.650.o) 

7,892.90 
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Tony <Lilli .. ,..,_, .. ~ 

Hill, Jlnper & Associ•tes 
Certified Public Accountants 

Executive Committee of the 

ladepr-gdtat Aadjtott' Rtpgc« 

General Board of the National 
Association of Free Will Baptisb, In e. 

. . . - -·· -- ··--- ·--

We have audited the statements of financial posicion of One Magazine ~f the Natioral Association of Free Will 
Baptists, Inc., (a nonprofit organization) as of December 31, 20 II and 20 I 0, and the related statements of 
activities and changes in net assets, and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the 
responsibility of One Magazine's management Our responsibility is to express an opinioo 011 these financial 
statements based on our audits. The prior year summarized oomparative information has been derived from tile 
financial statements and, in our report dated March 15,2011, we expressed an unqualified opinion on those 
financial starements.. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America.. Those standards require that we plan and perfonn the audiiS to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whethet' the firaocial statements are free of material misst~~tement. An audit iitCiude:s eJWilining, on a test 

basis, evidence supporting the amounts and di9Ciosums in the financial statements. An audit also includes 
assessing !he accounting principles used and significant ~timatcs made by management, as well as evaluating 
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basi., fOf our 
opinion, 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of One Magazine of the National A5sociation of Free WiU Baptists, lnc..a.t of December 31, 
2011 and 2010, and changes in its net assets and its cash flows fOf the years then ended in conformity with 
accounting principles generally acupted in the United States of America. 

Fraaldin, Te••­
April Z, lOll 

·---·-- --...... -- -·--·--·-- .. ·-·-- .. ·- .. --- · - .... . ·-- ...... . ·- ..... 

....,-.ltHAftil•'-
PO ... _ ,,___1 __ ,._ ... 
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ONE MAGAZINE 

OF THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF 
FREE WILL BAIYfiSTS, INC. 

Current asset.~: 
ca.~h and interest hearing deposits 
Accounts receivable 

Total current a..set.~ 

Slatements of Financial Prn~itinn 

O«emher 31,2011 and 2010 

Assets 

Other •ssets: . 
Funds held by Fret! Will Baptist Foundation for endowment fund purposes 

Fixed asset~: 
Furniture and ~uipment 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Net fixed a~sel.~ 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payahle 

Tot<tlliabiUties 

Net asset.~: 
Unrestricted - operations 
Temporarily restril.:tcd - endowment earnings 
Permanently restricted - endowment funds 

Total net a!i...rl<~ 

See act.-ompanying notes to ftnanciaJ statements. 
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$ 

.m1 

146,()9() 

4.308 -- ---- - . -

150,39R 
-··-····"· '""''''_._ 

21.975 . ...... . ....... ........ -- ····· 

18.456 
( 15.260) .. __ ,_ ....... .. ..... _ 

3.196 

$ 175,569 

$ 

. . .. ···-

153,594 
975 

_.......;c21_000 

175,569 ···-····· .... ....... - ·- · 

$ . 175,569. 

Z!l.H 

147,592 
7!J24 

155.516 

2J.347 -·-.. -.. -·- ·-··-·····-"- , _ ... 

tK,456 
(13.199) 

-~---·-·-···-·-·· 

5,257 -.... ·--·· ... -

IR4,120 ,,...:.,,,_ ... ___ ._ .• ~ 

37.181 

37.181 --------

123.592 
2,347 

21.000 

146,939 ·--··-" .. ·---· -··-- ··-··· 

.!84, ,~9. 



ONE MAGAZINE 
OF THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF 

FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 

Statements or Acth·ities and Chan~es in Net Assets 

For the years ended l>et"t'mber 31, 2011 and 2010 

2011 
U nrestriclt.'d Re~tricted Endowment 

~evenues: 
0Rtrotiurn~ ~ Funds 

A,,e,,nwnt' 10 puhll <.h One Maga/ine 
frnm Free Will Baptiq depanmenrs 
and agencie' s 427.7D 

Revenue' li1r addliUlnal pag~ printed I .000 
Net n.: .. uhs from endowments held by 

FrL'C Will Bapttst foundation 1. 107 ( 1.372) Other 
568 

Total revenues 4.10.-WX <1..172) Expenses : 
Direct cos t of publkation: 

Pnntmg 
172.11 R 

Pcl\tagc and rmuling ~crvrce' 9~..1()1! 
~l!!n 31.76.5 
Graphrc' cxpcn~ 3.82R 
Wrrtcr\ fcc, 

1.611 

Total direct cost or publication 
Employee compensation: 

303.630 

Salm: M.6X7 
Payroll Ta'c' ~.949 
Retirement 

2.903 
Other employee benefit~ 7.010 

Total employee compensation 
Operating expemes: 

79.549 

Supplrcs and other office cxpt:n~>e I I.R57 
Tmvcl 

3.3~9 
Dcprccr:ttion 2.(}61 

Total operatifll,l expenses 17.267 

Total cxpen'lCS 400.446 

Increase (decrease) in net assets 
30.002 ( 1.372) 

Net assets al beginnifll.l of }ear 123.592 2.3~7 21.CX)() 
Net assets at end or year s 153.59~ 975 21.000 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

A-64 

2010 
Llli!J I!rntJ 

427.773 4 I 9,657 
I .000 2.073 

!265) 2.487 
568 1360 

429,076 425.577 

172.11R 169.598 
t.I~.JOX 94,51!2 
31.765 31.590 

3.828 ~.147 
1.61 I 15 IX 

303.630 301.435 

64.687 63.495 
4.949 4 .857 
2.903 2.846 
7.010 6.431 

79.5~9 77,629 

11.1!57 I 0.083 
3,349 2.293 
2,061 2.884 

17.26 7 15.260 

400.446 394.324 

28.630 31.253 

146.939 I 15,686 

175,569 146.939 

ONE MAGAZINE 
OF THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF 

FREE WU.L BAPTISTS. INC. 

Statements of Ca~h •1uws 

nded December Jl. 2011 and 2010 For the years e 

Cash t]ows from Qperati~ Activities 
Change in net asset~ 

. . l . Cl' to net operating .tcllviti.:~. . It! change 111 ne a~~ · Adju~tment~ to reconct -
Dcprx.>emtion 

Dccrca\c in accounts receivable 

lncre;ts~ (dt!t.TCa~c) in a(:counl~ payable 

Net operating a ctivities 

Fl f m lnvestjgg Activitj~ 
Cashows ro . h F Will Bapl"l Found.tllun Change in ~~~~e't ment \\1t ree 

Purcha.,c of equipment 

Net im esting acti\ ities 

(d rease) in cao;h and cas h equivalent~ 
Jocrease ec · · r vear 

b · alents at beJ:•nrun~ 0 • Cas h and cas eqw' • 

Cash and cash equivalen~, at end of) ear 

·og notes to financial statements. See accompany• 
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2011 

28.6.10 

2,061 

3.616 

(37,181) 

(2.!17~) 

1.372 

1.372 

( 1.5021 
1~7.591 

146.090 

2010 

31.25] 

2.XX4 

1 .12~ 

I.·B7 

36.(19!1 

( 1,440) 
{ 1.599) 

!3.045) 

33.653 
113.939 

147.592 
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ONE MAGAZINE 
OF THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF 

FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statement.o; 

December 31 , 20 II and 2010 

One Muga7inc np.:ratc~ under the auspices of lhl' National 1\\\oc:iauon of frt•c Will Bapti\1,, Inc .. and is governed hy 
an over'il!hl comrnillce chaired hy the Executive Secretary of the National A'~OCmtion of Free Will Baptist~. Inc. The 
mcr,tght com millet: b cumpo~tXI of the dtrector~ uf the Dcp.trtmcnt' 'o~<htch p;lflictpate in One Magcuine. 
One Maga1:~ne wa, formed a.\ folio'"~: 

At lht• 200-t t'Onvention of the National A"uctalam of Free Will Bapti'''· Inc . approval was gi\'en to cease 
puhlicattnn nf Contact Magazine (the offici;~! puhhcat10n of the bl.'<.'Uiivc Office of the N,Hional A...~ociauon of 

F-ree Will OapiiM\. Inc. ) effecttve December 2004. Further. appro>.,tl \l.a~ gt\cn to bcgm One Magazine to provide 
tnformatt<>n for the dcnommation regartlmg the activlli.:' of the 1 ariou' mtnl\lne' of Free Will Baptists. 

f-urther. o!lfecllle Deccmhcr J I. 200-t. the Executive Offit•c of the 1'-<lltnnal A\\OCtatton of Free "-ill Bapti\LS, 
Comau M<~ga.nnc dl'l·l\ion. tmn~fcmxl lund, amounung tn ~:!I .000 heiJ b) hL-c Will B<~pti~t roundation which 
IH'rc dc~tgnated J.\ Endmwmcnt funds. 

One Mai!<Utne ·~ funded by monthly asse,sntcnt\ to cenam Fret' Will B.tpll't org.tnt7ation~ as mdicated in note 2. 
(I ) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Basis or Presentation 

The linanctal 'latcmcnt~ of One Maga7ine have bccn pr.:parcd on the accrual ba\1\ ol accoummg. 

A' rcqutrl.'d hy generally accepted accounting principle'. One Maga7tne report' informatiPn regarding its 
financial po~ition and activities accordmg to three clas!.c~ of net a~\Ct\; 

Unn:,tricted net assets • Net a~set~ not sUbJect to donor unposed stipulattons. Unres tnctcd net a~sets may be 
designated for specific purposes hy action of rhe governing hody. 

Temporarily rcMricted net a~set:. ·Net assets who~e u~e i~ ~UhJCCt to donor impo~ed stipulation\ and I or the 
p.t,sagc of timc. 

Permanently rc\lrictctl net a~sel\ • Net U\set\ tu he m;untainl.'tl in pcrpctuiry a.\ directed hy donor imposed 
\lipulations. 

The amount of each of the classe:. of net a'~'' arc pn.><.entetl m the 'latcnJCnh of lindllCial po~ition and the 
chang.: in each dasl. nf net 3.\~eh is pre..-.enred m the ~tatemenr, nf actn tile... 

Cash and Cash Eouhafents 

For purpol.es of the statentcnt of cash flow\, all ca'h lund,, ca,h han!. accountl. and highly liquid deht 
10\trurncnl\ purcba.<>cd with an original maturity of three month' or lc" arc con'ldercd to he ca'h and ca\h 
cqlll~<alents 

Accounts Recehable 

Accounts recetvable are deemed to be fully collccuhle by management and no f'Cl.erve ts constdered nec~sary. 
Fixed A)sets 

Furniture and equtpment an: recorded at co:.t or at fair value as ol the date contnbuted. Expenditures for 
acqui~Hton of a.\sets m cxce~s of .$500 ure capi talized and deprccmted over their usable live' on the Mraight line 
method. Expenditure!. for maintenance and repairs. renewal~. and beucrment' that do not significantly extend 
the useful life's of Ul.\Cts are expensed as incurred. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statement) requires management to mukc estimate~ and assurnptioru. that affect the 
reponed atnoum~ of a~se11> and liabilitie~ and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the 
financial ~latement s and lhc reported amount~ of revenue~ and expense~ during the reporting period. Actual 
re,uh~ could differ from tho~e csrj matcs. 
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ONE MAGAZINE 
OF THE NATIONA L ASSOCJA TION OF 

FREE WILL RA PTISTS, INC. 
Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

Permanently restricted net asset: 
Original donor in I cstmcnt (cnrpu:. I 

Temporarily restricted net assets: 
Balanc.: at beginning of year I 

eaml.ngs including tnvc~lmenl gatn~> and oo,,e~ lnvel-ltnent • . , 
Dil.tributions of earning' to unrestrtctc:d n.:t a~~cl\ 

s 21 .000 21.000 

s 2.347 901 
{265) 2.487 

(1.107 ) { 1.041) 

$ 975 2,]-J. 7 

c . · led Absences ·I. d . nd per..onal da}~ off. depending on job co~~~:QfOne MagaLinC are entitl.:d to pa.td lat:allon, patti ."c.:·all-;;~~llllatc the amount of compen~ation for 

":';."'"""· laogoh or "~;., ""' "'"'',' "~" ,:;~~=:~·:. '"' ..;, ..... ~, ... n ... ,~, "'"""""· o., 
future ab!.eocc' and accordingly. no ltabt uy a~ • 'atcd ah,cnc.:e' when a.:tuall} pa.td to empiO)'C..~ 
Magallnc·, policy i~ w reo.."'Ogml.C the CO\t of cnmpcn 

T . . rd n •I no pm1h1on for tm:oiJlC taxo " Income ax~ . fro Fed. al and \I<He mcutnc lil\c~ . ac~o t g >· . <!IllCllt bclit:\C' 
One MagaLin.: ., exempt m cr b . ncome for 20 1 I and 2010 Further. manag 

lbere i'> no unrdatl.'d U\tnl"' • ed 
made in the aL'COUilt~. . h h . 11 1 ·<ld 

10 
tnctmlC taltC\ hcmg le\ • · 

that One Magazine ha.~ no acttvtllCS w te 'ol<l r 

. recla~Mfied to conform to current Cbaru:es in Prese~tation nor riod financial ~tatement~ tlkl) have been 
Certam amount:. m tbe p ·rpe h uno elfcct on net J\\Ct' a.o, reported. 
prc,entation. These changes. 1 any. a 

~ . , h April 2. 2012. the date Subseaucnt f,.yents cd ~ pot ·mial rccogmtinn und dl\clo,urc throug 
Sub'c uenl event~ have hccn evaJ~at or . " 
lht:!>e rinancial statentcnt~ were avatlabl.: to be ''~ued. 
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ONE l\-1AGAZINE 
OF THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF 

FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 
Notes to Financial Statemenl\, continued 

121 A'>~>e<.Ml~nl:U2 Publish One Maga~om 
Fn_e Will B~l~rtments and _Agroc~ 
The lolln\\1ng a\'e"mcnr' were made to cntilli."' nf tho.: 

Natrona I A\\ociation nf Frcc:' Will Baru'r~: 
E.\o.:cutivc Oftlcc: 

Ac.Jmini~trullvc budget 
Convention buugct 

Fn:c Will Bapti:o.t Foundation 
he.: Will Bapti~t R1ble College 
Board of Home Mi~~ron' 
lntl!rnational Mb~ion~ 
Ma~tcr·, Men 

Randall House Publications 
Board of Reurcment and Jn,urancc 
Women Nat10nall} Acti\e for Chrr-.t 

Rc.,enut--., arc C~JX"Ctcd to appro~rmatc $4 3 ~.000 m 2012 

<JI Related l'arh Transactions 

$ 116.433 
17.~63 

~6.575 
51,696 
71.022 
-+0.751 

8.3R2 
46.575 
23.1RR 
5.588 

427.77.1 

110.407 
16,561 
44,163 
49.021 
67,3~8 

57.964 
7.949 

+U63 
22.081 

The Excc:utl\e Office of the Natrona! A<;\OCJatnm of Frcc:' Will 13apu't'· Inc pruvrdcd office ~pace .Jlld certain 
admmi,tr.IIl\'C '-Cn rce-. to One .\lfagat:ine at no t-'\1'1. 

rndn\\n~nt 111\'t'\lmenh are held 0} Free Wrll Rapti\1 Foundation. it,\ lun.hcr di\LU\\eU 111 nOLe I abo'vt:. 

Ranc.J.tll Hou~e Pubhcauon.-. pro,·idQ printmg and rdatcd 'en rcc' Ill One Maga11nc Fur t~c 'en icc~. One 
MagaLlne expended 5206.475 m 2011 and $219.860 m 2010. 

( 4 I Pen.,ion 

The One Maganne partiCipates in the ma~tcr penswn plan ot the Board of Retirement and ln<;urance of the 
N;uronal A\Mx:iaunn of Free Will Bapusr~. Inc. The plan" contnhuwry and~~ matched up to a maxrmum of 5th 
ol compcn,auon. Employee, may participate at date of employment. Pen,ion expense amounted to S2,CJ03 in 
20 I I and $2,ll46 m 20 I 0. The pension plan 1~ a defined contnhuuon plan. Under Lhc plan. an account is 
marntainoo for each participant and upon retirement !he particrpant can either 1'\."Ct:ive H lump-sum di~Lribulion or 
purcha\c unc of several type~ of annuity contract\ 

(5) CollrnJtration of Credit Risk 

One MagaLJne has an accounting ri'k of lo" relating to the amount of funds hdd hy Free Will Baptist 
Foundation and account~ receivable from various Frt:c Will Bapti'>t departllll!nl\ Funher. bank halanec<, in 
e\t-C'-' of tlx: amount of FDIC imurancc arc :.uhjcct to n,J.. of accountmg lo" Man.tgemenl doe, not anticipate 
nonperformant-"C by tht: nnancial instituuon~-

(6) Cwru>l!L!I.livs: Information 

The financial \tatemcnt<> mclude cenain prior-year 'umman7ed romparot rw rnfommuon in total but not hy net 
a~'ct cia" Such informauon does not include \Ufficiem detail to con\tllute a presentation in confonniry ,~,th 
genera II) accepted accounttng print.,pl~. Act-"Ordrngl). <;uch mformauon 'hoold be re<:rd in conjunction "ilh 
financral \latcmcnl\ for the year cn<kd December 31. 2010. from "hrch the '>Ununaritt:d rnformation W'd$ 
c.lert'vcxl. 
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2013 
ONE MAGAZINE 

BUDGETS 
FINANCIAL REPORT 

2011 2011 

REVENUE Budget Actuals' 

$17,463 47 $17.463.48 Conventron 
116.433.48 116,433 44 Executtve Offrce 

51,695.58 51,695.64 Free Wrll Baptist Brble College 
46,575.15 46,575.12 Free Will Baptist Foundation 
71,022 23 71,022.24 Home Missions 
61,12657 40,751.04 lnternatronal Missions 

8.38211 8,382.12 Master's Men 
46,575.15 46,575.12 Rendall House Publications 
23.287.57 23,287.56 Retirement & Insurance 

WNAC 000 5,588.08 

(264 62) 000 Endowment 
3,000 00 1,000 00 Rermbursements 

40000 56800 Subscriptron Revenue 

Total Revenue $445,961 21 $42~.QZZ.26 

EXPENSES 

$73,966 47 $74,203 59 Salary & Benefrts 
5,344 80 5.344.82 Auto/Cell Phone Allowance 
3,600.00 5,112.50 Audit & Legal 
1,500.00 952.72 Books, Dues & Regrstrations 
3,500.00 1,102.39 Computer Software/Services 

34,000.00 31,765.25 Design 
4 ,000 00 3,827.54 Graphics 

10,000 00 4 ,743.74 Mail Servrces 
Mrscellaneous 3,000.00 1.782.72 

98,000 00 87,916.16 Postage 
1,648.50 2,000.00 Postal Returns 

198,000.00 172,118.1 4 Printing 
1,000.00 1,121.30 Promotron 
2,50000 1,735 96 Supplies 

50 40 30000 Telephone 
3,250 00 3,348 69 Travel 

Writer's Fees 2.000 00 J.6.1Q 55 

Total Expenses $445,961 ,2Z $3~6.3B4.~Z 

·audget comparison does not include depreciation expense. 
••Jncludes employee's Insurance reimbursement. 
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2012 2013 
Budget Budget 

$17,463.47 $17,463.47 
116,433.44 116,433.44 
51,695.58 46,526.04 
46,575.15 46,575.15 

71,022.23 71,022.23 

30,563.28 40,751 05 
8,382.11 8,382.11 

46,575.15 46.575.15 
23,287.57 23.287.57 

8,382.11 8,382.11 

1,000.00 0.00 
1,000.00 1.000.00 

LQOO.QQ SOOQQ 

$423.380.09 $426.898.32 

$73,650.11 $75,1 42.35 • 
5,344.80 5,451.70 
4,000.00 4,700.00 

750.00 1,000.00 
3,000.00 3,000.00 

36,000.00 35,000 00 
4,500.00 4,500.00 

10,000.00 10,000 00 
3,135.18 2,854.27 

92,000.00 93,000.00 

2,000.00 2,000.00 
180,000.00 180,000.00 

1,000.00 1,200.00 
2,000.00 2,000.00 

0.00 50.00 
4,000.00 5,000.00 

2.QQQJ>Q 2..000.0.0 

$423,360,Q9 $426,696.32 



Wnh mer fitly years hchind u.<.. the 'vlastcr'<. ' , . . 
drtfercnt area<; of .service. · Men Dcrxmmcnt conllnues to look for 

In 20 II we continu d h f . e to reac out to the men of our d. . 
o rnmr~try In February we held CM I Conti cnormnallor~ th_rough several areas 
and hclc.J our third of the vcar . 0 b . c~ences Ill both Mrssrssrppr and Oklahoma 
fi II h . m cto er rn (afrfomrr In M I h 
e ows rp events with the Deep South C 1fT • arc 1 we cld the first of our 

'-atlOnal Golf and Softball To . , JO oumarnent We also held our annual 
We left the lower fom· . h umamcnt~ rn Au~;,'Ust rn Na ... hqlfe 

( .h . -ctg t rn Juh to a.-.~r~t th , "''onh . L I 
urch tn Fairbanks Alaska Ou · · l c:m rg II!- Free Will Baptist 

, . · · r guvs replaced a ,mall . • 1 cmrancc '' rth a larger one to assist th~ handrca concrete andrng rn front of the 
..,almon fishmg. Internationally . ppcd In addruon '"e spent a few davs 
. • d we contmued ref ret worl.. H • 
sccon greenhouse anc.J expand· h 111 Jttr \\rth con$tructing the 

In J I M . ' . . rng t c 'Miler filter prOJect. 
u ) aster s Men contmucd to take the I • d h 

to Charlotte. "Jonh Carolina to h I , · h ca "II IMPAC I. <her 250 people came 
N D 

' e P rca~: out to the area ·h 1 
Ill C\\ urham, New llampshirc co I d c.: urc les. August found us back 

P Th 
, nc u rng our worl.. on th • R cJ ( 'h 

rOJCCI. c end of August we helped ho . . . . . . . . c 1 gc urch rcstordtion 
Operation Satumtion. me llllssronarrcs Ill ButTalo. New York. through 

Ou~ gre_at~~t need continues to be rcachm . . , . 
men ~ mmlstry in their church W . g our churchc:. wnh the nccc.J for a strong 
their men. . c v. ant to reach out to all <.:hurchc:, and help them help 

Your fcllO\\ servant. 
Ken 

Kenneth W. Akers 
General Director. Mru,ter's Men 

s . 
April 12. 20 I I ynopsls of 20 I I Board Meetmgs 

~oard met with five members present. Mmutes and fi 
-012 budget. Discussed miscellaneou~ bw,iness mancral repom apprO\·ed. Approved 

December 4. 201 1 
Board met with all nine members resent . 
DISCU.'>Scd 2013 budget. Board \Ot~d ~o . Mm~tcs and financial reports approved. 
promotional videos for Disaster R purcha'>c \Ideo eqUipment to produce 

. esponsc and to keep chapters updated on acunties. 
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P 0 . Box 5002 
Antioch, TN 370 ll 

Phone· 615-760-6142 
Toll Free: l-877-767-8039 
Emall :masters@nafwb.org 

JASON L. DARBY 
Certified Public Accountant 

To the Board of Directors of 

The Master's Men 
Antioch, Tennessee 

5006 Paddy Trace 
Spring Hill, TN 37174 
Phone: (615) 71 4-5024 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

I have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of The Master's Men (a 
nonprofit organization) as of December 31, 2011 . and the related statements of 
activities, and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the 
responsibility of the Master's Men management My responsibility is to express an 

opinion on these financial statements based on my audit 

I conducted my audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America. Those standards require that I plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing 
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well 
as evaluating the over financial statement presentation. I believe that my audit provides 

a reasonable basis for my opinion. 

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairty, in all material 
respects, the financial position of The Master's Men as of December, 31 , 2011 , and the 
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with 

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Apri115, 2012 
Spring Hill, Tennessee ' 

'j ~ ';/ Nl/ 
Ja~on L. Darby, {pA 
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THE MASTER'S MEN 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

December 31, 2011 

Current A! sets 
Cash 

Trust Account - Build a House 
$ 16,169 50 

Revocable Trust- Build a House 
3.501 54 

Disaster Relief Trusr 628 12 

Trust Account - Lifetime Members 66.038.29 

Inventory 97,709 02 

Accounts Receivable 430.00 

Total Current Assets 
59,925 39 

$ 
Fixed A!sets 

244,401 86 

Equlpmenl and Fum1ture 
92,018.72 

Accumulated Deprec~ation 
Capitalized Leases (68.075.31) 

Accumulated AmortJzatJon 4.017 80 

Total FIXed Assets {4.017 80~ 

TOTAL ASSETS 
23,94341 

$ 268,345.27 

liabilities 

Accounts Payable 
FWB Loan 5.00000 

Payroll Tax Payable 10,000.00 

Total Uabilibes 3,097 44 

18,097 44 
N! lAaa!tJ 

Temporarily RestnC1ed 
Unrestricted 281 ,043 52 

Total Net Assets (30, 795.69) 

TOTAL LIABILIT ES AND NET ASSETS 
250,247.83 

268,345.27 
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THE MASTER'S MEN 
STATEMENT OFACTMTIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 

Revenut & Gains 
GritS and Donations 
Dues from Members 
Du;aster Relief Income 
CooperatiVe Program 
BAH Sale Income 
Promotion/Sales/Other Income 
Tournament and Conference Income 

Interest Income 
Miscellaneous Income 

Total Revenue & Gains 

~tt Assets Rtl!a&ed from Restrictions 
Disaster Relief 
BUild A House 
Lrfebme Memberships 

Total Revenues. Gains. & Other Support 

Expenses 
Salanes and Wages 
PR Taxes and Benefits 
Cost of Sales and Printing 
Travel Expense 
Conferences and Convenbons 
Office Expense 
Equipment Expense 
Telephone 
Postage 
Rent Expense 
Professional Fees 
Bookkeep1ng Expense 
Ministry and Resource Development 
Ministry Expense - Haiti 
Disaster Rehef Expense 
Tournament Expense 
Depreciation Expense 
Amortizallon Expense 
Miscellaneous Expense 

Total Expenses 

Change 1n Net Assets 
Net Assets - Beginn~ng of Year 
Net Assets - End of Year 

Temporanly 
Restncted Assets 
$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

29.526 16 

22.476 00 

9,553.58 

61 555 74 

(10.447 50) 

51.108 24 

10,578 39 
28,518 40 

39.096 79 

12.01145 
269.032 07 
281 ,043 52 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Unrestrided 
Net Assets 

25,053.27 
6.825.30 

71 .600.74 

32,699.38 
24,926.91 

4,610.35 
2.028.79 

167,744.74 

10.447.50 

178,192.24 

79,611 .94 
31 ,400.33 

9.893.15 
14.567.56 

682.45 
5,557.55 
3,951.29 

16.57 
1,658.36 

12,558.24 
1,515.00 

900.00 
10,177.51 

24,364.39 
6,156.25 

9979 
1,879 21 

204,989 .59 

(26, 797 .35) 
(3,998.34) 

(30,795.69) 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Total 
54,579 43 
6,82530 

22.476.00 
71 ,600 74 

9,553.58 
32,699.38 
24,926.91 

4,610 35 
2,028 79 

229,30048 

229,30048 

79,611 94 
31 ,400 33 
9,893 15 

14.567.56 
68245 

5.557 55 
3,951.29 

16.57 
1,658.36 

12,558.24 
1,515.00 

90000 
10.1ns1 
10,578 39 
28,518.40 
24,364 .39 
6.15625 

99.79 
1,879 21 

244,086 38 

( 14 ,785.90) 
265,033.73 



THE MASTER'S MEN 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR lHE YEA.R ENDeD DECEMBER 31,2011 

CutJ Flow. fr 
. om _ooe(i!tlnq ac:tlvlt/y 

Oecrease In Net Assets 

Adjustments to R 
Net Cash Pro:::dnefble lncreaae in Net Assets to 

8 Y Operattng Adivitie . 
Depredation s. 
Amortization 
Gain on Sale of Vehicle 
Interest on lnveatmenta 

(Increase) Dec:reaae In Operating As$ets: 
Accoonts Receivable 

Increase (Deere ) 
"--·. ase In Operating Liabilities· 
~nts Payable · 
PayroiJ Tax Payable 
Loan Payable 

N Total 
et Cash PrCNided by ()perafing Activities 

Cast! fiQWa from 
lnve!Jtlng A<:tMtf!.! 

Transter. to Trusts & Investments 
Purchases of Equipment 
PIOCeedt from Vehicle 
Interest Received 

Net Casn Used by Investing Activities 

Net Increase In Cash and Cash E . 
Beginning Cash ........ C ~" QUIValents 
E '"' "' a .. , Equivalents 

ndlng Cash and Cash Equivalents 

A-74 

$ 6.156.25 
99.79 

(IJSO.OO) 
(4,610.35) 

(4,947.40) 

1.384.99 
10,000.00 

9,<41~.50 
(6,419.58) 

950.00 
4,610.35 

s (14,785.90) 

7,133.28 
(7.652.62) 

8,556.27 

903.65 
15,265.85 
16.169.50 

THE MASTER'S MEN 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2011 

Note 1 -Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Governing Body 
The Master's Men operates under the auspices of the National Association of 
Free Will Baptists and is governed by a Board of Directors. 

Basis of Accounting 
The accompanying financial statements of The Master's Men have been 
prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when 
earned and expenditures are recognized when incurred. 

Financial Statement Presentation 
The Master's Men follows the Statement of Financial ·Accounting Standard 
(SF AS) No. 117, Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations. Under 
SFAS 117, the Department is required to report information regarding its financial 
position and activities accordingly according to three classes of net assets: 
unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently 
restricted net assets. In addition, the Department is required to present a 
statement of cash flows. As permitted by this statement, the Department has 
discontinued its use of fund accounting and has, accordingly, reclassified its 
financial statements to present the three classes of net assets required. 

Promises to Give 
Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the 
Department that is, in substance, unconditional. Contributions that are restricted 
by the donor are reported as increases in unrestricted net assets if the 

· restrictions expire in the fiscal year in which the contributions are recognized. All 
other donor-restricted contributions are reported as increases in temporarily 
restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets. 

Receivables and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 
Receivables are presented in the financial statements at the amount deemed 
collectible by management. Any provision for doubtful accounts is recognized 
using the direct write-off method. 
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Investments 

The investments are valued at the lower of cost or market. For gifts, the cost is 
determined by the fair market value of the security at the time of the gift 

Inventories 

The inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market, with cost being 
determined using the first-in, first-out method. 

Property, Equipment, and Depreciation 

Property and equipment are presented in the financial statements at cost and are 
depreciated by the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the 
assets, ranging from 3 - 20 years. 

Income Taxes 

The Department is exempt from federal and state income taxes; accordingly, no 
provision for income taxes is made in the financial statements. 

Estimates 

The preparatjon of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions 
that affect certain reports and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ 
from those estimates. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For purposes of the statement of cash flow, the Department considers all highly 
liquid investments available for current use with and initial maturity of three 
months or less to be cash equivalents. 

Note 2 - Property and Equipment 

The following is a summary of property and equipment owned by the Department at 
December 31, 2011 : 

Equipment and furniture 
less: Accumulated Depreciation 

Property and Equipment. Net 
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$ 92,018.72 
( 68.075.31 ) 

$23,943.41 

3 -Capitalized Leases 

~ote . . lists purchased an office building to house 
Th National Associatton of Fr~ Will Bapd nomination. The Board of Dtrectors. has 

~ous departments and agenctes of the . ~his new building and agreed to contnbute 
va ed into an agreement to lease space m . . iod and to continue until the debt 
enttherdebt service costs during the co~structton pfe$4r 017 80 were capitalized and are 
to e t r n penod costs o ' . 2011 nd has been retired. The cons .rue IO ears Amortization expense for a 
being amortized over a penod of twenty: 31 2011 were $99.79 and $4,017.80, 
accumulated amortization as of Decem er ' 

respectively. 

Note 4- Deferred Revenue 

There were no deferred revenues for 2011 . 

Note 5- Restricted Fund Balance . 

. designated for specific projects and consists of The restricted fund balance IS reve;~: 
the following as of December 31 ' 2 . 

Build a House Campaign 
Lifetime Membership 
Disaster Relief 

Total 

Note 6 - Compensated Absences 

$ 50,180.59 
101,250.00 
129.612.93 

$ 2811043.52 

There was no compensated absence balance as of December 31, 2011. 

Note 7- Loan Payable 

I 'th FWB Foundation in the t ed into a oan WI 
On December 1' 2011' Master's Mt; e~ =~ as of December 31, 2011 is $10,000. 
amount of $10,000. The balance o e o 
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PrOJected Expenses 

Salaries 
Dirt~<; tor 
Salary 
Hous•ng 
Retrrement 
Insurance 

Total 
Secretary 
WiHJf'S(40hr ~IWkV:! 8 501 
P11yroll T<'lx Expense 

Re>trremcnt 
Insurance 
Chrrstmas Bonus 

Total 
Total Salaries 

Otfrce Operations 
Automohrle 
Rent 
Equrpment & Supplies 
Telephone 
Mrsc 
Postage 
Total 

Accountmg 
Bookkeepmg 
Audrt 
Total 

Resource Development 
PrrntP.d Materrals 

Department Travel 
National Association 

Total Expenses 

Projected Income 
Dues 
Father's Day Offer~ng 
Together Way 
Softball 
Golf 
Grfts 
Sales 
Endowment Income 
BAH 
Master's Men Conferences 
Re•mbursement Income 
Total Income 

2012 Master's Men 
frnancral Report 

2011 Budget 2011 Actuals 

39.393 00 30.800 00 
20 400 00 24 050 00 
2.990 00 2.580 00 
8,000 00 7.04700 

70,783.00 64,477 00 

17,680 00 9 47B 00 
1,097 00 f)'i6 00 

257 00 ..:'90 00 
1.200 00 4.605 00 

250 00 
20,234.00 15.279.00 
91,017.00 79,756 00 

3.600 00 21 12600' 
24 000 00 12.558 00 

5.000 00 8 353 00 
2.700 00 1 I 33 00 
2.000 00 11 226 00 
2.500.00 1.659 00 

39,800.00 34,929.00 

900 00 900 00 
2.000 00 1 515 00 
2,900 00 2,415.00 

7,000.00 9,910.00 

12,000.00 15,031 .05 
4 ,000.00 656.97 

156.717.00 140,283.02 

15.DOD 00 10.395 00 
15.000 00 9.444 00 
75 100 00 68 151 00 
4.000 00 1 928 00 
6.000 00 4 .81 4 00 

15.000 00 13 435 00 
5.000 00 1 282 00 

10.000 00 2.531 00 
9 617 00 10.000 00 
2.000 00 241400 

7 181 00 
156,717.00 131,575.00 
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2012 Budget 

39 393 00 
20 400 00 

2 990 00 
B.DOO 00 

70,783.00 

11,!l6b 00 
720 00 
170 00 

2.272 00 
250 00 

15,278.00 
86,061 .00 

3 60D DO 
15 000 00 
5 000 00 
2 70D 00 
2 DOO 00 
2.500 00 

30.800.00 

900 00 
2 000 00 
2,900.00 

7,000.00 

12,000.00 
2,000.00 

140,761 .00 

IS DOD DO 
12 000 00 
75 000 00 
2 500 00 
5.000 00 

10 000 00 
3 000 00 
5.000 00 

10 000 00 
3 011 00 

140,511 00 

2013 Proposed Budget 

29 793 00 
30.000 DO 
2 .990 00 

10 000 00 
72,783.00 

11 700 00 
930 00 
580 00 

5 000 00 
250 00 

18,460 00 
91,243.00 

3600 
15 000 00 
5.000 00 
2 700 00 
2.000 00 
2.500 00 

30800 

900 00 
1 500 00 
2,400.00 

7,000.00 

12,000.00 
2,000.00 

145,443.00 

15.000 00 
12 000 00 
75.000 00 

2.500 00 
5.000.00 

10 000 00 
3.000 00 
9.943 00 

10 000 00 
3 000 00 

145 443 00 

a~ARDof 
RETIREMENT 

General Director's Report 

From the very beginning of the ministry of the Board of Retirement our commitment has 
been to "Serve those who serve others." This commitment is based on Psalm 78:72 where scripture 
declares that King David served Israel with the integrity ofhis heart and the skillfulness ofhis hands. 
That is the Board of Retirement. That has always been our commitment to our people .. 

Since 1969. when Hem1an Hersey started the Board of Retirement in the parsonage of Gamer 
Free Will Baptist Church in North Carolina. we have been committed to helping meet the needs of 
our ministers. lay employees. missionaries (both home and international), employees of every 
national agency. employees of our colleges. children's homes. as well as many state agencies. So far 
we have had over 2,500 participants in our program. We now have just over 1.500 active account~. 

We exist to honor the Lord by being a li fclong partner with our participants in enhancing 
their financial security. 

In spite of the economy. 20 I I was a good year for the Board of Retirement. 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

We enrolled 50 new participanL'i. 

We received $2.253,728 in new contributions . 

We loaned $505,700 to participants . 

We had S2.395,55R in withdrawals. 

We distributed $602,203.30 in monthly benefits to the 61 retirees who chose a self­
directed payout. 

We distributed $591.785.55 in annuity benefits last year to our I 06 annuitants. 

We transferred S 1.245,928 to the annuity pool for the 14 annuitants added in 20 I I. 

We gave our annuitants a 3% lifetime increase in their monthly benefit. 

Our participants have not been immune to the economic downturns the rest of the world has 
been facing since 2008. Last year the Default Fund lost 4.69% and the Pro-Blend Fund lost .15%. 

In spite of last year's negative returns. our earnings history is still very good. The following 
chart renccts our historical returns. 
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Dclauh Pro lJ lend 
I und I und 

I 'car ·4 69°o 015°. 

3 Year 10 653"• 4 64.?•. 

5 Year () 79:!•. r-.<A 

I 0 Year 4 .()k , •• I\ A 

Ltfc To Date 7 75°u 4 1>42". 

Assets decreased from S43, I 84,483 on December 3 1, 20 I 0 to $41.1 16,524 on December 31, 
20 I I. a 4. 7% decrease. This was due to a combination of t he withdrawals and Joss on investments. 

Our panicipants now have four investment options available to them, ranging from 
conservative to aggressive. They are: 

I. 

3. 

Pro-Mix Conservative Fund. Previous ly known as the Pro-Blend Fund, this Fund 
IS designed for those between 0-5 years of retirement. Investment in the s tock market 
can rdnge from 5%-35% with a target of 20%. 

Pro-Mix Moderate Fund. This Fund is de~1gned for panicipants who are between 
3-10 years of retirement. Investment 111 the stock market can range from 20o/o-60% 
in the market with a target point of 40°·o. 

Default Fund. This is the option we 'vc had since I 986.11 is designed for participants 
who are between 7-20 years of retirement. Investment in the stock market can range 
from 40%-70% with a target of 55%. 

4. Pro-Mix Maximum Fund. This Fund is the most aggressive in its investments. It is 
designed for participants who have 15 or more years before retirement. In vestment 
in the stock market can range from 70%-95% with a target of 85%. 

We realize we are not the only game in town. Any bank or insurance company will be happy 
to invest your Retirement Savings for you. So. with thousands of options available. why choose to 
be a part of the Free Will Baptist plan? 

• There are no sales commissions or front or back end sales load. This means that 
I 00% of the money you contribute is invested directly to your account 

• 

• 

You may reduce your taxes. Income taxes are deferred on contributions and earnings . 
Contributions by ministers arc also exempt from Social Security and SECA taxes. 

An additional advantage is available to ministers in retirement. Up to I 00% of a 
minister's benefits can be designated as a housing allowance. All such amounts used 
within legal limits to provide a home arc distributed tax free. 
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I. Your fund~ will be ln\C\Icd m Chn'>ll:.tn ba:-.r.:d 'ociall) \creened _in.\c'illm:nh ~ha~ d~ 
not im est in companic~ that arc publid) n.:co~'lllted as pro\ tdmg proJu~.:ts .In 
~en ices m th~.: liquor. tobacco. gambling. pomograph). or Holly\\ ood L'ntenammcnt. 

fhc Board of Rcttrement & Insurance uses pr'''cn lrl\Cstmcnt management llnns 10 

manage these plan im estmcnt optiOn~ 

Getunc ~tartcd in the ret i rcmcnt plan "'real!)' qullc sHnpk J u~t come by our hooth aml '' c 'II -show just ho,,· simple it is. 

We also launched the Labor of Lovr c~unpaign at the National last year. So far we ha\ c: 

Donor' 12-1 

l'lt:d).!t:tl ~I '.h 74 3' 

R .: • .: I "'J .)1-i.ll:!-l . ~ • 

. . J 1 ·I , \' 1u prepare for \Our n:llrcmcnl () ·t ff ~:-.here to :-en c you We IOllk tnrwar to lc pmg- l - . d I 
ur:-.a · h . , II 1 I-R77-767-773X(toll-frec)andletushclp:rou e\eop years. Stop b) our hoot or gn ~: u-, a ca c 

a plan suited for your needs. 

ln Hi~ Sen icc. 

D. Ra) Lc" i~ 
General D1rector 
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I March 30, 2011 

The Board of Retirement 
Synopsis of Board Meetings 

In attendance: Ray Lewis, John Rrummitt. Jack Daniels, Craig Cook, Rick Cason, Jack 
Ward, Milburn Wilson, Mark Ousley, Tim Hall, & Rick Dement. 

Ron Barber was absent. 

John Brummitt reviewed the Financial Statements for the period ended February 2R, 20 II . 

Ray Lewis presented the Director's Report. 

Danny Justice from the Guardian Insurance Company presented a Critical Illness Coverage 
option 

Mr. Joel Collum, C.P.A., reviewed the 20 I 0 annual audit and noted that the opinion rendered 
was unqualified. 

Chris Long and Andrea Ells, of Manning & Napier, made a presentation concerning 
economic conditions, future oullook and the current positioning of each of the portfolios. 

The Board participated in teleconference calls with Greg Figaro with Sage Advisor Services 
and Bob Ruland with Atalanta!Sosnoff Capital. They summarized their perfonnance and 
outlook. 

Two additional investment options for participants were added. 

The Labor of Love Endowment Campaign was adopted. 

The proposed budget for the 2012 fiscal year was approved. 

December 7, 2011 

Present: Ray Lewis. John Brummitt, Rick Cason, Jack Ward, Tim Hall, Rick Dement, Danny 
Baer, & James Beasley 

Craig Cook & Jack Daniels caiJed in for the teleconference. 

Mark Ousley was absent. 

The Financial Reports through October 31, 20 I 1, were presented by John Brummitt. The 
Director's Report was given by Ray Lewis. The Board reviewed and approved reports, 
Financial Statements, and infonnat.ion from the investment managers. 
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mcm - -
Joel D. C?llum, Jr. 
Uttified Pubhc Accountant 

INDF.Pt~DI:NT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Directors 
Board of Retirement and Insurance of the 

National Association of Free Will Baptests 

. · · n of the Board of Retirement and Insurance 
1 have audited the ac~~panying stat~ments o.f fina~c:~.':o::~~? as of December 31, 20 II and 2010 and the 
of the National AssocultiOR of f ree Will Bapttsts, (~l.. •l..) ended These financial statements are the 

f · · · d cash flOWS for UIC yeatS uoCO • 
relat.:d statements o act1VItJes an 'b' l'ty · to #xpress an opinion on these . . , ment My response 1 1 1s .... responsibility of the Organtzatlon s manage . 
financial statements based on my audits. 

. 'tin standards generally accepted in the t:nited States of 
I conducted my audits in accordance w lth aude g r. h d 'ts to obtai " reasonable assurance about 
America. Those standards require that I plan and .per ~rm t e aut • An audit includes examining. on a test 

. fi of matenal m1sstatemen . 
whether the financial statements are ree . th fi 'al statements An audit also includes 

. d d' closures tn c mance . 
basis, evidence supponmg the amounts an IS • ' fi t est'emates made by management, as well as 

. · · · les used and s1gm tcan · 
assessmg the accounting pnnclp . 1 b r e that my audits provide a reasonable bases 
evaluating the overall financial statement presentatiOn. e Jev 

for my opinion. 

. b resent fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
In my opinion, the financial ~tlltements referred toea o~~~: National Association of Free Will Baptists, as of 
position of the Board of Retirement and lnsuran~ . t and its cash flows for the years then ended 
De b ., I 20 II and 20! 0 and the changes m Its net asse s . 

cem er ~ ' . • . . Jl ted in the Cnited States of Amenca. 
in c<Jnformity with accountmg pnnc•ples genct'll Y accep 

Y~- ~·h Oft-

March 20,2012 

. '7229 • 615.974.2918 • joclcollumcpa@yahoo.com P.O. Box 291561 • NasbvJI!e, TeDJH UU 
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I. 

BOARD OF RETIREMEI\'T A~O INSURAI\'CE OF 
THE NA TIO~AL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

~OTES TO THE Fll\.ANCIAL ST A TEME.I\TS 
DECE:\-ffiER 31, 2011 and 2010 

S'CMl\1ARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOU~TI~G PRINCIPLES 

Organization: 

The Board of Retirement and Insurance of the National Association of Free Will Baptists (the 
"Board") is operated under the auspices of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. The 
purpose of the Board is to maintain contributory retirement accounts for licensed or ordained 
ministers, missionaries and lay employees of churches. schools and denominational agencies of the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists. Inc. The Board maintains this retirement pension plan 
pursuant to Section 403(b )(9) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, which is an exempt church 
plan under the pro-.isions ofthe code. The plan was amended and restated effective June 1, 2009. 

Eligibility: 

A person is eligible to participate if they work at least 20 hours per week for an eligible employer 
that has agreed to participate in the Plan. An eligible employer includes any church or agency that 
is participating cooperative!) "ith the National Association of Free Will Baptists. In addition, Free 
Will Baptist ministers who are evangelists or otherwise self-employed and spouses of Free Will 
Baptist International missionaries are elig1ble to participate in the Plan without regard to the 
number of hours worked in a \veek. 

Contributions: 

Under the terms of the retirement pension plan which the Board maintains, contributions may be 
made to the Plan through employer contributions, salary reduction contributions, voluntary 
employee contributions and general contributions. The participant may elect from three plan types. 
Plan I requires employer contributions for such employee to be at least 5% of the employee's 
compensation. Plan 2 requires the total of employer contributions, salary reduction and voluntary 
employee contributions to be at least 3% of the employee's compensation. Plan 3 is available for 
members upon initial employment or when they lose eligibility to participate in Plan l or 2. 
\llinimum contributions required by this plan are $10 per month and can be made by any of the 

plan's contribution means. Total employer contributions and salary reduction contributions that 
may be made for a participant in any year shall not exceed the lim1ts imposed by IRS Code Sections 
402(g), 403(b) and 415. 

Participant accounts: 

Each participant's account is credited with contributions made by and on behalf of the participant. 
Allocations of Plan earnings are based on account balances on the last day of each month. The 
benefit to which a participant is entitled is the benefit that can be provided from the participant's 
account. 
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1. 

T AND l~SURANCE OF 
BOARD OF RETIRE~~~ OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

THE NATIONAL ASSOCIAF;:. AN•CIAL ST A TE;\1ENTS 
~OTES TO THE J..l , 

- DECEMBER 31,2011 and 2010 

TPLES- CO~TI1\'L"ED SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICAJ.~T ACCOUNTING PR.DIC . 

Payment of benefits: . . ts mav receive payments 
. fi loyment, part•c•pan - . 

On retirement, death, disability or separatlo~ ;~: o~:ptions and provisions as defined Ill the Plan. 
of their individual vested acco.unt balances a 

Benefits are recorded when paid. 

Vesting: 

All contributions to the plan are JOOO;o vested 

Termination of the plan : th ·aht under the Plan with the 
. d so the Board has c no . . . . 

Although it has not expressed any m~ent to o PI . In the event of Plan termmatlon, partiCipants 
appro' al of the Association. to. term mate the an. 
will become 100% vested in their accounts. 

. . I Statement Presentation: A 1 Basis and Fmanc1a . 
ecru a h al basis of account mg. 

oard have been prepared on t c accru 
The financial statements of the B f net assets based 

. ns and losses into three classes o . 
The Board classifies its re"enue. expens~s,.ga• N assets of the Board and changes therem are 

- of donor-imposed restnctiOnS. ' et on the ex1stence 

classified as follows: . . 

. -Net assets that arc not subject to donor-imposed st•pulat•ons. 
Unrestricted net assets . . . sed stipulations that may 

- assets -Net assets subject to donor-•m~ 
Temporarily res:ncted net . Ooard and/or the passage of time. 

"II be met either by act•ons of the 

or w• ets sub·cct to donor-imposed stipulati~ns that are 
Permanently restricted net assets - Net ass II ~he donors of these assets permit the Bo~rd 
maintained permanently b~ the Board. ~ener~h~'related investments for general or specifiC 
to use all or part of the mcome earne on 

rposes · · 1 
pu . d . th Statements of Fmanc•a 

f t ssets is presente m e f 
The amount for each of these class~s o ne a net assets is displayed in the State~ents o 
P . . nd the amount of change m each class of rarilv or permanently restncted net 

os•tlon, a . A The Board had no tempo , . . . d Changes m Net ssets. Actlv1t1es an d 
201 0 

assets at December 31' 20 II an . ·t stricted or permanent!) 
. ecorded as unrestricted, temporan y re . . • 

Further. contributions received are r . ell or nature of any donor restncuons. 
. d rt depending on the ex•stence an restncte suppo 

Income Taxes: . . t . e taxes has been made 
. I prOVISIOn .or mcom The Board is exempt from income taxes; accordrng y, no 

in the accompanying financial statements. 
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BOARD OF RETIREMENT Al\"D INSt;RANCE OF 
THE NATIO:\AL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

NOTES TO THE Fll'iAJ'\ICJAL STATt\1ENTS 
DECK\1BER 31,2011 and 2010 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOU~T~G PRfNCIPLES- CONTINUED 

Investments: 

Investments in marketable securities are reported at fair value with gains and losses included in the 
Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets. Investments in marketable securities arc valued 
at current quoted or estimated market value. Non-marketable investments are carried at cost unless a 
permanent loss of value has occurred. 

O ffice Furniture, E quipment and Automobiles: 

The Board follows the practice of capitalizing. at cost, all expenditures for office furniture, 
equipment and automobiles in excess of $10.000 Depreciation is pro\iided on the straight-line 
method over the estimated useful li•es of the respecti\e assets, general!) 5 years for automobiles and 
5 - I 0 }ears for furniture and equipment. 

Cash and Cash Eq uivalents: 

For purposes of the statements of cash flows. the Board considers all cash on hand. deposits in 
financial institutions and highly liquid debt instruments "-ith an original maturit) of three months or 
less to be cash and cash equivalents. 

Uses of Estimates in Preparation of Financial Statements: 

Judgment and estimation is exercised b) management in certain areas of the preparation of financial 
statements. The more significant areas include the collectability of notes receivable. the 
determination of fair value of investments, and the recovery period for office furniture, equipment 
and automobiles. Management believes that such estimates have been based on reasonable 
assumptions and that each estimate is adequate. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Pension Plan : 

The Board contributes to this Plan on behalf of its employees. Contributions for 201 I amounted to 
$11,049 ($10,740 for 1010). 

OFFICE FURNITURE, EQL'IPMENT A~'l> AUT0'\10BTLES 

A sum mal) of office furniture, equipment and automobiles is as follows: 

Office furniture and fixtures 
Computer hardware and software 
Automobiles 

Less: Accumulated depreciation 
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s 

$ 

2011 
47,216 

138,783 
56,627 

242,626 
( 156,832) 

85,794 

s 

$ 

2010 
4 7,216 

124,983 
56,627 

228,826 
( 119,868) 
I 08,958 

3. 

4. 

OF RETIREMENT AND INSt;RANCE OF 
HE ~~~AL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

T ~OTES TO THE Fll\ANCIAL STA TE:\1ENI S 
. DECEMBER 31. 2011 and 2010 

NOTES RECETV ABLE 

II - ·sa summarv of notes receivable: Fo owmg 1 -

Participant notes (net) secured by retirement 
account balances 

2011 

$ 1,482 

2010 

$ 405 

. f 2012 through 20 16. . ~ t t ~ Oo/c and mature at 'vanous dates rom The notes bear tntercs a ->. 0 

URITIES AND INST RUME NTS Il'oYESTMENTS L'X MARKETABLE SEC 

---~------~20~11~---rc~~icm) (Depreciation) Market 
Value Cost Appreciation 

Investments: 
s 10.7 14.613 s 9,695.580 

\.lutual Funds 
18.457.899 16,970.464 

Common Stocks 
6.904.976 6.717.639 L s. Go,ernment Issues 
2.596,417 2,599,698 

Corporate Bonds 

$ 

Real Estate Investment Trusts 208.131 199.061 

1,019.033 
1.487,435 

187,337 
(3.281) 

9,070 

$ 38,882.036 $ 36,182.442 s 2 699,594 
' Total Investments 

. . tin to marketable securities and instruments am~unted to 
For 20 II. total investment gam (loss) rei a . g ) f ($1 4"' I 911) and interest and dtvldends of 

f · tm t gams (losses o • -> • · ld f ($694 959) and consisted o mves en . e (loss) represented y1e s o 
' f $263 095) Investment mcom fi 

$736,952 (net of investment fees o , _' , lue and average cost of such investments or 
(1.73%)and (1.90%) based on the average market \8 

2011. 

Investments: 
Mutual Funds 
Common Stocks 
U.S. Government Issues 
Corporate Bonds 

Total Investments 

$ 

Market 
Value 

I I , 186, I 17 
19.760,805 
7,954.341 
2,369,827 

$ 41.271,090 

$ 

2010 

Cost 

10,741,819 
16.206,148 
7.871,134 
2,289,735 

$ 37.108.836 

(Depreciation) 
Appreciation 

444,298 
3,554,657 

83207 
80,091 

4,162.254 

. . d · truments amounted to . . n to marketable secunt•es an ms . . 
For 2010, total investment gam (loss) relatl . g ) f $3 278 972 and interest and diVIdends of 
$3 958 422 and consisted of investment gams (losses o , . , e (loss) represented yields of 

, ' f $296 450) Investment mcom 
$679,450 (net of investment fees o , and average cost of such investments for 
10.06% and 11.02% based on the avef'dge market value 

2010. 
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6. 

7. 

BOARD OF RETIREMEI'\T AND INSliRANCE OF 
fHE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WlLL BAPTISTS 

~OTES TO THE Fl~ANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31,2011 and 2010 

LEASE 

L ndcr the terms of a lease agreement \\ ath an affiliate, the Board leases 2,32-t square feet of office 

and storage space (3,933 square feet before September I. 20 I 0) for $1.14 ($1.14 in 20 10) per 

square foot per month. The Board shares a portion of the space \\ ith the F rec Wi II Baptist 

Foundation Total lease payments were $31.895 and $28,651 for the years ended December 31, 
20 I I and 20 1 0, respective!). 

ANl'iUITlES PAYABLE 

L'pon attaining ret1remenr age, the retiree has the option, among others, to convert his participant 

account into an annuity to provide retirement benefits over his remaining life. The periodic benefit 

is calculated based on mortality tables considering life expectancy. As of December 3 I. 20 II and 

20 I 0. the recorded liability amounted to $8.31-1.672 and $7.305.492 respectively. The actuaf) has 
determaned that the reserve account exceeded the current periodic benefit at December 31, 20 II by 
$164.200 (by $371.987 at December 3 I, 20 I 0). Management has not requested a pension benefit 

increase for 20 I 2. 

fNFOR\1.ATION REGARDING F:NANCIAL INSTRCME:XTS 

The Board has an accounting risk of loss in the areas of cash and cash equivalents, investmentS and 

notes recei\ able to the extent cash funds are not insured by a governmental agenc), or noLes 

receivable and investments are not secured by mortgages or guaranteed by the United States 
Government. 

The following table summarizes the Board's accounting risk of loss as of December 31, 20 II and 

20 I 0: 

Notes receivable. net of allowance 
for doubtful collections 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Funds invested with the Free Will 

Baptist Foundation 
Short-term liquid investments 
Corporate bonds 
Mutual funds 
Common stocks 
U.S. Treasury notes and bills 
Other investments 

$ 

Account 
Balance 
Balance 

1,482 
168,681 

43,037 
1,934,194 
2,596,417 

10.714.613 
18,457,899 
6,904.976 

208,13 I 

$ 41 .029.430 
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$ 

2011 

Amount 

Insured/ 
Secured 

1.482 
168,681 

43,037 
1,668,004 

6,904,976 

$ 8,786.1 80 

$ 

Amount of 

Accounting 
Risk of Loss 

266,190 
2,596,417 

10,71 4,613 
18,457,899 

208, I 31 

s 32,243.250 

7. 

8. 

9. 

BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND INSlJRA~CE OF 
THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

~OTES TO THE Fl~ANCIAL STATE,1ENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2011 and 2010 

INFORMATION REGARDING FINANCIAL l.NSTRl:ME:\TS- CO~TJNt;ED 
2010 

Notes receivable, net of allowance 
for doubtful collections 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Funds invested with the Free Will 

Baptist Foundation 

Short-term liquid investments 

Corporate bonds 
Mutual funds 
Common stocks 
U.S. Treasury notes and bills 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Account 
Balance 

s 405 
145,309 

36.376 
1,622.3~5 
2.369.827 

I I, 186. I 17 
19.760.805 

7,954,341 

$43,075,525 

Amount 
Insured/ 
Secured 

s -1.05 
145.309 

36.376 
1,370.3-lO 

7.954.341 

s 9.506.771 

Amount of 
Accounting 
Risk of Loss 

$ 

252.005 
2.369,827 

1 l '186.1 )7 

19.760,805 

$33.568.75-1. 

The Board had $43,037 and $36.376 invested 
December 31' 20 II and 20 I 0, respectively. 

with the Free Will Baptist Foundataon, Inc. at 

FAIR VALLE MEASUREMENTS 

The Board's investments are reported at 

available for benefits. 

fair value m the accompanying statement of net assets 

Mutual Funds 
Common Stocks 
U.S. Government Issues 
Corporate Bonds 
Real Estate Investment Trusts 

Fair Value Measurements at December 31. 20 II I_; sing 

Fair Value 
$10,714,613 

18,457,899 
6,904,976 
2,596,417 

208,131 

$38,882,036 

Quoted Prices 
In Active 

MarketS for 
Identical 
Assets 

(Level I) 
$10.714,613 

18,457,899 
6,904.976 
2,596,417 

208,131 

$38,882,036 
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Significant 
Other 

Observable 

$ 

Inputs 
(Le\el2) 

s 

Significant 
Unobservable 

$ 

Inputs 
(Level3) 

$ 



9. 

BOARD OF RETIREMENT A~D I~SURANCE OF 
THE NATIONAL ASSOCIA TIO~ OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

NOTES TO THE FlNA:\CIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, lOU and 2010 

F Affi VALUE MEASL'REMENTS- CONTI!\uED 

The Board's investments are reported at fair value in the accompanying statement of net assets 
available for benefits. 

Mutual Funds 
Common Stocks 
U.S. Go,emmcm Issues 
Corporate Bonds 

Fair Value Measurements at December 3!, 20 I 0 Using 
Quoted Prices 

In Active 
Markets for 

Fair Value 
$11.186.117 

19,760,805 
7,954,341 
2.369,827 

$41,271.090 

Identical 
Assets 

(Level I) 
$11.186,117 

19.760,805 
7,954.34! 
2,369.827 

$41.271.090 

Significant -
Other 

Observable 
Inputs 

(Level2) 
$ 

s 

Significant 
Unobservable 

$ 

s 

Inputs 
(Level)) 

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounring Standards Codification Topic 
related to Fair Value Measurements, establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to 
valuation techniques used to measure fair value. This hierarchy consists of three broad levels: Level 
I inputs consist of unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and have the 
highest priority, Level 2 inputs consist of observable inputs other than q uoted prices for identical 
assets, and Level J inputs are unobservable and have the lowest priority. The Board uses the 
appropriate valuation techniques based on the available inputs to measure the fair value of its 
investments. When available, the Board measures fa ir value using Level I inputs because they 
provide the most reliable evidence o f fair value. Level 3 inputs were only used when Level I or 
Level 2 inputs were not available. 

Level I Fair Value Measurements - The fair value of the investments are based the closing price 
reported on the active market where the securities are traded. 

Level 2 Fair Value Yfeasurements - The fair value of the investments are based on inputs other than 
quoted prices within Level I that are observable for the asset, either directly. or indirectly. 

Level 3 Fair Value Measurements - The fair value of the imesrments are based on at least one 
significant unobservable input. 
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, ~D Il'ISURAI\CE OF 
BOARD OF RETIREM~~~ ~F FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

THE ='I'ATIONAL ASSHOEClFAI~ A ~~CIAL STA TEME~TS 
~OTES TOT .... n . 

. DECE~BER 31, 2011 and 2010 

CAPITAL LEASE 

10. . ent under the provisions of a 
The Board acquired of~c~ equtpm al lease payments of$4,964. 

'des for mmtmum annu agreement provt 

d the lease are as follows· Future minimum payments un er 
2012 
2013 
2014 

Less amount representing interest 

. . lease pa,..ments I e Of net mmtmum • Present \au 

long-term lease. The lease 

$ 4,964 
4,964 

4 14 

10.342 
(I ,996) 

8 "46 ,.> 

amounted to $2.687 · The depreciation expense related to this office equtpment 

. . ment amounted to $2,258. . . I ded in the payments for thts equtp The imputed tnterest me u 

11. SUBSEQUE~T EVENTS h M h ?O 2012 which is the date 
valuated by Management throug arc - ' 

Subsequent events have been e . be issued. 
. I tatements -.vere available to the ftnancta s 

TY lN INCOME TAXES 
12. UNCERTAIN . · e the Organization's 

. . d States of Amenca reqmr ( 
. . )I accepted in the Cntte . nize a tax liability or Accounting pnnctpals genera .y . . ken by the Organizatton and recog would not be 

management to ev~lu~te t:X ~~~~~o:~ ~~certain tax position that mo~ l ike_l:a.:~:: :::inistrator has 
asset) if the Organtza~to~· : by the Internal Revenue Service. The Irs;;; I there are no uncertain 

sustained upon ~x.am t7 ~:nand has concluded that as of December?., of~ liability (or asset) or 
anal~ed tax posmons;cted to be taken that would require reco~ttto~ling annual tax returns 
positions taken or ex . The Organization ts exempt om 
disclosure in the financtal statements. 
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Board of Retirement and Insurance 
Board of Retirement and Insurance Proposed Budget for 2013 

Salary and Benefits Breakdown 

2012 2013 2010 2011 
2011 2011 2012 2013 

General Director: Ray Lewis 
42,835.07 44,315.77 45,826.08 47,366.61 

Budget Actual Budget Proposed 
Salary 

31 ,200.00 31,200.00 31 ,200.00 31 ,200.00 

INCOME 

Housing/Utilities 
13,373.51 13,640.98 13,913.80 14,192.08 

Service Fees 
$383,128 $352,098.46 $394,000 $396,2001 

Social Security/Medicare 
1,680.93 1,714.55 1,748.84 1,783.82 

Insurance Administrative Fees 
1,200 528.50 1,200 600 

Christmas Check 
5,300.12 5,406.12 5,514.25 5,624.53 

The Together Way 
75,000 70,349.73 75,000 72,000 

Retirement 
9,139.53 10,053.48 11 ,058.83 12,164.71 

Other State Gifts 
700 756.87 700 700 j 

' 2,000 j Insurance 

112,331.75 

Rest of the Family Offering 
1,500 2,114.24 1,500 

Note: Office Car Furnished 
103,529.16 106,330.91 109,261 .80 

Interest Income 
1,500 2,713.87 1,500 2,500 j 

Total 
Gain/Loss On Sale of Assets 

0.00 0.00 Miscellaneous Income 
100 1,957.63 100 1,000 

CFO: John Brummitt 
44,316.83 - 46,532.67 48,859.30 52,768.05 

3,809.62 4,114.39 
Salary . 

3,455.43 3,628.21 

TOTAL 
$463,128 $430,519.30 $474,000 $475,ooo 1 

Social Security/Medicare 
852.25 894.86 939.60 1,014.77 Christmas Check 

3,161.84 3,319.93 3,48~.92 3,764.~0 

EXPENSES 

Retirement 
7,661 .46 8,427.60 12,654.92 13,920.41 

Salaries 
$126,630 $131 ,640.55 ' $131 ,209 $137,446 

Insurance 

75,582.41 

Employee Benefits 
57,942 61 ,022.73 64,861 69,250 

Note: Office Car Furnished 
59,447.80 62,803.26 69,749.37 

Housing 
31 ,200 31 ,200.00 31,200 31,200 

Total 
Travel/Promotion 

44,000 39,243.95 44,000 44,000 

Sara Poston 
33,861.15 

Auto Maintenance 
5,000 2,950.12 5,000 5,000 

Administrative Assistant: 
31,908.12 32,546.28 33,197.21 

Future Purchases/Auto 
12,000 12,000.00 12,000 12,000 

Salary 
2,487.91 2,537.67 2,588.42 2,640.19 

651 .18 

Hardware/Software Future Purchas~ 
12,000 12,000.00 12,000 12,000 

Social Security/Medicare 
613.62 625.89 638.41 

Plant Fund 
30,000 31 ,895.05 30,000 35,000 

Christmas Check 
2,276.52 2,322.05 2,368.49 2,41 5.86 

I 

9,466.48 10,41 3.13 

Office Expense 
42,000 39,750.58 42,000 42,000 

Retirement 
7,823.54 8,605.90 

49,981 .51 

Equipment Lease 
5,000 3,353.68 5,000 4,000 

Insurance 
45,109.71 46,637.79 48,259.01 

Equipment 
5,000 4,610.29 5,000 ' 3,000 Total 

Education/Training 
12,000 6,161 .77 12,000 6,000 Publications 
30,000 24,537.56 30,000 27,000 

512,552 Couple; $18,384 Family 

Board Expense 
14,500 12,495.94 14,500 14,000 Hospitalization Cap: 

Legal 
12,000 7,125.26 12,000 10,000 

""Disability Insurance is .059 per $100 

Auditing 
15,000 15,260.00 15,000 16,000 

1 ,00~ ' 
Offsite Backup Storage 

1,000 0.00 1,000 Website Hosting/Maintenance ... 
__, 2,000 418.75 2,000 1,000 Software Maintenance 

4,000 3,417.74 4,000 4,000 Depreciation Expense 
36,964.27 r Miscellaneous 

1,856 537.94 1,230 1,104 TOTAL 
$463,128 -' ' $475,000 1 $476,586.18 $474,000 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST 

FOUNDATI N 
Past, Present and Future 

I want to look at the past 20 years that I have been associated with Free Will Bapt1st Foundatron, look at 

where we are presently and take a peek at the near future. Let's look at the important events from the 

last 20 years. You may recall that the Foundation and Board of Retirement were together dunng the 

early days. We are eternally grateful to the Board of Retirement because wrthout the sacrifice of 
employees and funding from that board there would be no Foundation. 

In 1992 the Foundat1on's total assets were $937,000 and only $291,000 was in the endowment pool. 

We had a net loss that year of $5,426 and income of a little over $21,000 w1th a fund balance of 

$29,178 Herman Hersey was in his last year as Drrector. He retired in July of 1993. Thank God for his 

v1sion in leading the denomination to establrsh the Foundation m 1980. Bill Evans became the Director in 

August 1993 and continued till July of 2007. Many changes and rmportant developments occurred 

during hrs 14 years of service. The denommat1on should be grateful for his many accomplishments. 

In the early days of the Foundation all of our investments were made through the Board of Retrrement. 

Startrng in 1994 we began to separate the funds so that the Foundation could develop investment 

policies for each type of fund we managed. Two different planned gift funds were established along 

with an endowment pool. Revocable funds were separated and a decision was made to manage these in house 

A key dec1sron during those days was to develop a laddered portfolio of government agency bonds that 

provrded a stable competitive return, easy access and safety Initially we did not project an interest rate 

but declared a rate at the end of each six month penod. In the late 90's we started projecting an interest 

rate which greatly helped the marketing of revocable trusts Around the year 2000 we began placing 

ads on the back of Randall House's adult Sunday School books, whrch was an almost instant success 
resulting in rapid growth 

We saw our total assets increase by $24 million during the years 2002-2005 because of these changes. 

The Foundation asset base grew enough to support 1ts own budget. More and more the Foundation 

began separating 1tself from the Board of Retirement and ultimately had its own elected board in 2005. 

Through the years we saw growth 1n planned giving and endowments but the most dramatic growth was 

10 revocable trusts that we now call Money Management Trusts. A picture is worth a thousand words so 

I invite you to look at our growth chart and a graph showing our growth even more dramatically. In 

1992 we had $937,000 and at the end of 2011 our assets stood at $41,648,314. In my opinion there is 

no other word to describe what has happened in the Foundation over the last 20 years than miraculous. 

P'Oise God fo, His blessings ove< the last 20 ywsl Yes we wo,ked h"d. He,man He<sey, a;u Evans, Ray 
lewis and I have planted seeds and watered but God has given the 1ncrease 
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Year 

199 2 
199 3 

199 4 
1995 
1996 
1997 
1998 
1999 
2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 
2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 

2009 
2010 
2011 

Free Will Baptist Foundation 

20-Year Total Assets Growth 

Total Assets Increase/(Decline) 

$937,407 
$1 ,461 ,540 $524,133.00 
$2,531 ,175 $1 ,069 ,635 .00 
$2,796,842 $265,667.00 
$4,486,815 $1 ,689,973.00 
$5,184,260 $697,445 .00 
$5 ,938,688 $754,428.00 
$8,385 ,556 $2,446,868.00 
$8 ,199,532 ($186.024.00) 
$9,103 ,445 $903,913.00 

$13 ,4 7 5 ' 171 $4,371 ,726.00 
$19,429 ,468 $5,954,297.00 

$27' 169,360 $7,739 ,892.00 
$33,042,615 $5,873 ,255.00 

$34' 166,609 $1,123,994.00 
$39,441,890 $5 ,27 5 ,281 .00 

$3 5 '11 7 ,9 51 ($4,323 ,939 .00) 
$36,007,005 $889,054.00 
$38,226,088 $2,219,083.00 
$41 ,648 ,314 $3,422,226.00 
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Present 

In 2011 our net income was $108,205 and our operating reserves were at $463,620. Our assets 

increased by $3.4 mtllion dunng 2011, which is our sixth best year for asset growth and our largest since 

2001. Thank God for another good year! 

our expenses are up in 2011 because we decided to accelerate depreciation on every asset. Since we 

were having a good mcome year we felt it would be prudent to allow those future expenses to hit our 

income statement this year. This means future years of depreciation will be much lower, which will be a 

big help if mcome should get squeezed m a few years. We also sped up some of our future promotional 

plans resulting in an additional $12,000 being spent over the budget tn the promotional area. These two 

items accounted for $64,000 in accelerated spend mg. More will be said later about the promotional 

spending increase. 

With our Money Management Trust funds stabilized and a steadier stock market, we are poised for 

good growth over the next few years. Our endowments earned 11.2% for the first half of 2012 . We 

have grown by about $2.5 million already in 2012 so our total assets are around $44 million today. 

We are substantially increasing our marketing efforts. We have recently produced planned giving and 

wills guides for a number of ministries over the last few months. This includes national, regional and 

state ministries. We look forward to working with all of these ministries to market planned gifts through 

direct mail pieces soon. We are also helping many minist nes with their mailing lists, having them 

analyzed for age and other data to help them better reach thetr supporters. This type of marketmg will 

need to be ongoing; so at some point in the future, there will need to be some cost sharing between 

these ministries and the Foundation . Some of these costs are one time "start-up" costs that will not be 

recurring, like helping mtnistries with their donor hsts. Most of these costs will be in 2012 and 2013, but 

we will reap the benefits for years to come. 

We now have a Facebook page that we will be developing more and more in the next year. We invite 

you to "like us" on Facebook. 

With assets growing and stable income, we have proposed budget increases. The promotion budget has 

been increased by $17,000 over the 2012 budget to cover more joint mailings and other market ing 

efforts with Free Will Baptist ministries. Other increases are modest but in line with our actual expenses 

in 2011. We are projecting a net income of $50,000. 

Future 

I believe we are on the cusp of becoming a true Foundation. What Herman Hersey and Bill Evans 

dreamed will soon be a reality. Withtn 5 years I believe the Foundation will be poised to offer grants to 

Free Will Baptist ministries for the fi rst time in its history. Due to growth in the Foundation and a 

strategic repositioning of assets we have the potential to produce excess income above what is needed 
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for Foundation operations and reserves. We believe thrs excess could be around $250,000 to for 5 or 6 
years and contmue at around $50,000 thereafter 

The possibrltties for extending the Kingdom through Free Will Baptrsts usmg grants are beyond what we 

have ever rmagined We are at least five years away and the board has not set policy for how these 

grants will be awarded We have a lot of work to do before the first dollar rs granted Consider just a 
few rdeas from the drrectors of our national mmistries. 

In lnternatronal Mrssions we are facing challenges in placing a missronary rn extremely restrictive fields. 

But Free Wrll Baptist businessmen can get into these areas rr they are starting a business. A grant to 

start a busmess could be a solution allowrng businessmen to start a self-sustaining business that can be 

used as a way to reach that area for Christ. We have pastors in in Nepal, Pakistan and other countries 

who cannot get jobs because they are required to disclose they are Christians on their passports. A 

mrcro loan program could help these pastors start businesses to support their families and pay back the 
loans so that the fund can be self-sustaining. 

Free Will Baptrst Bible College could use a grant to help develop the business as mrssions program I have 

descrrbed so that successful businessmen and women could get mrssrons trarning to go to these closed 

mrssion fields. Perhaps scholarships could also be part of the grant. Many of the young people who are 

at our chrldren's homes have a difficult time finding the money to attend the Bible College; but 
scholarship grants could make this possible. 

Grants could be used by our Home Mission department to support works in poorer areas where 

becoming a self-supporting church may not be possible Using grants to purchase property would help 

Home Missrons focus our efforts on specific areas where we desperately need more churches. 

The Board of Retirement is burlding the Labor of Love endowment to support retired ministers, 

especrally those who are living in poverty. A grant to thrs endowment would help their efforts. Randall 

House could use a grant to publish products that are needed but usually sold in such low quantities that 

they are unprofitable. For example items produced in other languages or items for those with learning 

disabilttres. Srmilarly, WNAC has a need for a grant to produce their study gurdes in Spanish for our 

growrng Hispanrc churches to allow them to develop new WNAC programs among thrs fast growing 
group. 

The Executrve Commrttee rs studying a program to help struggling churches by using current and retired 

successful pastors as mentors using a grant to fund the program Masters Men could use grants for 

therr disaster relref operations to purchase expensrve but long lastrng equrpment such as generators. 

Even our commrssions could use grants. The Historical Commrssion could use a grant to put the 

hrstorical collect ron rn digital form to prevent further deterroration of the origrnals. The Theological 

Commrssron could use a grant to give a scholar fundrng to write about important theological trends. 
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. II All of the rdeas above are just ideas and not . . could partrcrpate as we b I. h Free 
Wrll Baptrst mimstrres d the next five years but I e reve Ot er b d by the boar over 

commrtments Much work will need to e one their way to becomrng realrty in the near future. 
F Wrll Baptrst Foundatron are on 

grants from ree . he next 20 years. We praise God for what He has 

It's been a great rrde and I am lookrng forw~rd tot the last 20 years usrng good Free Will Baptist men 

done through the Free Will Baptist Foundatron over today in a solid financial position. We look 
ed about where we are that 

and women We are encourag . . h future . Let me end by quoting a verse 
h t God will do through thrs mrnrstry rn t e forward tow a 

up this report better than I possibly could. k 

sums . d tl above all that we as . h . able to do excecdrng abun an Y . 
Ephesians 3:20,21 "Now unto hrm w o tS . to him be glory in the church by Chrrst 

that worketh rn us, un or think, according to the power n" 
all ages, world without end. Ame Jesus throughout 
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. i Free Will Baptist Foundation 

Synopsis of Board Meetings 2011 

April18. 2011 

All members were present for all or significant portions of the meeting except Ken Akers, Keith 

Burden, Wayman Fields, Brian Hurst, Donnie Miles, Elizabeth Hodges and larry Powell. 

Audit, Financial and Director's Report and Proposed Budget were presented and approved. 

Investment Committee proposed protocols for determining loans and approved one loan, the 

report was approved. Director Evaluation Committee Report was presented and approved. 

Reports from two of the Foundation's money managers were heard and approved as 
information. 

December 5. 2011 

All members were present for all or significant portions of the meeting except Ken Akers and 
Larry Powell. 

Financial and Director's reports were presented and approved. Investment committee 

recommended the temporary change in investment policy for t he Money Management Trusts 

to invest in dividend-paying stocks. (Note this change w as made September 29, 2011 by email 

vote}. The board reaffirmed the proposed charter change that will be voted on in 2012 at 

Memphis. Reports were received as information from three of the Foundation's money 
managers. 
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Joel D. Collum, Jr. 
Certified Public Accollntam 

JNPEPE!\"D:El\il A1JDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Directors 
Free Will Baptist Foundation, lnc. 

. ia.l osition of the Free Will Baptist Foundation, Inc., 
I have audited the accompanymg statements of fi~~~ I 0 ~nd lhe related statements of activities a~d ~as~ 
(the "Foundation") as of December 31, 2011 ~I t nts are the responsibility of the OrgamzatJon s 

hen ended These financla sta erne ed audits flows for the years t · • . on these financial statements bas on my · 
management. My responsibility is to express an opmlon . 

. . . tandards oenerally accepted in the Umted States of 
I conducted my audits in accordance With audltmg ~ th o d 't to obtain r.Je.sonable assurance about 

dard • that I plan .and peuonn e au I t 
America. Those stan s requue 'a! . tatemcnt An audit includes examining, on a res 
whether the financial statements are free of ":aten :~ the fina:ncia.l statements. An audit also includes 
basis, evidence supponing the a~nounts and dasclo_su . . t made by management, as well u 
assessing the accounting p~inciples used and sr~nlfic~t 1~;:~~=: my audits provide a reasonable basis 
evaluating the overall financaal statement presentation. e 

for my opinion. . 

. bove resent fairly, in all material respect$, the financa~ 
In my opinion, the fin~clal s~cements re~erred to a f ~ecember 31, 2011 and 2010, and the changes m 
position of the Free Wsll Baptist Foundation, Inc.,~~ . f, nn'ty with accounting principles generally 
its net assets and its cash flo~ for the years then en e In con o J 

accepted in the United States of America. 

D.~.}·; ar} 
Apri 12.2012 

P. O . Sox 291561 • Nuhville, Te nna uce 37 
22!t • 61 S. 974.29 ~ 8 • joelcollumcpa@yafsoo.com 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST FO~DATIOI'i, INC. 
STATEMENTS OF FI:\'A~CIAL POSITIO~ 

DECEMBER 31. 2011 and 2010 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Accrued earnings receivable 
Office equipment and automobiles, net of 

accumulated depreciation 

lnvesonems, at fair markeL value 
Certificates of deposit 
U.S Government instruments 
Common stocks 
Limited parmerships 
Real estate investments 
Mutual funds 
Corporate bonds 
Municipal bonds 
Investment in FWBBC student loan fund 
Trusts 

Total investments 

?\otes receivable 
~ores receivable FWBBC 
~otes receivable other 

Total notes receivable 

TOTAL ASSETS 

ASSETS 

2011 

$ I, 735,687 
227,573 

1,963,260 

209,063 
16,445,062 
2, 735,625 

16,929 
3,182,473 
4, 718,917 

858,474 
6.245,290 

240,403 
34,652,236 

3,962,817 
I ,070,00 I 

5,032,8 I 8 

$ 41 ,648,314 

LIABILJT.IES 
Operating liabilities: 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Accrued expense 
Line of credit 

Liabilities to beneficial owners 
Interest bearing revocable trusts 
Future gifts interest payable 
Funds held in trust 

Totalliabtlities 

~TASSETS 
Unrestricted 

Total net assets 

TOTAL UABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

$ 5,588 
1,417,050 

3 I ,243,827 
2,106,024 
6,412,205 

41,184,694 

463,620 
463,620 

s 41,648,314 

The accompanying notes are an integral pan of these financial statements. 
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2010 

s 2,2 !9,816 
250,985 

44,633 
2,515,434 

31!,984 
17,043,394 
2,543,826 

3,072,473 
5,070,888 

887,104 
5,278,667 

190,000 
240,403 

34,638,739 

1,071,915 

I ,071,9J 5 

$ 38,226,088 

$ 67,882 

27,550,080 
2,576,780 
7,675,93 1 

37,870,673 

355,415 
355,4 15 

$ 38,226,088 

FREE WlLL BAPTIST FOUND A TJON, I~C. 
. TS OF ACTIVITIES 

STAfEMEN D DECEMBER 31, 2011 and 2010 
FOR THE YEARS ENDE 

REVENUE AND SUPPORT 
investment mcome: fi 

l terest and dividends, net of investment ees 
n . d . (losses) on sale of investments Realize gams 
Unrealized gains (losses) from investments 

Total investment income 

h h "The Together Way" Plan Suppon t roug 
and other contributions 

Interest income -note receivable 
Total revenue and suppon 

Allocation of earnings to revocable trustS, 
beneficianes and annuitants . 

Revenue and support after allocanons 

EXPE!\SES 
Salanes and benefits 
Equipment expense 
Travel and promotion 
Board expense 
Office expense 
Rent expense 
Printing and publications 
One magazine 
Training and education 
Legal and accounting 
Depreciation 
Amonization of loan origination fees 
Miscellaneous 

Total expenses 

(d ease) in operating net assets Increase ecr 

:-let assets - beginning of year 

Net assets - end of year 

2011 

$ I ,608,705 
54,341 

679,336 
2,342,382 

33,817 
I 50,687 

2,526,886 

(I ,838,738) 
688,148 

220,146 
25,920 
81,922 
15,224 
30,687 
42,591 
6,830 

50,466 
21,391 
16,402 
66,918 

1,446 
579,943 

108,205 

355,41 s 

s 463,620 

. t ral pan of these financial statements. The accompanying notes are an '" eg 
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2010 

$I ,459,060 
469,998 
429,428 

2,358,486 

26,972 
42,682 

2,428,140 

( 1,876,903) 
551,237 

210,729 
14,290 
62,427 
19,294 
27,853 
32,098 

5,006 
46,923 
16,463 
I 0,340 
16,906 

940 
2,367 

465,636 

85,601 

269.814 

$ 355,415 



FREE WILL BAPTIST FOUND A TJON NC 

F 
STATEMENTS OF CI\SH FLOws' . . 

OR THE YEARS El\ . 
iDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 and 2010 

CASH FLO\\S FROM OPERATING ACTIVIT 
Cash rece1ved for: lES: 

Contributions 
Interest and dividends 
Other income 

Cash p~id to suppliers and employees 
Allocation_ of earnings to revocable trusts, 

beneficlanes and annuitants 
Net Cash Provided (Used) By 0 . . .. peratmg Act1v1t1es 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING p h • ACTIVITIES· 

N
urc ases of office equipment and automobiles . 

1 ew loans made 
Principal payme t · n s rece1ved on notes rece· bl 
Proceeds fro Iva e 
p h ~ sale or call of investment securities 

urc ase of mvestment securities 
Net Cash Provided n ·sed) B . \'-' Y lnvestmg Acthities 

CASH FLOWS FROM FL'\'ANCJNG 
P ds fr ACTIVITIES· 

roc_ee . om additions, net of withdrawals t fu . 
gift Interest and revocable trust ' 0 ture 

Contr~butions to funds held in t~ 
Advanced from line of credit 
Repayments of line of credit 

?\et Cash Provided (U ed) b . . 5 Y Fmancmg Activities 

11\CREA.SE (DECREASE) IN 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of years 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of years 

RECONCILIATION OF INCRE 
TO CASH FLOWS FRO ASE IN NET ASSETS 

M OPERATING ACT 
Increase (decrease) in net assets MTIES 
Depreciation 

2011 

$ 33,8 17 
I ,632,117 

192,264 
(616,896) 

(J ,838, 738) 
(597,436) 

(22,285) 
(4, 140,434) 

179,531 
8,316,874 

(7 ,596,694) 
(3,263,008) 

( 4,502,481) 
6.461 ,746 
2,417,050 

(1,000,000) 
3,376,315 

(484, 129) 

2,219,816 

S I, 735,687 

Realized and unrealized I na · ) I . 
D 

\64ms osses on mvestm 
ecrease (increase) in accrued . . ent rra.nsactions 

D . mvestment mcome 

s 108,205 
66,918 

(733,677) 
23,412 ecrease (mcrease) mother accounts rece· bl 

Decrea c· . 1va e 
Dec se ~ncrease) ~n loan origination fees 
I rease (mcrease) m prepaid expenses 
ncrease (decrease) in operating liabilities 

Net Cash Provided (Used) By Ope . . . . rating Act1v1t1es 
(62,294) 

$ (597,436) 

The accom · panymg notes are an integral part ofth fi . ese tnanctal statements. 
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2010 

$ 27,554 
1,441.039 

42,682 
(382,912) 

(I ,876,903) 
(748,540) 

( 19,463) 
(338,43 J) 
102,462 

14,629,247 
(14,466,922) 

(93,107) 

(3,864,846) 
5,942,144 

2,077,298 

1,235,651 

984,165 

$ 2,219,816 

s 85,601 
! 6,906 

(899,426) 
(1 8,021) 

582 
940 

8,694 
56,184 

(748,540) 

1. 

FREE WILL BAPTIST FOlNDATION, INC. 
~OTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEME~TS 

DECEMBER 31, 2011 and 2010 

SL"MMARY OF SIG1\'1FICAA1 ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES 

Free Will Baptist Foundation, Inc. (the Foundation) is operated under the auspices of the National 

Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. 

Accrual Basis and Financial Statement Presentation 

The financial statements of the foundation have been prepared using the accrual basis of 

accounting. 

The Foundation classifies its revenue, contributions, expenses, gains, and losses into three classes 
of net assets based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Net assets of the 

Foundation and changes therein are classified as follows: 

Unrestricted net assets- Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations. 

Tempo.rarilv restricted net assets - ~et assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that 
may or will be met either by actions of the Foundation and/or the passage of time. 

Permanently restricted net assets -Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that 
they be maintained permanently by the Foundation. Generally, the donors of these 
assets permit the Foundation to use all or part of the income earned on related 

investments for general or specific purposes. 

The amount for each of those classes of net assets is presented in the statements of financial 
position and the amount of change in each class of net assets is displayed in the statements of 
activities. The Foundation had no temporarily or permanently restricted net assets at December 31, 

2011 and 2010. 

Income Taxes 

The Foundation is exempt from federal income tax under section SOI(c) (3) of the Internal Revenue 
Code under a group exemption of the National Association of Free Will Baptist, Inc. In addition, 
the Foundation has been determined by the Internal Revenue Service not to be a "private 
foundation~ within the meaning of 509 (a) of the Internal Revenue Code. There was no unrelated 

business income for 20 11 and 2010. 

Cash and Casb EquiYalents 

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Foundation considers all cash on hand, deposits in 
financial institutions and highly liquid deb1 instruments with an original maturity of three months or 
less to be cash and cash equivalentS. 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST FOUNDATION, INC. 
~OTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEME~TS 

DECEMBER 31, 2011 and 2010 

SUMMARY OF SIGr>-'IFICA.l\\T ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES- CO:XTTh"UED 

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements 

Judgment and estimation is exercised by management in certain areas of the preparation of financial 
statements. The more significant areas include the collectability of notes receivable and 
determination of fair value of investments. Management believes that such estimates have been 
based on reasonable assumptions and that such est1mates are adequate. Actual results could differ 
from those estimates. 

lnvestments 

lnvcsonents in marketable securities are reported at fair value with gains and losses included in the 
statements of activities. Investments in marketable securities are valued at current quoted or 
estimated market value. Nonmarketable investments are carried at cost unless a permanent loss of 
value has occurred. 

Liabilities to Beneficial Owners 

The Foundation has recorded liabilities for assets they held as trustee, intermediary, custodian or 
agent for beneficial owners of income or remainder interests. Generally, the Foundation's liability is 
limtted to assets held within a specific trust or account. 

Office Equipment and Automobiles 

Office equipment and automobiles are recorded at cost. Depreciation is provided on the straight-line 
method over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets, generally 5 years for automobiles and 
5 years for equipment. 

INVESTMENTS 

A summary of investments at market value and cost is as follows: 

lnvesttnents: 

Marketable Securities: 

Cenificates of deposit 

U.S. Government instruments 
Common stocks 
Limited partnerships 
Mutual Funds 
Corporate bonds 
Municipal bonds 
Trusts 

Land held for resale 

Real estate investment trust 

Total Invesnnents $ 
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$ 

Market 
Value 

209,063 

16,445,062 

2, 735,625 
16,929 

4,718,917 

858,474 
6,245,290 

240,403 

225,717 
2,956,756 

34,652,236 

2011 

Cost 

$ 200,000 
16,103,799 

2,471,725 

17,924 
4,742,444 

855,893 
5,979,125 

240,403 

225,717 

2,964,639 

$ 33,801,669 

(Depreciation) 

Appreciation 

s 9,063 

341,263 
263,9{)0 

(995) 
(23,527) 

2,581 
266,165 

(7,883) 

$ 850,567 

2. 

3. 

4. 

FREE WILL BAPTIST FOUNDATION, INC. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEME~TS 

DECEMBER 31, 20ll and 2010 

INVESTMENTS - CO!\TIN1JED 

Investments: 
Marketable Securities: 

Certificates of deposit 
U.S. Government instruments 

Common stocks 
Mutual Funds 

Corporate bonds 
Municipal bonds 
Trusts 
Investment m FWBBC student Joan fund 
Land held for resale 

Real estate investment trust 

Total Lnvesnnents 

$ 

Market 

Value 

311,984 

17,043,394 
2,543,826 

5,070,888 
887,104 

5,278,667 
240,403 
190,000 
225,717 

2,846,756 

$ 34,638,739 

2010 

Cost 

$ 300,000 
17,075, l 04 
2,068,441 
4,896,336 

957,411 

5,595,0 I 9 
240,403 
190,000 
225,717 

2,854,639 

$ 34,403,070 

(Depreciation) 
Appreciation 

$ 

$ 

II ,984 
(31,7i0) 
475,385 

174,552 
(70,307) 

(316,352) 

(7,883) 

235,669 

2 342 382 for 2011 consisting of investment gai~s of 
Total investtnent income (l~s~) amounted to$ 'o5 .This investm~nt income (loss) represents yJelds 
$733,677 and interest and diVIdends of S 1,608, 7 . I d average cost of such investments for 
of 6.76% and 6.87% based on the average market va ue an 

2011. 

2 358 486 for 2010 consisting of investment gains of 
Total investment income (I~~) amoun;~~ ~6~ 26o • This investm~nt income (loss) represents yields 
$899,426 and interest and dJVtdends o ' • k . I d averacre cost of such investments for 
of 6.88% and 6.85% based on the average mar et va ue an ::. 
2010. 

NOTES RECEIVABLE 

- w·n Ba tist organizations. The monthly payment 
Notes receivable consist of loans to other Free I p . 4 0% to 4 5% The notes allow 

. d the interest rate on the notes IS • o . . 
and the length of the note vanes an . . . I d . mediately if the borrower is more 
Foundation to declare the entire balance of unp~d pn:tp;l ;~ 1'~ no amounts were past due on any 
than 90 days late in making any payment. At cern r , 
of the loans. 

INTEREST BEARING REVOCABLE TRL'STS 

. . . which totaled $31,243,827 and $27,550,080 at December 
The FoundatiOn mamtams revocable trusts . t to the trust beneficiaries. The rate of 
31 2011 and 2010, respectively. The trusts pay ~nteres d from the related investments. 

• d the amount of mcome eame d h 
interest paid is depen ent upon . . 7-60 day notice, is without penalty, an t e 
Withdrawal from the accounts, whtch may requtre a 
trusts are without maturity. 
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6. 

7. 

FREE WILL BAPTIST FOUNDATIO~, INC. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2011 and 2010 

FUTURE GIFTS PAY ABLE 

The Foundation maintains charitable trusts amounting to $1,504,067 and $1 ,619,605 and gift 
annuities amounting to $601,957 and $957,175 as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. 
These future gift interests pay interest at specified rates ranging fTom 5.5% to 9.5%. 

FUNDS HELD IN TRUST 

The Foundation holds funds in trusts that are subject to restrictions by the donor requiring that the 
principal, and in certain instances earnings, be invested in perpetuity, and only the income be 
distributed to the beneficiaries of the endowment. The rate of interest paid is dependent upon the 
amount of income earned from the related investments. As of December 3 1, 201 I and 201 0, the 
pennanently restricted endowment funds totaled $6,4 I 2,205 and $7,675,931, respectively. 

IN'FOR.MA TION REGARDING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Foundation has an accounting risk of loss in the areas of cash and cash equivalents and 
investments to the extent they are nor insured or guaranteed by a governmental agency. The 
Foundation may also be at risk of loss with respect to the market values of other investments. The 
following table summarizes the Foundation's accounting risk of loss at December 31, 20 I I and 20 I 0: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Short term liquid investments 
Certificates of deposit 
U.S. Government instruments 
Common Stocks 
Limited partnerships 
Mutual funds 
Corporate bonds 
Municipal bonds 
Land held for resale 
Real estate investment trust 
Trusts 

Investment in FWBBC loan 
Receivables 

Total Invesrmems 

$ 

$ 
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Account 
Balance 

654,822 
1,080,865 

209,063 
16,445,062 
2,735,625 

16,929 
4, 718,917 

858,474 
6,245,290 

225,717 
2,956,756 

240,403 
3,962,817 
1,070,001 

41,420,741 

201 I 
Amount Amount of 
Insured/ Accounting 
Secured Risk of Loss 

$ 258,704 $ 396,118 
490,345 590,520 
209,063 

16,445,062 

2,735,625 
16,929 

4,718,917 
858,474 

6,245,290 
225,717 

2,956,756 
240,403 

3,962,817 

$ 
1,070,001 

22,661,709 $ 18,759,032 

7. 

8. 

9. 

'ILL BAPTIST FOlJNDATION, INC. 
FREE V. THE Fl~ANCIAL STATE~NTS 

NOTES ~~CEMBER 31,2011 and 2010 

ARDTh"G F:rt-OANCIAL STATE~NTS. CONTTh'UED 
INFORMATION REG 2010 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Short term liquid investments 
Certificates of deposit 
u.S. Govemment instruments 
Common Stocks 
Mutual funds 
Corporate bonds 
~unicipal bonds 
Land held for resale 
Real estate investment trust 

Trusts fu d 
. FWBBC student loan n Investment tn 

Receivables 
T otallnvestments 

$ 

$ 

Account 
Balance 

2,054,201 
165,615 
3 I I ,984 

17,043,394 
2,543,826 
5,070,888 

887,104 
5,278,667 

225,717 
2,846,756 

240,403 
190,000 

1,071,915 
37,930,470 

OFFICE EQl.JIP~lENT AND AUTOMOBILES 

. t and automobiles is as follows: A summary of office eqmpmen 

Automobiles 
Office equipment 
Furnishings 
Software 

Accumulated Depreciation 

Amount 

$ 

Insured/ 
Secured 

471,761 
165,615 
311,984 

17,043,394 

225,717 

$ 18,218,471 

20 II 
$ 52,986 

19,463 
29,581 

102,030 
(102,030) 

s 

Amount of 
Accounting 
Risk of Loss 

$ 1,582,440 

2,543,826 
5,070,888 

887,104 
5,278,667 

2,846,756 
240,403 
190,000 

1,071,915 
s 19,711,999 

2010 
$ 43,400 

11,203 
19,463 
29,581 

103,647 
(59,014) 

$ 44,633 

'D OCCUPA."CY EXPEJ\SE 
LEASE AN . I ... 

105 
square feet of 

- · h Foundation eases .>, 
lease eement with an affth2.te, t e r Sl 14 ($1.14 in 201 0) per 

Under the terms of a agr fi et before September 1' 20 I 0) fo . F w·JII Baptist ( 1 967 square e with the ree 
office and storage space Th F dation shares a portion of the space th ears ended December 
square foot per month. e oun nts were $42,591 and $32,098 for e y 
B rd of Retirement. Total lease payme oa . 

1 31,2011 and 2010, respecnve y. 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST FOUNDATION, INC. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2011 and 2010 

10. COMMITMENTS 

The Foundation obtained a $1,000,000 line of credit with a local institution during the year ended 
December 3 J, 2005. The line is unsecured and carries an interest rate of 1.35% below the 
institution's prime rate. This line of Credit is open ended and there are no advances payable at 
December 31, 20 II or 2010. 

The Foundation obtained a .$5,000,000 line of credit with a local institution during the year ended 
December 3 I. 20 I 0. The line is secured by the investments of the Foundation and carries an 
interest rate of 3.0% above the institution's index rate. This line of credit is open ended and the 
advances payable were $1,4 I 7,050 and $-0- at December 31, 2011 and 20 I 0 respectively. 

11. PENSION PLAN 

The Foundation participates in the master pension plan of the Board of Retirement and Insurance 
of the National Association of Free Will Baptists. The Foundation contributes to the plan on 
behalf of its employees. Pension expenses amounted to $8,8 I 8 ($8,488 in 20 I 0). The pension 
plan is a defined contribution plan. Under the plan, an account is maintained for each participant 
and upon retirement the participant can either receive a lump-sum distribution or purchase one of 
several types of annuity contracts. 

U. FAIR VALliE MEASUREMENTS 

The Foundation's investments are reported at fair value in the accompanying statement of net 
assets available for benefits. 

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 201 I Usin~ 
Quoted Prices 

In Active Significant 
Markets for Other Significant 

Identical Observable Unobservable 
Assets Inputs Inputs Fair Value (Level I) ~Level2) ~Level3) Certificates of deposit $ 209,063 $ $ 209,063 $ U.S. Government instruments 

16,445,062 16,445,062 Common stocks 
2, 735,625 2, 735,625 Limited partnerships 

16,929 
16,929 Real estate investments 

3,182,473 
3,182,473 Mutual funds 

4,71 8,917 4,718,91 7 Corporate bonds 
858,474 

858,474 Municipal bonds 
6,245,290 

6,245,290 Trusts 
240,403 

240,403 $34,652,236 $23,899,604 .$ 7,570,159 $ 3,182,473 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST FOUNDATION, INC. 
~OTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
. DECEMBER 31,2011 and 2010 

FAffi VALlJE MEASUREMENTS- CONTTh'lJED 
1%. u . 

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2010 smg 

Certificates of deposit 
U.S. Government instruments 
Common stocks 
Real estate investments 
Mutual funds 
Corporate bonds 
Municipal bonds 
Investment in FWBBC student 
loan fund 
Trusts 

Fair Value 
$ 311,984 

17,043,394 
2,543,826 
3,072,473 

5,070,888 
887, l 04 

5,278,667 

190,000 
240,403 

$34,638,739 

Quoted Prices 
In Active 

Markets for 
Identical 
Assets 

(Level 1) 

$ 
17,043,394 

2,543,826 

5,070,888 

$24,658,1 08 

Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs 

(Level2) 
$ 311,984 

887,104 
5,278,667 

190,000 
240,403 

$ 6,908,158 

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs 
(Level3) 

$ 

3,072,473 

$ 3,072,473 

ASB Accounting Standards Codificati~n Topic 
The Financial Accounting Standards Bo~rd (F fa} value hierarchy that prioritizes the mputs t~ 
related to Fair Value Measurements esta~hshet a This hierarchy consists of three broad levels. 
valuation techniques used to measure fatr va ~e. . active markets for identical assets and have 
Level 1 inputs consist of unadj~sted quote~ pn;es ~~rvab1e inputs other than quoted prices . for 
the h

igheSt priority, Level 2 mputs consist o o . 'ty The Board uses the appropnate 
. h the lowest pnon · . 

identical assets, and Level 3 mputs ~lvebl . ts to measure the fair value of its mvestments. 
· b ed on the ava1 a e mpu . 

valuation techmques as I l r Level 2 inputs were not available. Level 3 inputs were only used when Leve o 

The fair value of the mvestments are . based the closing price Level I Fair Value Measurements - . . traded 
h tt. e market where the secuntJes are . reported on t e ac v 

· t other . value of the investments are based on mpu s 
Level 2 Fair Value Measurements - The fair fi th et either directly, or indirectly. 

d ·ces within Level 1 that are observable or e ass • than quote pn 

Level 3 Fair Value Measurements - The fair value . of the investments are based on at least one 
significant unobservable input 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST FOUNDATIO~ INC 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEME~TS 

DECEMBER 31,201 1 and 2010 

12. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS- CONTINtJED 

Level 3 Reconciliation: 

Real estare investments: 2011 

Beginning balance 
Purchases $ 3,072,473 

Gains (losses) on value I 10,000 

Sales 

Ending balance 
$3,182,473 

Total gains or losses for [he year included in 

the stat~ment of activities attributable to the 
ch~nge rn unrealized gains or losses relating 
to mvestments still held at the reporting date. 

$ 

13. :VOTE RECEIVABLE FWBBC 

o · 

2010 

$ 3,079,975 

(7,502) 

$ 3,072,473 

$ (7,502) 

~nng the year ended December 31, 201 I the Foundatl . 
With the free Will Baptist Bible College (FWBBC) Th ?" enter~d m to three loan agreements 
follows: · e rnfonnation related to these loans are as 

Promissory note from FWBBC dated Janu ., 
accrues at a rate of 1.25% over the Wall Stre:;J~::n~~~~. and amend~ June 28, 201 I. Interest 
pennanently decreases to 1.00% over the W I! s· nme Rate until January 28, 2012 when it 
paid thl b · · a treet Journal Prime Rat 1 mon Y egmnmg February 28 2011 n . e. nterest on the loan is 
monthly payments will include boUt rin~r ~ penod_ of 18 m~nths. Beginning August 28, 2012 
amortize the loan over a 20 year ~od p and mterest tn an amount necessary to fuJiy 

- pen at the T · 
reamortized January 28 20 1., b d h .. pre:ai mg Interest rate. The Joan will be 
th ft • ..> ase on t e prevatlmg Interest t d . 

erea er. All remaining principal and . t . ra e an will reamortize annually 
Th ·s . m erest Will become due d bl 

I note IS secured by various property owned b an paya e on July 28, 2032. 
at December 3 I • 20 I 1 was S 1,417,050. y FWBBC. The balance receivable on this note 

Promissory note from FWBBC dated Janu 28 2 
accrues at a fixed rate of 4.5% and is "d ary ' ~II. and amended June 28, 20 I I. Interest 

h 8 . . PSI monthlv begmnmg feb 28 20 ~ont s. egmnmg August 28, 2012 FWBBC ;ill . . ruary ' 1 l for a period of 18 
m~lu~e both principal and interest as computed b dbegm makmg monthly payments which will 
prmctpaJ and interest will become due d b~ upon a 20-year amorrizarion. All remaining 
various property owned by F\VBBC ;~ ~ya e on ~anuary 28, 2016. This note is secured by 
was $2,200,000. . e a ance receivable on this nate at December 31, 2011 
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13. ~OTE RECEJV ABLE FWBBC - C01\TDIUED 

14. 

Line of credit note in the amount of $500,000 from FWBBC dated May 3 1, 2011. Interest accrues 
at a rate of 1.00% over the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate. Interest on the loan will accrue 
monthly beginning June 1, 201 I. All principal and interest will become due and payable on May 
31, 2016. Thts note is secured by an endowment that FWBBC has in the Foundation. The 
balance receivable on this note ar December 31,2011 was $345,767. 

The note agreements contain a provision that if payment is not made within I 5 days of the due 
date the payment will be subject to the assessment of a late charge. At December 31, 20 II no 
amounts were past due on any of the notes. 

The interest earned by the Foundation on these notes amounted to $137,071 net of interest paid on 
its line of credit of$41,577. 

UNCERTAINTY IN INCOME TAXES 

Accounting principals generally accepted in the United States of America require the Foundation's 
management to evaluate tax positions taken by the Foundation and recognize a tax liability (or 
asset) if the Foundation has taken an uncertain tax position that more likely than not would not be 
sustained upon examination by rhe Internal Revenue Service. The Foundation's d irector has 
analyzed tax positions taken and has concluded that as of December 31, 2011, there are no 
uncertain positions taken or expected to be taken that would require recognition of a liability (or 
asset) or disclosure in the financia: statements. The Foundation is exempt from filing annual tax 
returns. 

15. SUBSEQUENT EVEl\iS 

Subsequent events have been evaluated by Management through April 12, 20 I 2 which is the date 
the financial statements were available to be issued. 
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In troductio n 

Three bricklayers worked srde by srde k" 
place 1\ lntle hoy <lsked "What PdK rng up bncks, puttmg mortar <Jn ·lnd P tt 

• are you oin ?" Th · • u rng each b · k · 
top of the other Isn't it ob . . .. g. <' fma bricklayer replied "I nc mto 
Th h vrous' The second say "I b . . am putting one bnck 

e t lrd says, "I <lm creating a cathedral It will s~~ndar. ulldmg the west Side of the wall of a chur~~ • 
or centunes and mspirt' 1 · 

Pc.oplc qu1ckly "<'e tht• first b.· kl . peop e to great deeds." 
b k rIC aycr domg a J I tl 
Hnc layer rE'cognlzes his lmk to Impacting othco/~e~t· ~econd a Slightly bigger picture, but the third 

ouse team member what they Me d p em ways that will outlive him A k 
through church and home .. W- . oJ_ng at Randallllouse and the reply will be "B -jd s any Randall 

generations began to usc ~nd ~~:~~~~~~~o~~~~ ~anciall Hous.e started back in 1962u~~:~fp~:hevers 
;::~h~. ~~; ~~~=~;~:: ~~ ~ ~=:tt :~~en~~~;,~ ~~nnd ~~ ~~h o~ t.~'~~hld ~ ~t~. st ~ ~ r: v: ~ ~~ ~:e;c~~~~e~.a ~~~~ o~:r~: ~d If 
reac lng your grandchildren . ongma users. Randall House tak . 
resourcing the church to eq _even If you do not yet hdve them. We focus on g e~ senously the goal of 

Ulp P<~rents to coach and mentor their krds eneratJOnal discipleship by 

Randall f-louse Team . 

You will find the most lncredlbl, I 
exh b h f e peop e who make up th R d 
' I Its t e ollowing traits· passlo t In e an all House team Every t 

adaptable. Innovative and c~e . na c. se ess. hardworking (Go above and be earn member 
provide the framewo,:k for ev atJ~e. The strategH: anchors of Randall flo use and yond), respectful, 

mnovatron, church and home ~~e~C~Io~, these strategic anchorc; include theolog~:~;eteam ~ember 
. n an entrepreneurial spint rspective, 

Randall House wntes edltc; d . . 
ages ever ' - . ' esrgns, pnnts. and sh1ps 390 Je ( . 
300. r _y quarter This team typically publishes 14-16 b ksson~ partof47 diStinct products) for all 
Ill sos~~~ytanons a year from potential authors. The Rand:!~ .. : each yeo.~r after receivmg an average of 

ways. ousc team members exce d · e expectations 
fifty Yea r s 

Randall House celebrates 50 years of . . . 
determinatiOn of so publishing mlmstry for Free Will B . r 

~~:~ght\~fter a co:~~~r~;~o:;~ ;::r: ~~adc~o~~~;~~t~e~:~ Free Will Ba~~~~~~~~~~~~~ s~~:~~d the 

In Ay~~~: N.~ ~~;:h~::~~:a~t;~~ac~atlon met 1n North Caroh~: 
1

;~~;:s~:~s;~~t~;nu;day School board 

produced by Free Will Baptists Oklaoh:a saw the need to provide Free WHJ Baptist lite~:tupport the press 
financial investments. Oklaho . ma kept the llliSSion and purpose alive 'th h d ure wntten and 
when reor an· . rna unselfishly returned the literatur • WI ar work and 
rtem in thegSu~~:dyl;c~ 9612. The m~.nutes from the Oklahoma State ~~;~~rgam to tdhc Sunday School Board 
I oo report \\ ~ ".:r. abl, recor the followmg . 
Hcraturc program and we k h • . c c to gl\ e to thr.: National SS l3oa d prarse 

R· no\\ t at vou wlllllin: th N · . . · r a presened rwo 
andall llou'r.: began producuon or a' Fr ·~ w·~ l3· : auonal SS Board the same cooperat. .. 

r.:c I apt lSI curnculum m the Fall of I 96~. I On you ga\ etc.. 
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Since the early days of 1962, Randall House contmues to expand and grow From no preS'\t'S to rnult1ple 
presses, from nine printed Sunday School products to 44 pnnted SundJy School product~ <md multiple 
d1g1tat p1eces, from reg10nal climes to nc1tion,1l conferences. and from $33,784.8 I curnculum sales per 
quarter 1n 1963 to $766,730.41 curriculum sales per quarter. Smce 1962. Randall Hou~c has produced 
65,005 lessons. Randall House celebrates 50 years of mmistry as a nonprofit corporatiOn servmg Free 
Will Baptists and the Body of Christ. Randall House desires to preserve tht• legacy su.,tairwd by 
Oklahoma. every Randall Hou~e Roard memher who ever served. and most of all the rhun·he'i huy from 
Randall House to ensure future generations have a Free Will Bapust publisher. 

Broad a nd Diverse Den omina tion 

For several years. Randall House has stated our desire to nunister to all of Free Will Uapt1sts. When 
speaking of diversity. most people think geography, ~omc people th1nk philosophy, and few thmk 
generational but all categont>s fit Free Will Raptl\ts. Who is in the in-group or out-group is not a cell! for 
Randall !louse but lor the d1strict conference/assoCiatiOn and local presbytery. Randall House's bylaws 
call us to serve Free Wrll Baptists and the Body of Chnst. Randall House has produced several new 
products over the recent years to Increase ministry opportunities to all Free W11l Baptists. The most 
recent release occurred m 2011. Heritage Rtble Senes Sunday School curnculum makmg It the third 
opt1on for adults along with Btble Scholar and Fuston. The three choices result from an mtenuonal 
development of d1verse products for all Free Will Baptists. Our future development of d1g1tal stud1es will 
provide for J younger <rudience and a more technological audience while aga1n showmg more inclusiOn 
and diversity but remainmg solidly biblical and true to doctnne. 

Reaching Beyond Free Will Ba ptis ts Helps Free Will Ba ptis ts 

Creating products for Free Will Baptists to reach beyond Free Will Baptists helps Free W1ll Baptists. All 
Randall House books and Randall House Sunday School sales benefit Free Will Baptists through future 
product development and sustainment of a distinctly Free Will Raptrst publishing house. Your support 
helps insure churches 50 years from now will still be '>t\1dymg and tcaching our doctrine with Free Will 
Baptist curriculum 

Numerous other dcnommat1ons no longer have a publishing house and rely upon for-profir pubilshmg 
houses either teachmg no d1stmct doctnne or teachmg one not ahgnmg w1th our Treat1se Churches, 
Without a denommational publisher may rely on other non-profit denominational publishers and then 
wonder why they lose churches to other denominations. The les~ons taught in the class determme the 
beliefs of the congregation. 

Randall House sells to denommallons and churches allowmg proceeds to benefit Free Will Baptists 
Randall House helps people correct the misunderstandmg of Arminian bchefs g1ving credence to our 
doctrine. Reachmg people through broader book sales, curnculum s.1les, and the 06 Conference allows 
Randallllouse to represent Free Will Bapt1sts to many who have misunderstood who we are. We arc 
part of the b1gger kmgdom mm1stry Without compromrse whrle buildmg credibility Ill who Fret' Will 
Baptists are as a denomination. 

Fina ncial 

Dunng the tlmd quarter of last year, we predicted a shortfall of between $100,000-$120,000 for 2011. 
By October, we formed a list of contnbuting factors and asked if these were trends or anomalies. If 
anomalies, were the anomalies controllable' Sales dipped heavily in second quarter for the first t1me in 
seven quarters and recovered immediately but the loss was sizable. In add1tion to a d1p in sales. Randall 
House offered a History of English Bible exhibit at the convention in Charlotte along with a couple of 
other unbudgeted items affecting negat1vely the bottom line. 
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The actual loss for the 2011-ycar is $91,000 sl1ghtly less than predicted. This number is still 

onoc<eptable but to""''"" the body of wme '""oond tng doto to help uodeMood who< th" meons to 
o"' "''"""heet Even wl th thIs lo": we eedu<ed debt by S!Oo,ooo. hod S I 50.000 in depccolotlon, • nd 
Increased cash since previous year. Improvements were made on our building and we replaced a 

n umbcc or com po tee< t n the bo tiding. The 06 Con fccenoc pcod uocd •ohd go lo of $58,658 helping Ron doll 
House financially in multiple ways and the conference projects to do even hetter th1s year. 

A• tndkoted eodtce.lcodccshlp ood te•m membccs"' wotohlng the list of non·ceoocu"tog oonte/botiog 
f.tcto" "' '""t ce R•nd, II H oosc cec.pto t·cs thm do/lacs fonheoom lng yeac. Ltkew.,e. the "'" 
•nomoly hos o ot ceoe<o "'d t n the 20 12 yeoc. '"" q.,o net· o u mbccs foe 20 12 show m ooh bettenceods. 
We p covrded on I y • 1% colsc to teo m membee< •nd gove no """ to ony lcodecsh t p pOStlion got ng Into 2012. 

Teo ym, ogo ou "kulo m and the R•nda/1 Ho.,se Rookstoce cepcescoted 97% of total geo" ceven"' of 
Randall Hoose and gco, Income foe "'"doll 1/ouse wos 3 million. $336.000 come feom gco, mcome on 
R'"d•ll Bookstoce We no longec opecote the hookstoce ood yet ooc tot•l moome foe Rondo /I Hoose now 
exceeds 4.3 mlll10n and on ly 72% is curricu lum. Ra ndall House continues to develop other mcome 
sources Within our primary m1sS1on and goals. As 1mpl1ed, we now have 28% of income from new 
growth areas such as books, e lectronic products, conferences, design Johs, and pnnt JObs. 
Summary 

Randall House contmues to perform at or above similar competitors 10 a difficult economy without 
'<tiling sruiT oe so/actes. The ee.ult peodooes liltle macgln bnt motnClios mocole to keep Roodo/1 Hoo" 
pos>tton<d foe the slow ceoovery com tog oo t oft he oou ntry' s finot«lol slow down. Chucohcs tend to log 
mainstream businesses and many have felt the slow down two years into the window. The duditor feels 
hke Roo doll H ousc sl" on slTo <>g geounds ""'""oily os we oonthwe to develop peodoo" pccpocl<>g foe 
the future. The diverse aud1ence we serve results in a blessing as we roll out more wc~ys lo be an 
inclusive publisher for all Free Will Baptists. 

Leading engages people to '>erve, 

Ron Hunter Jr. 
Executive Director & CEO 
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. Rarper & Associates 
~:~ified Public Accountants 

f n· ectors 

1 • Relli!rl Independent Aud tors 

The Board o Jr p blication!l of the National 
'RJ!ndall Rouse u ~· I Ba tists, Inc. 

Association of Free\ il p . fthe National Association 
f R t.l II Hou-.c Puhhcauons o h I ted of financial position o an a 20 II and 20 I 0. and t e rea . We have audited !he statements tit orgamzation) th of December 31. h ended. These financial 

of Free Will . B~t~st~. l:d ~h~~;:S~nl net assets. and cash flows fo~ :: y::i:it~n is to express an ~pinion 
statements of actiVIties nsil>ilit of Randdll House·~ manage_mem O~m:zed comparative information ha.' 
statement\ are the respo . ; ed on our audits. The pnor year ~ ed A 'I ?O 7Q II. we expressed an on lhese linancial statements as . I tatcmcnl~ and, in our repon dat pn - . -

. ed from the 20 I 0 financla s 
been denv Lh fi ancial statements. 

unqualified opinion of O\e 10 ted m the United States of 

. . rdance wilh auditing standards ge~erally acc_ep reasonable assurance about 
We conducted our audits. 10 a~: that we plan and perform rhe audits to u:i~~i~cludes examining. on a test 
America. Those standards requ free of matenal misstatement An au An audit also include~ 
whether the financial statements are ts and disclosures in the financial Statemenb I as well as evaluating po

rting the amoun · . made by managemen . 
basis. evidence sup . . I sed and significant e~umatcs . 'd a reasonable basiS for our 
as..-;essing the accountmg pnnclp es u We beliew !hat our audits provl e 
the ~Yerall frnancial statement presentation. 

opinion. fi . I} in all material re:.pects. the 
ial statements referred to ahoYe pre.enl 'at~~n ~f Free Will Baptists. Inc. as ~f In our opinion. the financ Publications of the National A_ssoc• li the year.~ then ended 10 

cial ition of Randall House . ts net assets and Ill> cash flows or. 
fioan be~l 2011 and 2010. and changt.~ In I ed' theUnitedStatesofAmenca. Decem r • . rinciples generally accept 10 conformity wilh accounung P 

Apri14, 2012 

T""1 A. Hll 

61H I1- 7414 

l....,..lliiLHRAI.rlpuiL_. 

I 

'f 

A-125 

f ,.. ll ... ,.,.,... 

615417-0SI 



• 

RANDALL HOl'SE Pl'BLICATIO~S OF THE 
I\'ATIOI\AL ASSOCIATION OF FREE\\ ILL HAIYJ'ISTS.INC. 

Statements of Financial Position 

Ot-cemhcr J I, 2111 I and 2010 

As sea,., 
Curn•nl :1\wl': 

ca,h .JO<ll.t\h l'<jlll\,tlc:l1t\ 

('."hand mtc:rL''' hc:ar111!! Ul'f'"'ll' 
Ct,h rmc:,tnl "nh the: I rvc: Wrl l Rapmt Found.1tron 

l'otal cash and cash equivalent.~ 

Account' rt'l'O:II ,1hlc: 
T radc\ 11L't <>I allow;~ nc·•· I or duuht fu I acxPunt:- ,mJ return, 
l;ntpl<>)o:c:' and r>thc:r 

Tota l recehables 

I II\ l.'llltll') 
f'r<·p.llli<'\IWII\l'' 

Total current a~set~ 

Prop\'rl). plunt and equipment, at co,t: 
I .• and 
Bualtlmg 

Pnnung 'c:n ll"t' C:<JIItpmc:nt 
Oflllc: .mu aJrmn"tratl\c: ~'\jutpmcnt 
,\utcomohtlc:, .md truc-1.., 

'let pro pert) . plant and equipment 

Other a~~el\: 

Dt)!ll.tl."'c:t' 

Liabilities and NN Asset~ 
Current liahililie': 

\L:t'llllllh p.t)ithl·· 
Current ponaun nl Inn!.! tt•rm tkhr -Ddcrr<·tl n.:\c:nuc:' 
\c:t·ru.:d n pc:n'c:' 

'I otal current liabilili~ 

Lonj! lerm deht 

Totnltiabilitie~ 

l nre\tric tt'd net a'$cl' 

Commitment' 

Set> accompan) inj! notes to financial statements. 
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2011 

I I 0.25fl 
:!0 1.5:?5 

J I 1.7H I 

I X0.061) 
J~R 

llllJ,-107 

-149 90X 
'66.6 71.) 

I.U2lS. 775 

IHU..J I 
9o~.587 

1 . .:!3'6.932 
32.-1.51! I 
108.00H 

2.7-17.-1-..J<J 
::!,0-17 • .\4-1 

700.105 

..J..J.XOO 

$ 1,77J,6XO 

I 0~.110 7 
I OI).I<)J 

llJO,RK ~ 
X9JJ I ..J 

-11!8,157 

K..J 7CIO 

572.xoJ 

1.200.!! 17 

' 1,7B.M<O 

2010 

74.7•H 
:!26.:?:! _~ 

JO 1,017 

256,940 
1.000 

257.940 

-1-6 1.6')() 

1-17.753 

1.16ll...JOO 

110.3-1 I 
I).W.5.'9 

1_237.1507 
3 12.:!05 
108.00fi 

2.712.<1{Xl 

I .X9R.5JX 

'61-1.362 

1.9!\2.762 

I J6,HR:! 
I 0 l.52R 
17o.Ml..J 
8-1.29-1 

~9Y.38ll 

190.8<)9 

6'XJ.287 

1..:!9:!.-175 

1.982.762 

RAI:\0.\LL HOl SE Pl HLICA J'IO"'S OF THE 
~"~H TTONAL ASSOCIATION OF FRF.F. \\'11.1 . BAPTISTS. INC. 

Statements of Adhitie'> and Changes in "''et \ !. ... eto; 

For the) cars ended IX>cemhcr .\1 . 20 II and :?.Ill 0 

ReH nues: 
Gro!.' profit: 

RI IP produc:t hnc:' 1 mduding ntrnc·ulumt 
RHP h. lob 
l)(i Conlc:rt'm:e 
National ConventH>n 
Printm)! ~a le, 

Thm1 p.trl) 'nk' 
FWI:HJC hoo!..,tme uno 'n;Ki.. 'hup 

Gross profit 

Other nperuting reHnues : 
Fr~tght :md h.1ndling 

CciiTIIlll"'''"' 
hlll:fC:\t IIK<lnll' 

Othc:r 
Total reHnues 

•• ,pen~~ = 

Selling, general and admini, trath e: 
\dmtm,tr.ttt\C I Ac:c:ounting 
Sak" / l\1ari..cung 
Dt,tnhutum ..:~ntcr 

IT d11 "''m 
Plant mamt<!nance 
Cicneral 
One: M;~gazm.: 

DepR-ci,unm 
lntcrc' l C:\pt:II\C:. including finance c:h.trgc:' 

~ 

., 

Total sellin~. general und administrathe expense!> 

Increase ( decrea~e ) in net asset' from opt•raliun.' 
Other income (expense): 

May :W 10 Hood deemed a Fctkr.t1 dt,,t,tt:t h) Fb~IA. net 

Vc:rtical 3 ( tnm1er1y SC:-.1 1 
Dcnorninaunnal rnim,lric,. net 
Prinung contributed to the dcnomlllutinn 

'loet other income te:>.-pensel 

Decrea..o;e in net assel'i 

'et a~se~. beginning or~ ear 

' ct assets. end of ) car 

See at•companying nutes to finaiK'ial statement,. 
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2011 
Co~t of 

Suh·' Sail" 
\ I <i \ '10-l 1.7~1U~7 

1 92.49() l.W.K26 
606.9(>~ 54lU 10 

I \.~<i-l 5. 10() 

2l<'l.(i~Y 227..\5<1 

'16. 7 '\5 H.-125 
24.71-l llJ.~K:! 

4. 177.7:!0 2.72X.2tN 

j\et 
1.-Hl.\..'\17 

'12.670 
5H.MX 

l<.l ~-~ 

61.270 
59)J() 

-l.!U:! 

1.M9.-l3 1 

to<U55 
-lo.MO 

5_\02 
2A51 

U\7 -~ J l( II 

Jl,l•U35 
76tl.305 
_,55.-l72 

-l9.69:! 
I J05lJY 
1 15.65-l 
-16.575 
55.1)1)5 
1~.595 

1.927 .92:! 

(5-1.9:!1) 

( 24,:!t! ll 
( ~56) 

11:!.0001 

(.\6.737 I 

(91.658) 

1.292.-l75 

s 1.:!()().817 

2010 
'let 

1.-1 :?6. \7(1 

M .JII 
-l ~~~-l 
6 . ~'i2 

56.K25 
:!9.-l w 

X.2lJ(> 

1.5lJK.3-l <i 

I o-I.OK-l 
-lO -l \<l 

n.lJ\,1 I 
X.h22 

l.S 1 S.nh 1 

37 1. \2~ 
61::Ul-n 
W\.57 ~ 

-19.~07 

1-18.711 
I 25 9W 

-+4'77 
6n.50.' 
19.143 

t'.l!O ll 

( 1'}.)()6) 

B.6X I 
(3.4'i0) 

t I .:!.!XXll 

( I I .::!7 3 l 

115.07-l l 



RANDALL HOLSE PV , 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OFB~!~-~ :!?IINLS ~F THE 

.... "' · oAPTISTS, INC. 

Statements of Cash Flo"s 

For the ~ean. ended IJe . l:ember J l , 2011 and 2010 

~·~n.-. ._,. 111 nc:t '"',..'' Qperatin~ Al·ti\ itie, 

AdJ1"1111Cnh to recun~ilt: u~'Cr ... 
[~. ca.'e m net a~'c:t' to 0 • 
...:prl'l.l<lllllll .md arnortl/alJon . d op.:ratmg :Ll'tl' H•e' 

tlnac:a .. c) dcu-ca'e in: 
Rcc:CI\ ahk, 
lm c:ntl>rie, 

Prepaid C:\pcn~e\ 
D1gll.tl a''Ct' 

lm.:n·a,,· (dt'(·rc:,1,c:l 1n 

An:nunt' pa\'<lhk 
I >cfc:rr,'tl re' ~nuc, 
t\..:o.:rucd C\(len'c' 

Nt'l OJWrating activities 

Yi!! Do\+~ fro m ln\>estUy:_;\c ti \ilies 

Purdl.N: ol pmp.:rt' phnt ·• . '· • anu <XjUipmcnt 

Net in .-esting acth itit'!o. 

Cas h Fl ~ • ~ ows .rom f inand n.Uc th i lies 

l>cht proc:eed' tmm l·rcc W•ll Ba ust F -
Repayment' of long rem• dcht p oundauon 

Net financing a ctivities 

(
. Increas e (decrease) in h 
as h and cash equivalents: cas and cash t>quivalents 

Beginning of year 

End of year 

Ca~h and C&!>h equivalent<;, as reported oo s tat 
~a.~h .md mtcrc:'t hearing dcposiL~ cmcnt of financial poJ>itinn. as folio\+ ~: 
( a\h mw,tccl w11h the ho.:'C Will 8 .. F . 

aptl~t oundarum 

~uppl~mental di.~dosur~: 
lnrc:rc't fldtd 

See a ccompan} ing notes to fiftq~ .. 1 ..... cJa statement-;. 
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$ 

10_tl 

t'.II.65XJ 

14X.lHJ6 

77531 
I 1.78~ 
61.074 

I+UOOI 

134.1! 151 
14.199 

4.720 

14Ci.l{W 

134.547} 

!\4.5471 
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RANDALL HOllSE PUBLICATIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOClA TION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS. rNC. 

Uenmher ·'I. :!11 11 a nd 211 Ill 

RJJldall Hou'c operate' under the ,,u..,pllC' t>l the '\,ttJonal ·\'""IJtl<lll ot f-ree Will B.1pt1\t' .md '' g,l\'cmeJ h~ .1 

Board of Dm.'l:tur-.. 

( 11 SlJ_mrnar)_Qf Signifit:.i!nl_t\ccoun~ Policic~ 
~of Pn:l>entation 
The tin..tm:1al 'tatcmenh of Rantl.tll I l••uw h,l\l' h..:cn prep~ red on till' an:ru.d h.l'l' ••I ,,,u•unung 

A\ rcqu•n·J by general!~ ac:..:cptL·J ao.:.;nunting prinl'IPI•·'· R.mdall llnu,,· lcporh lllh•rmatltlfl rcgan.hng 1h f1nanu.d 

po,ltl<lfl ,tnd ,ICIJ\ nic' a~'l'orthng to thn·~ Lla'W' ul net .1"Ch. 11 .ippli.;ahk. 

lnrc'-lru:tcd net a-.,ct' - Net ii"CI' not 'Uh(Cll 10 dnnm unpn'l'd 'tJpulallon' Unrc,tnrted net ;J\<.et~ may he 

dl~lj!llJtCd lur ~J)l'\.'LiiO.: Jlllrpli'C' b~ ,llllt•ll Ill till' )!11\t'nllllj! hud~ rhc: ,(lll\111111 Llf llllrl.o;.tnlled llO:t ll\\l't' I' 

prc~cntcJ m the .. t.ucmcm' of linam~o•l JX"itlllll .. llkllhl' 111:1 dun)!l' I' Jllt'"'ntcd nl the: ~t.llcmcnh 11! ,Jell\ lilt'' 

R.tmhill Hou'c doc' n<>l ha'c .tmount' I<> r1·pnrt 111 th.: r,·ut.lllllll)! '"" d;I"C' ni' nct;h\CL' \\hlt:h ,uc: 

Tcmporaril) rc,tnctcd and pcrm.m,·ntl\ r,·,tnli..:J net .I"Ct,, 

{'lllilJlnd Cash t:guhalcn~ 
hu purru'.:' ,,f the: 'tatcmc:nt <•I ca'h llo'''· R.utd.1tl Hnu,,· "'ll'llkr-. .1!1 ,a,h tund'. , . .._,h h.utk a,xounh Jnu 
h•J!hl) hqmJ J.:ht m'trunlenh purd~a,cd \\Jlh .111 nrlj!lll.li 01atunl) ol thr.:e month' or k" to he La.'h .tnd ... a,h 

l'tjUI \ .tlc:nl \. 

-\ccount' Recei ... abk 
-\c.:nunh fl't:CIV.Jhle ar.: ,tatcd at the .unoulll m.m.lj!CIIk:lll l'\plXL' to , .. JI,-.:1 lrumout,tanding halanc:C\ ~1.m.tgc:mcnt 
J)fll\ 1d'-"' lor pr.lbable un..:ull~tiblc amount' thwuj!h " Jlfll\ l'lnll lnr had oeht C\J'Cil!<C .md an adju,lnlCnt "' .1 
\aluauon aiiO\\;mce ba.,ed on 11\ a"c~'OK:IIl nt the cum.:nt 'taiU' nl md1\ JcluJI ;~ccount.. Rcmm~ nt ..:urn.:ulum .mtl 

t>thcr pnntl'tl pnxlu.:t' ,ub,cquc:nt ll> h;ll.ml·l' 'hcc:t J.lll' .1rl' .1l'" mdudL'tl 111 the: .1llov.anc:e B<tlan.:.:' that arc ,uJI 
nuhtJndmg aJt,·• managt·ment ha' u,cd rc:;J,onabk ,·nlk'\ LillO c:llt'l. r... arc: \HJltc:n otT through a ch.•rgc: to thl' 
'aluation allov.anl'C and a crcdn to .Jc:ct•unt' rc:cc:J\,Jhk 1hr.: atlu\loann· lnr llnubtlul ac:c.:ounh ,,, ot I:A:ccmhc:r ,11. 

20 I I .mJ 20 I 0 amounted tn S 12.000 uml S I 0.000. re,pcc:tt\el} Ch<lll);l:' 111 th.: 'alualttm account ha\l' not hc:cn 

malcn.Jituthc finannal ~tatcmcnt'< 

lnvento ri!..'S 
lnvcnwri~'· cwc:pt for v.an:hou,ed m\'l:ntul). are 'lali.:J .11 the: l••v.cr nf n"t or marlo..t!t. with co~t hemg dctcnmn~'tl 
h) u'c ol the• fir-.t-m. lir't out method. Wan:hou,,·d tll\CI1tory '' \aluL'tl U\111)! a mc:thodnlogy to t.h:tcnmm: an 

alil•wanrc fur In~\ from >lml lll\t\'111)! tlcill' hu,ctl on a formula to romputc: J tv.n ycar 'hl'lf life valuatton 

Dil!.itl!l Asseb 
Puhh,hl"l'\ far.:<: th.: c:hallcngt! ol Yalumg d1g11al "'"·'t' 111 1 '111111ar V..J) I<• ph~'u.:al 111\Cntol') Dig1tal a\\eh ''oultl 
mc:ludc cBuok'. digllal c:unic.:ulum. tl•g•tal ,tudn:, .• md \llllll.u dn"'nloadahk produl·t, Ct"" related W dc:\elopmg 

d•gual products accumulatt! a' prc:pa1d c\pcn'e' unul produu launch at v.hich t11nc thc co't' ;~rc amonih'<i nwr .1 

prcdll'tl'tl R ye<~r digital ,hc:lf ltfc . Thc tlr-.t lour ~,·ar' pro' 1dc a nah1ht~ t>r te,tmg pcri1xl and may ,flnncn th,• 

pnxluct', hfc. cxpcn~ing all n:mammg unamnn1tct.l c:o''' at tour }Car' 1f the product ., dct<:rmiO<..'tl not '1ahlc. II 
'JabJhl) j, dctc:nmned at the: end of thc: four ~car\. a t.ur ~.tluc •• ,,c"nlCnt \lo.Jll he dctcnmncd and adju,tnk'nt nw,k 
to C.trr)llll! 'alu.: based on pn.:' i11u~ ~ale' 10 dctcmunc c'unutcd future: c~h tlov.~ These digital ;c. set!. arc rccurdcll 

at S-14.!100. v.hich 1f r~rc,ented by t:thlnf S51.~lll~ net nl a<.:umulatl.'tl .mll•nltJtJon uf $6501!. 

Proocf1) . Plan! and Eauiornent 
Propen). plant and eqUipment arc: ro.:"<.:ort.l<.'tl al <.<1\t ur at t.ur ,,,Juc ~' of the dale ~:ootnhutcd F~'l:pcnditurc' fc1r 
.1cqubi11on ot as~.:l~ in r.:'\cc~-. of S500 arc capual11ed ;md t.leprcc:•att'tl o\er the1r usable fi,es on the ~tr.ught hnc 

methtxl. Expenditure' for mamtenancc and r.:pa•r, . rcnc\loah. and hc:uermcnt' that dn not ,.gmfic.:antl) C\tend the 

u,cful life, of a~'<:l'> are c:'pcn-.cd a.-; mr.:urr~'tl 
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RANDALL HOUSE PUBLICATIONS Of THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 

'llol t.'S to Financial S ta ternenh, continued 

Summa o_ of SiJ:nificant Accounti~ Colicit"'i, continued 
Estimate!> 
The pr.:par.llll>n nl fin.tnt:1al 'latem-:nh rcquirl'' manag~ml'nl to ma~t' e'tim.1tc' and .I."U111pllon' that afft\:t 
certain n:poncd amount' .tnd d"do,urc,. \ttordm~fy, adual rc,t•f~> could d1tlcr tmrn thn,c ,·~tirnar..•, 

Deferred Rrr_enul!' 
Ddar~d r.:vcnue' ~·un'l't ol Tt'll'llU<'' o.:olk-ct.:J nr hilkd lm '<'fl..:.:' 111 he renlkrcd 111 the follm1 mg )Car. The-.e 
dcto.:rrcd rc1cnu"' con~l\t of the folio" 1ng· 

D6 Con.lcrcncc n:g.u.IIalion:. 

tJill:. v l!tir Financia l l.ml~l!l} 

20 II 
s 47.7lSJ 

141,100 

lqO.XX:l 

W.Q 
58.li34 

I 17.!~50 

I 76.hR4 

The t·arrying v;~luc of ca~h . .Jcc;ounh n:u:i1ahlc. iml'ntnr). Jo.:t·<)Ullh payahfc and ao.:~TU<'\1 C\flCO'c' .1ppwxunate 
f;ur 1aluc h.:cau,e of thl' 'hun matumy ol Lh<' '"'trtllllc!nl' 'I he ,·arrymg 1alue' ol hahditi.:' ar<' nnt nwteriall)' 
dlfft'rentlr<llll thl' e~tmwtcd f;ur 'alue ol th<"<' 111\tnuncnh. 

l nr onw Taxes 
R;mdalf Hou~e j, exempt frnm Frdcral and \tate in.:ome raxc,, .Kcordmgl~. no pro1 "inn for •ncomc ra'l:t" i\ rn.td~ m 
the accounl\ There 1s no unrdatcd hu\lncs' mwml' for 20 I I and 20 I U. l·urthl'r. manilgeniCnt bch.:1"' there are no 
ac:uvit1.:' "hich "Jlllcal.lro ill<'Ollll' taX<'' hemg k~t<oU. 

Co~nsated Absence~ 
Emphl)IC.:\ nl R.mdall llou'c ar~ entitled to paid 1a..:auun. "~~ k.11c and pcr-tmal da)' ott. d<:pendmg on Jllh 
cJ,,~,•fi..:atmn. length of 'en reo:: ,md other faclnr,. Prm "ion for .tl't:tucd ~ac:.~uun' and 'It:~ k.llt" pa)Jhlc arc m.1dt.' 
m the lrnam:ral statcnlt'nts and art' rncludt.'d rn arcrut..-d ex pen~,·~-

Advm isinl,! (&'l" 
Adveni~ing l'O\t~ arc cxpcn.~t.'d a, incurred and amoum 111 S99 714 111 2011 and Stm.-194 111 20 I 0 

Suhg,quent EvenL~ 
Suhsequent cvt.'nt~ wert' t.'laluatetl thrtlugh Apnl 4. :!0 I 2 \\lw.:h '' tlw date the'><' linano.:ral 'tat.:mcnts "l'Tl' il•ailahle 
to be j.,,ued 

Cbarn:es in ~lliul 
Crrtau1 amount' 1n thl' pnur permo finallt'iJI \lJtl'mo.:nh lila) h.!'l' O......:n n;:d,l"lllo..-d tn conform to tum.:m prc~cnwuon 
Thc~c rccla"ill..:auun~. If an:r . did not..:hang<' unginall:r n:pont..-d halaJll't" nl net a."l't,. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 
Randall HnulK rs a dl\tnhutor of Brhlc h~sed Sunday ~chuol .tnd Church trarning curriculum. and other 
denonunauonal publication~ Randall Hou'e c\lend' c.:rcdn to H~ t..u,tumcr~ whKh cun~ht pnmanly of Fret' Wrll 
Bapu~t churches and rehgiou' hook,torc' Th.:~ au:ount' arc nut coll.ttcrah7ed and .1rc \Uht<X'I to n,J... nf lo's 
amountmg to the out~tJnding balallc..X' ar my potnr m lime. Further. fund' invc,tcd 1qth th~ 1-r<-c Wtll Bapll't 
Foundation 111 the amount of ~201,5:!'i m 2011 and $:!.:!6.:!23 in 2010 art' wbJt..'Ctto n~k of accounting los~ ('a,h 
held 111 focal bank arc ul\ur.:d to FDIC hmih. Management doc~ not anricipatc nonperformance h} the financ1al 
ll1~lttU!lOn\. 

(31 t oss from flood 
Dunng Ma} 2010. Middle Tcnnc'-'c..X' wa' vro.:llm ru llcxxling th.ll "'l' tlt.....:nR'tl h) FEMA Ill hc a l'cdcral dl\a.~tt.'r. 
Randall Hou~c cxpcricno.:c..-d a net lcl\\ inc..ludcd a_, other mcuffil' (cxpen,~) on the ,tatcmcnr\ ol acu,·ruc,, from thr~ 
e\ rnt amounting to S 19.506 (total In"<!' of $4 7.206 nt:l of mwmnct: proc<.'t..'ti' uf $::!5,000 and o.:ontnhuuon' nl 
52.700). 
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I CATIONS OF THE 
RANDALL HOUSE PU:~RFE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 

NATIONAL ASSOCIATlO~ 0 • . 
. S 1 nh cuntmu~d 

" uti!' It• l'inancml . ta enw ' 

Currt:nl u'iSd ': 
Print inHntor~ : 

Fnu,hcd c..urrintlum 

~orl.. 111 prn!!rc" 
Pnnttnl!, ra\\ m.Jtcrial' 

H-..nlllal' h r · 
W'ardtou,cc.l <>tha tHI\l\..' :md lll<'fl' anl "' 

\..<:'' allu\l.:ui..:C lor''"' 

Other assels: 
Digita l a!>Seh - \CC note l 

2011 

17 1.h4'.1 

o9 ooo 

5 

~ 

Lnn~Te.-nt l)eht 
- I· "\\ 111 H.IJltl't l ·uunJ.tllllll 

15-1 ::!11 
l ~, ""'5~ 
ol'.o-W 

I .421'> 

1 02J\4'> 

.W9.90X 

4-U\00 

.19.1.70X 

20111 

I \:!.0 ll\ 
.j 7 .ooo 

201 I 

bl , pa' Jhk t<l r"" I 
-1 <, ' monthh in,talhncnt" rg.ll"'' I ,·ng lllt~rc'l ;llltl pnnc•pal. v.llh (inJ 

·- • ll ~(j \l\4 UK Uul t s 1 O(U!Y'I 
with monthlv pa\ ment' l · . ·d n\ proc.hlCllllll <'tlwprncn 

· , h. "'0 1 :\ !'ivtc ~~ ,<..:ur• . 
pa yrncnt due s.:ptcOl l r - . 

C'um:nt portJnll nllon~-t,·rm lkht 

uuiJ:! . t~nn d.:bt debt L~ a~ folio"': Muturities uflong-term 
20U Th!al 

~u .. 4 700 I'>O.l!9Y 
5> I Ll6.1l) 3 ° · 

h~t..al t>.m\.. Ill thl' amount S \00.000 
R ndall Hnu'.: ha' a !me "f nL-dtt v.tth .t 

!Oh.IY.~ 

1 74. 'lin 
114.<110 
nx.o:!A 
I~~:;~ 

2010 

1015:!>-

190. ~ l)tl 

_ -~.-• I n..x:cmlx·r 3 1 10 I l or :!0 10 
u.:utl ·" o LJ\. • • } "- Jal 

I S(' l\\ • <;tudent and Children~tim•.tri~S th Jllll dulurcn' 1\tlr\..c..'T'> nf the atwr 
\ " l ) trort1ll:r \ - - d crVI~C\ hi )llll . 

eroca_,_ - , -h. ·y:;.ttcal 3 j, l<l pro\ Jdc T<'''lurcc~ an ' f the dcp.mmcnt'' .tC\1\ lttc' 
The purp<"c ,, l c c Th , ~ Ill~ tng " a ,umnl.ll) o 

I • w 11 B 1pu~t' Inc " 11 
' 

A"<teiatton of rcc 1 
• 201 l 
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16.000 
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RANDALL HOUSE P UBLICATIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS. INC. 

Note!> to Fina nrial Statr llM'nts. continued 

17 1 R@h.'d Pam T ran, ac titJn'i, t•untinued 
Pension 

R ,oo., II ""'"' P~•"' P"" "' I h' "'"'"' !''"""" 1'1"' "I '"' """,I "I Rc< '"""" 1 "~ I"'"'""" "f 1"' N""""l 
A"ot:J.tlmn of I rw Will BdfliJ~h. lnt The pl.m j, cumnhutol) .mJ " m;n.:ht'tl up to a maximum nf 5C)f of 
c-tlfnpc!n\ation. Emplu}~' '.l<flh ont· year ol \l'r\ Jt:c lllil.)- fli.lrlll'lpalc al <tnnho:r~..tn dale: ol cmph>}nlt:nt. Pen,

100 c:.lfl<.'n~c ..tnk•unt<'tl to \53. l07 111 2U II .mJ S55.5~6 1n 20 IU The Pt'll'ltJn plan " a ddined <.:llntrihutmn plan Under 
lht· phm. ;m an·ount " mmnt<IIIWd lor o:at·h par11np.tnt .tnd upon ro:llrt·m.:nt lht• p..tn~eipanr t:<m .:uher l't'Ce1ve u lumr-~11111 dJ\Irihutit>n or purdl.t\l'one ol ,,.,eniltypt·\ ol dllllllity eontraet, 

~!ll1\ffilin ted Organil.atfun .. hL~tr!.flutUjy~ 
Randall llou,l" ha, an .1grt-cmcm tu pd) Tll)..thl<..'l> to iht• Ext'l.llll\t: Ollie.: ul the Natmn.tl A.''<X:J,tilon of Frt't! Will 
Hap''-'"· lnt· Jl ~2A5 lor t•aeh hymnal 'uld 1:\pcn'c' rcl.umg to tht•,e h\1110,11 ,,lit•' aJnountt'Citu S7.fd9 in :?011 
.tnd \J Ulol-1 tn 2010. Randall Hou'..: had a llahdu) rchumg lo the,e raymcnts nf $1XJ and '.1.926 atl:>t-ccmbcr 31. :?0 II and 20 I 0. rC\(ll"CII\ el) 

free Will Baplis r Hibk Colleet 

Opcr.uiun of hex W11lOapll\l B1hle College\ hoohtore campu' \lore .mtl \ll;td. 'hop 

Rl'Sults of opcrarioru. arc as fo llows: 

R.:, cnue~ 

Orcr.nmg np.:n~c,. mcludmg mcrchand1~c purciJ<L~cd. 
~al;mc' and other op.:ralm~ ~"O'h 

Gam from op.:rauon~ 

·nll, opemtm,g <~grccmen1 lennm..tttxl at the end ot the 'Pfln)! 20 II 'cme-ter. 
One Maa:aLinc 

s 
72.050 

I \1.88:? 63.754 

!!.2\16 

One Magllltnc " the comhincd puhiJ<:;uum of t:Wtam l·re.: Will Hap11'1 ·•gcndc, and organuarion, . .tnd " funded h) 
contnhution, fmm c:"<~t:h ot tho'c re'fll'CIJ\t: agcnCit:\ and organuauon, Randall llou'c provttletl $~().575 and $4~.377 
a' the1r 'hare of the fundtng letjUifciTll.'lll durmg :?011 .tnd :?010. r'-"JX'I.II\d) funhcr. Randall Houw pnnl\ <md 
prov 1tlc' flliltling \l!n 1ce, lor On.: Mag;11mc. and reported revenue, ot $::!06,4 75 and S:? 19./lti() for the\l' ~CT\Ke. dunn,!! 201 I ..tnd 2010. rc~~'CIJ~cl}. 

Free '""m Baptisr Foundat ion 

Randall I lou\c mamtain, llllere,t bt"<~ring accoum, "lih and 1' lfl<khteJ 111 Free WJJI Baptl\1 Foundauun .J\ follow,. 

lnterc~t hc<tnng an:oum~ 
lW ID1l 

lndcbtoonl.!!>~ 20 I .'i 25 :?26.223 

190,!!99 i:Qmmitments an~omim:cncies 
Mcrchandi'ic fui4J!n 1&.nsh:D_rnwr 

Randall Hou\c hold\ iO\cntory on ~·un"gnmcm '.I<Hh .t ~.tb value olapproxHnnrcly $200.000 111 2011 and 2010: and 
'hart• JJ<.i of ihl' proceed, from 'ale ol th.: mcrchand"e ''h~eh .Jmoumt:tJ to SJ.I 0 I m 20 II .md $~.5~<J m 20 I 0 
Leasoo Eg uipmepr 

Randall Hou\c hu~ cnt.:rcd tnt1> noncant·clahlc ka,c arrangements rdaung In m:uhnf! :tnd wp) t'tjUIJlmt:lll Total T<'lll 
Cl(pell\e umnuntcd to SJ I .64-1 for 20 II and 20 I 0. The nlmJnHim paymt:nl\ rcqum.'CI arc $20,() I 6 for 2012 and $9.-160 lor20D. 

Litiea!ion 

R.md.,u """"· m '"' """~'I'~"" ol ""'·";""'· '"'Y b, ' ''""'""' '" 1'"'"'"· "''"'''~"' " ""' ""~of ~Y pendmg a"enoo or una~,encd da1rn, agJ1n'1 Randall I lou,c. 
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300 • RHP Product Lines 

303 . RHP Books 

305 • Enntl Off Site Sales 

Income 

307 • Third Party Sales (Non RHP) 

308 , Other Revenue 

309 . Commission Income 

FWBBC Bookstore Sales 
320 . TOTAL REVENUE 

Cost of Goods Sold 

310 • COS • RHP Product Lines 

313 . COS - RHP Books 

315 . COS . Events/ Off S ite 

317 . COS • 3rd Party Sales (Non RHP) 

l18 . cos . Other 

Tobll Cost of Goods 

350 • Printing Production 

355 . Depre<:ialion Printing Equipment 

360 · Edito riel 

400 . Admlnistretive/Accountlng 

410 . Sales/Marketing 

420 · Design 

425 . RHP Book Division 

430 . Distribution Center 

435 . IT Division 

440 . Plant Maintenance 

460 . FWBBC Bookstore 

490 · Generel 

Tobll Departmental Expense 

Youth Department 

9100 . Youth Revenues 

450 . Youth Department Expenses 

Denominational Ministries 

9200 . Revenues Denom. Ministries 

445 . Denominatlonel Ministries Expenses 

300 . RHP Product Lines 

TOTAL EXPENSE 

Annual Profltlloss 

Income 

d Studies/ 58-Curriculum 300.03 · Oat. 

300.09 . Mid Week Teens 

300.12 . 607 

300.15 . Children's Church Sa ... 

300.18 . Online Non Dated Studles-iA) 

300.24 . Church Supplies 

300.27 . RHP/06 T..Shlrts/Merchandise 

300.30 . Competition Materials 

Total 300 . RHP Product Lines 
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Budget 
201 3 

$3,302,500 

$224,000 

$1,033,500 

$96,000 

$510,000 

$51 .000 

so 
S5,217,000 

$62,000 

$97,500 

S929,500 

$55,930 

-$t__OOO 

$1,136,930 

S1 ,053,100 

$90,000 

$512.500 

$-412,400 

$756,120 

$328,000 

$90,000 

S374,750 

$55,000 

$136,800 

so 
1_19~000 

$4,007,670 

$294,500 

-$303,900 

-S9,400 

so 
-$631.000 

-$63,000 

S5,217,000 

so 

$3,200,000 

so 
$10,000 

$55,000 

$10,000 

$5,000 

$7,500 

$15,000 

$3,302,500 

Budget 
2012 

S3,495.000 

$190,000 

$606,000 

$103.000 

$-491 ,000 

$51 ,000 

so 
$4,936,000 

$90,000 

$90,500 

S510,500 

$64,200 

$2,500 

$757,700 

$1 ,059,600 

$90,000 

$525,000 

$-400.900 

$731 ,120 

$328,500 

S84,250 

S382,500 

S54,600 

$157,300 

so 
~41,QQO 

$4,054,770 

S237,750 

·$246,750 

-$9,000 

$10,000 

-$65,000 

-$55,000 

$-4,876,470 

$59,530 

$3,350,000 

so 
$50,000 

$40,000 

$25,000 

$10,000 

$10,000 

$10,000 

$3,495,000 

Budget 
2011 

S3,331 ,000 

$223,000 

$605,000 

$105,000 

$489,000 

$31 ,000 

$85,500 

$4,869,500 

Actual 
2011 

S3,153,903.97 

S192,495.61 

$620,221 .35 

$96,766.22 

$466,527.51 

$46,660 16 

$24,714.32 

$4,601 ,289.14 

$70,000 $47,614.69 

S93,750 $35,639.82 

S507,500 S553,410.67 

S65,000 S61 ,555.20 

$7~0 $5~3.80 

$743,750 S703,374.18 

S1 .112,600 

S60,000 

$514,000 

S341 ,000 

S671 ,000 

S332,000 

$85,100 

$322,200 

$60,200 

$144.800 

S99,050 

S1 .025,768.02 

$93,111 .06 

$-491 ,597.25 

S399,334.75 

$760,305.05 

$311 ,664.08 

$82,884.12 

S355,471 .96 

$49,691 .80 

$130,599.44 

S19,882.20 

U 2!.._000 1!85..!_43.93 

$3,962,950 S3,906,253.66 

$229,500 

-$222J50 

$1 ,750 

so 
-$6~000 

-$65,000 

S250,162.41 

-$274,443. 5~ 

-$24,281 .12 

S150.00 

-$59,181 .43 

-$59,031 .43 

$4,769,950 $-4,692,9<60.39 

$99,550 -$91,651 .25 

$3,250,000 $3,075,440.73 

so $54.00 

$0 $5,879.50 

$-40,000 $46,486.96 

$0 $2,126.51 

$20,000 $-4,841.42 

$6,000 $6,252.01 

$15,000 $12,822.84 

$3,331,000 $3,153,903.97 



p 

303 RHP Books 

303.03 . PastoraUChurch Leadership 

303.06 . Family/Parenting 

303.09 . Drama/Plays 

303.1 2 · Miss ions 

303·15 · Small Group Studies 

303.18 Biblical Studies 

303.21 . Theology/Doctrine 

303.24 Bibles 

303.27 · Christian Living 

303.30 · Fiction 

303.33 · Children 

303.36 . International Languages 

303.39 . Rejoice FWB Hymnal Sales 

303.42 · Re1·01• w . ce orshlp Hymnal Sales 

303.45 . Lightmng Source 

303.4$ · Tracts 

303.4$ (Off Site RH Book Sales) 

303.54 · RHP Tltles In Software 

303.60 · Miscellaneous 

Total 303 · RHP Books 

305 Event/ Off Site Sales 

305.03 . D6 Conference Registration 

305.06 · 06 co f n erence Sponsorship 

305.09 . 06 Confernece Sales 

305.15 · National Sales 

305.21 · Misc . Event Sales 

305.24 · RHP Sal M' es · .-c Events (N) 

Total 305 . Event/ Off Site Sa!H 

307 . Third Party Sales (Non RHP) 

307.03 . Curriculum (Dated} 

307.06 · VBS 

307.09 · Children's Church 

307.12 . Church Supplies 

307·15 . Bibles (Non RHP 1 mpnnt) 

307.18 . Books (Non RHP Imprint) 

307.21 · Music 

307.24 · Miscellaneous 

Total 307 . Third Party Saln (Non RHP) 

308 · Other Revenue 

308.03 · Printing/Design Services 

308.06 . Freight and Handling Income 

308.09 · lntereet Income 

308.12 . Service Charges 

308.15 . Sale/Oiaposal of Assets 

308 .18 · In House Functions 

308 . Other Revenue • Other 

Total 308 · Other Revenue 
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Budget 
2013 

$27,500 

$80,000 

$1 ,000 

$1 ,000 

$15,000 

$10,000 

S30.000 

so 
S10,000 

$0 

so 
$1 ,000 

$50,000 

S10,000 

$5,000 

$2,000 

-$25,000 

$2.500 

$4,000 

$224,000 

S725,000 

$150,000 

$140,000 

S17,500 

$1 ,000 

so 
$1,033,500 

$55,000 

$12,500 

so 
$5,000 

$1 ,000 

S20,000 

so 
$2,500 

S96,000 

S325,000 

S175,000 

$5,000 

$5,000 

so 
so 
so 

S510,000 

Budget 
2012 

$30,000 

S60,000 

$1,000 

$5,000 

$10,000 

$20,000 

$20,000 

$1,000 

S10,000 

$1,000 

$1 ,000 

$1 ,000 

S40,000 

S10,000 

$8,000 

S2,000 

-S30,000 

so 
so 

$190,000 

$450,000 

$45,000 

S95,000 

S15.000 

$1,000 

so 
$606,000 

S45,000 

S20,000 

$0 

S7,500 

S2.000 

S25,000 

S1 ,000 

$2,500 

S103,000 

S300.000 

$175,000 

$10,000 

S5,000 

so 
S1 ,000 

so 
$491,000 

Budget 
2011 

$35,000 

$35,000 

ss,ooo 
S5,000 

S5,000 

$20,000 

S20,000 

S5,000 

S25,000 

S5,000 

$5,000 

$500 

S25,000 

$20,000 

S7,500 

S5,000 

so 
so 
so 

Actual 
2011 

$21,309.49 

S7a,700.77 

$1 ,293.20 

S886.53 

S11,890.93 

$11 ,922.63 

$27.244.26 

$0.00 

S8.322.51 

$452.55 

S1,335.64 

$1,060.53 

S37,754.89 

S14.99 

$3,193.02 

$2,322.23 

-S20,498.06 

S996.73 

$4,292.77 

S223•000 S192,495.61 

$450,000 

$45,000 

S85,000 

S15,000 

S5,000 

S5.000 

S605,000 

$25,000 

S30,000 

so 
S10,000 

$5,000 

S25,000 

S5,000 

S5,000 

$105,000 

S325,000 

S150,000 

$10,000 

S3,000 

so 
S1 ,000 

so 
$489,000 

$467,006.30 

S52,300.00 

S87,661 .37 

S13,253.68 

so.oo 
so.oo 

$620,221 .35 

$53,649.42 

S15,256.14 

S519.96 

S5.147.84 

SS.7.39 

$18,454.29 

$12.00 

S2,779.18 

$96,766.22 

S289,628.94 

$169,154.58 

$5,301 .93 

$2,836.06 

$50.00 

so.oo 
-$444.00 

$466,527.51 

309 · commission Income 

309.03 · Bulletins 

309.06 · Signa 

309.09 · Furniture/Steeples/etc 

309.12 · Advertising/other 

Total 309 · Commlaalon Income 

320 · FWBBC Bookstore Sales 

320.40 FWBBC -Textbooks 

320.42 · FWBBC - Snacks/School Supplies 

320.44 · FWBBC - Apparel 

320.46 · FWBBC -Shorts 

320.4$ · FWBBC · Bibles/Books/Gifts 

Total 320 · FWBBC Bookstore Sales 
Total Income 

Coat of Goods Sold 

50000 · Cost of Goods Sold 

310 · COS- RHP Product Linea 

310.03 · COS - Dated Studies/ 55-Cur 

310.09 · cos . Mid Week Teens 

310.12 . cos- 607 

310.15 · COS- Children's Church Sales 

310.18 · COS- Onlllne Non Dated Studies 

310.24 · COS - Church Supplies 

310.27 · COS· RHP/06 T~hlrt Merch. 

310.30 · COS- Competition Materials 

310 · COS · RHP Product Lines -Other 

Total 310 · COS- RHP Product Lines 

313 · COS· RHP Books 
313.03 · COS- PastoraVCh. Leadership 

313.06 ·COS- FamltyfParentlng 

313.09 · COS- Drama/Plays 

313.12 · COS - Missions 

313.15 · COS- Small Group Studies 

313.18 · COS· Biblical Studies 

313.21 · COS- Theology/Doctrine 

313.24 · COS· Bibles 

313.27 · COS - Christian Living 

313.30 · COS - Fiction 

313.33 · COS- Children 

313.36 · COS - International Language 

313.39 · COS- Rejoice FWB Hymnals 

313.42 · COS- Rejoice Workshlp Hymnals 

313.45 · COS- Lightning Source 

313.48 · COS · Tracts 

313.60 ·COS · Miscellaneous 

313 · COS· RHP Books · Other 

Total 313 · COS · RHP Books 

Budget 
2013 

Budget 
2012 

Budget 
2011 

Actual 
2011 

$30,000 

S500 

$500 

S20,000 

S51 ,000 

$30,000 

$1 ,000 

$0 

S20,000 

$51,000 

$30,000 

$1 ,000 

$0 

so 
S31,000 

$29,11 2.11 

$226.47 

$977.97 

S16,343.61 

$46,660.16 

so 
$0 

so 
$0 

$0 

$0 

so 
so 
so 
$0 

so 
so 

$67,500 

$12,000 

$1,000 

so 
S5,000 

$85,500 

$18,016.10 

$5,276.50 

S123.47 

S57.99 

S1 ,240.26 

S24,714.32 

$5,217,000 $4,936,000 S4,869,500 $4,601 ,289.14 

$27,500 

so 
S500 

$20,000 

$1 ,000 

S2,500 

$4,000 

S6,500 
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so 
$62,000 

S10,000 

$30,000 

$500 

$500 

S6,000 

S5,000 

S11 ,000 

so 
S3,500 

so 
$500 

ssoo 
S22.500 

$4,000 

so 
S1.000 

$2,500 

so 
S97,500 

$30,000 

$0 

$10,000 

$20,000 

$15,000 

$5,000 

$5,000 

$5,000 

so 
S90,000 

S10,000 

S25,000 

S500 

S2,500 

$3,500 

S9,000 

S9,000 

$500 

$3,000 

$500 

$500 

$500 

$20,000 

$5,000 

$0 

$1,000 

so 
so 

$90,500 

$30,000 

so 
so 

$20,000 

$0 

$9,500 

$3,000 

S7,500 

so 
$70,000 

S15,000 

S15,000 

$2,500 

$2.500 

$2,500 

$7,600 

$7,500 

$2,500 

$10,000 

$2,500 

$2,500 

$500 

$10,000 

$7,500 

$3,750 

$2,000 

$0 

so 
$93,750 

$29,195.63 

$156.21 

$2,093.26 

S14,267.00 

$5,578.50 

$1 ,124.09 

S729.00 

$3,618.78 

..$9,147.78 

$47,614.69 

$11 ,919.38 

$31 ,318.18 

$386.81 

$209.44 

S12,4a9.96 

$9,698.40 

$13,842.34 

$0.00 

$4,242.77 

$404.81 

S1 ,637 .21 

$1,085.97 

$20,758.57 

$9.58 

$0.00 

$894.40 

$3,964.21 

..$77,222.21 

$35,639.82 



315 . COS - Events/ Off Site 

315,03 

315.09 

315.15 

COS - D6 Conf Reg istration 

COS · D6 Conf Sales 

COS • Natrona I Sales 

315.21 COS - Mise Event Sales 

315 . COS - Events/ Off Stte - Other 

Total 315 . COS - Events/ Off Site 

317 . COS- 3rd Party Sales (Non RHP) 

317.03 . COS - Curnculum (Dated ) 

317.06 · COS . \IBS 

317.09 . COS- Children's Church 

317.12 · COS R 
- ecord Keeping Supplies 

317.15 . COS- Bibles (Non RHP) 

317.18. COS- Books (Non RHP) 
317 21 · COS - Music 

317.24 . COS- Miscellaneous 

317 COS - 3rd Party Sales (Non RHP) - Oth 
Total 317 . cos 3rd er 

- Party Sales (Non RHPJ 

318 · COS- Other 

318.03 . Freight in RHP 

318.09 . COS - Yearbook 

318.15 cos ·Change In Inventory 
318 . COS- Other - Other 

Total 318 . COS- Other 

Total COGS 

Gross Profit 

350 . Printing Produc tion 

350·02 · PP - Salaries 

350.06 . PP - Supplies 

Expense 

350.07 . PP - Equipment Mainl 

350.12 . PP- Dues & S bs ri . u c ptrons 
350·16 · PP ·Entertainment 

350.18 . Outside Printing 

350.19 · Outside Bindery 

350.26 · PP - FICA 

350·29 · PP • Retirement 

350.32 PP - Insurance 

350.34 . Pressroom Supplies 

350.36 . Preasroom Maintenance 

350.38 . Pressroom Parts 

350.40 . Pressroom Stock 

350.42 . Pressroom Ink 

350.44 . Bindery Supplies 

350.46 . Bindery Mafntenanc 

350.48 Bindery Parts 

350.50 . Pre-Press Supplies 

350.52 . Proofing Suppflea 

350.54 CTP Abintananca 
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Budget 
2013 

sa.s.ooo 

$75,000 

$9,000 

S50o 

so 

S929,500 

S30,000 

S8,500 

so 

S3.000 

S680 

S12,250 

$0 

$1,500 

so 

S55,930 

S5,000 

-$13,000 

so 
so 

Budget 
2012 

S435,ooo 

S6o,ooo 

$15,000 

S500 

so 

S510,500 

S30,ooo 

S12,000 

so 

$4,000 

S1,200 

$15,000 

$500 

$1 ,500 

so 
S64,200 

S2,500 

so 

so 

so 

Budget 
2011 

U45,ooo 

S50,ooo 

S7,500 

S2,50o 

$2,500 

S507,500 

S17,50o 

S17,500 

so 
$6,000 

S3,000 

$15,000 

S3,000 

$3,000 

so 

S65,000 

Actu.l 
2011 

$499,158.52 

$49,150.52 

S5,101.63 

so.oo 
so.oo 

S553,410.67 

$33,200.73 

$9,351..56 

$295.78 

S2,927.43 

S680.76 

S14,763.75 

$8.04 

S161.08 

$166.07 

S61,555.20 

S7,500 S5 ,232.22 

so -S12,ooo.oo 

so S11 ,782.26 

so $139.32 -$8,000 

$1.136,930 
S2,500 S7,500 S5 ,153.80 

$4,080,070 

S278,0oo 

$2,500 

$1,500 

S1 ,000 

$100 

S272,500 

S45,000 

$18,500 

S9,000 

$25,000 

$11 ,000 

$15,000 

S7,500 

S2oo,ooo 

S13,000 

$500 

$1,000 

S500 

S6,000 

S3,500 

$1 ,000 

S757,700 

$4,178,300 

S278,000 

$2.500 

S5,ooo 

$1,500 

$100 

$250,000 

S60,000 

$18,500 

$9,000 

$25,000 

$15,000 

$15,000 

$10,000 

$200,000 

$15,000 

$500 

$3,500 

S50o 

$5,000 

$3,500 

$1,000 

S743.750 $703,374.18 

$4,125,750 $3,897,914.96 

$270,000 

$2,500 

$1 ,000 

$1,000 

$100 

S325,000 

$50,000 

$19,500 

$9,000 

$25,000 

$11,000 

$12,500 

S10,000 

$195,000 

$11,000 

$500 

$2,500 

$500 

$10,000 

$5,000 

$5,000 

$263,319.51 

$2,445.64 

$1,080.00 

$1 ,110.00 

$0.00 

S281,013. 75 

$43,494.82 

$17,142.61 

$7,546.24 

$23,237.36 

S9,147.21 

$14,109.65 

$7,232.43 

$193,188.9 .. 

$12,824.41 

$0.00 

$568.55 

so.oo 
$6,000.08 

$3,754.91 

so.oo 

350.56 · DigiUII Press Supplies 

350.62 · Plates 

350.88 · Outside Purchases-En. Pkts 

350.89 · Digital Prees Maintenance 

350.90 · PP - Miscellaneous 

Total 350 · Printing Production 

355.00 · Depreciation Printing Equipment 

360 · Editoria f 

360.02 · Edit - Salaries 

360.03 · Edit - Housmg Allowanc e 

360.04 · Edit · Travel 

360.06 Edit - Supplies 

360.07 · Edit - Equipment Maintenance 

360.09 · Product Development 

360.10 · Edit - Conventions & Seminars 

360.11 · Software Supply 

360.12 · Edit • Dues & Subscriptions 

360.15 · National Expense 

360.16 · Edit - Entertainment 

360.23 Edit - Telephone 

360.26 Edit - FICA 

360.29 · Edit - Retirement 

360.32 · Edit - Insurance 

360.34 Curriculum Oevelpment 

360.35 · Product Improvement 

360.36 · Writer's Fees 

360.37 · Register of Copyrights 

360.88 · Outside Editing/Proofing 

360.89 · Access-Contract Work 

360.90 Edit - Miscellaneous 

Total 360 · Editorial 

400 · Administrative/Accounting 

400.02 · AD/AC - Salaries 

400.03 AD/AC · HOU$ing Allowance 

400.04 · AD/AC - Travel Expense 

400.06 · AD/AC - Supplies 

400.07 · AD/AC • Equipment Maintenance 

400.08 · AD/AC · Equipment Rental 

400.10 · AO/AC · Conventions & Seminars 

400.12 · AO/AC - Dues & Subscriptions 

400.16 · AD/AC- Entertainment 

400.20 · AO/AC • Po.tage 

400.23 · AO/AC ·Telephone 

400.26 · AD/AC • FICA 

400.29 · AO/AC - Retirement 

400.32 · AO/AC - Insurance 

400.70 · AD/AC - Automobile Expense 

400.90 · AOIAC - M~cellaneoua 

Total 400 · Admln~tratlve/Accounting 
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Budget 
2013 

S500 

S35,000 

$45,000 

S60,000 

S500 

S1 ,053,100 

S90,000 

$275,000 

$41 ,000 

S2,000 

$1 ,500 

$500 

S1,000 

$1 ,000 

S500 

$2,600 

$1 ,000 

S1 ,500 

S1 ,000 

S19,000 

$12,000 

S30,000 

$5,000 

S2,500 

$100,000 

S2,500 

S12,600 

so 
$500 

$612,500 

S237,000 

S29,400 

S35,000 

$8,500 

S1 ,500 

so 
$5,000 

S3,500 

$7,000 

so 
$3,600 

$15,500 

$14,000 

$35,500 

$5,000 

$12,000 

$412,400 

Budget 
2012 

S500 

$30,000 

$45,000 

S65,000 

$500 

S1 ,059,600 

S90,000 

$285,500 

$27,000 

S2,000 

$2,000 

$1,000 

$2,500 

S1,000 

$500 

$1 ,500 

so 
$1 ,500 

$1 ,000 

$19.000 

$12,000 

S30,000 

$10,000 

$10,000 

S100,000 

$2,500 

$10,000 

$5,000 

$1 ,000 

S525,000 

$237,000 

S29,400 

$25,000 

$7,500 

$1,000 

so 
$20,000 

$2,500 

S7,500 

$0 

$3,500 

$15,500 

$14,000 

$30,000 

$7,500 

$500 

$400,900 

Budget 
2011 

$1 ,000 

S50,000 

$45,000 

$50,000 

$500 

Actual 
2011 

$0.00 

S34,017.13 

$42,868.83 

S61,665.75 

so.oo 

S1 ,112,600 S1 ,025,768.02 

$60,000 

$265,000 

$30,500 

$2,000 

S2,000 

S500 

$0 

$2,000 

$500 

$1,000 

$0 

$1,500 

$1 ,000 

S19,000 

$10,000 

$30,000 

$15,000 

S2,000 

$90,000 

$5,000 

$10,000 

$.25,000 

S2.000 

$.514,000 

S200,000 

$32,000 

$30,000 

$5,000 

$2,000 

so 

$1,500 

S1 ,500 

$5,000 

so 
$4,000 

$12,000 

S12,000 

$30,000 

$5,000 

$1,000 

$341 ,000 

$93,111.06 

S278,635.20 

$33,900.00 

$1 ,667.76 

$1 ,023.67 

S99.99 

$15.16 

$979.81 

S191 .49 

$2,239.87 

$699.41 

$1 ,112.70 

$670.89 

$18,128.58 

$10,615.02 

$27,741 .73 

$787.04 

$2,546.50 

$97,149.86 

$3,385.00 

S10,007.69 

-$0.10 

so.oo 

$491 ,597.25 

$229,243.11 

S29,400.00 

$37,396.58 

$8,243.02 

$1 ,379.00 

S1.00 

$4,687.01 

$3,092.96 

S6,502.65 

$61.20 

$3,351.19 

$14,924.12 

$11 ,022.18 

$36,720.29 

$4,718.65 

$8,591.79 

SJ99,334.75 



410 . Salea/Marlletmg 

410·02 · Sales/Mkt - Salaries 

410.03 . Sales/Mk1 - Housing All owance 

410.04 . Sales/Mkt - Traver Expense 

410.05 Sales/Mkt - Wholesale Marketing 

410.06 Sales/Mkt - Supplies 

410.07 Sales/Mkt - Equipment Maint. 

410.11 Sales/- Conventions & S -emrnars 

410 12 . Sales/Mk - Dues & Subscriptions 

410.15 · National Expense 

410.20 Sales/Mkt - Postage 

410.23 . Sales/Mkt • Telephone 

410.26 . Sales/Mkt - FICA 

410.29 · Sales/Mkt R tl - e rement 

410.32 . Sales/Mkt - Insurance 

410.34 . SaiHIMkt - Advertising 

410.36 Salea/Mkt - Promotion 

410.88 Salea/Mk1- Entertainment 

410.90 Sales/Mkl - Miscellaneous 

Total 410 Sales/Marketing 

420 Des1gn 

420.02 . Design - Salaries 

420.04 Design • Travel Expense 

420.06 . Design . Supplies 

420.07 · Desig E · n - qutpment Maintenance 

420.10 . Design - Conventions & Seminars 

420.12 . Design - Dues & Subscriptions 

420.14 · Art Services 

420.16 . Design - Entertainment 

420.26 . Design - FICA 

420.29 . Design Ret· - trement 

420.32 . Design -Insurance 

420.90 . Design • Miscellaneous 

Total420 · Design 

425 · RHP Book Dtvision 

425.02 RB -Salaries 

425·04 RB - Travel E xpense 

425.06 . RB - SuppliH 

425.07 RB - Equipment Maintenance 

425.10 . RB . Conventions & Seminars 

425.11 . Royalty Payments 

425.12 . RB - Dues & Subscriptions 

425.23 . RB - Telephone 

425.26 · RB _ FICA 

425·29 · RB - Retirement 

425-32 · RB - Insurance 

425.66 . Worllshops "-~pense 

425.88 . RB - Enterblinment 

425.89 . Product Development 

425·90 · RB - Miscellaneous 

Total 425 . RHP Book Division 
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Budget 
2013 

$350,000 

$37.620 

$40,000 

$20,000 

$7,500 

$1 ,000 

$3,000 

$12,000 

$36,000 

$0 

$15,000 

$25,000 

$12.000 

$50,000 

$70,000 

$70,000 

$6,000 

$1 ,000 

$756,120 

$220,500 

$500 

$2,000 

$500 

$500 

$500 

$47,500 

$1 ,500 

$14,500 

$6,000 

$33,500 

$500 

$328,000 

$52,500 

$500 

$500 

$500 

$500 

$17,500 

$1 ,000 

$1,000 

$4,000 

$2,500 

$6,500 

$500 

$500 

$1,500 

$500 

$90,000 

Budget 
2012 

$350,000 

$37,620 

$25,000 

so 
$7,500 

$500 

$7,500 

$15,000 

$30.000 

so 
$17,500 

$20,000 

$11,000 

$45,000 

$80.000 

$80,000 

$4,000 

$500 

$731,120 

$220,500 

$500 

$2,500 

so 
$500 

$500 

$50,000 

$2,000 

$14,500 

$7,000 

$30,000 

$500 

$328,500 

$47,500 

$1 ,000 

$500 

so 
S500 

S20,000 

S1 ,000 

S1 ,000 

$3,250 

$2,500 

S4,500 

Budget 
2011 

$325.000 

$22.000 

$20,000 

so 
$7.500 

S3,000 

$2,000 

$1,000 

$30,000 

$2,000 

$15.000 

$25.000 

$9,500 

$45,000 

$80.000 

$80.000 

$3,500 

$500 

Actuar 
2011 

$333,428.14 

$37,820.00 

$44,759.41 

$0.00 

$4,641.99 

$1,000.00 

$11,049.02 

$10,244.80 

$47,466.86 

$62.66 

$16,748.01 

$20,518.15 

$10,823.86 

$47,707.41 

$99,713.93 

$67,945.24 

$5,459.36 

S1 ,116.21 

S671 •000 $760,305.05 

$205,000 

$1 ,000 

$2,500 

$1 ,000 

$1 ,000 

$500 

$60,000 

$2,000 

$16,000 

$7,500 

$35,000 

$500 

$332,000 

$46,000 

$2.000 

$1,000 

$500 

$1,000 

$20,000 

$500 

$1 ,000 

$3,600 

$2,500 

$4,500 

$1,000 

$1,000 

$211,612.98 

$344.98 

S1,537.11 

S136.99 

$572.19 

$67.99 

$45,089.87 

$1 ,232.18 

S13,n5.45 

$5,599.36 

$31,305.38 

$389.60 

$311,664.08 

$47,034.04 

$0.00 

$359.66 

so.oo 
$240.00 

$20,120.53 

$935.00 

$963.82 

$3,061.75 

s2,2n.os 

$6,218.91 
$500 

$500 

S1 ,000 

$500 

S84,250 

so 
$500 

$85,100 

$262.69 

$111.32 

$1,234.37 

$64.95 

$82,884.12 

430 . Distribution Center 

430.02 · DC - Salaries 

430.04 · DC - Travel Expense 

430.06 · DC - Supplies 

430.07 DC - Equipment Maintenance 

430.08 · DC - Equipment Rental 

430.09 · DC -Software Fees and Services 

430.12 · DC- Dues & Subscriptions 

430.16 · DC - Entertainment 

430.20 · DC - Postage 

430.26 · DC - FICA 

430.29 · DC - Retirement 

430.32 · DC - Insurance 

430.40 · DC - Freight Expense 

430.90 · DC - Miscellaneous 

Total 430 - Distribution Center 

435 · IT Division 

435.02 · IT - Salaries 

435.04 · IT- Travel 

435.06 · IT - Supplies 

435.07 · IT - Equipment Maintenance 

435.08 · IT - Software Services 

435.10 · IT - Conventions/Seminars 

435.12 · IT- Dues & Subscriptions 

435.23 · IT -Telephone 

435.26 · IT - FICA 

435.29 · IT- Retirement 

435.32 · IT - lneurance 

435 · IT Division -Other 

Total 435 · IT Division 

440 · Plant Maintenance 

440.02 - PM - Salaries 

440.04 · PM -Travel Expense 

440.06 · PM - Supplies 

440.07 · PM - Equipment Maintenance 

440.08 · PM - Overhead (Youth Department) 

440.23 · PM -Telephone 

440.26 · PM - FICA 

440.34 - PM - Building Maintenance 

440.40 · Utilities 

440.45 · Building Insurance 

440.90 · PM -Miscellaneous 

Total 440 · Plant Maintenance 

460 · FWBBC Bookstore 

460.02 · FWBBC - Salaries 

460.04 · FWBBC - Travel Expense 

460.05 · FWBBC - Building Rental 

460.06 · FWBBC - Suppliea 

460.12 · FWBBC - Dues & Subscriptions 

Budget 
2013 

$145,000 

so 
$25,000 

$500 
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S10,000 

$500 

$500 

$500 

$27,500 

$10,000 

$5,500 

$22,000 

$127,500 

$250 

$374,750 

$39,000 

$500 

$1 ,000 

S1.500 

$1 ,000 

$500 

S2,500 

S500 

$3,000 

$1 ,000 

$4,500 

$0 

$55,000 

$20.000 

so 
$7,500 

$5,000 

-$16,000 

$1,000 

$1 ,500 

$40,000 

$50,000 

$27,500 

$300 

$136,800 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

Budget 
2012 

Budget 
2011 

Actual 
2011 

$150,000 

$0 

S20.000 

$2,000 

$10.000 

$1 ,000 

$500 

$750 

$32,500 

$10,000 

S5,500 

$30,000 

$120,000 

$250 

$382.500 

$39,000 

$500 

$500 

$1,500 

$1 ,000 

$500 

$4,000 

$500 

$2,600 

so 
$4,500 

so 
$54.600 

$22,000 

$0 

$10,000 

$12,000 

.$13,500 

$2,000 

$1 ,500 

$31 ,000 

$60,000 

$32,000 

$300 

$157,300 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

so 

$105.000 

$0 

$21 ,000 

$2,000 

$7,500 

S1 ,200 

S500 

S750 

$30,000 

$10,000 

$5,000 

$24,000 

$115,000 

$250 

$322,200 

$42,000 

$500 

S2.500 

$3,000 

$2,000 

$500 

$1 ,500 

so 
S3.200 

$0 

$4,500 

$500 

$60,200 

$19,000 

so 
$7,500 

$7,500 

$0 

$0 

$1,500 

$25,000 

$55,000 

S29,000 

$300 

$144,800 

$137.208.41 

$105.42 

$24,039.15 

$0.00 

$9,131 .92 

$0.00 

$469.00 

$372.48 

$25,750.51 

$8,903.29 

$4,592.76 

$20,512.65 

$124,386.37 

$0.00 

$355,471 .96 

$37,531 .79 

$0.00 

$837 49 

S961 .98 

$1 ,351 .17 

$0.00 

$1 .842.55 

$538.74 

$2,443.80 

$0.00 

$4,184.28 

$0.00 

$49,691.80 

S15,962.43 

$37.75 

$6,645.92 

$3,249.94 

-S16,000.00 

$450.00 

$8-48.60 

S38,388.81 

$53,665.82 

$27,350.17 

$0.00 

S130,599.44 

$17,500 

S1 .000 

$5,000 

$500 

$100 

S5,752.54 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$316.09 

$0.00 
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460.26 · FWBBC · FICA 

460.40 · FWBBC · Textbooks 

460.42 · FWBBC • Snacks/School Supplies 

460.44 · FWBBC · Apparel 

460.46 · FWBBC - Shorts 

460.48 · FWBBC - Bibles/Books/Gifts 

460.90 · FWBBC - Miscellaneous 

Total 460 · FWBBC Bookstore 

490 · General 

490.06 · GE • Supplies 

490.07 · GE • Equipment Matnlenance 

490.08 · GE - Equipment Rental 

490.14 · Depreciation 

490.15 · Interest Expense 

490.18 · Bank Service Charges 

490.20 · Insurance 

490.25 · RHP - Board Expense 

490.30 · Legal & Audit 

490.35 · GE -Automobile Expense 

490.40 · Bad Debts 

490.45 · In House Functions 

490.50 · Tues 

490.55 · Payroll Services 

490.90 · OE - Miscellaneous 

490 · General - Other 

Total490 · General 

9000 · Youth Department 

9100 · Youth Revenues 

300.62 · NYC 2013 

300.63 · NYC 2012 

300.64 · Truth & Peace Fees- 2013 

300.65 · Truth & Peace Fees 2012 

300.66 · NYET Fees · 2013 

300.67 · NYET Fees 2012 

300.70 · Youth Collections 

300.73 · Buck-A-Week Revenues 

Total 9100 · Youth Revenues 

Total 9000 · Youth Department 

450 · Youth Department Expenses 

460.02 · YO - Salaries 

450.03 · YO - Housing Allowance 

450.04 · YO - Travel Expense 

460.06 · YO - Supplies 

450.08 · YO • Overhead 

460.10 · YO- Conventions & Seminara 

460.12 · YO- Dues & Subacrfptions 

450.16 · YO -Entertainment 

450.23 · YO -Telephone 

450.26 · YO- FICA 
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Budget 
2013 

so 
so 
so 
so 
so 
so 
so 
so 

S1 ,000 

S500 

S20.000 

S60,000 

S17,000 

S35,000 

S500 

S20,000 

S17.500 

$2,000 

S2,000 

$10,000 

$6,000 

S6,500 

S1 ,000 

so 
S199,000 

S125,000 

$0 

$145,000 

so 
$20,000 

so 
S2,600 

$2,000 

$294,500 

S294,500 

$18,000 

$5,400 

$3,000 

S1,500 

S16,000 

S600 

$600 

$1 ,500 

S500 

$1 ,000 

Budget 
2012 

so 
$0 

so 
$0 

so 
so 
so 
so 

S3,000 

S1 ,000 

S25,000 

S80,000 

S20,000 

S30,000 

S16,000 

$20,000 

$15,000 

$2,000 

$1,000 

S12.000 

$6,000 

S9,000 

$2,000 

so 
S241,000 

so 
S115,000 

$0 

S110,000 

so 
S10,000 

S2,500 

$250 

S237,750 

$237,750 

$23,000 

S5,400 

$3,500 

S1 ,000 

$13,600 

S500 

$500 

$500 

S600 

$2,350 

Budget 
2011 

S1,200 

S60,000 

S10,000 

S500 

S500 

S2,500 

S250 

S99,050 

S5,000 

S5,000 

S20,000 

S75,000 

S20,000 

S15,000 

S15,000 

S20,000 

S15,000 

S2,500 

S1 ,000 

S10,000 

S5,000 

S7,500 

S5,000 

so 
S221,000 

S116,000 

so 
S105,000 

so 
$7,500 

so 
$2,000 

so 
$229,500 

$229,500 

$30,000 

S6,000 

$3,500 

$1 ,000 

$0 

$1 ,000 

$500 

S500 

$0 

$2,600 

Act~l 
2011 

$377.12 

S10,299.79 

S3.059.38 

$0.00 

S77 .28 

$0.00 

so.oo 
S19,882.20 

$295.84 

$0.00 

$19,142.03 

S55,695.00 

S14,594.9o4 

$33,451.90 

S152.00 

$17,854.68 

$15,773.00 

$1 ,883.13 

$3,958.64 

$8,036.86 

$5,698.26 

$8,895.36 

$478.93 

$33.36 

$185,943.93 

S108,917.92 

S145.00 

$122,801 .44 

-$1,250.00 

S17,100.00 

$0.00 

$2,175.56 

$272.49 

S260,162.41 

S250,162.41 

S16,408.31 

S5,400.00 

S2,466.50 

S1,372.17 

$16,000.00 

$300.00 

$69.90 

$1 ,360.41 

$335.44 

$1 ,067.88 

450.29 . YO • Retirement 

450
_32 . yo - Insurance 

450.34 . NYC Expense 2013 

450.35 . SCM. NYC 2012 

450.36 . Truth & Peace . 2013 

450.37. SCM. Truth & Peace 2012 

450_38 . NYET 2013 

450.39 . SCM • NYET 2012 

450.88 . Buck-A-Week Expenses 

4S0.90 . YO • Miscellaneous 

Total 450 . Youth Department Expenses 

Ministries 
9200 . Revenues oanom. 

300.91 . Alabama Conference Fees 
Ministries · Other 

9200 . Revenues Oenom. 

0 m Ministries 
Total 9200 . Revenues eno . 

445 . Denominational Ministries Ellpenns 

445_45 . Team Church Travel 

445.65 . YearboOk Printing 

445.66 . ONE Magazine 

445.93 . Scholarships 

Tot.l 446 . Denominational Ministries 

SALARY ••• 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR & CEO 

RONALD HUNTER. JR 

HOUSING ALLOWANCE 

CHRISTMAS BONUS 

cOMPENSATION TOTAL 

SOCIAL SECURITY 

Actual 
2011 

Budget Budget Budget 
2013 2012 

S1,000 

S3,500 

S110,000 

so 
S120.000 

so 
S20,000 

so 
S1,500 

so 
S303.900 

so 
so 
$0 

so 
S13,000 

$50.000 

so 
S63,000 

S1 ,000 

$4,000 

so 
S85,000 

$0 

$95,000 

$0 

$10,000 

so 
S1 ,000 

S246,750 

so 
S10,000 

S10,000 

so 
$12,000 

$50,000 

S3,000 

S65.000 

2012 PACKAGE 

S55 573 

$29,400 

$1 ,634 

2011 

$750 

$3,500 

S85,000 

so 
$85.000 

so 
S7,500 

$0 

so 
$1 ,000 

S227,750 

so 
so 
$0 

$0 

$12,000 

S50.000 

S3,000 

S65,000 

S830.18 

S3,046 88 

S96,274.23 

so.oo 
S97,082.76 

S24.00 

$29,836.42 

so.oo 
S2,S68.45 

so.oo 
$274,443.53 

$150.00 

so.oo 
$150.00 

S606.31 

$12,000.00 

$46,575.12 

$0.00 

S59,181 .43 

2013 PROJECTED PACKAGE 

559.821 

$29.400 

$1 716 

S86,607 
S90,937 

$0 

$4,461 

RETIREMENT $4,249 
$4,461 

S95,398 
BENEFITS TOTAL S90,866 

TOTAL PAY PACKAGE htmcrease IS projected lor 2013 
20121sS1264524 Asllg 

d L""" Term Olsablhty Insurances In 
Medtcal eental Ltfe an -·., 

. of the company roc the year 
dependent on the performance 

-· Salary IS subjeCt to change 
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F h 
Summary of the Minutes 

or t e Randall H ouse Publications Board 
2011-2012 

fhc: Hoard had three re'-ular 
In ( h I ' E meetrngc; rh r ar ottc. 1\;onh Carolina At th· - e rr~t meetrng \\a-. held at th '\ 

- at mc:ctrng \\c: ckl:tl·d oflil:c:r-. arl ·' ·' ' c: atrnnal -\ssocmtion Juh :w .,01 

Tl 
u uetcm11ncd ,.11 - • • - I 

h: ~econd '- mmrttec:s 
· me,·tml! ''a' held <H R . 

l unlcro.:nl:c 'A c authon-/ •·' l1 andallllouse I>Clt'mher - ~(J I I . I . h d cu 1c ~chcdulr 1 ·- a ter lhc 1\at 1 1 
car a ro:rort on the ')eptemb•'r .06 c· ~~g o a second addu ronal loc·urll11 ,. h .., rona .eadershrp 

1\ YC ~o 1., - ~ on crcn · · 'A ' or t e Ill' Doc • 
- - · I he date~ lor the Sprrnl! "~OJ.., Jl ~c. e appro,cd the spcakc~ f'or th .-y ·' h . ont~rcncc. We 

T - - - o,rrd .\lk ctrng "crl' set c out Wor~hlp Sen ices for 

. hctlllrdmcetingwashcldA ril22-..,1 .., . .., • 
• rudu and apprm ed the ..,0 IJ h d p - .. _()I- rn C ol umhu~ 011 t\ l I 
~ratllud,• liJr the oppnnt~nitv lh~t~e~, ,;-~lC b~Jilrd drscus:-.ed the nc', Cor;l~·ren··~at ';~~~·~ng, \\ C ncccpted the 20 1 I 

o.rrd 'et tht' uatc~ forth.: io I 1 S . ~~a eader rn J:!l'llcr<Jtronal discrpkc;J ~.: ·. I c ~~_ard expressed it' 
ttl sen rcc (the majorit'· o r·,,h: h. prrng 1\lc:ctrng The hourd comrn··nd ·d I' llphtlltlc Krngdom of God. The 

· ~ • rc \\ere a · 1 • ' c > rnt cr [d · 1 1 ~ c cr" ) to I rce Will n '' rn 3\CS for his ~ -' aptl\t a<. a RIll' hoard b , . _ .. ) ears mem cr. 
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HOME MISSION 

Home Missions North America 2011 

Dear Friends of Home M issions, 

Home Missions North America is planting a record number of churches. We have better 
participation from our Free Will Baptist s, churches, and states than ever before. Our people are 
taking ownership and building prayer and support relationships with our missionaries across 
America. From our board, our church planters, and mission staff, Thank You ! 

New and Recent Projects 
Tyler and Kellie Penn - Champaign, Illinois 
Jay and Annette Baines- Dover, Delaware {Parentmg Project) 

Len and Lynda Blanchard- Oxford, Alabama 
Jamie and Abigail Hernandez - Elkhart, Indiana 
Jason and Holly Weaver - Winchester, Virginia 

Church Planters Going Self-Supporting 
Jeff and Donna Crabtree- Fredericton New Brunswick, Canada 2012 
Keith and Janet Bartlett, Ray and Iris Hollifield, Castaic, California 2012 
Scott and Rebecca Cheatham, Denver, Colorado 2012 

Mexico M inistries 
Convention Center and Bible Institute, Altamira, Mexico 

Seminario Biblico La Cruz, Reynosa, Mexico 
El Uro Convent ion Center and Campground, Monterrey, Mexico 
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Hispanic Training Centers 

Gwen Hendrix Hispanic Institute I 
Slempre Gozosos Chu h d ' . nman, South Carolina 

1 
. rc an Institute Joh . 

glesla Bautista libre and lnstitu , nson City, Tennessee 
Southern Californl·a H. . te, Houston, Texas 

1span1e Sem · mary, los Angeles, California 

Free Will Baptist Chaplains 

The Ho~e Missions Department continues to 
Navy, Air Force, National Guard and R endorse chaplains for the United Stat A 

, eserve Forces. es rmy, 

CH (MAJ) Richard G Ander 
CH (COL) Terry Aust.in Fort s;n, Creech AFB, las Vegas NV 
CH (MAJ) Joh C ' am Houston, Texas 

n arey, Fort Hood Texas 
~~ (CPT) Tracy Kerr, lehrberg, G,ermany 

(MAJ) Steven Simpson Ab d 
CH (l T COL) Tim Sturgill ~rig~; peen Proving Ground, Maryland 
CH (CPT) Kevin Trimble , Fort C - atterson Air Force Base, Ohio 
CH (MAJ) Da ·d T ' ampbell, Kentucky 

VI rogdon Fort S 
CH (CPT) w l ' tewart, Georgia 

. ee Fry Jr. Fort Gordon, Georgia 

Our chaplains are Free Will Ba ti . . . 
tremendous minist p st miniSters In the uniform of our 

thankful for their w~n~s~ha:Yt~:~~:~:~'~o~unddrecds of people tha;~~:~:·u:~:;~;:u: W 
an ountry." · e are 

Rev. larry A. Powell 
General Director 

Home M issions North America 
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Home M issions Department 
Synopsis of Board M inutes 

April 26. 2011 

Met with Len Blanchard and with enthusiasm agree with Director Larry Powell to partner with 

Alabama State Mission Board in planting a church in Oxford, Alabama. 

Reviewed the document "Guidelines for Military Chaplains" and recommend that Scriptural 

references be added in the footnotes of the document. 

MSC that all Free Will Baptist Military Chaplains be required to send an annual report to the 

National Home Missions Board for its December meeting. 

MSC that we give special commendation to all church planters who have brought their works to 

autonomous church status. 

July 20. 2011 

MSC to approve Tyler and Kellie Penn as Joint-Project missionaries to Champaign, ll. 

Special Prayer was given for Randy Wright, Chairman; Chaplain David Spears, Tim Osborn and 

Melissa Lewis. 

The board heard Jay Baines plans for a "Parenting Project" for Dover, Delaware. The board 

received his report as information. The general director w1ll approve him as an Associate 

Missionary for this project. 
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mcm - -- -
Joel D. Collum, Jr. 

Ccnified Public Accountant 

JlmEPE!Im};NT AUDITOR'S Rr:PORI 

To the Board ofTrusmes of the 
Board ~fHome Missions of the National 
As50Ciation ofFree Will Baptists of the 
United States of America. Inc. 

Antioch. Tennessee 

I have audited the a.coompanying ctatements of financia l position of the Board of Home Missions of lhe 
National Association of Free Will Baptists of the United States of America. Inc., (a nonprofit organization) as 
of De¢embet 31, 2011 and 2010, and the ~lated statements of activitie! and cash flows for the years then 
ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Organ.iz.ation's management. My responsibility 
is to ex.press an opinion on these financial statements based on my audib . 

I conducted my audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Uni~ States of 
Ameri(:a. Those 5tandards require tha1 l plan and perfonn the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test 

basis. evidence supporting the amounts and disclosuA:S in the financial statements. An audit also includes 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating 
the overall financial sta~ment presentation. I believe that my audits provide a reasonable basi& for my 
opinion. 

In my opinion. 1he fmancial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects. the financial 
position of the 8oatd of Home Missions of the Na1ional Association offm~ Will BaptisiS of tho United States 
of America, Iuc .. u ofDe<:ember 31 , 20ll and 2010, and the changes in its net uset. and its cash flows fur 
the years then ended in conronnity with accounting principle& generally accepted in the United States of 
~ 

My audits were conducted for the pw-pose of' furming an opinion on the finaJM:ial statemen~Sas a whole. The 
schedule of functional expenses on page 12 i1 presented for p11rposes of additional analysis and is not a 
required part of the financial &tatements. Sucb information L$ the responsibility of management and wu 
derived from and relalM dircctly to the underlying aceountins and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements. The informarion has been subjected 10 the auditing procedures applied in the audit$ of the 
financial statementl and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such infonnatiott 
directly to the underlying accounting and other 1ecords used to prepart the financial statements or to the 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In my opinion. the information is fairly stated in all 
ma1c:rial respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

April26. 2012 

P.O . Bolt 291561 • Nuh·ille, Tnotuu 37ll9 • 61S . 974 .2918 • joelcollamcpa@yaboo. com 
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BOARD OF HOME MIS~: ~~A.PTISTS 
NATIONAL ASSOCIA~':~ OF A.~'\iERICAt INC. 

OF TilE UNITED OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
STATE~ER31, 2011 and 2010 

ASSETS 
Cash 
Investments • F d 

. Church f,xtenslon un Jnvestments m 
. Accounts receivable • related part)' 

ASSETS 

Inventory 1 accumulated 
Pro rcy & equipment, at cost ess 

pe 1 ~.t depreciation of$146,530 
less accumu a~ 

($122.389 in 2010) 

TOTAL ASSETS 

lOll 

$ 563,3\4 
3,789 

7\5,217 
291,469 

43,285 

154,063 

s 1,771,637 

LJABILlTIES AND NET ASSETS 

UABlLITIES ed enses 
Accounts payable and accru exp 
Capital lease payable 

total liabilities 

co:MMJTMENTS 

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted 

Operating 
Board designated 

Total Unrestricted 

Temporarily Restricted 

Total net assets 

TOTAL UABiunES AND NET ASSETS 

5,784 
13,'222 

19,006 

1,124,931 
343,255 

1,468,181 

284,444 

1,752,631 

s 1,711,637 

1010 

s 309,431 
3,288 

728,536 
300,659 

'38,321 

171.719 

s 1,552,004 

$ 45,508 
l6,SlS 

62,026 

9\1,366 
343,255 

1,254,62\ 

235,357 

1,489,978 

$ 1,552,004 

. \ part of these financ1al statements. 
The a.ccompanyil\g noteS are an tntegrn 
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BOARD OF HOME 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION :SSIONS OF I HE 

OF THE UNITED STATES ~E WILL BAPTISTS 
STA~ ~CA,INC 

FOR THE YE TS OF ACTIVITIES . 
ARS ENDED DECEMB ER 31, 2011 and 2010 

UNRESTRICTED 
REVENUES 

Cooperative program 
Designated contributions 
Management fees - Note 4 
Interest income 
Gain (loss) on sale of ro . 
Unrealir.ed · (I P perty & equ1pment 
N t gam oss) on value of investment 

e assets released from restricti . 
Restr" . ons. 

ICtJOnS satisfied by payments 

Total revenue 

EXPESSES 

Administrative expenses 
Missionary expenses 
Missionary land & building 

Total expenses 

Increase (decrease) in unrestricted 

TEMPORARILY RESTRJCTE. 
REVENUES D 

Cooperative program 
Designated contributions 
Net assets released from restricti . R . . ons. 

estrJctrons satisfied by M. . payments 
•ss•onary expenses 

Missionary land & building 

net assets 

2011 

$ 168,918 
I ,052,610 

240,000 
34,681 

501 

3,528,114 

5,024,824 

1.283,144 
3,305,166 

222,948 

4,81 I ,.258 

213,566 

678,919 
2,898,282 

(3,305, I 66) 

(222,948) 

Increase (decrease) . . m temporanly restricted net assets 49,087 

Touuincrcase(d~)· m net assets 

Net assets be · . - grnnmg of year 

Net assets - end of year 

The accompan · ymg notes are an integral 
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262,653 

1,489,978 

S I, 752,631 

pan of these financial stat ements. 

2010 

$ 144,488 
732,065 
240,000 
33,755 

680 
(I ,845) 

3,620,809 

4,769,952 

1,270.618 

3,399,640 

221,169 

4,891,427 

(121,475) 

787,871 
3,032,969 

(3,399,640) 

(221,169) 

200,031 

78.,556 

1,411,422 

s 1,489,978 

BOARD OF HOME MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA. INC. 
STATEMEI\"TS OF CASH FLOWS 

:EQR THE YEAJ.{S ENDED DECEMBER31, 2011 and 2010 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
mcrease (decrease) in net assets 
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net 

cash provided (used) by operating activities: 

Deprecation 
(Gain) loss on sale of property & equipment 
(Gain) loss on value of investment 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 

(Increase) decrease in receivables 
(Increase) decrease in inventories 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and 

accrued expenses 

Net Cash Provided (Used) By Operating Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVES'I'I:'iG ACfiVITIES: 

Redemption of investments 
AcquiSition of investments 
Purehases of property and equipment 

~et Cash Provided (Used) By Investing Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 

Capital1ease payments made 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Financing Activities 

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN 
CASH AND CASH EQUJV ALENTS 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of years 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of years 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES 
interest paid 

Purchases of property and equipment 
Less: capital lease 

Cash paid for p1operty and equipment 

2011 

$ 262,653 

24,141 

(SOl) 

9,190 
(4,964) 

(39,724) 

250,795 

48,000 
(34,681) 

(6,485) 

6,834 

(3,296) 

(3,296) 

254,333 

309,481 

$ 563,814 

s 1,468 

s 

s 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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2010 

s 78,556 

27,567 
(680) 

1,845 

(123,411) 
(7 ,236) 

16,958 

(6,40 I) 

5,000 
(226,755) 

(6,896) 

(228,651) 

(2,839) 

(2,839) 

(237,891) 

547,372 

$ 309,481 

$ I ,346 

s 25,684 
( 18,788) 

s 6,896 
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BOARD OF HOME MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

OF THE Ul\TfED STATES OF AMERICA, INC. 
NOTES TO TilE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31,2011 and 2010 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES 

Organization ud Purpose: 

The Board of Home Missions of the NatiQnal Association of Free Will Baptists of the United 
States of America, Inc. is a nonprofit organization affiliated with the National Association of Free 
Will Baptists located in Antioch, Tennessee. The purpose of the Organization is to establish and 
support Free Will Baptist Mission churches in the United States (including U.S. Virgin Islands and 
Puerto Rico) and Mexico. The Organization's support comes primarily from donor contributions. 

The Organization is exempt from federal income tax under section 50l(cX3) of the Internal 
Revenue Code under a group exemption of the National Association of Free Will Baptists. Inc. ln 
addition, the Organization has been detennined by the Internal Revenue Service not to be a •private 
foundation" within the meaning of 509(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. There was no unrelated 
business income for 2011 or 201 0. 

The following significant accounting policies have been followed in the preparation of the fmancial 
statements: 

Ba5U of AccountiDg: 

The Organization prepares its fananciaJ statements using the accrual basis of accounting. which 
involves the application of generally accepted accounting principles; consequently, revenues and 
gains are recognized when earned, and expenses and losses are recognized when incurred. 

Basis of Presentation: 

Financial statement presentation follows the requirements of the Financial AccoWJting Standards 
Boar.d (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification Topic related to Presentation of Financial 
Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations. Under the F ASB Accounting Standards Codification, 
the Organization is required to report information regarding its financial position and activities 
according to three classes of net assets; unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets. and 
permanently restricted net assets. 

Use of Estimates: 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally acx:eptcd accounting principles 
includes the use of estimates that affect the financial statements. Accordingly, act~al results could 
differ from those estimates. 

Iavestmeots iD Cborth :E.xteasioD LoaD Fund: 

Investments consist of investments in the Church Extension Loan Fund. Investments are stated at 
cost, which approximates market value at December 31,2011 and 2010. 
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BOARD OF HOME MISSIONS ~~APTISTS 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATIO~ ~~RICA. INC. 

OFTHEUNJTEDSTA TEMENTS 
TES TO THE FINANCIAL ST A 

NO DECE:MBER 31. 2011 and 2010 

UNTING pRINCIPLES- coNTINUED 
slJ)fMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCO 

Contributions: . with the requirements of the F ASB 
. nts ~or contributions m accordance . 1 -~-"' .... ce with the FASB 

Or iz,ation accou 1' 'ti Topte n ll\.NV•-· ., 
The ~ Codification Revenue Rccosn~ on . ded as unrestricted. temporart y 
Accountmg Standards Cod'fication, contributions recelVed are recor. r nature of any donor 
Accounting Standards t . cted support. depending on the e?OStence o 
restricted. or pennanendy restn 

restrictions. . ' ly or permanently restricted net 
is re rted as an increase m temporan. . ires (that is, when a 

All donor-restricted support po restriction. When a restnctton el'p . ~ net 
assets depending on the nature of the restriction is accomplished), tempo~ly ctS:S ities as net 

. lated time restriction ends or purpose d ported in the statements o a tv ::s are reclassified to ~.restricted net as:i: ~no permanCl'ltlY restricted net assets. 
assets released from restnctions. The Organ 

. t d Depreciation: d 
Property and Eqa•pmen ao d·:tures for property an 

· f italizing. at cost, a\l expen 1 iation is 
The Organization foUows the practlce o. ~useful life of at least two years. Depree 
equipment in eJtCCSS of $500 ~ an :m~ful Jives of the assets generally as follows. 
computed on a straight-line basiS over e u 

Automobile 
syean 

3. 20 years 
Office furniture and equipment 

I 'cted 
......... M component in unrestrt 

bee recorded as a sc,..--
.-rlV and N'luipment balance has n The net pror- ... ~ 

net assetS. 

Cash Equivalents: . . of three months or less 
. . ............ all highly liquid investments with a matunty 

The Organization cons•~· .. 
based to be eash equivalents. 

whcnpurc 

'sts of 
Ia:veo.tory: . first out method) or market- lnventory const 

. ted t the lower of cost (first m. all • 
Inventor)' •s 5~ ~ d hangers and various other sm itemS· 
books. pamphlets, videos, oor 

Investments: . . d are valued at falr value. 
..,..,.....t of equity secunues an 

Investments arc comvv-
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4. 

2. 

3. 

NATION':i~g~~~"! :s:~~S OF 11IE 
OF THE UNITED STATES OF WILL BAPTISTS 
~OTES TO THE FINA~CIA AMERJCA, INC. 

L STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2011 and 2010 

PROPERTY AND EQU&MENT 

A sum mill)' of pro . 
perty and equrpment is as follows: 

Land • Puerto Rico 
Automobile 

Office fumr'ture & . equrpment 

Less: Accumulated depreciation 

Depreciatron for the year 

RESTRICTIONS ON NET ASSETS 

$ 

$ 

$ 

20II 

I 05,000 

66,699 
128,894 

300,593 

(146,530) 
154,063 

24,14 I 

Temporarily restricted net . 
assets are avatlable for the folio . 

wrng purposes: 

Missionaries 2011 

2010 

105,000 

66,699 
122,409 

294,108 

(122,389) 
$ 171,719 

$ 27.567 

2010 
$ 284,444 

$ 235,357 

These net assets are restrict d d 
...........: . . c ue to donor tr' . 
• ... .,u •ctJon 1s satisfied. res rchons. 

RELATED pARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The Board of Home M' · 

They are released when the donor 

related • rssJons provides office space fi 
party, the Church Extension Loan or and pays the salaries of th 

paid the Board of Home M' . Fund. During the year the Ch -"' E e ~mployees of a 
. tssrons a manage &: • u,...,, xtens1on Loan F d 

to re•mburse the cost f th ment tee of $240,000 ($240 000 un 
money in a demand n~te o~ ~ffice space and salaries. The Board of Hom ~~mber 31' 20 I 0) 
year-end was $715 17 e Church Extension Loan Fund Th e . lSSIOns has invested 
Board of l''ome M;:. . ($728,536 at December 31 20 I 0) Th. . . e balance rn this investment at 

0 lSSJOns' ' · IS InVestment . 
the Loan Fund to mak management constantly scrutinizes th IS uncoUateralized. The 
investment. This invesetmsure ~hthe Loan Fund is solvent and toe ~~~~~ financial statements of 

ent JS s on t · •uuumtU the cred" . 
approximates fair value erm m nature and the interest can be h rt nsk of the 

. c anged, therefore cost 

The ~ard of Home Missions has a . 
unrestTJcted earnings during th receivable from the Church Extension 
($300,659 at December 31 2010e)year. The balance on this receivable at dLoan Fund for 

, . year-en was $291 ,469 
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BOARD OF HOME MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE Wll.,L BAPTISTS 

OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, INC. 
NOTES TO THE ~ANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2011 and 2010 

5. LEASE 

6. 

7. 

The Board of Home \If iss ions entered into a lease agreement on October 1, 1990 with the National 
Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. for office and storage space. The Organization entered into a 
new lease agreement on July I, 2000. The term of the lease was July I, 2000 to August 31,2000, 
then beginning September I, 2000 the lease became a year to year lease. The rent expense for the 
year amounted to $57,264 ($57 ,264 for the year ended December 3 I, 201 0). 

DESIGNATION OF UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS 

During 2001 the Board designated $165,000 in unrestricted ne£ assets to reduce the deficits in 
missionary accounts. During 2005 the Board designated S 178,255 in unrestricted net assets to 
reduce deficits in missionary accounts. The total amount of Board designated unrestricted net 
assets is $343,255. 

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK 

The Board maintains cash deposits in excess of the federally insured amount of $250,000. At 
December 31 , 20 ll, the excess amount over the federally insured limit was $313,814 (S59,48 1 in 
20 I 0). The Board has not experienced any losses in such cash deposits and management believes it 
is not exposed to any significant credit risk related to cash. 

The Board also has $715,217 ($728,536 in 20 I 0) invested m a demand note of the Church 
Extension Loan Fund. This note is uninsured. 

8. FAIR VALVES OF ~ANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Organization in estimating its fair value 
disclosures for financial instruments: 

Cash, cash equivalents, investments in Church Loan Fund, receivables and payables: 
The carrying amounts reported in the statement of financial position approximate 
fair values because of the short maturities of those instruments. 

Investments: The fair value of investments is based on quoted market price for those 
investments. 
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BOARD OF HOME MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, INC. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, lOll and 2010 

9. INVESTMENTS 

Investments are stated at fair value and c.onsist of equity securities: 

Cost 
Equity securities $ 144,684 

Investment return is summarized as follows: 

Net realized and unrealized income (loss) 

Cost 
Equity securities $ 144,684 

Investment return is summarized as follows: 

Net realiz.ed and unrealized income (loss) 

December 31,2011 

Fair 
Value 

$ 3,789 

December 3 1, 20 I 0 

Fair 

Value 
$ 3,288 

Unrealized 
Appreciation 

~reciation) 
(140,895) 

$ 501 

Unrealized 
Appreciation 

(Depreciation) 
$ (141,396) 

$ (I ,845) 

This investment is on Level I in the fair value measurements as prescribed by the requirements of 
the F ASB Accounting Standards Codification. There are no items in Level 2 or Level 3 of tbe 
hierarchy. 

Level 1 measurements are valued based on quoted market prices in active markets. 

10. PENSION PLAN 

The Board participates in the master pension plan of the Board of Retirement and Insurance of the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists. The Board contributes 5% of gross salary for 
administrative employees with 5 or more years of service and 2% of gross salary for administrative 
employees with less than 5 years of service. The Board contributes 2% of gross salary for 
missionaries on their first mission project and 5% of gross salary for missionaries on their second 
and all subsequent mission projects. Pension e"J)enses amounted to $62,041 ($64,541 in 201 0). 
The pension plan is a defined contribution plan. Under the plan, an account is maintained for each 
participant and upon retirement the participant can either receive a lump-sum distribution or 
purchase one of several types of annuity contracts. 
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BOARD OF HOME MISSIONS OF THE 
FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF INC 
OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, . 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2011 and 1010 

CAPITAL LEASE 
11. The lease 

ard "red office equipment under the provisions of a long-term lease. 
The Bo ac~uL fo . . um annual lease payments of $4,764. 
agreement proVtdes r m•mm 

. . urn payments under the lease are as follows: 
Future mmrm 

2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 

Less amount representing interest 

• • 1 ase payments Present value of net mmtmum e 

s 

s 

4,764 
4,764 
4,764 
1,191 

15,483 
(2,261) 

13,222 

ed 
th" ffice equipment amounted to $3,758. 

The depreciation expense relal! to lS o 

ll. COMMON CONTROL 

. Fund as they are both governed by the same board 
The Board controls the Church Exte~SJOn ~disclosed about the Church Extension Loan Fund. 
of directors. Accordingly • the followmg data JS 2011 20 l 0 

$ 41,960,583 $ 39,239,155 

Total assets 

s 39,93l,re9 $ 36,950,882 

Total liabilities 

s 2,029,484 $ 2,288,273 

Net assets 

$ 2,671,652 $ 2,749,706 

Revenue 

s 2,930,441 $ 2,728,301 

ExpenSeS 

13. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS date 
b ManaJeDlent through April 26, 2012 which is the . 

Subsequent events have been ev~uated y . ued 
the fmancial statements were avatlable to be ISS . 
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BOARD OF HOME MISSIONS OF THE 
~ATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, INC. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31,2011 and 2010 

14. UNCERTAINTY IN INCOME TAXES 

Accounting principals generally accepted in the United States of America require the Board's 
management to evaluate tax positions taken by the Board and recognize a tax liability (or asset) if 
the Board has taken an uncertain tax position that more likely than not would not be sustained upon 
examination by the Internal Revenue Service. The Board's executive director has analyzed tax 
positions taken and has concluded that as of December 3 1, 20 II , there are no uncertain positions 
taken or expected to be taken that would require recognition of a liability (or asset) or disclosure in 
the financial statements. The Board is exempt from filing annual tax returns. 
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BOARD OF HOME MISSIONS OF THE 
FREE WD..L BAPTISTS NATIONALASSOCIATIO~ OF 

OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, INC. 
SCHEDULE OF FUNCflONAL EXPENSES 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 20ll and 2010 

2011 

A.DMJN1STRATWE EXPENSES 
$ 333,396 

Salaries and wages 
12,739 

Payroll taxes 
76,429 Housing allowance and employee benefits 
9,611 

Retirement 
19,617 

Cost of I iterature 
124,293 

Promotion expense 
17,061 

Utilities 
29,775 

()ffice expense 
72,244 

Printing and postage 
57,264 

Rent expense 
8,100 

Professional fees 
331.946 AutO and travel expense 

12,903 Board meeting expense 
68,834 Insurance expense 

2,869 
Telephone 

2,700 
Scholarships 

5,438 
Flowers and gifts 

1,294 
Miscellaneous 

71,022 
One magazine 

1,468 
Interest expense 

24,141 
Depreciation 

Total administrative expenses 1,283,144 

MISSIONARY EXPENSES 
2,666,790 

Salary and wages 
52,430 Retirement 
10,557 Promotion expense 

102,736 Printing and postage 
88,611 Literature 

188,012 
Auto and travel expense 

64,565 
Insurance expense 

1,330 Designated contributions 
130,135 MisceUaneous other expense 

Total missionary expenses 3.305,166 

MISSIONARY LAND & BUILDINGS 
222,948 

Total Expenses s 4,811,258 
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2010 

$ 323,677 
11,996 
65,080 
14,022 
6,355 

85,131 

17,758 
30,861 

126,751 
57,264 

6,600 

286,236 
11,501 

72,.329 
3,020 

2,000 
3,854 

49,922 
67,348 

1,346 

27,567 

I ,270,618 

2,652,056 
50,5 19 
I 8,334 

103,826 

179,699 
236,347 

45,145 

24,604 
89, I 10 

3.399,640 

221,169 

$4,891,427 
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2013 State Quotas 2013 Budget 

Alabama $495,00000 
Alaska $7,500.00 
Arizona 

Administrative Missionary Total 

$75,000.00 
Arkansas $285,000 00 

Salaries/Housing $400,000.00 $3,000,000.00 $3,400,000.00 

California 

Canada 
$130,000.00 

Retirement 
$10,000.00 $50,000.00 $60,000.00 

Colorado 
$15,000.00 Insurance 

$75,000.00 $60,000.00 $135,000.00 

Florida 
$70,000.00 Auto and Travel $300,000.00 $200,000.00 $500,000.00 

$60,000.00 
FWB Foundation $15,000.00 

Postage 
$25,000.00 $30,000.00 $55,000.00 

Georgia $135,000.00 
Printing 

$50,000.00 $65,000.00 $115,000.00 

Hawaii $2,500.00 
Promotion/ Adv. $125,000.00 $10,000.00 $135,000.00 

Idaho 

Illinois 
$5,000.00 

Off. Supplies/Maint. $25,000.00 
$25,000.00 

Indiana 
$125.000.00 ONE Magazine $70,000.00 

$70,000.00 

$60,000.00 
Iowa 

Utilities $15,000.00 $15,000.00 

$5,000.00 
Kansas $15,000.00 

Board Expense $10,000.00 $10,000.00 

Kentucky $95,000.00 
Uterature $10,000.00 $70,000.00 $80,000.00 

louis1ana $25,000.00 
Rent $58,000.00 

$58,000.00 

Maine 

Massachusetts 
$5,000.00 Phone/Fax $3,000.00 $3,000.00 

$5,000.00 
Michigan 

Depreciation $20,000.00 
$20,000 00 

$200,00000 
Mid-Atlantic 

Payroll Taxes $10,000.00 $10,000.00 

$35,000.00 
Minnesota $2,000.00 

Medicare Taxes $2,500.00 
$2,500.00 

Mississippi $175,000.00 
Legal/ Audit $8,000.00 $8,000.00 

Missouri 

Montana 
$225,000.00 Misc. $2,500.00 $75,000.00 $77,500.00 

New Hampshire 
$1,500.00 Scholarships $3,000.00 $3,000.00 

$3,000 00 
New Jersey 

Flowers/Gifts $3,000.00 $3,000.00 

$1,500.00 
New Mexico $5,000.00 

Misc. Receipts 
$10,000.00 $10,000.00 

New York $5,000.00 
Land/Building 

$200,000.00 $200,000.00 

North Carolina $400,000.00 
FM Exchange 

$5,000.00 $5,000.00 

Ohio $200,000.00 
Oklahoma $360,000.00 TOTALS $1,225,000.00 $3,775,000.00 $5,000,000.00 

Oregon $7,000.00 
Other Income $250,00000 
Other States $20,000.00 
Pennsylvania $30,000.00 
Rhode Island $5,000 00 
South Carolina $175,000.00 
Tennessee $575,000.00 
Texas $150,000.00 
Utah $10,000.00 
Virgin Islands $50,000.00 
Virginia $190,000.00 
Washington $7,500.00 
West Virginia $120,000.00 
Wisconsin $25,000.00 
WNAC $140,000.00 
Wyoming $2,500.00 

TOTAL $5,000,000.00 
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~em -- -
Joel D. Collum, Jr. 

Certifiod Public Accountant 

INDEPENDENT AUDIIOR 'S RJ:PQRT 

To the Board of Trustees of the 

Church Extension Loan Fund,lnc., 

Antioch. Tennessee 

I have audited the accompanying statements of financial position of the Church Extension Loan Fund, Inc., (a 
nonprofit organization), as of December 31, 201 I and 2010 and the related statements of activities and cash 
flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the OrganizatiOn's 
management. My responsibility is to elCpress an opinion on these financial statements based on my audits. 

I conducted my audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Those standards require ttw I plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes eumining, on a test 
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes 
8SSCS$ing the accounting principles used and signifiCant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating 
the overall financial statement presentation. I believe that my audits provide a reasonable basis for my 
opinion. 

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Church Extension Loan Fund, Joe., as of December 3 I, 20 I I and 20 I 0, and the chmges in its 
net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

April 25, 2012 

P.O. Box 29 15 6 1 • Nuh·ille, Tcnncuc c 37229 • 6 15.974.29 18 • joelcollumcpa@ya.hoo.com 
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CHUR
CH EXTENSION LOAN FUND, JNC. 

ANCIAL POSITION 
STATEMENTS OF FIN 

DECEMBER 31, lOll and l OlQ 

ASSETS 
Cash 0 

Certificates of depoSit 
NoteS receivable, net of allowance 

for doubtful accounts of $380,000 
($259,980 in 20 l 0) 

Accrued interest receivable 
PropertY & equipment. at cost 

latcd de...-..r.iation of $39,506 less accumu y·-

($29,597 in 2010) 

TOTAL ASSETS 

ASSETS 

2011 

$ 1,949,773 
254,780 

39,474,432 
244,137 

37,461 

s 41,960,583 

JJA»UJTIES AND NET ASSETS 

LIABllXfiES 
Accounts payable - related party 

Accrued interest 
Revocable and irrevocable trustS 

Notes payable 
Other accrued liabilities 

Total liabilities 

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted 

Total net assetS 

TOTAL LIABIL111ES AND NET ASSETS 

s 291,469 
435 

l 522,378 
' 

38,116,131 
686 

39,931,099 

2,029,484 

2,029,484 

s 41,960,583 

2010 

$ 3,270,943 
752,259 

34,945,434 
220,034 

50,485 

$ 39,239, I 55 

s 300,659 
422 

1,608,082 
35,041,033 

686 

36,950,882 

2 288,273 

2,288,273 

$39,239,155 

. of these financial statements. 
The accompanying notes are an mtegral part 
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CHURCH EXTENSION LOAN FUND, INC. 
STATEMENTSOFACTnnT~ 

FOR I'HE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2011 and 2010 

OPERATING 
2011 2010 

REVENUES 
Investment income $ 13,808 $ 11,1 14 
Interest income on notes receivable 2,657,844 2,573,946 
Gain on disposition of collateral property 

143,241 

Total revenue 2,671,652 2, 728,301 

EXPENSES 
Interest expense I ,816,057 I ,876,569 
Office expense 13,056 15,164 
Management fee - 1\:ote 4 240,000 240,000 
Promotion 35,497 17,532 Travel 

500 
Professional fees 8,380 8,325 
Depreciation 14,386 II, 737 
Build My Church Project expense 50,000 53,315 
Transfer to Free WiJJ Baptists Home Missions 263,796 300,659 
Bad debt expense 229,980 205,000 

TOlal expenses 2,671,652 2,728,301 

Increase (decrease) in operating net assets 

BUILD MY CHURCH- NOTE 5 
REVENUES 

Designated Contributions 
21,405 

EXPENSES 
Transfer to Free Will Baptists Home Missions 258,789 

Increase (decrease) in Build My Church net assets (258,789) 21,405 

Total increase (decrease) in net assets {258,789) 21,405 

Net assets- beginning of year 2,288,273 2,266,868 

Net assets- end of year s 2,029,484 $2.288,.273 

The accompanying notes~ an integral part of these financial statements. 
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CHURCH EXTENSION LOAN FUND, INC. 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2011 and 2010 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Increase (decrease) in net assets 

Ad·ustments to reconcile change in net~ to net 
~cash provided (used) by operating actmties: 

DepreCiation . 
LoSS on disposition of property ~d ~~~p~ent 
Changes in operating assets and b~rhtles. . 

(I crease) decrease in accrued mterest recetvable 
n ) d in ....,...,.id unrelated business income tax (Increase ecrease ... w,..-

Jncrea.se (decrease) in accounts payable 
Increase (decrease) in accrued imerest payable 

Net Cash Provided (Used) By Opt~ating Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
Additions to notes and bonds receivable 
Collection on notes receivable 
Purchase of certificates of deposit 
Redemption of certifiGates of deposit 
Increase in allowance for doubtful accounts 

PUI"ddases of new equipment 

Net Cash Provided (Used) By Investing Activities 

CASH FWWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 

Additions to trust 
Tenninations of trUSt 

Additions to notes payable 

Repayment of notes payable 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Financing Activities 

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of years 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of yean 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES 
Interest received 

Interest paid 

s 

2011 

(258,789) 

14,386 

(24, 103) 

(9,190) 
13 

(277,6831 

(6,025,935) 
1,266,957 

(3,165) 
500,644 
229,980 

(I ,362) 

~4,032,831} 

79,347 
(165,051) 

7,133,629 

( 4,058,531}. 

2,989,394 

{1,.321,170) 

3,270,943 

s 1,949,773 

s 2,633,741 

$ 1,816,044 

. . t _,part of these financial statements. The !ICCOillpanYmg notes are an m e!S' .... 
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$ 

2010 

21,405 

11,737 

(8,484) 
1,200 

123,412 
53 

149,323 

(4 ,267 ,075) 
2,909,720 

( 1 ,002.530} 
250,271 
205,000 
{14,062) 

~ 1,918,676) 

104,411 
(185,732) 

7,012,114 

(4, 145,689) 

2,785,104 

1,015,751 

2,255,192 

$ 2,565,<462 

s 1,876,516 
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CHURCH EXTENSION LOAN FU1'1>. INC. 
NOTES TO TilE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31,2011 and 2010 

1. SmnJARy OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES 

Organizatioo aud Purpose~ 

The Church Extension Loan fund, Inc., is a nonprofit organization under the direction of the Board 
of Home Missions of the National Association of Free Will Baptists of the United States of 
Amecica. inc. located in Antioch, Tennessee. The purpose of the Fund is to Joan money to Free 
Will Baptist Churches, primarily Home Mission Churches, for purchase of land and buildings. The 
Organization's support comes prillUlrily from interest on notes receivable. 

The Fund is exempt from federal income tax under section 50 I ( c X3) of the Internal Revenue Code 
under a group exemption of the National Association of free Will Baptists., Inc. In addition. 1he 
Fund has been determined by the Internal Revenue Service not to be a "private foundation• within 
the meaning of Section 509(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Fund had $-0- unrelated business 
income for 20 I I (S-<1- for 201 0). 

The following significant accounting policies have been followed in tbe preparation of the financial 
statements: 

Basis of Ac:coontio2: 

The Fund prepares its financial statements using the s.ccrual method of accounting wh.ich involves 
the application of U.S. generaJiy accepted accounting principles; consequently, revenues and gains 
arc recognized when earned, and expenses and losses are recognized when incurred. 

Basis of Presentation: 

Financial statement presentation follows the requirements of the Financial Accounting Standards 
Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification Topic related to Presentation of Financial 
Statements of NoHor-Profit Organizations. Under the F ASB Accounting Standards Codification. 
the Fund is required to report information regarding its financial position and activities according to 
three classes of net assets; unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets. and permanently 
restricted net assets. 

Use of Estimates: 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generaiJy accepted accounting 
principles includes the use of estimates that affect the financial statements. Accordingly, actual 
results could differ from those estimates. 

The Organization uses estimates to prepare the allowance for doubtful accounts. This estimate is 
based on managements experience with the church and the cunent fair market value of the 
property. The actua] amount may be significantly different from this estimate. 

Ca.sh eqaivaleats 

The Fund considers all highly Jiquid investments with a maturity of three months or Jess when 
pun:hased to be cash equivalents. 
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CHURCH EXTENSION LOk~ FUND, INC. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 20ll and 2010 

Y OF SIGNIFIC~"T ACCOUNTIN SUMMAR 
G PRINCIPLES • coNTINUED 

Coatributioi.U: . nts of the F ASB Accounting 
. . cord ce with the requtreme . 

ts for contributions lD ac an with the F ASB Aecountmg The~~~~ ~~cation Revenue Recogn~ion Topic. dlnedaccou:~~cted. temporarily restricted. or Stanwu~ . . cetved are recor as "cf 
Standards Codification, contrtbutlons ~ the existence or nature of any donor restri tons. 

anently restricted support. depending on 

penn . 1 restricted net . . temporanly or permanent 'Y 
All donor-restricted support is reported as an "ctm~rease ~en a restriction expires (that is,. when a 

th nature of the restn ton. ·1y restncted net assets depending on e · "ction is accomplished), temporarl ... 
sti ulated time restriction ends or purpose restn d re rted in the statements of activities ~ net .!:ts are reclassified to ~~estricted ~et ~: : tem~rarily restricted or permanently restncted 
assets released from restrictions. The WI 

net assets. 

Property and Equipment and Depredation: ui nt in 

11 penditures for property and eq pme 
The Fund follows the practice of capitalizing, at cost, a ~preciation is computed on a stn~.ight-linc 

f $500 with a useful life of at least two years. 
::~::,:er the useful lives of tho assets generally as follows: 

5yean 
Automobile 5 years 
OffJCC equipment . 

ponent in unrestncted . bat has been recorded as a separate com The net property and equtpment ance 
net assets. 

1. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

3. 

f perty and H'luipment is as follows: A summary o pro ..., 

Automobile 
Office equipment 

Less: Accumulated depreciation 

1011 
s 21,837 

55,130 
76,967 

(39,506) 
$ 37,461 

2010 
s 21,&37 

58,245 
80,082 

{29,597) 
s 50,485 

NOTESPAYABLE d 

d d d notes from individuals an 
Notes payable consist of 3.5-5% <4 - S.So/~n 2~!:::r:cb:sn:help them purchase~~ 
h h..., The _.... ... A .. of these notes are ~ these notes peyable as other &nt c urc ...... .,. ,_.._ han 

5 
tho mterest rates on 

bu"ldings. The Board of Trustees c ge · Se berl 2010. 
• b The new interest rates were effecttve ptem • n:tes c ange. 

A-167 I 

~ 



p 

CHURCH EXTE~SION LOAN FUND, INC. 
~OTES TO fHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER31, 2011 and 2010 

4. RELATED P AR1Y TRANSACTIONS 

The Fund paid the Board of Home Miss1ons of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. 
a management fee of $240.000 ($240,000 at December 31, 20 I 0) to reimburse the Board of Home 
Missions for saJary, rent and other expenses paid by the Board. The Fund had accounts payable to 

the Board of Home Missions in the amount of $291,469 ($300,659 at December 31, 20 I 0). 

5. DESJGNA TED CONTRIBUTIONS 

The designated contributions are amounts given to the "Bui ld My Church" program. The monies 
given to this program are loaned to churches in the same manner that other funds are loaned to 
churches. The total amount given for the first phase of the Build My Church program bas reached 
$1,000,000. Tn accordance wftb the provisions of the program payments totaling $50,000 ($53,315 
at December 31, 20 I 0) were made during the year to the land funds of two Home Mission's 
Churches from the interest earned on loans made with Build My Church contributions. The second 
phase of the Build My Church program called the Roy Thomas Memorial Fund has also reached 
$1,000,000. The interest earned from the loans made with the money given through the Roy 
Thomas Memorial Fund will be used ro assist the Home M1ssions General Fund. A third phase of 
the Build My Church program called the Richard and Carolyn Adams Endowment Fund was begun. 
Jn 20 II the Board voted ro discontinue this program and transfer the funds to Home Missions for 
miss1onary assistance. 

6. CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK 

The Fund maintains cash deposits in excess of the federally insured amount of $250,000. At 
December 31, 20 I I, the excess amount over the federally insured limit was S I ,954,552 ($2,025, 733 
in 20 I 0). The Fund has not experienced any losses in such cash deposits and management believes 
it is not exposed to any significant credit risk related to cash. 

7. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Organization in estimating its fair value 
disclosures for financial instruments: 

Cash, accrued interest receivable, payables, accrued interest payable and other 
accrued liabilities: The carrying amounts reported in the statements of financial 
position approximate fair values because of the short maturities of those instruments. 

Notes receivable and bonds receivable: Based on current interest rates, the carrying 
value approximates the fair value of the notes receivable and bonds receivable at 
December 31,2011 and 2010. 

Notes payable and trusts: Based on current interest rates, the carrying value 
approximates the fair value of the notes payable and !:rUSts at December 31, 20 II and 
2010. 
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8. 

9. 

CHURCH EXTE~SIOl' LOA.~ FUND, INC. 
~OTES TO THE FIN A. ~CJAL STATEMENTS 
. DECEMBER 31, 2011 and 2010 

CONCE~1RA TIOS 
. h. h t tal $9 127 245 (four . 31 20 II are stx loans w tc o ' ' 

Included in notes receivable at Dec~mber ' 22 90% ( 16.52% in 201 0) of total notes 
which total S5,8 I 7,679 in 201 0). This balance represents . 

receivable. 

or 18 75% (eight notes which total 
ble l·nclude ten notes which total $7,148,573 Notes paya abl 

$6,302,4 79 or 17.99% in 20 I 0) of total notes pay e. 

REVOCABLE AND IRRECOV ABLE TRUSTS 
· st at 6-9% per year. bl haritable remainder trusts pay mtere 

Eleven irrevocable and two revoca e c loans Interest expense for the year ended 
. "pal f these trusts was used to make mortgage . 

The pnncl o $118 885 ($ 122 469 at December 31. 201 0). 
December 31. 2011 amounted to • · 

UNRELATED BUSINESS INCOME TA..X 

I 0. . . llected on a Joan that it made to a 
The Fund was subject to unrelated business tax from mterest It co 

commerc1al entity. 

The components of the unrelated business income tax are: 

Current payable 
Deferred taxes 

$ 

$ 

2011 2010 

$ 

1 UNCERTAINTY IN INCOME TAXES 1. 
. f America require the ed . the UOJted States o 

Accounting principals generally accept ~~ tak by the Organization and recognize a tax 
t to evaluate tax poslttons en I th t Organization's managemen . tax ition that more like y an no 

"f tb 0 ization has taken an uncertam pas 0 . ti 's 
liability (or asset) I e rgan . . b the Internal Revenue Service. The rgamza on 
would not be sustained upon exam mat I?~ y ak and has concluded that as of [)ecember 31' 
executive director has analyzed tax posttlons t en ed t be taken that would require recognition 

. sitions taken or expect o . ITo 
20 II there are no uncertam po . I tate ents The Organization lS exempt m 

' ) d. 1 e in the financ1a s m · 990 T of a liability (or asset or lSC osur the Organization bas filed fonn - · 
m ing annual tax returns. For the past seveml y~rs th ear ended December 31' 2008 are 

bel·e es that none of returns filed pnor to e Y Management 1 v 

subject to examination. 

12. SUBSEQUENT EVE1\1S d te 

gh A ·1 25 2012 which is the a 
h been evaluated by Management throu prt ' Subsequent events ave . 

the financial statements were available to be ISSued. 
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C'RUR.CH EXTENSION LOAN FUND, INC. 
NOTES TO I'BE FINM'CIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2011 and 2010 

13. NOTES RECEIVABLE 

The Fund loans money to Free Will Baptist Churches, primarily Home Mission Churches, for the 
purchase of land and buildings. Each church is required to give a first mortgage on the property or 

sign a deed of trust. Principal and interest on the loans is payable monthly at 7.5% (7.5% in 2010) 
over a fifteen to t\venty year period except for churches still under construction which are required 

to pay interest only. The Board of Trustees changes the rate on these notes receivable as other 
interest rates change. The carrying value of these loans approximates market value. The churches 
are located throughout the United States. 

Notes are stated at unpaid principal balances, Jess an allowance for doubtful accounts. 
Management considers most of the notes receivable to be fully collectible. However, there are 
several notes that management feels it will bave trouble collecting. Accordingly, an allowance for 
doubtful accounts of $380,000 ($259.980 in 2010) has been recorded. This allowance is based on 
managements experience with the church and the current fair market value of the property. 

The Fund's practice is to charge off a note with the approval of the Board of Directors when there 
is no chance of collection either from the borrower or by disposition of the property. 

There were no changes in the Fund's accounting policies during the period. There have been no 
purchases, sales or reclassifications of notes receivables. 

Activity in the allowance for doubtful accounts is as follows: 

Beginning balance 

Loan written off 
CuJTOnt year provision 

Ending balance 

$ 

$ 

259,980 
(109,960) 
229,980 
380,000 

Management of the Fund reviews each loan balance where the Church is past due and having 
difficulty making payments. Based on this assessment and the value of the property an estimate is 
made of the amount. if any, it believes will not be collected. 

The ending balance in the allowance for doubtful accounts is attributed to notes evaluated 
individually as follows: 

Loans evaluated individually 
$ 380,000 

The ending balance of notes evaluated individually as follows: 

Loans evaluated individually 
s 8,357.953 
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L9~ FREE \NI LL BAPTIST 
ffiffl l t\. T F R N A T 1 0 N t\ L 
'(SIB)' M I S <; I 0 N <; 

REPORT OF T HE G ENERAL D IRECTO R 

lltrmly believe Acts 26·16-18 -• > presents our maJOr t l<;ks a• ... ' , llliS'>tonancs: 

"R t · u nse, and stand upon thy feel: 

for I have appeared unto theefior lht•' p 
t ... urpose 

. o make thee a mu~tster and a Wttnes. . 
Deftvermg thee from thl! people ... unto whom n :> ... • 
To open the//' eyes and tot h . ow I send thee, 

d fi , urn t em from darkness to ftght 
an rom the power uf Satan unto God ' 

that they m . ' ay recetve forqtvenes~ of . 
and mhentance among them h. . . . . .\tnS, 

w tch are sancttjted by jatth that is in me." 

We ,Jre to mmi:;ter and witness. 

NO T IIANK YOU? 

Dunng our 25-plus years in Afnca we were f 
Often, It was at the request of the ~ne In needr~qtuenhtly ~ailed on to responc.l to physical needs. 

· ot cr t1mcs, we s 
1\ very dear 1\tritan friend wa f. . aw a need and took action. 
I s acing tough financt It . 
. ynettt:! and I gave him some money I h ld . a . lmes In <Ill cflort to dlleviate his stress 

word, he turned and walked aw . e It out to hlln and, hesitantly, he took it Th . h. ay. · en, wtt out a 

I was totally shocked. How c ld h . ou e take my gift of I I 
appreetation? My cultural background d d ~ve anc not express even a word of 
receivmg a gitt eman ed a stncere "thank you" foll I . ow c ose on the heels of 

I went to my cultural confidant to seek d 
assured h un erstanding of what h d 

me t ere was nothing to worry abo t H . a occurred. He chuckled and 
weeks b u · e sa1d the rec· 'or may e even a month. Ht:! would b . . 1plent of the gift would return in r 
what w h d d nng a fnenc.J or l d a Jew 
th . e a one. This was my African fnend's cultural e . wo, an express his c.leep gratitude for 

e gtver know how Important the gift was by sh . xpresslon of sincere appreciation. It let 

time 1\ddtttOnally, the joy of receiving had bee ohwlngd It was not forgotten. even with a lapse of 
A I n s are With others 

coup e of weeks lat th er, e scenario unfolded . t 
member to share JUSt how much the gift had h~~ts da~ pr;dlcted. My fnend returned with a family 

pe IS amtly through a time of great need. 
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lleamed two lessons. First, expressions of appreciatiOn can vary from culture to culture. I also 

reflected on how otten we receive a gift or assistance and. shortly thereafter. do not remember who 

gave the gift or aided us. The African cultural p .. Jttern mJy have much value 

THANK YOU! 

w e at JM find ourselves in the posit1on of receivers of some outstanding gifts and help over the past 

year. The gifts have come in small and large 4uantitics The help has hcen words of encouragement, 

advice, trust, positive promotion, and much more 

If 1 could, I would follow the Atrican pattern of expressing thanks. I would come to each anc.l evt:!ry 

one of you with another staff member .wd tell you lUSt how much we appreciate everything you 

have done. 

In many ways. I sense the denomination i<; doing just what we have been praying. You, our brothers 

and sisters. are stepping up and taking ownership and personal responsibility for the well be1ng 

and success of Free Will Bapt1st InternatiOnal M1sstons 

We smcerely thank you and humbly ask that you keep 1t up Long-term commitment is imperative 

because the task of the Great Commission is not finished Many of you have made steps to ensure 

InternatiOnal Miss1ons can continue to fulfill our responsibility to reach the unreached. 

W ORLD MISSIONS OFFERING (WMO) 

As I prepare th1s report, it appears this will be ,1 record-breaking year for our WMO. Our 
development team set a goal of 650 churche~ cornrnttted to an offering on World M1ssions Sunday, 

April29. Through April27, 2012, an amaz1ng 712 churches had pledged to participate in the WMO . 

We reJOice in your response to this call to engagement. Thank you for rt!sponding to God's 

leadersh1p and playing your role in reaching the unreached. 

A GLANCE AT THE NEXT FIVE YEARS 

Let me assure you, this is not an attempt to predict the future I am looking at indicators related to 

our personnel, philosophy. and focus, and attempting to foresee. to some degree, the direction 

things are taking and will take. 

•:• I proJeCt our misswnary force of 72 will reach a low point of 60-65 missionaries, includtng 

our apprentices. Several missionaries are scheduled for retirement in the next few years 

Natural attrition will also play a role as some workers leave us for other ministries. Thts 

does not discourage me. Such losses are a natural part of an aging agency experiencing 

significant change and challenges. We will make the adjustments necessary to prepare for 

the next phase. A re duced work force does not have to mean reduced effectiveness. 
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•:• I believe the penod ol decline should bottom out in three to four years. Right on the heels of 

th1s. we should see an increase in the number of people mterested in serving with IM. As we 

regam our organizational equilibr ium, clearly communicate our goals and obJectives to our 

constituency, and, properly report the results of ongoing field ministries, additional interest 

111 serving overseas will occur. A renewed interest w1ll be man1fe-;ted by the resources put at 

our d1sposal and the number of people coming to us for mmastry opportunities. 

•:• Research reveals a significant innux of workers. looking for s pec1alized ministry 

opportunities rangmg from two to eight years, should be expected. We must make 

adJU'itments 1n our recruitment, mobilization. training, and sending to accommodate this 

genre of missionary. Othe rwise, we will f1nd ourselves irrelevant and ineffective in carrying 
out our mandate to reach the unreached. This does not preclude a renewed interest in a 

lifetime commitment to missions by many individuals. We must have s tructures to 
accommodate both short- and long-term engagementc;. 

•!• Our field m1nastnes will be greatly affected by the reduction of field personnel. As a result, 

s trateg1c partnerships between the Mission, m1ssionanes. the nat1onal churches, and their 

leader:. will contanue to be forged. Together, we will strategize and execute plans and 

programs to facilitate church planting movements on ex1sting fields. 

•:• We will see an increase in the awareness of what is happentng in the 1040 Window A 

greater understanding of the needs of this area w1lllead us to direct new personnel to 

cons1der mm1stry to people groups to whom the gospel has never been preached or IS not 
even access1ble 

Be assured, these thoughts are not designed as definitive statements of what the world, nor Free 

Wtll BaptiSt International Missions. will be like in five years However, we believe strong indicators 

pomt in these directions and we must prepare for the changes. challenges. and opportunities they 
present. 

CONCLUSION 

Again I wan t to thank you for evety thing you have done to help International Missions achieve its 

designated purposes. Our missionary personnel are encouraged by your response to our financial 

crisis. The office staff has been greatly moved by the number of pastors, laymen, a nd 

denominational leaders who have assured us of their support and proved it by their actions. It is 

our prayt!r that God will properly reward each one who has responded in obedience to His moving. 

We are all grateful for the privilege of serving God through Free W1ll Baptist International Missions. 

We pra1se Him for all He is doing through His people to reach H1s world with the Good News. 

It has been said by many, uDiscover where God is at work and go JOin Him there" I propose we 
d iscover where God wants to work and join Him the re . 

Clint Morgan 
General 01rect r 
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God is accomplishing amazing things through Free Will Baptists around the globe! 

Highltghts from 2011: 

• 
• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

14 people acknowledged Chnst as Silvior and e1ght were baptized in our churches in_ France 
In Bulga ria, working t hrough suspicion of anythmg religious and anyone not Bulganan. the 

Awtreys saw two people come to Chnst 
In Pa na m a, every church is actively involved in planting at least one other church; almost 

350 people were saved . 
Almost 18,000 people attended close to 900 churches a~~ mission works each week 1n 
India, with hundreds of trained workers t raveling to m1mster to these works and to 

evangelize unreached villages . h k· 
Around 10,000 people gathered to worship God in at least 18? locales 111 Cuba eac wee . 
38 st udents trained for ministry; 450 people professed salvation . _ 
Although Spain experienced astronomicalunempl~yment and economiC _pressures, the 

1 ches grew· nine people joined the Body of C:hnsl c1nd four were bapt1zed . 
~~~~il ia~1 chur~hes sustained an attendance of around 2,100 and saw 23_2_ people_ s~vcd; tn 

addition to evangelizing their neighborhoods. families. a~d frie~ds, Brazlh~n Ch~ls~a~s . 
embraced working cooperatively to plant churches within Braztl and sendmg m1ss1onanes 

to Uruguay and South Afnca . . 
25 people professed jesus as Lord tn Ur uguay; live churches, all With Uruguayan pastors, 
worked to impact their communities with the gospel . . 
Still recovering from civil war and expenenc~ng u~ues.t. around 5.100 people worshipped Ill 
close to 70 churches and mission works m Cote d lvOJre; 47 people came to Chnst 
Natural disasters in Ja pa n led to more people being wllhng to hear the gospel or receive 
Bibles; our 10 churches saw 12 conversiOns and SIX baptisms . . 
Through partnerships in Cen tral Asia and Russia. workers were tramed to better preach, 

teach and evangelize. d K d 
Free Will Baptist churches in Sou t h Kore a planted churches in Pa kistan an e nya an 
evangelized in Cambodia , Ira n , Nepa l. and Ba ngladesh 

Much of the work accomplished overseas is a direct result of the prayer and financial support of the 
denomination. Every gift, every prayer is significant. We cannot measure the prayers. However, the 
following chart acknowledges the churches whose contributions met or exceeded $10,000 for the 

2011 fisca l year. 

69 CHURCHES GAVE $10,000 OR MORE IN 2011 

Church City State Amount 

Donelson FWB Church Nashv1lle 
:::U::;:n::.::_:;FW~B::-=Ch;..:u:...r::c-:;:h :.:..;;;.;_~----;G;::reenvdle 
Horse Branch FWB Church Turbeville 

First FWB Ch:.ur~ch~-~-----~--R-ussellv•lle 
Grace FWB Church Lake City 

Cofer's Cha I FWB Church Nashville ----
First FWB Church Albany 
Macedonia FWB Church Purdy 
First FWB Church N Little Rock 
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TN $114,158.32 
NC $98,203 32 
sc $65,796.64 

AR 55 520.61 
sc $47,353.80 
TN _ _ $41860.21 

GA $39,809.82 

MO --~35:~.:94:....:..:..;7 -=00 
AR $32,915.31 



Westside rws Church Johnsonville sc $30,354 24 Mt. Zton FWB Church Pell Cit Al $12 154.12 
Sherwood rorest FWB Church New Bern NC $30,344.36 Uberty FWB Church l awley AL $11,945.40 
Cross Timbers FWB Church Nashville TN $29,263.99 Ftrst FWB Church Y stlantt Ml $11836.57 
Union Grove FWB Church Atkins AR $29,038.05 Trinity FWB Church Bowling Green KY $11,211.31 
Cavanaugl WB Church Fort Smith AR $27,935 98 Ftrst FWB Church Mountain Grove MO 11055.70 
Ina FWB Church Ina ll $26,701 00 First FWB Church Darlington sc $11,022.76 
Peace FWB ' ; . rch Florence sc $25, ~89.84 Hamson FWB Church Mtnford OH $10835 26 
Zephyr Hills FWB Church Ashevtlle NC $25,250.00 Al $10,720.41 
Piney Gro. l · 8 Church Guin Al $23,678 21 AR $10,706 43 
New Hope FWB Church Joelton TN $22,719.70 Fellowship FWB Church Kingsport TN $10,534.62 
First FWB Church Wa hington NC $22,378.61 New Ho e FWB Church Jesu GA $10,523 00 
Garner FWB Church Garner NC $21,383.25 New Hope FWB Church Ewing IL $10,322.13 
Central FWB Church Royal Oak Ml $21,370.53 Harmon FWB Church CA 10 204.83 
Bethany FWB Church Timmonsvrlle sc $19,870.00 
Bethel FWB Chvc'1 Ktn5ton NC $19,660.71 
Winfield First FWB Church Wmfield Al $19,638.08 
First FWB Church Ga •onia "JC $19,448 00 

These churches helped propel thei r states into the top ten states in overall giving to International New liberty FWB Church Bankston AL $19,058.99 
Missions. First F~ B Cl urch Star City AR $18,Q40.00 

First FWB Church Beaufort NC $18,865.25 
Red Bay FWB Church Red Bay Al $18,437.91 10 STATES GAVE OVER $4.7 MILI.ION 
Peace FWB Church Wilson NC $17,899.92 
Good Springs FWB Church Pleasant V'ew TN $17,707.03 Tennessee $1,016,636.28 
First FWB Church Pocahontas AR $17,635.20 North Carolina $640,502.85 
T ppett's (), q" 1 'WB Church Clayton NC ·;1 ',197 65 Arkansas $606,665.46 
Temple FWB Church Wmtervllle NC $16,520.53 Oklahoma $528,004.65 
Blue P•: nt FWB Church Cisne l $16,138 79 South Carolina $489,101.79 
Sand Hill FWB Church Coward 5C 516,431.01 Missouri $388,509.41 
Bethlehem fWb ( hur·c . Ast.lat"J Ctt TN $1 ', 982.00 Alabama $386,574.79 
Calvary Fellowship FWB Church Fenton MO $15,541.50 Georgia $307,750.49 
Head's FWB Church Cedar Hill TN $15,156.33 Illinois $210,551.62 
Grace For The World M inistr ies Dickson TN $15,008.00 Ohio s 183,513.36 
MuiiiO', M<~rion FWB Church Mtllhn. sc $14,384 12 
Temple FWB Church Darlington sc $14,364.28 
Allen Chapel f WB Church But ewdlt: AR Sl3.Y8731 In 2011, 19% of our Free Will Baptist churches in the United States participated in the 
First FWB Church Owensboro KY $13,550.00 World Missions Offering. Together, these churches, individuals, and several overseas 
Sutton FWB Church Po dhlv td' AR s 1 3.403.80 churches contributed $509,965.30 to the 2011 WMO. The following churches gave $750 or 
Forestdale FWB Church Birmingham Al $13,044 .19 more designated to the 2011 World Missions Offering. Note: the Villalba FWB Church in 
lebanon FWB Church Eft t n r,h an' sc 512,94121 Spain is included in this list 
Black River FWB Church Andrews sc $12,697.25 
Ktrby FWB Church Flat Rock Ml $12,674 39 
Porter FWB Church Wheelersburg OH $12,560.17 
North Warr£>n FWB Church W<~rren Ml $12,279 49 
Hannon FWB Church Ltberal M O $1 2,272.60 
F rst FWB Church ~ uch··man AR S12 173.14 
M t Olive FWB Church Gum Al $12,162.81 
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141 CHURCHES CONTRIBUTED $750 OR MORE TO THE WORLD MISSIONS OFFERING ·-~~-a-.. ~:.-· 
$2,200.00 TN 

Church City State Amount 

Peace FWB Church Florence sc $8,152.00 

Horse Branch FWB Church Turbeville sc $8,000.00 

First FWB Church Beaufort NC $7,994.25 

First FWB Church Gastonia NC $6,394.00 

Head's FWB Church Cedar Hill TN $5,113.63 

Peace FWB Church Wilson NC $5,000.00 

New Hope FWB Church Joelton TN $4,716.30 

Harrison FWB Church Minford OH $4,565.26 

Sciotodale FWB Church Portsmouth OH $3,033.87 

Nolan FWB Church Williamson wv $2,775.42 

Townsend FWB Church Townsend DE $2,588.74 

Madison FWB Church lucasville OH $2,230.27 Faith FWB Church 
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First FWB Church NC $816.27 
Hillsboro FWB Church Hillsboro 

Villalba FWB Church Antioch TN $1,160.86 Southern Oaks FWB Church Oklahoma 

H land Drive FW8 Church Unc:elnton NC $1 
Westerville FWB Church Westerville OH $1,135.24 

Corner Stone FWB Church TN 

Bear Point FW8 Chu r I 
First FWB Church Columbus OH 

Generations FWB Church Joplin MO 

FWBCh h Salem II. 
Arnold View FWB Church IL 

OWrdt 
Wildwood FWB Church Porter TX 

Cedar HI& FWI Church Asheville NC 
Ten Mile FWB Church Madison Heights Ml 

fW&O\urch Hew naleadt Fl 
Winfield First FWB Church Winfield AL $1,000.00 

Faith Fellowship Matthews NC 

Homerville FWB Church Homerville GA 

$912.70 

Hurricane Chapel FWB Church McEwen TN $905.00 

Garner FWB Church Garner NC $898.25 

Hendersonville FWB Church Hendersonville TN $851.85 

Unity FWB Church Murfreesboro TN $836.31 
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SUMMARY OF BOARD M EETINGS 

The Board of International Missions met four times, held two phone conferences, and 
conducted seven email ballots from May 9, 2011, to April 25, 2012. Board members for the 
period were Danny Williams (chairman, AL), Randy Wilson (vice-chairman, OK), Tom 
McCullough (secretary, Ml), Greg McAllister (CA), Jeff Manning (NC), Nelson Henderson 
(A R), Rob Morgan (TN), Mark Price (O H), and Paul Creech (GA). 

The search for a new general director occupied a good portion of the board's energy. The 
board defined the process through which to proceed, set a time line for the process, 
reviewed and revised the general director's job description, surveyed state leaders and 
leading supporters for input in developing a candidate profile, accepted and reviewed 
resumes, set September 2 7-28, 2011, as the date to interview a short list of selected 
candidates, and hired Clint Morgan (i nterim director, missionary to Cote d'lvoire, France, 
and Creative Access fields, regional director of creative access countries, director of The 
Hanna Project) to fill the posi tion on September 27, 2011. 

The board also continued grappling with financial issues. They reviewed and discussed 
various strategies to increase income, wrestled with the appropriate time to hire someone 
to direct fundraising strategies, clarified a willingness to accommodate donors who prefer 
designated and general giving philosophies, analyzed data, postponed hiring replacements 
fo r vacant THP director and regional director positions, adopted an operational budget of 
$6.1 million, and halted the deployment of missionaries to their fields of service until cash 
reserves reached and proved sustainable at 10% of the approved budget 

Three missionaries resigned with commendation for long and faithful service. Debbie 
Griffin resigned to meet her mother's health needs after two and a half decades of service in 
Japan (May 5, 2011). Stan and Brenda Bunch, after serving in Panama for 28 years, 
resigned to accept a stateside position as Missouri executive director (February 29, 2012). 
Additional missionary resignations were accepted: Patrick and Jill M., France, The Hanna 
Project (May 25, 2011) and David and Kendra Dodson, Uruguay (October 31, 2011). 

Two couples were appointed for two-year terms: Joel and Lydie Teague to France 
(December 7, 201 1) and Doug and Miriam Bishop to Japan (April 23, 2012). 

Additionally, a one-year leave of absence was granted to Kimberly Johnson (Brazil) 
effective November 30, 2011. David and Angie O.'s (The Hanna Project) stateside 
assignment was extended one year with David returning to Central Asia for occasional 
teaching and training responsibilities. Darren and Dana P. were authorized to investigate a 
partnership with an lvorian Free Will Baptist missionary in Senegal. Matthew and Brooke 
T. were approved to transfer to The Hanna Project on July 1, 2012. 

The board also said goodbye to two outstanding members during the year. The board was 
both saddened and joyful when Paul Creech said goodbye to this world and entered Heaven 
for his reward on September 15, 2011. Randy Wilson was given an appreciative farewell as 
he completed his 12-year tenure with the April 2012 board meeting. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Board of Directors 
Board of International Missions of the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists 
and Subsidiary 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position of the Board of 
lntemattonal Mtssions of the National Association of Free Will Baptists and Subsidiary (the 
"Organization") as of December 31 , 2011 and 2010, and the related consolidated statements of activities 
and cash flows for the years then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility 
of the Organization's management. Our responstbility is to express an opinion on these consolidated 
financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America. Those standards requtre that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement An 
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporttng the amounts and disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements An audtt also includes assesstng the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinron. 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Board of International Missions of the National 
Association of Free Will Baptists and Subsidiary as of December 31 , 2011 and 2010, and the changes in 
their net assets and their cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an op101on on the consolidated financial 
statements taken as a whole. The supplemental schedules on pages 11 through 12 are presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic consolidated financial 
statements. Such information Is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial 
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the 
consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconctling 
such information dlrectfy to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance w1th auditing standards generally accepted in the Unrted States of 
America In our opinion, the Information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the 
consolidated financial statements as a whole. 
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BOARD OF INTERNATIONAL MISSION 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WIL~ ~:p~~ETS 

AND SUBSIDIARY 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

DECEMBER 31,2011 AND 2010 

Cash 
Investments in trusts 
Investments 
Prepaid expenses 

Receivables from employees and missio . 
Note receivable nanes 

Property and equipment, net 

Total assets 

ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Notes payable 
Accrued severance payable 

Total liabilities 

Net assets: 
Unrestricted 
Temporarily restricted 
Permanently restricted 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

2011 

$ 1,005,834 
225,896 

2,268 
64,930 

276,550 
54,108 

917,661 

$2.547,247 

$ 230,351 
241 ,530 
121 544 

593,425 

1,504,712 
422,869 
26,241 

1,953,822 

$2,547,247 

2010 

$ 1,230,505 
415,198 

1,960 
45,605 

337,909 
54,108 

1,206,497 

$ 3,291,782 

$ 205,552 
259,882 
146,618 

612,052 

2,312,429 
341,060 
26241 

2,679,730 

$3,291 ,782 

The accompanying t . no es are an Integral part of th . ese consolidated financial statements. 
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BOARD OF INTERNATIONAL MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

AND SUBSIDIARY 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES 
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010 

Unrestricted: 
Revenue: 

Contributions 
Release of benevolent supplemental insurance obligation 

Investment income 
Other income 
Gain on disposal of property and equipment 
Net assets released from restrictions: 

Restrictions satisfied by payments 

Total revenue 

Expenses: 
General fund 
Missionaries 
IMpactNtSION campaign 

Total expenses 

(Decrease} increase in unrestricted net assets 

Temporarily restricted: 
Revenue: 

Contributions 
Net assets released from restrictions: 

Restrictions satisfied by payments 

Increase (decrease) in temporarily restricted net assets 

Total (decrease} increase in net assets 

Net assets, beginning of year 

Net assets, end of year 

2011 

$2,726,295 

11,005 
6,895 

17,054 

2,874,134 

5,635,383 

988,913 
5,341,751 

112,436 

6,443,100 

(807 ,717) 

2,955,943 

(2,874,134) 

81 ,809 

(725,908) 

2,679,730 

$ 1,953.822 

2010 

$3,576,300 
489,005 

21,931 
29,145 
11,943 

4 ,925,034 

9,053,358 

1,411.403 
5,570,095 

187,647 

7,169,145 

1,8841213 

3,165,145 

(4,925,034} 

(1,759,889) 

124,324 

2,555,406 

$2,679,730 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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Cash nows from operating acttvtues­
(Decrease) mcrt~ase m net assets 
AdJustments to reconcile (dec 
net cash used tn operatmg ac~:~~~=~ mcrcase in net assets to 
Deprectahon 

Unrealtzed gam on Investments 

(~oss on dtsposal of property and equipment 
ncrease) decrease 10 
Recetvables from employees and . . 
Prepatd expenses mtsstonanes 

Increase (decrease) tn 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
!eneolvent supplemental msurance obhgatton 

ccrued severance payable 

Net cash used in operattng activttes 

Cash flows from tnvestmg ac!lvi!tes 
Purchases of property and equtpment 

Proceeds from sale of property and cqutpment 
Proceeds from sale of tnvestments 

Net cash provtded by tnvesttng acltvttles 

Cash flows from financmg activities 
Payments on notes payable · 

Net cash used in f,nancing achvtttes 

(Decrease) tncrease 10 cash 

Cash. begtnning of year 

Cash, end of year 

SUPPLEMENTAl DISCLOSURES 
Interest paid dunng the year 

The accompan\JTng 1 

2011 2010 

$ (725,908) $ 124,324 

151,362 202,581 
{11 ,005) (21.354) 
184,484 47 851 

61,359 20,413 
(19,325) 63,000 

24,799 (180,657) 

(25.074 )_ 
(532,144) 
(1 4,746) 

(359,308)_ (290,732) 

(148,129) (230,797) 
101 118 142,629 
200,000 662,179 

152.989 574,011 

(18.352) (73,935) 

(18,352) (73,935) 

(224,671) 209,344 

1,230,505 1.021 161 

$ 1,005 834 $ 1,230 505 

$ 16,536 $ 20,941 

, . noes are an tntegral part of lh 
ese consolidated financtal statements 
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NOTE 1-

NOTE 2-

BOARD OF INTERNATIONAL MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

AND SUBSIDIARY 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010 

ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF ACTIVITIES 

The Board of International Misstons of the Nat1onal Association of Free Will Baptists is a 
not-for-profit orgamzat1on (the ·organlzatton") affiliated with the National Association of 
Free Will Baptists, located 1n Antioch, Tennessee The purpose of the Organization is to 
establish and support Free Will Baptist Mission Churches throughout the world The 
Organizalton's support comes pnmarily from donor contnbut1ons 

The Organization has established a not-for-profrt subsidtary (the "subsidiary", the Hanna 
Project) to meet the physical and spintual needs of hurting people around the world. 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are presented on the accrual basis 
of accounting in conformity w1th accounting principles generally accepted 1n the United 
States of Amenca A summary of the Significant accounting policies used are as follows 

Principles of Consolidation 

The accompany1ng consolidated financial statements 1nclude the accounts of the Board of 
International Missions of the National Association of Free Wtll Baptists and its subsidiary. 
All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been ehmtnated 1n 
consolidation. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of consolidated financtal statements in conform1ty with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America tncludes the use of 
estimates that affect the consolidated financtal statements. Accordingly, actual results 
could differ from those estimates. 

Income Tax 

The Organization is exempt from federal income tax by Internal Revenue Code Section 
501 (c)(3). 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the Umted States of America require the 
Organization to evaluate tax pos1tions taken by the Organization and recogmze a tax 
liab1hty (or asset) if the Organization has taken an uncertain position that more likely than 
not would not be sustained upon examination by the IRS. The management has analyzed 
the tax positions taken by the Organization and has concluded that as of December 31, 
2011 . no uncertain positions are taken or are expected to be taken that would requtre 
recognitton of a liability (or asset) or disclosure in the financ1al statements. The 
Organization is subject to routine audits by taxing junsdictions; however, there are 
currently no audits for any tax periods 1n progress 
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N OTE 2 -

BOARD OF INTERNATIONAL MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

AND SUBSIDIARY 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Contnbutions and Support 

Contnbutions received are recorded as unrestncted, temporarily restncted, or permanently 
restncted support, depending on the exrstence and/or nature of any donor restrictions 
Contnbut1ons are considered to be av.ailable for unrestricted use unless specifically 
res!ncted by the d~nor. Amounts rece1ved that are restricted by the donor for future 
penods or for specrfic. purposes are reported as temporarily restricted or permanently 
restncted support ~hat mcreases those net asset classes. When a restriction is fulfilled 
(that rs, when a . strpulated trme restnction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished) 
temporanly restncted net assets are reclassified to unrestncted revenue and reported i~ 
the consofrdated statements of activ1tres as net assets released from restnctions 

Dunng 2010, th.e Organizat!on adopted a new funding approach that places a greater 
emphasis on umt7d, unrestncted contributrons Accordrngly, the consolidated statements 
of fina~c1af posrbon . and consolidated statements of actiVIbes reflect an increase in 
unrestncted contnbutrons and decrease in restncted contnbutions, respectively. 

Cash 

Cash rncludes checking deposrts and cash on hand both rn the Unrted States and on the 
rnternatronal mrssron fields 

Investments in Trusts 

lnvestme~ts 1n trust~ are composed of four trusts established and ma1ntarned by the Free 
Will Baptist Foundatron. The Foundation invests the two largest trusts m debt securities 
and preferred stock and values the trusts at fair market value. The remainrng trusts are 
rnvested rn government securities and valued at cost, whrch approximates fair market 
value. 

Investments 

Investments are composed of equity securities and are valued at quoted fair market price. 

Property and Equipment 

The Organization follows the practice of capttahzing, at cost, all expenditures for property 
and eq~r~e~t rn excess of $2,000 and an estimated useful fife of at feast two years 
Deprecrahon IS computed on a straight-fine basrs over the useful fives of the assets 
generally as follows: 

Burfdings 
Automobiles 
Office furniture and equipment 
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39 years 
3- 5 years 

3- 10 years 

NOTE 2-

NOTE 3-

N OTE 4 -

BOARD OF INTERNATIONAL MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

AND SUBSIDIARY 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 , 2011 AND 2010 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Benevolent Supplemental Insurance Obligation 

Pnor to 2010, the Orgamzatron provrded a monthly cash supplement to empl~yees that 
retire Wtth fifteen years of service (of whtch the last five was wtth the Orgamzatton). Th1s 
supplement was intended to ass1st retirees with purchastng supplemental health 
insurance. The obligation was calculated as the present value of the expected future 
payments attnbuted to the employees' years of servtce. As more fully descnbed rn Note 
8, dunng 201 o. the Organization disconttnued thrs benefit. 

INVESTMENTS IN TRUSTS 

Investments are carried at quoted farr market values. The Organization's trusts at 

December 31 , consisted of the following 
2011 2010 

General Reserves Trust $ 196,307 $ 386 405 

Support Servrces Endowment 23635 22.999 

St. Sebastian Trust 3 780 3,679 

Scholarship Endowment 2 174 2 115 

$ 225 696 ~ 115 198 

The total investment income was $10,698 and $20,831 for 2011 and 2010, respectively 

Accounting principles generally accepted 1n the Umted States of America r~quir~ th~ 
Organization to disclose the basts for considenng market participants assumptro~s m farr 
value measurements Fa1r value accounting standards establish a farr value hrerarchy 
that distinguishes between market partrcipant assumptions based on market ~ata 
obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity 1ncludrng quoted market pnces 
in active markets for rdentical assets (Level 1 ), or significant other observable r~puts 
(Level 2) and the reportrng entity's own assumptions about market partrcrpant 
assumptions (Level 3). As of December 31 , 2011. all the Organization's investments are 

valued using Level 1 measurements. 

INVESTMENTS 

Investments are carried at quoted farr market values. The Organization's investments at 
December 31 2011 and 2010 consisted of equrty securities Unrealized garns were $307 
and $1,100 fo'r 2011 and 2010. respectively There were no realized gains or losses. The 
equity secunties are valued wrth Level 1 Inputs as more fully descnbed rn Note 3 
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N OTE 5 -

N OTE 6-

N OTE 7-

BOARD OF INTERNATIONAL MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

AND SUBSIDIARY 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010 

RECEIVABLES FROM EMPLOYEES AND MISSIONARIES 

Included 1n receivables from m1ss1onanes and employees 1s $252,562 and $291,783 1n 
2011 and 2010, respectively 1n funds advanced to m1ss1onanes When a miss1onary goes 
to the field they are g1ven advance funds to establish the1r m1ssionary work These funds 
are normally netted with future expense reimbursements. Any funds sttll outstanding are 
due back from the missionary when the m1ss1onary resigns or rettres 

NOTE RECEIVABLE 

Note receivable consists of an obligation from a note secured by land owned by the Free 
W11i Bapt1st M1ssion of Korea The 8% mortgage note had a matunty date of January 1. 
2008 No payments were rece1ved from the mortgagee dunng 2011 and 2010 In 2012 
the Organ1zat1on foreclosed and liquidated the property for an amount that 1s in excess of 
the loan balance of $54 108. 

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

A summary of property and equipment IS as follows 

Land 
Bu1ld1ngs 
Off1ce furmture and equipment 
Cameras and projectors 
Automobiles 
Computer equipment 

Less accumulated deprec1a1ton 

2011 2010 

$ 198,463 
595 388 
39,979 

149,325 
936,373 
115,355 

2,034,883 
(1,117.222) 

$ 253 303 
759 909 

39 979 
149,325 
944 718 
115,355 

2,262,589 
(1.056,092) 

Total $ 91266j $1.206.497 

Depreciation expense amounted to $151 ,362 and $202,581 for 2011 and 2010, 
respectively. Depreciation expense in the amount of $81 ,011 and $101.832 is included 1n 
the general fund expenses for 2011 and 2010, respectively, wh1le the rematnder IS 
1ncluded 1n m1ssionanes' expenses. 

Ga1ns on d1sposal and expenses for donation of property and equ1pment totaled to a net 
loss of $184,484 for 2011 Th1s net loss cons1sted of ga1ns on sale totaling $17.054 and a 
donatton of land and butldings of $201 538 tncluded 1n m1ss1onanes expenses 

Ga1ns on disposal and expenses for donat1on of property and equ1pment totaled to a net 
loss of $47,851 for 2010 This net Joss cons1sted of ga1ns on sale totaltng $12 500 
($11 943 Included 1n a separate line 1tem on the consolidated statement of ac1tv1ttes and 
$557 1n m1Ss1onaries' expenses on the consolidated statements of actiVIties} and a 
donatton of land and buildings of $60,351 also Included 1n m1ss1onanes' expenses. 
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N OTE 8-

N OTE 9 -

N OTE 10-

BOARD OF INTERNATIONAL MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

AND SUBSIDIARY 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 , 2011 AND 2010 

BENEVOLENT SUPPLEMENTAL INSURANCE OBLIGATION 

. d th benevolent supplemental insurance 
During 2010, the_ Organizatio~ disco~~~~= In uenrestricted net assets of $489,005 is 
program. Accordingly, a oneltme Inc t of activities during 2010 Amounts paid out 
reflected in the consohdatedf st~tem~t~ ~nd $36 600 for employee buyouts. 
during 201 0 Included $6,539 or ene I , 

ACCRUED SEVERANCE PAYABLE 

• 1 lum sum payment to missionaries at the 
The Organization provides a . non-contract~~~ ba& to the United States. This amount is 
time of separation to assist with telr t_ransl ~~tlphed by an amount set by the Organization 
based on the num~r of y~ars o s~rvlce m Or anlzation discontinued this benefrt on 
and provides for Immediate vestlnhgfl Thellow; Will begtn pay out of these funds to all 
December 31, 2009 and, when cas ow a . 
missionaries. 

NOTES PAYABLE 

Notes payable consist of the following as of December 31 

2011 

Note payable to Free Will Baptist Foundation 
for the Miharashldai property requtnng monthly 
payments of principal and interest of $1,390 
with an interest rate of 6 9%. The note matures 
in March 2019. 

Note payable to Free Will Baptist Foundation 
for the Yahata property requiring monthly 
payments of principal and interest of $1,4 77 
with an interest rate of 6 .0%. The note matures 
in August 2023. 

$ 93,055 

148 475 

$.241,530 

2010 

$ 102,881 

157,001 

$ 259 882 

Annual principal matunties of notes payable are as follows as of December 31 : 

Year ending December 31 , 

2012 
2013 
201 4 
2015 
2016 
Thereafter 
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$ 19,595 
20,910 
22,316 
23,815 
25,4 17 

129,477 
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NOTE 11 -

NOTE 12 -

NOTE 13 -

BOARD OF INTERNATIONAL MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

AND SUBSIDIARY 
NOTES TO CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 , 2011 AND 2010 

RESTRICTIONS ON NET ASSETS 

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the follow1ng purposes: 

2011 2010 

M1ssionanes $ 95,020 $ 77,878 
IMpacVVISION campaign 269.108 237 706 
Subsidiary 58 741 25 476 

$__ 422,8~ s ~~ 1 ,06.0 

These net assets are restricted due to donor restnctions. 

Permanently restricted net assets are restricted to. 

Support Services Endowment 
MK Scholarship Endowment 

PENSION PLAN 

2011 2010 

$ 25,031 $ 25,031 
1210 1210 

$ 26 241 $ 26.241 

The Organization participates 1n the master pension plan of the Board of Retirement and 
Insurance of the National Association of Free Will Baptists. The Organization contributes 
up to 5% of gross salary for missionaries and administrative employees. Employees are 
allowed to contribute but are not required to contribute. Pension expenses amounted to 
$146,154 and $106,246 for 201 1 and 2010 respectively. The pension plan is a defined 
contribution plan. Under the plan. an account is maintamed for each participant and upon 
retirement the partiCipant can either receive a lump-sum distribution or purchase one of 
several types of annuity contracts. 

LEASE 

The Organization leases space from the National Association of Free Will Baptists on a 
year-to-year basis. The rent expense amounted to $87,053 and $88,383 for 2011 and 
2012, respectively. 

NOTE 14- EVALUATION OF SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through Apnl 11 2012 wh1ch is the 
date the financial statements were available to be issued. 
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AL MISSIONS OF THE 
BOARD OF INTERNAOT~~F FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

NATIONAL ASSOCIATI 
AND SUBSIDIARY 

OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDEUCLEE:BER 31 2011 AND 2010 

YEARS ENDED D ' 

General fund· 
Salanes 
Office rent 
Depreciation 
Missionary stateside aSSignment 

Health 1nsurance 
Department auto 
One Magazme 
Employer payroll taxes 

Hous1ng 
Office supplies and equipment 
Department travel 
Website 
Board members 
Legal and professiOnal 
WMO Ambassador travel 
Telephone and internet 
Fees and service charges 

Postage 
WMO com bank 
Retirement 
Convention 
WMO Ambassador honoranums 

Staff recognition 
Video and audio v1sual 
Department 1nsuranc:e 
Publicity and promotion 
Other field mimstry 
Sem~nars, traimng and retreats 

WMO campa1gn 
Visitor meals. entertainment and lodging 

Adv1sory council 
RecrUiting and candidate 
Donor development 
Impulse video magazine 
COLA indexes 

Total general fund 
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2011 2010 

$ 337,057 
87,053 
81,011 
67,581 
60.799 
44 ,183 
40,751 
40,713 
29,960 
23,571 
18.922 
17.258 
16.958 
14,440 
13.905 
13,167 
10 485 
10,210 

$ 423.427 
88 383 

101,832 
88,509 

9.615 
9,306 
7,510 
7,144 
5,166 
5,099 
4,523 
3663 
1,937 
1 851 
1,335 
1 238 
1,118 

794 
542 

38 
10 

988 913 

105,675 
48,882 
57 963 
53,584 
88,500 
29,524 
35 136 
29,619 
12 783 
63,981 
24,014 
23,004 
17,801 
16,172 
13.598 
13,554 

2.845 
9,040 
2.307 
2,577 
5 767 

28.670 
1,233 
4 813 
3,807 
1 807 

605 
3,459 
1,923 

44 

6,565 

1,411.403 



Missronanes' expenses 
Japan 
France 
Subsidiary 
Panama 
Spain 
fndra 
Uruguay 
Brazil 

Student minrstries 
Ivory Coast 
Field operatrons 
Bulgana 
Russia 
Other proJects 
Unreached people 
Missronary medical 
Korea 

Total missionaries' expenses 

IMpa~WISION campargn expenses: 
ProJect expenses 

Total functional expenses 
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201 1 

$ 1,007,830 
867,567 
714, 102 
520,088 
473,292 
361 890 
359,943 
282,089 
220,718 
154,352 
136,397 
80,546 
58,000 
51,927 
26,653 
17,218 
9,139 

5,341,751 

112,436 

$ 6,443,100 

2010 

$ 1,033,564 
918,639 
627,672 
295,233 
435,571 
308.013 
364,158 
466,885 
230,991 
237.438 
202,439 
75,232 
56,338 

267,150 
47,536 
(5,004) 
8,240 

5,570,095 

187,647 

$ 7,169,145 

Free WPI ~ptlst Bib le College 

2012 President's Report 
Free Will Baptist Bible College 

President's Report 

1 recently opened a prayer letter to college supporters with the famous quote from Charles Dickens's classic Tale 
of Two Cities: "It was the best of times; it was the worst of times." I don't think there's a better phrase to describe 
the environment swirling around Free Will Baptist Bible College right now. 

In terms of quality and mission fulfillment, it's the best of times at free Will Baptist Bible College. Yet 

quantitatively (finances and enrollment) we are in difficult times 

Difficult Times 
As in the past few years. economic forecasters like Moody'-; lnvestors Service are saying 2012 will be another very 
difficult year for small private colleges like ours. We're in the middle of the worst economy the college has ever 
fuced. Even though our ministry student enroUment and Tennessee student enrollment have maintained 
stability, out-of-state and non-ministry enrollment have declined, as students stay home for lower-cost options 
at state schools, just as Moody's and other forecasters predicted. 

Like many other ministries inside and outside our denomination. giving has suffered the past few years. Despite 
added personnel and initiatives which have increased annual fund giving from last year ro this year, as of this 
writing it was projected that we would receive $150,000 less than we budgeted in annual fund gifts. Even while 

we have more personnel on the road talking to our people about giving, our supporting churches and donors 
have been hit hard by the economy and have had to scale back their outside giving, including to FWBBC. 

Another factor in our financial difficulty is that we had to award about $150,000 more in scholarships because of 
the unexpected number of high-achieving freshmen last fall. 

The siJver lining behind these dark clouds is that dorm enrollment and full-time enrollment stabilized this past 
year. However, we lost heavily in commuter enrollment. Increasingly, adult students are afraid to relocate their 
families to Nashville, try to sell their homes, and find new jobs, when they have so many accredited online 
bachelor's degrees in ministry available to them right now. This has led us to move toward the offering of an 
online bachelor's degree in ministry. 

The most difficult blow to the college's cash flow has been the unanticipated change in federal regulations, 
directly ned to market fluctuations, requiring the college to pay out approximately s825,000 over the past three 
years to bring our pension plan up to fuJI funding This has cost the college over S5oo,ooo in unexpected expense 
over the past three years. 

We are not alone in this dilemma. General Motors, for example, was underfunded by S13.3 billion at the end of 
20u Our actuarial consultant has told us that most of the old-fashioned, defmed benefit pension plans have been 
terminated or are undergoing termination. More details wiiJ be given on this in the financial report. We had no 
way of predicting this change in federal regulations, and we simply did not have a funding source for this extra 

cash expense. Now it is catching up to us. 
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lk<•u"' of <he •b<we <ondition•, we M< eun-en<ly f•<ing • 1..-g, mh •hortf•ll, ., you will '« de"""' ;. "" 
fin•n<i•l <epon. The <oUege "'' no< f""' <h.,. •on, of mh flow ;.,u., •in<e <he e..-ly '9""'. when "" 
institution was drawing on a line of credit, as it is currently doing. 

Appli,.tion• fot enrollment "' up from ''" ym, •nd we ptO)«t •no<he. in'"'" in &.,hme, •od "'"'~' 
students. Yet having graduated the largest senior class in four years, we don't predict an mcrease in overall 

enrollment next year. However, we have madt' substantial budget rt:ductions in order to achieve a balanced 
budget for the upcoming lOU-lOIJ fiscal year. 

St ra tegic Recovery Plan 

In i~ .,,,. m.,.,ting. <he Bo.td ofT"'""" 'PP'"""' • S<,.<egi< Fin•n<i•l R"ow<y PJ•n p~en<e<J by <he <olleg. 
administration That involves reducing expenditur~. This includes lower debt service resulting from the sale of 

homes between now and the time the college relocates. These sales of tangential, non-student-oriented houses 
will go directly to pay off debt and create a cash reserve for liquidity that willlarer go toward campus relocation. 

Other expenditure reductions include the termination of our pension plan which will enable us to save several 

hundred thousand dollars in pension payments over the next few fiscal years. The Recovery Plan also involves 
new initiatives, chiefly (1) the college name change which will be voted on during this 2012 annual convention; 

(2) the expansion of online degree programs in 2013 and 2014; and()) the addition of master's degre«.> programs in 
theology and ministry, teaching, and educational leadership in 2013. 

Enrollment Shifts 

With the decline in the enrollment of married students who fear they can't sell their homes, find new jobs, and 
relocate their families to Nashville to attend the college-and who now have numerous accredited onhne degree 
options in ministry-the college plans to expand its online degree ofTerings to rebuild this pan of our student population. 

A study of colleges and universities in TlCUA (Tennessee Independent Colleges and Universities Association) 

shows that, as a whole, they are growing in enrollment. However, traditional undergraduate enrollment has 

largely remained flat. Enrollment growth in TICUA has come from non-traditional, graduate, and professional 
programs. We are responding by adding programs in the non-traditional, graduate, and professional areas. 

Name Change 

Of"'"""· the mo" impo,.,, new initUti-e ;, out propooed name <h•oge. The >ou •~ey w• oondua•d •mons 
pastors. alumni, donors, faculty and staff. students, and prospective students showed the following: 70% of 

respondents agree with the name change, while 85% of supporting alumni agrre with it. The study also showed 

that college supporters will increase their gift aid and sending of students should the name change. We have 
been encouraged by this level of support for the name change and request that the national body vote 
affirmatively to change the college n.une to "Welch College• at this annuaJ convention. 

The name change will help more Free Will Baptist students who want to major in competitive professional 

programs to attend the college. This will in tum put more of them in a campus environment in which they can 
be sensitive to the call of God on their lives for vocational Christian ministry. Furthermore, a change to Welch 
College will provide more of our graduates access to dosed and restricted access countries for missions and evangelism. 
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d ds or theology of the college. Only the 
e change will not change the mission, ph~~s::::r~lss~~e ~oll~ge through its board of trustees. which The nam . . h 'ch alone owns, operates, a . Assoctat1on-w 1 

NaoonaJ . t'on elects-an do that. 
the National Assoaa I 

. . haJJen e is to re-emphasize the mission 
Mission-Dnven im rtant things we must do in this time.of eco_no:c ~Ifill t~t mission. There is no question 
One ~ftheodmo~ c:;;ed us, and increase the excellence With wbhlch e ord of increasing excellence and mission 1 

wb1ch G . d 50 We have a etter rec 
o d ing this and will contmue to o . . . h time in the college's history. that we are o d ffi . lly documenting and assessmg It-t an at any fulfillment- an o Cia . 

. . le for local church ministry. Despite · th core mission of trammg peop be · the past . ministry-centered college, W1 a h rl or in as great num rs as m 
We remam a men are not answering the call to preac as ea y I eating to Nashville. our students 
the ""' (>) th;ot youog h e •nowering the "II to P~"h ·~ no< " 0 • """ but in th• w•y 
and (:t) that most marned men w oar . . . main our basic ministry, not only m num who a~ training to be preachers and miSSion~nes re 

life and spiritual formation. we structure campus rs 

b of pastoral students in the past •5 yea . . ear we're graduating the fourth-highest num er result of the name change, we as a ~~g~:; :~tioo indiwon poin< to ·~ inaeo~ in:.~~:::.:::~:,,,.,, •nd oo the rol• of •II "uden~ 
e • . . . n emphasis on vocaoo . . 

college are committed to mamta.tru g f h G t Commission, regardless of their maJOr. . th local church and the fulfillment o t e rea 

'" e men to answer the call to 
Free Will Baptists today is for more youn~ d cate and train 

On• of the "'"" u .. en< """'' •mo';!, th t<ff the «ro~m. •nd the P'"8' am' m pi•« toe ~ befi e wd I 
reach Please understand-FWBBC e s • • hin onl God can do. He has done It or • , 

:,..,h;.,. But w• <>nnot <all m•o to P'"'\ '::: ',:":~t mo~e o/OW' ""'' into the mioi•"Y· Th;u ., why I : 

""""" he will do i< '"'"· if we P"Y •nd " I I <h <h to th• lo"l wd '"" """i•tion• to the"'""" d 
asking every level of our denomination, from dth:f t':ea ha:~t to call more of our young men to preach and sen . . . with us and plead for the Lor agenCies to JOm . 

them forth as laborers into this harvest. . 

f fuJI-fledged Free Will Baptist d · ·stry and our dream o a . . . · _ Our initiation of a master's degree in theology an mtru ~in a local church, Great CommiSSion, mlrustry 

theolog:tca semmary, ed . godly leaders to serve nst, I • . l . will further contribute to our goal of g Ch . H's Church and His world, through 
centered college with the mission of ucaong 

biblical thought and life. 

· E Uence 

'""""""" "' . · · with inma•ing •mllenee. " , 
We are committed to fulfilling this mJSSIOn . wh we receive such high marks om ou 

• Our commitment to Christ-cen_te~ed exce~~~~~:IIS High:r Education (ASHE) and the Southern 
accrediting bodies, the Assoclatron for ' tC 

Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). C ll ges rankings; this year we tied wfth colleges 
. . s and World Report Best o e 

• We't< mo~ng up on u.s. New ondowment we h<Ve, teopecti-ely. fthe 
that have 14 times and 33 times the . h th n the national average In every category o . 

• For the first time ever, our students scored hlg fe: :ernie Proficiency, not only in writing, readrng, 

senior exit exam, the Collegiate ;-ssessmentd~ne c:elf.-but now, for the first time, In math and 
and critical thinking-where we ve always 
science. 
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• For the first time, we sent a student group to the Tennessee Intercollegiate Student Legislature, and 

our student body president, Frank Thornsbury, was named "Best Student Senator" out of hundreds 

of delegates from 60 Tennessee colleges and universities. 

• Despite our salary, benefits, and other budget cuts, faculty and staff morale is reflected positively in 

the college's being named as one of America's Best Chnstian Workplaces for the first time. 

• We receive higher and higher ratings on surveys of prospective students who visit our campus, as 

well as Forum/Bible Conference guests. 

• Our recent Noei·Levltz student satisfaction survey indicated that our students gave us higher marks 

than two years ago, which were higher than the two years previous. And these marks are much 

higher than the industry average. 

A recent luncheon I hosted with the FWBBC Student Council confirmed that our students are ~oery thankful for 

their college experience and what Cod is doing on this campus to prepare them to he Christian leaders and to 
fulfill !lis calling on their lives. These sentiments were echoed in this year's senior testimonies. That is worth it 

all. 

I reminded some f.acult) recently that, even though we have fewer students than in 20o6-2007 (when we had a 

n -year record high enrollment), the students we ha\e are still called by Cod. and they're serious-minded and 

zealous about the gospel and the Word of Cod, and the power of that gospel and Word to change lives. Our 

mission is alive and well at Free Will Baptist Bible College. and we arc increasing our excellence and 

commitment to our mission to the glory ot Cod. 

We will weather t he storm of this current economy through wisdom. hard work, and (most of all) Cod's grace. 

But day by day, we are going to remain faithful in fulfuling our mission to produce godly Free Will Baptist leaders 

who will radically change their world for Christ. And we will see the fruit of our labors in decades to come as 

people are brought into the kingdom and the Lord's Church is built as a result of these precious students Cod 

has entrusted to our care. 

Thank You 

I thank Cod for the National Association of Free Will Baptists and its faithful support of the ministry of Free Will 

Baptist Bible College. Thank you for all you do to support the college as we stay on mission for Cod's glory, the 

expansion of His kingdom .• md the honor of His name. 

Sincerely, 

J. Matthew Pinson 

President 
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Baptist Bible College 

Free"" 

Registration Report 
2011-2011 

ENROLLMENT 319 
• .• tO 

SUites .... 11 Kentucky· · · · · · .... · · · ~ ·. ·. ·.: ... 1 
Alabama · · · · · · · · · · · · · · Louisiana · · · · · · · · · · · · 

. . . . . . I ......... 15 
Arizona . · · · · · · · · · · · · 6 Michigan · · · · · · · · · · · 

. . . ... I . . ........ 13 
Arkansas · · · · · · · · · · · Missoun · · · · · · · · · · · · 

I 
...... 3 . . ......... II 

c,aliforn a · · · · · · · · · · · · MisstsStPP' · · · · · · · · · · · 
.... 7 I' .... 13 

Florida · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · North Caro tna · · · · · · · · · · · 
l 

....... 9 ....... 12 
Georg a · · · · · · · .. · · · 6 Ohio . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . . . . . ....... 3 

south carolina ............. 4 

South Dakota · · · · · · · ....... 1 

•...... 105 
Tennessee········ , 
Texas .. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ~ 

. . . .. ....... 4 
Vtrgtma_ ·: ·: · · · · · · . 6 
west Vtrgtma · · · · · · · · · · · · · 

. . ...... 1 
Wisconsm · · · · · · · · · · 

t. al .... 54 lnterna ton · · · · · · · · · 
llllnois . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · Oklahoma · · · · · · · · · · · · 

1 
Indiana · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 

7 
Oregon .. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · J """ Kazakhstan, and Panama). 

.. .. . 2 (Canada Cuba, France. o,..- . 
Kansas .... · · · · · · · · · (USA) and 5,. other countrres • 
The SUJdent bOdy represents 25 states ------

Classification 
•........... 90 

Freshman · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ..... 7' ....................... 8 
Sophomore · · · · · · · . . . . . . . . . . 3 . .. . . . .. .. . . . .. .. . 6 
Junior ... · · · · · · · · · . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 

Senior · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · .......... 58 
Non-Degree Part-Time . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ....... 1 

Special ... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · .... 

* tl al · · · · 12 
Voca on English ... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 

I .... 26 S . ce ...... 7 
Pastora . · · · · · · · · · · · · Exercise cten · · · · · · · · · 
Youth Ministry(CE · · · · · · · · · 

21 
General Studies · · · · · · · · · · · · · .1l 

. . ...... .. ...... 18 ...... 5 
Mtsstons · · · 

6 
History .. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 

Psychology · · · · · · · · · · · 
21 

Science/Nursing·· · · · · · · · · · · 9 
. I ........ 1 

Specta · · · · · · · · · · · · 
Teacher Education** · · · · · · 5~ 
Non-Degree Part Time ..... 5 

Ministry Students (B.S./ASM) 3 Music . ....................... tO 
• ...... 24 1 nd Physical Educotoon. 

Busmess ... ·.:,·s~~r~; ~udents liste!d In other maJors. f I ChildhoOd Elementary. English. HIStory, Muse, o 
•Thtre! ore some .... - . d ~areas: Bible. Biology, or Y ' 
,..Teacher Education onclu est 

Other Categories 
Full-Time ... · · · · · · · · · .... 209 

P rt T1 e ......... 110 
a · 1m . · · · · · · 

....... 174 
Male .. · · · · · · · · · · · · · 

5 
I 

....... 14 
Fema e · · · · · · · · · · · · · 

•...... 224 
Single .. · · .... · · · · .. 

d 
... - 95 

Manie · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · Dorm ................... t60 

t 
.... 60 

Commu er . · · · · · · · · · · 
ADP 

......... 20 
••••••••••• 0 

Ufetlme Learning · · · · · · · · · 57 

Onll·ne ......... 22 
••• 0 •••••• 

W'll 6 t'tst · · ... 161 
Free ' ap · · · · · · · 8 

........ 5 
Other .. ············· 
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....•... 61 
New .. · · · · · · · · · · • . . ..... 14 
Returmng · · · · · · · · · · 

. . g ..... t61 
Contmum · · · · · · · · · 

fe 
...... 24 

Trans r · · · · · · · · · · · 
Non-Degree Part-Time ..... 58 

. I ....... 1 
speCta .. · · · · · · · · · · · 
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Free Will Baptist Bible College 

Type of Aid 

Financial Aid Report 
2011-2012 

Financial AldJUbr.!ry Report 

Institutional loans Number of Recipients 
• · · · · · • · · · · . . • . • 20 Amount of Aid 

College-Administered Scholarships .. ·.· .·. ·.·. ·.·.· .. · . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · $ 22,981.95 
Federal Pell Grants .... 370 ............... . 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 135 ..................... 999,210.26 
Federal SEOG Grants ........................... 20 ..................................... 479,549-34 

Federal Work-Study. . . . . . . . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ........ 13,635.31 ............ 7 
Federal Stafford loans (Subsidized) ...... ·: .·:::: ;~0 :::::::::: · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 13,097.50 
Federal Stafford Loans (Unsubsidized) ........................... 558,266.85 
F d 

........... 128 
e eral Plus Loans . . . . . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · .......... 506 187 00 

TSAA 
• • • • • • • • • • . • • • . • .. • . • • • 24 I • 

Grant · · · · · · · · · · · · s. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7 ......................... 243.925.00 
Tennessee HOPE Scholarship ............ · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · .. 21 500 oo 

.................... 34 ' . 
Tennessee Helping Heroes Grant ..................................... 132 750.oo 

.... .... 1 ' 

Tennessee Dual Enrollment Grant ........ ·. ·. ·. ·. ·. ·. ·. ·. ·
0

. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · .... 2,ooo.oo 
Tennessee Teaching Scholars Award .............................................. . 
Federal ACG ......... · · · · · 0 · · · · · · · 

0 ••••• 0 •••••••• 0 0 • 0 ... 0 •••• 0 • 0 0 0 ... 0 • 0 •••••• ....... ............. 0 
Campus Workers . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ............................ . 

............................. 101 . . ............... . 
Alternative Loans · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · .............. 198,ooo.oo ....... ..... 8 
Extemal Scholarsh · ..... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 6 8 IPS • . . . . . . . . . • . . 56 .................... ·5 .3 4.00 
TOTAL FINANCIAL AID ADMINISTER~~~~~~~~;~~~·. . ..................... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 78,850.00 

Welch library Report 
2011-2012 

EOS Statistics 

Reference 
General Co;l~~~i~~ .. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 2,6oo 

Curriculum Lab ... : : : : ...... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 58,304 

Audiovisuals ..... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 2·494 
Music Collecti~~· ......... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 491 

• 0 0 • 0 •••••• 0 

E-books · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 340 
0 •••••••• 0 •• 0 ••• •• • 0 

ERIC Microfiche ................. · · · · · · · 27,487 

Historical Collect;~~ .... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 74,630 

Microfiche Book .... · ·. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 1,945 
s ...... .. TOTAl .............................. 426 

168,717 
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Free Will Baptist Bible College 

July 18, lOff 

Synopsis of Minutes 
for the Board of Trustees 

Synopsis o f Board Minutes 

The Board met at the national convention. The 2010 audit was reviewed and approved. The Board recommended 

that the name of the college be changed to Welch College. and that the college's Charter and By-Laws be 

amended to reflect the change. 

July 25, 2011 

The Board met via conference call and approved the hiring of Mr. Gary Fry as Vice President for Church 

Relations. 

September 29, 2011 

The Board met via conference call and approved that Mr. Tom Sass assume a new position (Vice President and 

Senior Financial Counsel). and that Mr. Craig Mahler assume the position of Vice President for financial Affairs. 

Both changes effective January 1, 20u. 

December 7, 2011 

The Board adopted a resolution to terminate the existing pension plan effective March 1, lOU. The Board voted 

to commend Mr. Tom Sass for his expertise, faithfulness, and dedication for his years of service as CFO at 

FWBBC. Meeting> were held with real est.Jte agents, builders. and the Relocation Task Force. The Board agreed 

to adjust the minimum purchase price of the present campus and adopt the new ten-year plan for campus 

relocation. 

February J, lOU 

The Board adopted a resolution via email votes and one verbal telephone vote to approve the sale of the Ennis 

property located at 3533 Richland Avenue (Nashville, Tennessee). 

March t, 2012 

The Board met via conference call and voted to move pension plan assets from Suntrust Investments to Equitable 

Trust, and accepted the plan for partial liquidation of assets and a rreadline d1sposal of remaining assets. The 

Board approved the marketing and sale of the Missionary-in-Residence house at 3618 Richland Avenue 

(Nashville, Tennessee) with provision that proceeds go toward reduction of long-term debt . 

May f·J, 2012 

The board unanimously approved the administration's strategic financial recovery plan, the first step of which is 
to sell certain tangential campus houses as a transition toward campus relocation, retire the debt on the Gallatin 

land, and create a cash reserve to improve liquidity. A resolution to commend Dr. Jack Williams for his faithful 
work in communicating the mission of the College was adopted. The Board met with realtors and a representative for 
online programs. The Board resolved to acknowledge faculty and staff of the college for their dedication under 
challenging fmancial conclitions. 
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Free Will Baptist Bible College 

Salary Breakdowns 

President* 
Salary 
Social Security 
Retirement** 
Medical Insurance 
Life Insurance 

Provost 
Salary 
Social Security 
Retirement** 
Medical Insurance*** 
Life Insurance 

201o-2011 

$64,154 
4.908 

10,052 
9,076 

242 
$88,432 

$52,055 
3.982 
8,156 

0 

242 
$64.435 

VIce President for Financial Affairs 
Salary 
Social Security $

50
.4

26 

Retirement** 
3
•
858 

M 
7,901 

edical Insurance 
Life Insurance 

0 

242 
$62,427 

2011-2012 

$65.437 
5,006 
11,112 
9,701 

331 
$91,587 

$53,096 
4,062 
9,016 

0 
331 

$66,505 

$51.434 
3.935 
8,735 

0 
331 

$64,435 

Vice President for Institutional Ad Salary vancement 

Social Security $46.379 $48,429 
Retirement** 3•5

48 
3,705 

Med ical Insurance 7,266 8,033 
Life Insurance 

6
.340 6,671 
242 331 

$63,375 $67,169 

•campus hou51ng provoded(wrth 

2012-2013 

$65.437 
5,006 
7,838 

10,447 
331 

$89,059 

$53,096 
4,062 
6,360 

0 
331 

$63,849 

$47.750 
3.653 
5,720 
3.442 

331 
$60,896 

$50,000 
3,825 
4.400 
7,229 

331 
$65,785 

••Repr~ns legally requll'ed a~J s:;-unty vanauon~ v~~ pr<l\<id.,d 
status. Pension currently fro pa 10 P<!OSJOn plar> to all""""'"~ tided 

• -.yoluntanly dedined. zen--no funds cred ~ to M~Pk>Y« <»ccoums u 
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HiU, Harper & Associates 
Certified Public Accountants 

lndependcpl Apdi!oa ' Report 

• ..., A. llill 

615 417- , • •• 

The Board of Trustees 
Free Will Baptist Bible College 

We have audited the ~tatemenl5 ortinw1ciaJ po~ition oiTrce Will Baptist Uible College as of May 31, 2012 and 
20 I I. and the relaU!d statements of activities and changes in net assets, and cash flows for the years then ended. 
Th~e financial statements are the responsibility of the College's management. Our responsibil ity is to express an 
op1nion on these llnancial ~t:ltemenL' bal>ed on our audth. fhe prior year summarized comparative information 
has been derived from the :!011 financial statements and. 1n our repon dated July 8. 2011. we expressed an 

unqualified opimon on those findllcial ~tatemenL' 

We conducted our audits tn accordance .... ith aud1ting standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Those standards require that "'e plan and perform the audit.~ to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material misst:ltcment. An audit includes examining. on a test basis. 
evidence supponing the amounts and disclosures 1n the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing 
the accounting principle<> used and significant c'ttmatcs made l>:t management. as v.ell as evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation \l, e belie\c that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion. the financial statements referred to abo"c present lairl), in all material respects. the financial 
posttion of Free Will Baptist Bible College as ofMa;, 31. 2012 and 2011, and its changes in net assets and cash 
flows for the }Cars then ended in conformit) wtlh ac.:ounting pnnciples generally accepted in the United States 

of America. 

Franklin, Tennes~ 
July 9, 2012 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE C OLLEGE 

Statements of Financial Position 

May 31. 2012 and 2011 

C urreoc assets: 
Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
lnv~tments in marketable securities. at market value 
Acco_unts recei.vable. net of allowance for doubtful accounts 

oi_S75.000 m 2012 and $55,000 in 2011 
Prepard expenses 

Total current assets 
Non current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents: 
Restricted for endowments 
Restricted for student loans 

lnvestm~nts in marketable securities. at market value; 
Restncted for endowments 

Investment m land. gift in kind 
Campaign pledges receivable 

Loans to students. net of allowance for doubtful loans 
of$30.000 in 2012 and $40.000 in 2011 

Total non current assets 
Property, plant and equipment: 

Investment in property, plant and equipment 
Accumulated depreciation 

Nee property, plant and equipment 

Total assets 

Currutliabllities: 
Liabilitiea and Net Asseh 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Current portion oflong-term debt 
Line of credit 
Notes payable 
Student deposits and agency funds 
Accrued salaries 
Deferred revenues. summer school 

Total current Uabillties 
Otber liabilities: 

Long-term debt 
Excess pension liability 
Asset retirement obligation 

Total liabilities 
Net assets: 

Unrestricted funds 
Temporarily restricted funds 
Permanently restricted funds 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

See accompanying notes to fia.ocial statements. 
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s 

s 

s 

lQU lli.l 

832.001 250,718 
170.085 364,731 

469,750 254.735 
4ii0.368 219,520 

1.932,204 1,089.704 

117.929 37.360 
221,497 223.020 

1.191,188 1.082.336 
30,000 62,500 

448.839 564,434 

184,324 200.495 
2.193,777 2.170.145 

14,600382 14.798.872 
4.897.027 4,836.658 
9.703.355 9.962,214 

13.829.336 13,222,063 

126.174 69.702 
72.863 

500.000 215,000 
138.061 143,506 
166.362 172.1 53 
111,442 119.396 

41.443 
1.114.902 761.200 

3,387,735 3.617,050 
1,941,521 1.431,894 

261.375 244,848 
6,705,533 6.054.992 

4,767.240 4,920.317 
590.571 628.751 

1.765.992 1.61 8,003 
7.123,803 7,167.071 

13,829.336 13_,222.(!63 

FREE WILL BAPTIST BmLE COLLEGE 

Statements of Activities and C hanges in Net Assets 

For the years ended May 31, 2012 and 2011 

2012 
Temporarily Permanently 

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total Total 

Funds Funds funds w.l l.D.l.1 

~eaves: 
Tuition and fees s 2.019,802 2,019.802 2.254,490 

Federal grants and contracts 24,458 24.458 28.716 

Private gifts 1.367,737 319.060 I SQ,757 1.846.554 1.561,232 

Income from investment transactions 
including endowment income and 
gain or loss transact ions ( 1,449) (75.548) I ,253 (75,744) 248,848 

Revenues of auxiliary enterprises 920,393 920.393 93 1.799 

Olher sources 212.241 ( 13.021) 199,220 (6.545) 

4.518,724 267,970 147.989 4,934,683 5,018,540 

Net 11ssets released from restrictions 306.150 (306.150) 

Total revenues 4,824,874 (38,180) 147.989 4.934,683 5.018.540 

E][penditures: 
Edueatioo.al and general: 

Instruction 1.405.16:! 1.405,162 1.414,494 

Academic support 373.395 373,395 368,449 

Student services 629.640 629,640 637,266 

Institutional support 1,804,845 1.804.845 1.576,206 

T otaJ educational and general 
expenditures 4,213.042 4,213.042 3,996.415 

Auxiliary enterpri5es: 
Donnitories 473,166 473,166 483,645 

Dining hal l 419,753 4 19,753 426,975 

Bookstore 18,607 18.607 6,753 

Snack shop 18.520 18,520 9,960 

Total auxiliary enterprises 
expenditures 930,046 930.046 927,333 

Total npenditon:s 5,143,088 5,143,088 4,923,748 

(3 18,214) (38, 180) 147.989 (208,405) 94,792 

Gain from disposition of re11l estate 674.764 674,764 

Increase In pension liability (509,627) (509.627) (430,348) 

Increase (decrease) in net assets ( 1 53.077) (38,180) 147.989 (43,268) (335,556) 

Net assets: 
Beginning of year 4,920,317 628.751 1,618.003 7,167.071 7.502.627 

End of tbe year s 4,767.240 590.571 1,765,992 7, 123,803 7,167,071 

See aeeompenyiDg notes to fiuacialstatements. 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST BrBLE COLLEGE FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 

Statements of C ash Flows Statements of Cash Flows, continued 

For the years ended May 31 ,2012 and 2011 For the yellrs ended May 31, 2012 and 2011 

2012 2012 

Temporaril} Permanent I~ Temporarily Permanent!} 

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total Total Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total Total 

Funds funds Funds 2.QJ1 llll1 Flllllb Funds fl&.nds lOll llll.l 
Ca~b 0~11 from Qi!f[llillg attivi.l.iu Cash and cash equivalenL~ 

Cash collected from studcn~ s 2.907.234 2.907.234 3.130.433 cnmist of the folio" ing: 
Federal grants 27,085 27.085 33,549 Current assets s 832.001 832,001 250.718 
Federal grant funds considered to be agency Non current assets: 

lund transactions 471.075 471,075 495.909 Cash restricted for endowments 117,929 117,929 37.160 
Private gifts and grantS 1.112.21 6 64,610 1, 176,826 1,210.438 Cash restricted for s tudent loans 221,497 221,497 223.020 
Investment income 11.407 1.676 13.083 63.671 
Other revenues 212.241 212,241 23.559 Total cash a nd cash equivalents s 8n,oo1 339,426 1,171.427 511,098 

C&h paid for scholar~hips, to ventlon. 
and for payroll (4.775.452) (306,150) (5.081,602) (4.<>44.345) Reconciliation of change in net assets to 

Ca~h paid for federal ~~ fund~ net operating acth ities casb flo" s 
con..~idered agency trnnsacuons (471.075) (471.075) (495,909) Change m nt:t ~ets s ( 1 53,077) (38.180) 147,989 (43.268) (335.~56) 

Net operaung activities cash flows (532.354) (212.779) (745,1 33) (482.695) Gain from di~positaon of real eswe (674,764) (674,764) 

Casb Oo"'s from invcslio~: u.lh~ Increase m pension liability 509.627 509.627 430.348 

Proceeds from sale ot real property 83<>.618 839.618 fransactions comidered to be capital additions: 
(69.475) Proceeds from sale of marletablc imestments 2.428 102,138 32.546 137.112 21.188 Gifts lor endowments and student loans (159.757) ( 159.757) 

Purchase of marketable invesuncnts (141,398) (14 1.398) Proposed new campus (254.450) (254.450) (309.241) 

Expended for plant assets (87.178) (87.178) (271.807) Net other tnlnsactions from 
Student notes receivable. net change 26,171 26, 171 35.579 student loan funds 11.768 11,768 28.060 

Net inve::sting activillc' cash flows Depreciation and amoniJ'.ation 213.683 213,683 228.184 
754.868 102.138 (82.681) 774.325 (215:Q40) 16.527 15.482 

Cub Oows from capital activities Accretion of asset retirement obligation 16.527 
12.856 77.224 90.080 ( 183.133) 

Campaign pledges receivable collected 187,915 187,915 211.583 Loss(~n)on in~estmenlS 

Gifts received for: (Increase) decrease in current assets: 

Endowments and student loan~ 159.757 159.757 69.475 AccountS receivable. 
(36,887) 

Proposed nev. campus 182,130 182.130 109.104 Student ac~:ounts 14.273 14.273 

Other student loan transacuons: Employee and other 3.606 3.606 13.954 

Interest income on student loans Bequest (248.965) (248,965) 

and investment mcome 1.253 1.253 2.044 Federal student financial aid funds 2,627 2,627 4.833 

Collection costs and other tran~actions (19,993) (19,993) (42.181) Accrued interest ( 14.000) (14.000) 31.466 

Net capital activities cash flows Unrestricted pledges receivable 7.444 7.444 (3,544) 
170,045 141,017 5 11,062 350,025 Less allowance for doubtful accounts 20,000 20,000 (35,000) 

Cash D(!Ws from finando& activities 
Prepaid expenses (240,848) (240.848) (213,724) 

Line of credit transactiOns, net 285,000 285,000 215.000 
Proceeds from notes payable advances. net 21.225 

Increase (decrease) in currentliabilitie~. 
56.472 ( 16.093) 

Repa)'ment of debt ( 156.452) AccountS payable I accrued expenses 56,472 
( 156.452) (13.628) (5.791) (60.412) 

lnterfund activities 230.221 (259.404) 29.183 Student depositS and agency funds (5.791) 

\lotes payable for student loans. net (8.473) (8.473) Accrued salanes (7 .954) (7,954) ( 13.400) 

Deferred revenues {41.443) (41,443) 41.443 
Ne1 financing acuv•t•cs cash Oows 358,769 (259,404) 20,710 120,075 212.597 (745.133) (482.695) 

Casb 81ld cash equivalents Net operating activities cash flows s (S32.3S4) (2!1.,779) 

Net increase (decrease) 581.283 79.046 660,329 (125.113) 
Beginning of year 250.718 260,380 511.098 636.211 

End of year s 832,001 339.426 1,171.427 51 !...Q?8 

Supplemental disclosures: 
lnterest paid s 147,748 200,584 

See accompanying notes to fi••nc:ialatatements. 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST BfBLE COLLEGE 

Notes to Financial Statements 

May 31, 20J2 aod 2011 

l'ree Will Baptist Bible College operates under the auspices of the National Association of Free Will Baptists. Inc. and IS 

governed by a Board of Trustees. 

( I) Summary ofSipificaot Accouotio& Policiea 

Besja oCFjpapcjal Statement Presentation 
The financial statements of the College have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. 

In order to ensure observance oflim1tations and restrictions placed on the use of resources available to the College. 
the accounts of the College are maintained in accordance with the principles of"fund accounting". Tltis is the 
procedure by which resources for various purposes are classified for accounting purposes into funds that are in 
accordance ~ith activit1es or objectives as specified by donors, in accordance with regulations, restrictions, or 
limitations imposed by sources outside the inst itUiion, or in accordance with directions issued by the governing board. 

These financial statements, however, ltave been prepared to focus on t11e entity as a whole and to present 
transactions according to the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions in conformity w1th accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

As required by generally accepted accounting principles, the College reports information regardmg 1ts financial 
position and activities according to three classes of net assets. as follows: 

Unrestncted net assets - Net assets not subject to donor imposed stipulations. Unrestricted net assets may be 
designated for specific purposes by action of the governing body. 

Temporarily restricted net assets -Net assets whose use is subject to donor imposed stipulations and I or the 
passage of time. 

Permanently restricted net assets- Net assets to be maintained in perpetuity as di rected by donor imposed 
stipulations. 

The amount of each of the classes of net assets are presented in the statements of financial position and the 
change in each class of net assets is presented in the statements of activities. 

Contrlbutioos 
Contributions (including promises to give) are recognized as unrestricted, temporarily restricted or permanently 
restricted support depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions. All contributions are 
considered to be available for unrestricted use unless specificall)' restricted by the donor. 

The e"<piration of a donor-imposed restriction on a contribution is recogni.t.ed in the period in which the restriction 
expires and at that time the related resou~ are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported on the statements 
of activities as net assets released from restrictions. 

In the event a donor makes changes to the nature of a restricted gift which affects its classification among net asset 
categories, such amounts are reflected as reclassifications in the statements of activities. 

In kind contribution~. when made, are recorded as contribution revenue and an offsetting expense or an asset if the 
contribution meets the requirements prescribed by accounting principles general ly accepted in the United States of 
America. The CoUege had no such in kind contributions for 2012 and 20 II. 

Uas:oad!tiona! Promba to Gin - PJed&n RecrivabJe 
Unconditional promises to give are recognized as revenues or gains in the period received. An allowance for 
uncollectible promises to give is provided based upon management's judgment. including such factors as prior 
collection history, type of contribution and nature of fundraising activity. Promises to give are recognized after being 
discounted to the anticipated net present value of the future cash flows. 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 

Note!! to Financial Statements, continued 

r . ontioued s· ' ficaot Af,:eountjog Po JeJf.S, c 
S»mm•O of •en• . . . . 

. Ients . hand. deposits in financial .nsntuttons 
Cull and (;uh t:guJVa f h flo"s the College consukrs all cash on I be cash and cash equivalents. 
F purposes of the statement o cas . . . . I maturity or lhree months or ess to 

or ,. 'd debt instruments w•th an ongtna 
and highly tqu• . fhe 

R eivabk be aid under various payment opuon~. 
S!udent Ae<'ounts ~t:t- . tudents bv allowing tuition and fees to p l"ates the need for an allo"'ance 

ts c 1t to Its s • · bl The College eva ~ 
The Coll~ge ~require collateral for student acc~unts rec:~t ;~1.. of the ,pecific 'tudcnts. historical trends and 
College oes b d upon factors surroundtng the c 
for doubtful accounts. ase 
other information av8llable. 

. sfer a liability in an orderly 
Eair value Mp,gremeots . , at would be received to sell an asset or p81d t? ~ran e hierarchy which giv~ 
Fair val~e is defined ~:~:t;~i~pants at the measureme~t d~te an? sets;~~:/~~~ ~~~tical assets or liabilities 
transaction betw~en . . ts such as quoted pnces '" acuve m . . Level 2) and the 
the highest prionty to obsel"\'able tnpu from observable data other than quoted pn~es ( rket participants 

(Le"el I). the next highest P~,o~;p~~~r::~el 3). Inputs are broadly defined as ~~~~t:~::s:ents in marketable 
lowest priority to unobserva e \- bTty For the years ended May 31. 2012 an • valued using Level 3 inputs. 
would use in pricing an asset or •a I I I. I I and Level 2 inputs; land investments were n.. t using -eve . · 1 securitic-. v.cre valued at rna e d expenses approx1mate fatr va u.: 

ts pavable and accrue · 11 d'fli ent 
. al fcash accounts receivable. accoun •. fl'abilities are not matena y I er 

The carrymg v ue o · . nts The carrymg values o 1 
beeS USC or the ~hort rnaturil) or these ·~strum.: . 

. . 1 of these mstruments. 
from the estimated lair va ues 

. l'b books and costs 
d E jpment · t and fumishtngs, 1 rary · 

Property. Plant ~D: Q~ nd b ildings. other land improvements. equlpmen f ·n Expenditures for acqUISition or 
Plant assets, conststmg o Ia • u -" t or estimated fair value at date o gJ . 

posed campus are stat"" at cos 
related to pro new ·tal' zed as investment in planL . 
assets in excess of$250 are cap• 1 . d useful lives of the assets, rang~ng 

.gh r basis over the csumate . 11 • 
. bl assets are depreciated on a stral t- •ne . . . rted as an expenditure of the Co ege. 

Deprec:ta e t rovision for depreclauon IS repo 
from 5 to 50 years. The curren P 

. al fthe liability related to the 
A.ml Retirem(l!t Obligations . bl th College recogni7..es the fa1r v ue o 

. d h easooably esuma e, e . ed ts 
Upon acquis~uon, an w en r . ment activity on tangible long-ltv asse . 
legal obligauon to perform asset reure . 

d ff de"""ding on JOb ed Ab!lenc:es . . 1c d and personal ays o • ,.... .. 
(;ompensat . led to paid vacation.. pald SIC ays t f compensation for future 
Employees of the College ~ cntlld other factors. It is impractical to estima_te t~e arn~u~ s:tements. The College's 
classification. length of service .an. . n recorded tn the accompanymg mancta 
absences. and ~rdmgly. no liability h:a: absences when actually paid to employees. 
policy ill to rec:ogruze the cost of compe 

ear end These revenues 
Dcftrnd Rcvenoe . b 'lled rior to year end for services rendered after y . 
Deferred revenue conststs of amounts 1 p 
pertain substantially to summer semester fees. 

T · · nd Fees f h larship allowance. A 
Scholanbjp Allowa~~ea / utn~~r!; to report all tuitton and fee revenue net~ any scan~ services provided by the 
Colleges and untvers•ues are req th d'""ercnce between the stated charge of goods behalf of the student. 

. · d fined as e "•• . · ak. g payments on 
scholarship allowance IS e . . tb tudent and/or third parues m m 
institution and the amount tltat IS billed to e s 
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(I) 

FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

Summary of Signific-ant Accounting Policies. continue() 

locomcTues 
The College is exempt from income taxes under Internal Revenue Code Section 50l(cXJ); ru:cordingly. no provision 
for income taxes has been made in the accompanying financial statements. I here is no unrelated business mcome tax 
for 2012 and 2011 . Management has determmed that the College has no activitJcs that would lead to income tax 
liabilities. further all activities generating revenue are in furtherance of the College's w. exempt purpose. 

Endow]Jirol f!Uld.t 
ln.,estmcnts of endowment funds are held in marketable securities and are valued using Level I and Level 2 inputS 
(as described above) based on fair market values. As reqtnred by generally accepted accounting principles, the 
original donor contribution {corpus) is maintained as permanently restricted net assets. Net investment gains and 
income in excess of corpus are carried as temporarily restricted net assets until expended for their intended purposes, 
conversely. net accumulated investment deficits are carried as a component of unrestricted net assets 

Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements requ1res management to make estimates and assumpuons that aiTect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclo)ure of contingent asseb and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reponing period. Actual results could differ 
from those estimate~. 

Operatipn and Maintenance of Plant 
Expenditures for operation and maintenance of plant are allocated among functional expenditure categories based on 
actual usage of buildings as determined based on square footage. 

Fund Raisin& Costs 
For fiscal years ended May 31. 2012 and 20 II. expenses totaling $321,434 and $271.285. respectively, were related to 
expenses associated with fund ra1sing and are class1fied in the statements of activities under mstitutional support. 

Finaocial Statement Presentation 
Certain reclassi fica lions may have been made to the amounts ~ reponed m the prror year to conform to current year 
presentation. These reclassifications had oo eiTect on reported combined net assets 

Summari;ud Financial Information 
The financial statementS rnclude certarn prior year financial information in total but not by net asset class. Such 
information does oot include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. Accordingly. such information should be read in conjunction 
with the College's financial statements for the year ended May 31. 20 II. from which the summarized information 
was derived. 

Subsequent Events 
Subsequent events have been evaluated for potential recognition and disclosure through July 9, 2012. the date these 
financial statements were available to be issued. 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST BmLE COLLEGE 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

M k tab!~:~ · b type the relationship between 
J.AY!Citments .ar e ark t lue The following table summanz.es ) 

ent securitie.; are stated at m e va . . 
lnv~ al d market value of the investment assets. E cess of Unrealized Unreahz.ed 
C•rrvtng v ue an lt • C 1 n·ve 
_., Markel Over Cumubnve ILDlU • 

(1!nderl Cost Gai.ln ~ 
266,926 

Cost or 

BWl 
Marllet 

~ 

1.447,067 
Balance May .H, 2011 

l ' 180.141 

Balance May Jl, 201l 
Permanently Restricted Funds: 

{3) 

Common stock s 1:!0 
164.762 

1.026.306 
Mutual funds 
FWB f·oundation rnvested . 

Unrestricted 1 Temporarily RestriCted Funds 
4 900 

( ommon stock · 
Mutual funds I annuity contract 15,228 

d . ted 77.677 FWB fouo auon rnves 
s 1.288.993 

Current assets 
Non curreot assets: 

Restricted for endowments 

120 
I 64,762 

1,026.306 

5.166 
43.433 

121.486 

1.361,273 

) f · estmenl activities: 
Reconciliation of income (loss rom IDV 

l:.amings and endowment income 
Rcaliz.ed gain on stock sales . 
l 1nreali7.ed gain (lo'!S) due to change in the cumulauve 

change 10 market value pools 

s 

\ 

s 

266 266 

28,.205 21!.205 

43.809 43,809 

72.280 72.280 

llil llll.l 
170,085 364,731 

1,191 .188 1.082.336 

I ,361,273 1.447,067 

62,567 71.660 

56.335 2.188 

{ 194,646) 175,000 

(75,744) 248,848 

tbe benefit of tbe College u follows: 
The Free Will Bapti:lt Foundation bolds fu~ds f~r S 879,000 l ,0 I 5.000 

Endowments from which the College rccerves Income 000 461.700 
. . $ 327, 

Gifts to pass to the College at some future date 

fi unrestricted operations and to 
Endowments · d" ·dual func:b established to bene It · d 
The College's end~wments consist :f numte::~~v:~u~~~donor requirements. All endowment ~nds are ::::::;cte 
provide scholarship:> to student_S w :;nbec the Board of Trustees to function as endowmenL e.t asse d restrictions. 
funds. No funds have been desl~at ) re rted based on the existence or absence of donor-Impose 
with endowment funds are classllied and po . . nal Funds Act (SPMIFA) as requiring the 

s Prud nt Management of lnsmullo d funds absent 
The College has interpreted the tate . . e ·n as of the gift date of the donor-restricted en ~wment ntl 
preservation of the fair value of the ong~nal &l result of this interpretation. the College classifies-~ pelrm:: ol 
explicit donor stipulations to ~he colntnalary. ~s-~ donated to the permanent endowment, (b) the ong~~a :,; bv the fund 
cstricted net assets (a) the ongrna v ue o gl . of the individual fund to the extent lrec - . ed 

:ubsequent gifts to the permanent endowment, a~-~ ~~:~ent fund that is not classified in pe~anently restnct 
donors. The remaining po":ion of the don:7s:trict~ net assets until those amounts are appropnated for 
net assets is or will be classified 85 tempo y 
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(J) Eadowmrats. continuw 

FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

expenditure by the College in a manner con . . 
accordance with SPMrF A the Colle ' ~tstent With the ~tandard of prudence prescribed 
accumulate donor-restrict~d endowr:;eencot funs,dders the following factor$ in making a dcte rmin bt~ SPM!F A. In n s; a •on to appropriate or 

I> Th d · e urahon and preservation ofth fi d 
2>The eun; 
3> G pralurposes of.lhe donor-restricted endowment fund · 

ene econom1c conditions · ' 
4> The 'bl ' poss• e effect ofinflation and deflah . 
5> The expected 1 .. on, 

tota return from income and the . . 
6> Other .Tellources oflhe Coli . d appreciatiOn of investments· 
7> Th . ege, an , 

e mveslment policies of the College. 

Endow meet net auet composition: 

Permanently restricted net assets 
Donor-restricted endowment funds 

Temporarily restricted net assets; 
Funds available scholarships 
Funds available for future unrestrict d do . e en wment moome 

Total temporarily restricted net assets 

Portio• of endowme•t fuads r...nuired to be • ,...,.
01 1 

. ., reta.tned 
..- a neat y erther by expJkit d . . 
or by SPMJFA oanr sbpulatwn 

Cbaagn f• endowmeht att assets• 
EadowDleat ad nsets. May 3·1, 2010 

Investment return . 

ln~e ~m endowment assets 
mcludmg earnings and gain or 
loss transactions 

Reclassification of beginning balances 

Donor contributions 

s 

Uuratricted 

38,268 

llil 

s 1,320,077 

40,35 1 
8,582 

Temporarily 
Rntrjctt:fJ 

82,822 

176,495 

(63,542) 

Appropriation of net assets 

Eadowmeat DeC as.ets. May 31, 2011 
Investment rerum ; 

---. ..<~.~J) -- ... i45,94,Y 

Tncome from endowment assets 
including earnings __ .. . """' ga.n or 
loss transactions 

Donor contributions 

s 30,267 149,833 

(13,684) (63,540) 

l.W. 

1,164,598 

149,833 
30.267 

Permaaeotly 
Restricted 

I ,068,467 

28,934 

67,197 

. - -- --·-
I, 164,598 

155,479 

-
Appropriation of net assets 

Eadowment aet assets- May 31, 2012 
- - - ·--

$~~.~.8~~2 - ._40,351 . .... .-:::-:-.· .. ' ::.:.: 
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1,151,289 

214,763 

(34,608) 

67,197 

-~3,943) . --
1,344,698 

(77.224) 

155,479 

(3) 

(4) 

FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 

Notes to Financial Statements, wntinued 

Endmymcp,ts.. s:ontinued a;fllrl Qbjectj)·es ud Risk Perametm 
The College has established investment and spending policies for the purpose or providing general guidelines for the 
prudent investment management of its endowment assets. To satisfy its long-tenn rate of retum objectives, the College 
relies on a rota! return strategy in which investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and 

~ized) and cum:nt yield (interest and dividends). 

Speodinc Policy 'The College's investment policy allows expenditure of a maximum of 5% of corpus from the funds carried as temporarily 
restricted net assets up to the accumulated balance of such funds. This spending policy was implemented during the 

year ended May 31, 2011 . 

Mcctan Receivable 
Pledges receivable are recorded at estimated realizable value after an allowance for potential uncollectible pledges. 
Fur1her, pledges receivable expc<:ted to be collected in yean aftef the next fiscal year were discounted to their present 

values of future cash flows using a 5.5% interest factor. 

Tbe following summa ri.z.el pledges re«iVI ble: 
Post dated check books and bank draft agreements 
Proposed future campus relocation 
Pledges for operations 

Less allowance for potential uncollectible pledges 
Le!s discount to present value of future cash flows 

Total pledges receivable 

l!lU 

s 80,748 
660,119 

39,236 

780,103 
(172,980) 

_ __ (Sl,~) 

s 554~52~ .. 

l01l 

82,628 
833,034 

42.000 

957.662 
(210,300) 

(69,800) 

67J,?~~ 

Pledges are recorded ia tbe statement of finaaclal position as follows: 

Pledges for unrestricted operations 
s 105.684 113,128 

Campaign pledges for future campus relocation ··········-~4~ .• ~32._ -· . ··--~~.:434 
s . =-~-~4.52,!-' - -- · _67?,,562-

Pledats •re e~pected to be collec.ted dariDz yean e•ded May 31, ,, follows: 
2013' 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 

yean thereafter 
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227,795 
135,627 
102,849 
63,1 12 
14,637 

, __ _l0,503-



FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

(5) Accouql.!! Receivable 

(6) 

(7) 

(8) 

Accounts receivable are stated at the 
--d " amount mana provr es •or probable uncollectible gement exp.xts IO collect from outs . 

allowance based on its assessme amounts through a pro\ •~ron for bad debl ex , tandmg ~lances. Management 
managemem has used reasonabl:t ofthe_current Slan•s of individual accounts .. :a:c and an adJus~ent IO a valuation 
credit to accounts receivable Th collllectron effects are written off through a charge t c~ that are_ su!l outstanding after 
and $55.000. respectively. . e a owance for doubtful accounts as of Mav 31 20 ~21 e v~luatron allowance and a 

. , and LO I I amounted to $75.000 

Accounts receivable included inc ' . 
St d 

urrent as~ets rs ~ follow~. 
u entaccounts · 

Employee and other 

Federal student llnancial aid funds 
Bequest receivable 
Accrued interest 

Unrestricted pledges receivable 

Allowance for doubtful accounts 

Property. Plan! and Equipment 
Components of pro 1 perty, p ant and equ•pment are a!> follows 

Land 
Proposed campus arch· Pr nectural and other cosh 

oposed campus land 
Buildings 
Fquipmem 
I ibrary books 

Accumulated depreciation and . . amonJZBIIOn 

Net investment in plant 

Depreciation and amortization charged to expendrture~ 

Interest capitalized as proposed campus costs 

Line of C red ' t c - 1 - um:nt Liability 

Line of credit agreement 'th p· . 
WI mnacle Natrona! B k ' s• ' 

s 

s 

l.Qll 
158.638 

6.009 
11.454 

248.965 
14,000 

105.684 
544.750 
75,000 

469.750 

llill 
172.911 

9,615 
14.081 

113,128 
309,735 
55.000 

254,735 

liD 
s 488,812 

1.155.835 
5.031.793 
4,946.974 
2.153.587 

823.381 

14.600,382 
4,897,027 

s 9,703,355 

s 213.683 

s 

amount of$500,000, expiring Se b an at Vo. w•th a ma~imum 
ptem er 2012. Secured b)' residential property. 500,000 

500,000 
IYotea Payable and L&ne-Term Dell S 
Note!! payable: -' 

Per_r:,•nentty Restricted F~tnds- Student Loan f' d 
:l7o unsecured demand uo s 

notes payable to individuals 

Unrestricted Funds- C~~rreodv 0 . $ 
5
., • oe. 
;o unsecured d d eman notes payable to indi~idual 

Notes Payable 
$ 
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88,061 

50.000 

138,061 

l..OJJ. 
496.871 

1.155.834 
5.031.793 
5.::!24.583 
2.077.717 

812.074 

14.798,872 
4.836,658 

9,962,214 

228,184 

117,573 

l.Dll 

215.000 

215,000 

llill 

93.506 

50.000 

143.506 

(8) 

(9) 

FREE WILL BAPTlST BffiLE COLLEGE 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

~otcs flyable and Lopg-Term DebL continued 

Long Term Debt; 
LoaDS held by Free Will Baptist Foundation: 

Line of credit agreement at 10.0 O\er pnme rates. "''lh a maximum amount of 
$1.000.000 expirin& May 2016. Secured b~ endowment fund in~estments. S 

Promissol) notes secured by land acquired for potential rclocauon tsce note 16) 
located in Gallatin, Tennessee and certain propert•es included in the existing 
campus in Nashville. fenne~ee. fhel>c loan~ w.:re amend.:d June 2K, 20 II 
which transferred $1.000,000 from the variable rate loan to the lhcd rate loan. 

4.5% tenn loan requiring interest only monthly payment~ through July 20 I :2. 
Beginning August 2012 monthly payments of$ 13,918 arc required including 
principal and interest. Thb loan is subject to call on January 28. 2016 which 
will require a payment of approximately S 1.943.000 or to be refinanced. 

Tenn loan requiring interest only monthl) payments through July 2012 "ith an 
original interest rate of 4.5% adju!>tcd quarterly to yield lo/o to 1.25% above the 
published prime lending rate m the Wall !>treet Journal. Beginning August :2012 
monthly payments includrng princtpal and mtcre::.t are required based on a ""en!) 
t20) year amortization (scheduled maturlt) date h July 2032) based on current 

rntercst rates and "ill approximate $3.673 

Less cu.rrenl portion or long- term debt 

680,000 

2.200.000 

580.598 
3,460.598 

72.863 

3.387.735 

1.200.000 

2.417.050 
3.617.050 

3.617.050 
Long-term debt 

Principal mawriti~ of unresrncted fund long.-tenn debt are "'' follov. s: :!0 13- $7:!.863: 2014 - $91.1 13. :o 15 -

$775.299; 2016 - $99.677; 2017- $1 04.256; 2018 and thereafter- $2.317.390. 

reuioo Plap apd 
Cumulative Atljostment for Excess Pcnsjon Liabilities 
The College had a defined benefit pens ton plan which covered all regular employees, e~tcept full-time students. hired 
prior to attaining age 61 folio" ing completion of one year of service and attainment of age 21 The College's fundrng 
policy is to fund pension costs accrued. 1 he plan assets constst of investments held and managed by Equitable Trust. 

the plan administrator. 

Effective September 1. 2008, the pension plan was fn11en hy action of the Board of'l rustees during the December 
2008 meeting and no additional deposits for future benefiL~ have been made after that date. Effective December 2011. 
the College staned the process to tenninate the plan. Application has been made to the appropriate governmental 
agencies for approval to tenninate the plan. When the tennination plan is approved the College will be requm.>d to 
buyout each of the pension plan participants in an appropriate amount to provide like benefits that the pension plan would 
have provided. Total cost of this buyout is estimated to be $1.880.000 and will be funded from borrowings. 

Accounting principles generally accepted 111 the United States of America require the College to recognize the 
cumulative effect of the under funded status of1L~ pcn~ion plan lb a liability in the statement offmancial position and 
as a decrease to wuestricted net assets. The origmal required adjustment amounted to $1.296.891 at May 31.2009 
The effect oflranSllClions during year ended May 31. 2010 reduced this liability to $1.001.546. fhe actuarial rules 
governing calculation of the liability changed during }'ear ended \oiay 31, 2011. "hich resulted in an increase •n the 
liability to $1,431.894. This change in actuarial assumpuon relates 10 applying a discount rate more in line .... ith current 
yield from bond marlcets. instead of applying a consistent discount rate each period. This change in assumption 
resulled in an increase in the liability of$736. 970 over the previous method used lo calculate tbe liabilil.). Durmg the 

2012 fiscal year this actuarial liabilit) grev.- to S 1,941.521 
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FREE Wll.L BAPTIST BffiLE COLLEGE 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

(9) Pcosjon Plan and 
C umulative Adjus tment for Excess PtD$io n U a bilities. cootjpqed 
In compliance "'ith the Pension Plan Act of2007, during June 2008 the College began making deposits to the 
pension plan in order to eliminate the under funded status of the pension plan. These deposits amounted to $324,200 in 
2012 and $293,100 in 20 II, and deposits are scheduled totaling $142,500 during 2013 fiscal year. These deposits 
will be recognized as an expense (net of change in current accrued liability or prepaid expense) and additional annual 
deposiL\ \\ill be made until the under funded status is eliminated. The amount of the annual deposits may vary depending 
on the performance of the plan assets. These deposits will no longer be required when the plan is terminated. 

The following table sets forth the plan's funded status and required disclosures. 

Rec:oncilia tion of benefit obligations: 
Benefit obligation at beginning of year 

Service cost 
Interest cost 
Plan amendments 
(Gam) loss due to actuarial experience 
(iain due to changes in actuarial assumptions 
Curtailment gain 
Benefits paid to plan participants 

Benefit obligation at end of year 

Rec:oncilia tion of asset va lue: 
Plan assets at beginning of year 

Actual return of plan assets 
Employer contributions 
lknefits paid to plan participants 

Plan assets at end of year 

Reconciliation of funded status: 
Funded status at end of year (liability) 

Unrecognized net transition obligation asset 
Unrecognized prior service c~t 
Unrecogmzed net loss 

Amount included in prepaid expense 

Accumnlated benefit o bligation at end of year 

Vested benefit oblixation at end of year 

Reconciliation of unfunded s tatus of pens ion plan: 
Unfunded status of pension plan at beginning of year 

Amount of loss recognized during the) ear 
(Gain ) loss due to actuarial experience 
(Gain )floss due to curtailment 
(Gain) loss due to changes in actuarial assumptions 
(Gain) loss due to assets 

Unfunded status of pension plan at end of year 
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s 

s 

$ 

s 

s 

$ 

s 
$ 

s 

s 

:wl llli 
4,114,930 J,J 18,176 

228.843 247.728 

(42,294) 26,420 
466.258 736.970 

(220.021) (214.364) 

4,547,716 4.114,930 ---

2.889.919 2.331,178 
67,473 480.005 

324.200 293,100 
(220,021) (214.364) 

3,061,571 2.889.919 

( 1,486.145) (1.225,011) 

I ,941,521 1,431.894 

455.376 206,883 

4,51111§.. _4~1 14,930 

4.542,695 4,095,013 

1.431.894 1,001.546 
(97,089) (55,533) 
(42.294) 26,420 

466,258 736,970 
182,752 (2n,502) 

1,941 ,521 1.431.894 

FREE WlLL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

(9) Pension P!u. eoptinued 

(10) 

Net per iodic benefit cost: 
Serv1ce cost at end of year 
Interest cost on projected benefit obi igation 
Expected return on plan assets 
Amortization of transition obligation 
Amortization of prior service costs 
Amortization of net loss 

Net periodic benefit cost 

$ 

s 

228.843 
(250,225) 

97.089 

75,707 

147,728 
(202.496) 

55.533 

100.765 

Espectcd Future Benefit Payments: . . 
·1 he expected benefit payments tor the next ten fiscal years ended May 31. are: $261.498 m 20 13; $259.756 tn 

20 14; $271,098 in 20 15; $266,600 in 20 16; $21!0,027 in 20 17; and S 1,505,584 in y~rs 2018 through 2022. If the plan 
i~ tem1inated. which is expected to occur during fiscal year 2013. these payments ",II cease. 

Assumptions used for determina tion of net pensio n cost: 
AS!>umed discount rate 
Expected long-term rate of return 
Actuarial valuation method 

Assumptio ns used for determinatio n of e nd of year obli~t•tions: 
Assumed discount rate 
Expec:ted long-term rate of return 
Actuarial valuation method 

7.75% 
8.50% 

Projec:ted 
Unit Credit 

4.75% 
N/A 

Projected 
Unit Credit 

7.75% 
8.50% 

Projected 
Unit Credit 

5.75% 
/A 

Projected 
Unit Credit 

C onceotratio p of C red it R isk . . 
The College is the institution of higher education of the National Associauon of Free W1ll Ba!>~sts. Inc: ~d offers 
Bible based educational services to members of the denomination. The College extends credn m ce~n L~tances 
to students for educational costs and makes loans to students from its loan funds. The College also rruunta1ns 
certain accounts for sponsored groups and others. and pledges receivable w~ich are dispe~ a~ong numerous 
supporters of the College. These accounts are not collateralized and are subJect to accountmg nsk ofloss 

amounting to the outstanding balances. 

The following additional instruments also subjects the College to risk of accounting loss which approximates: 

Cash funds in banks in excess of the FDIC insurable limit S 601.000 
Funds invested with Free Will Baptist Foundation I ,466.000 
Marketable securities 213,000 
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FREE WlLL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

Asset Retirement Oblieation - Asbestos Removal 
rhe College ~ognizes the fair ~a~~~ of the liability related to the legal obhgauon to perfonn a."'Set reurement activities on 
rang1ble long-h~ed assets. The habllll) recorded, amounting to $261.375 at Ma) 31,2012 and $244.848 at Ma 31 2011 
relates to the future removal of asbestos fTom exi~ting building.o,. y · 

lne habihty .'~1llmc~ase ann.ually through a charge to expenditures until the asbesto~ 1s removed to account for the 
~ost ol mOahon and Imputed Interest costs. as follo"'s for the next live years. 

Nel Assets 

As of and for the year ended May 31 : 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 

s 

Charge to Liability 
Expenditur\:s B11lanre 

17.643 279.0 I !I 
18.834 297.852 
20. 105 317,957 
21,462 339.41 Q 
22.911 362.330 

Nel 3.\ \Cl'o of the College consiM of the following as ~~f Ma) 31. 2012 and 201 1 

2012 
TempOrarily 

llorestrjcted Restricted 
Pumanently 
Restricted 

OperatiOns ~ 
Excess pension liabilities 
Cumulative endowment losses 
Unexpended funds restricted for· 

Operating purposes 
Scholarships 

Donor gi fi.\ 
Available for distributions 
from endowment returns 

Potential relocation 
Studcnt loan funds 
I rue endowment funds 
Scholarship endowment funds 

rota! net asc;ets S 

6.708.761 
( I. 941.5::! I 1 

4.767.240 

1::!.105 

194, 7"8 

48,933 
334.775 

590.571 

445.915 
264. 77f! 

1,055.299 

1,765,992 

Total 

lli1 

6.708.761 
(I. 941.521 ) 

1:!.105 

194,758 

48,933 
334,775 
445,915 
264,778 

1.055,299 

7, 123.803 

Tollll 

llil 

6.352.211 
(1,431.89-1) 

16.141 

159.125 

180.100 
273,385 
453,405 
160.020 

1,004.578 

7,167.071 

( 13) t:iet Allseta Released From Restriction~ 

Donor im~ed restrictions expired on temporarily restricted net asse~ as follo"'s: 
lxpend1tures made for donor imposed restrictions: 

Privatcscholarships s 71.900 
Federal Supplemental Educational Opporrunil)' Gmnt 14.635 
l·edcral Wor!.. Study Program Q 823 
Other i~structional and institutional 8:731 
llnrestncted endowment income allocated 8 001 
Potential relocation 193:060 

Net assets released from restrictions s 306, ISO 

Certain f~eral g~ts to students amounung to $471.075 and $505,797 for 2012 and 20 II, respecuvel). are not 
mcluded 111 expenditures ~r net assets released !Tom restrictions Federal Pelland other stmilar gJ'llllts are considered 
to be agency transactions 111 that the student pa)'ments are entitlements and the funds are not under the control ofth 
C.ollege. e 
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(14) Belated Pam TraMactions 
Conccnrntions 
The College has funds invested with the l·rec Will Rapti!.t foundation tntaling approximate!} S 1.466,000 or 61 % of ih 
total cash and cash equi.,.alents. and in~estmen~. Further. the College ha.' liabilities to the Foundation amounting to 
$3.460.598 which amount to 53% of the College's total recorded liabilities. 

( 15) 

Executive Offic:c of the National Association of Fret Will Baptjst3 
fhe denomination began a publication (One MagaLine) during the )car ended May 3 I. 2006 to combine the 
publications of certain Free Will Baptist agcncie~ and organiz.ation~. One Magazine is funded by contributions from 
each of the agencies and organi7.ations. The College recognited $5J,6Q6 111 2012 and $50.270 in 20 II as their share 

of the funding requirement. 

Commitments apd Contingencies 
1J.ligation 
The College, in the normal course of operruions. may be a defendant m law~uit-. Management is not aware of an) 
pending assened or unassened claims against the College. 

Estate BeQuest$ 
The Collcge, in the nonnal cou~e of operations. is the beneliciat) of estate bequests. These bequests arc recogni.-ed 
as revenue\ in the period the amount can be determined. either by notices trom the estate or receipt of the bequest. 

whichever comes lirst. 

(16) ~teplial Brlocation o( Campus 
Free Will Baptist Bible College leadership remains committed to relocat ion of the current campus in order to 

turther the College's core mission 

Plans for the ne"' campus have progressed through the programmmg and schematic design stage and are in 
design development. 

The College purchased a 66 acre tract of land during August 2008 which is intended to serve as the site for then~ 
campus. This site located in the Greater Nashville Tennessee Area will provide for the cxpansion of programs 

consistent with the College's strategic plans. 

Sale of the el\isting campus propeny is an 1mpc>rtant component of the relocation project. During fiscal year 2012 the 
College changed to another realtor finn to handle the sale. rwo propenies were sold during liscal year 2012 which 
resulted in proceeds from the sale of$839,618. ·me College continues to aggressively market its existing campus. 

I he College is continuing to obtain estimates of campus construction and related costs. The financial plan to 
complete the project is based on a planned capital fund rai~ing campaign, u"c of the proceeds derived from sale of 

the existing campus and long tenn borrowings. 

(17) Note Reccjyablc - Related Party 
In previous }ears. a note receivable from a fonner member of the College's Board of Trustees was wrinen off to 
expense. The write ofT was due to collection concern~ and the value of the prop.:rt} securing the note receivable 
had become impaired. During the fiscal year 2012. the propeny W!l!> sold and College was repaid the entire original 
balance of the obligation amounting to $200.000 This amount is renected as revenues in other sources on the 

statement of activities and changes in net assets. 
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(THJS lNFORMATION IS NOT PART OF THE At.OJT REPORT) 

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY OF MAY 31,2012, FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

Audit Reveals Unrestricted Funds Deficit after Extraordinary Events 

Unrestricted income (including income recorded as gain on disposition of property) was 
$5,499.638 against unrestricted expenses (including non-cash recording of additional pension 
liability) of $5,652,715 for a $153,077 decrease in unrestricted net assets at the end of the fiscal 
year. The overall net assets, including temporarily and permanently restricted funds, decreased 
by $43,268. 

Extraordinary events were: 

Cash Proceeds--Sale of two surplus properties: 
Cash Income--Repayment of previous debt 
Bequest Receivable-- (Rec'd June, 2012): 
Non-Cash Expense--Additional Pension Liability: 

$839,618 (See next note) 
200,000 
248,965 

(509,627) 

Sale of Surplus Properties Lowers Long-Term Debt 

The college changed realty companies during the fiscal year, which resulted in the sale of two 
residences unrelated to academic programming for a net amount of$839,618. Ofthat amount 
$700,000 was applied to long-term capital debt with the balance placed in reserve earmarked for 
capital repair. The gain on sale of assets recorded in the audit was $674.764, after deductions for 
balance sheet values. No funds were applied toward operating expenses. 

Individual's Repayment of Previous Debt 

The college received $200,000 to repay an old loan provided to a long term friend and donor. 
Said loan had been fully expensed to operations in previous fiscal years. As a result, the 
repayment was recorded as operational income. 

Unrestricted Giving Increases 23% 

Gifts to the unrestricted fund amounted to $1 ,367, 73 7. Of that amount, $1 ,083,054 was annual 
fund unrestricted gifts (adjusted for payments on pledges); $30,982 was FWB Foundation 
income; $252,081 was estate gifts, and $1.620 was library gifts. The previous fiscal year's 
unrestricted gifts totaled $ Ll13,917. 

Annual Fund Giving Subsidizes Average Full-Time Student $5,190 

Students enrolled in 2011-2012 were subsidized $173 per semester hour through annuaJ fund 
gifts. In other words, students would have paid $621 per hour had no gift income been received. 
Therefore, tuition was $448 per semester hour. Full-time students typically enroll for 30 semester 
hours per year, which means those students were spared paying $5,190. 
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Institutional Scholarships Reach Historic High 

. . institutionally-awarded scholarships. On average, 
The college a.warded ~~ao~~~ 6~1 ~~~~~~~:~r hour discount against the $448 .li~t price, or an 
the scholarships provl t hour or a 36% discount rate for twtlon. 

st of only $286 per semes er , average net co 

Tuition, Fees, Room and Board Charges for 2012-2013 

. hool ear student charges for 2012-2013 have 
.. Aer no student fee increases for the prevl.OUS sc fr ~ 2CH0-2011 to 2012-2013 is 3% per year. 
tu~ . ed 6o, The two-year average mcrease o 
been 10creas 70• 

Investments in Marketable Securities 

. oses decreased from $364,731 to $170,085.Investments 
Investments held for ~peratwnal purp 3 36 to $1 191,1 88. Of the total investments, 
held for endowments rncreased from $1,?82, , 
$1,038,792 is held by the FWB FoundatiOn. 

Asset to Debt Ratio 

6 Lon -term liabilities total $5,590,631, giving a 2.47 to l 
Total assets amount to $13,829,33 . . g l $6 705 533 and provides a 2.06 to 1 debt 
debt ratio. Adding all other Liabilities bnng the tota to ' , , 

ratio. 
Cash Flow Statement 

. . . a ital and financing activities 
The combined cash flow~ ofthe ~llege'sdoi;~t~i3 :v=~~t:d ~ds, and $79,049 in 
report cash and cash eqUivalents mcrease . ' h · of $660 329. 
permanently restricted funds for a cumulattve cas mcrease , 

Cash and Cash Equivalents for Operations 

. ear Last year's total was $250,718 against 
Cash for operations has increased fr$om ~e g;~~~o~a:s ~gainst operational lines of credit as of 
thisyear's$832,00l,supportedby 1•1 ' 1 

May 31,2012. 

Debt 

The first type is for renovation of properties, the 
Overall, the college has three types of debt. urchase of 66 acres in Gallatin that amounts .to 
purchase of3622 West End Avenue, and ~e p ses and is split between Pinnacle Nanonal 
$2,853,461. The second type is for o~ratwnal pur~O The third type relates to demand notes. to 
Bank for $500 000 and FWB Four~dat10n for $fun680d, tal .. g $138 061 Details and the accounting 

' d tricted s to m • · 
individuals for student loans an ~ 7 d 8 of the audited frnancial statements. 
of these obligations are disclosed m Notes an 
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Pension Plan Update 

The Board of Trustees took action to terminate the college pension plan. As reported in recent 
years, increasing government regulation and poor market performance have been a financial 
burden on the school. From 2009-2010 through 2011-20 12. the mandatory funding has been an 
excessive cash outlay of $825,000. Further, the underfunded amount has increased from 
$1,431,894 to $1,941,521 due to adverse market conditions. 

Pension plan participants include retirees now drawing, terminated employees who are vested. 
and current employees who are vested. All participants will receive information regarding 
potential options for receipt of benefits. Those options include either a monthly benefit, a lump 
sum benefit, or a roll-over benefit. 

Tn addition to the funds available, the college will be required to invest approximately another 
$1.88 million to facilitate termination. It should be noted that terminations of defined benefit 
pension plans are occurring nation-wide. The termination will result in an annual $200,000+ 
reduction of expenses for the next several years, plus elimination of adverse market conditions 
and future government regulations. 

Management Actions to Address Debt 

Multiple efforts are underway to decrease, and ultimately eliminate debt: 

• Proposed budget is balanced, cash-wise, and is less than the previous year's. 
• The upcoming termination of the pension plan (refer to previous paragraph). 
• Other non-program. residential-type buildings are slated for sale, with funds helping to 

lower and ultimately eliminate all long-term debt. 
• New efforts in non-traditional education are designed to increase income. 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST BffiLE COLLEGE 
Budgets for the years ending May 2012-2014 

Audit 

Proposed 
Budget 

Budget 
May 3 I. 2012 May 31.2011 May 31,2013 

Revenues 
Tuition and fees 
Private Gifts: 

T ether Way/Unrestricted General Fund 
og · 1 "ft d 

Estate, grant. stock, specJa gJ ' an 
miscellaneous income 

Gifts in kind 
Investment and endowment income . 
Sales and services of auxiliary enterpnses 

Other sources: . . 
Net assets released from restncttOns 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures 
Educational and general: 

Instructional 
Academic Suppon 
Student Services 
Institutional Support 

Total educational and general expenditures 

Auxiliary enterprises: 
Expenditures 

Total Expenditures 

Non-Operational Audit Entries: 
Gain on disposition of property (Revenue) 
Additional pension liability (Expense) 

2.519.723 

I ,230,000 

413,000 
-

29,500 
984.100 

JOO.OOO 
5,476,323 

1.5 I 5.393 
388,834 
750,874 

1.806, 747 
4,461,848 

1,014,475 
5,476,323 
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2.019.802 

1,083,054 

495,475 

920,393 

306,1 so 
4,824,874 

I ,405,162 
373.395 
629,640 

1.804,845 
4,213,042 

930,046 
5,143,088 

674,764 
(509,627) 

2.135,937 

I ,255,000 

90,586 
-

68,000 
991,270 

:?.50,000 
4.790,793 

I, 174,606 
363,302 
659.606 

I ,630,154 
3,827,668 

963,125 
4,790,793 

Strategic 
Budget 

Ma} 31. 2014 

2.300.000 

1,268.000 

50,000 
-

55,000 
1.020.000 

200,000 
4.893,000 

1,287.000 
380.000 
700.000 

1.551.000 
3,9\8,000 

975,000 
4,893,000 J 



Minutes 
of the 

Seventy-seventh Annual Session 

of the 

Women Nationally 
Active for Christ 

Convention 
of the 

National Association of 

Free Will Baptists 

when convened in 

Memphis, Tennessee 

July 17, 2012 
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Women Nationally Active for Christ 
P.O. Box 5002 

Executive Committee: 

President 
Diana Bryant 
2156 54th Avenue 
Vero Beach, FL 32966 
772-567-1956 
bryantfwb@bellsouth.net 

Vice President 
Pam Hackett 
121 Springside Drive 
Boiling Springs, SC 29316 
864-599-9512 
hackettp71@bellsouth.net 

Secretary 
Jan Clay 
8102 Amarillo Drive 
Indianapolis, IN 46237 
317-862-0533 
okiejan@sbcglobal.net 

Theme: God's Mighty Hand 
Scripture: 1 Peter 5:6-11 

Antioch, TN 37011-5002 

Members-at-Large 

Executive Director 
Elizabeth Hodges 
P.O. Box 5002 
Antioch, TN 37011 
615-512-4792 
elizabeth@wnac.org 

Amy Johnson 
1211 E. Ruth 
Benton, IL 62812 
618-435-4281 
harmy@verizon.net 

Jonda Patton 
P.O. Box 2522 
Pikeville, KY 41502 
606-631-3420 
jbpatton@bellsouth .net 

Janie Campbell 
490 Whitney Woods Road 
Conway, AR 72034 
501-450-3552 
janiec.campbell@gmail.com 

Music Coordinator: Susan Forlines 

Pianist: Dawn Wenning 

Proceedings 
Tuesday, July 17, 2012,8:00 a.m. 

. v· President ofTennessee Women Active for Christ, Susan 
The business session opened With a welcome from ICe_ 1 Peter 5·5-7. Free Will Baptist Bible Coi-

Forlines, who then led the bo~y. in reciting~~;~~~:~~ ~;~~~~::~~s;~rship son~s. 
lege's Rejoice Ensemble then Jomed Susan . . . t duced the current slate of Executive WNAC 

President of Women Nationally Active for Chn~t, Diana Bryant, m ro 

officers to the body and called the business sessl~n t~ ~rd~~- . . Aldridge Chairperson (FL) and read by WNAC 
The Credentials Committee Report was submltte y lrgmla , 

Secretary Jan Clay. . d .d d . Alabama _ Arkansas _ California - Florida -
Nineteen state conventions submitted reports an pal ~esM. . . ·pp·l North Carolina - Ohio- Oklahoma 

M. h. _ MiSSOUri - ISSISSI -
Georgia - Illinois - Indiana - Kentucky - IC lgan 
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-South Carolina- Tennessee- Texas- Virginia- West Virginia. 

Two districts with no state conventions submitted reports and paid dues: First Arizona- New Mexico. 

In addition, there were thirty four delegates from local groups tn good standing with their representing 
higher body (district or state) who had paid their $10 representation fees. 

Total Registration- 794 

Motion carried to receive the report and seat the delegates. 

WNAC Executive Director, Elizabeth Hodges gave the Executive Director's report informing the body of her 
travels to WAC groups across the country. Mrs. Hodges used a slide show to show convention participants the 
items given from WNAC to the Chame Institute, the 2011 Dr. Mary Ruth Wisehart Student Scholarship Fund 
Recipients, and results of the 2011 WNAC Survey. Information was also presented about various WNAC social 
networking and media production, including the WNAC QR code, Facebook page, Twitter, and upcoming Pinter­
est account. Elizabeth gave an update on Treasure Bible study guide, citing a decline in subscriptions, positive 
comments about the new format, retaining its missions focus and an option of a digital format in the near future. 
2013 proposed budget was presented for approval. 

Motion carried to approve 2013 budget. 

President Diana Bryant presented the Executive Committee Recommendations, read by Secretary, Jan Clay: 

The Executive Committee recommends the approval of the proposed WNAC Constitution and By-Law changes 
in response to Recommendation #3 of the 2009 WNAC Resolutions Committee in Cincinnati, Ohio. 

The Executive Committee recommends that scholarships be given from the Cleo Purcell Foreign Student 
Scholarship Fund in the amount of $1,389.29, to be divided at the discretion of the Chame Institute among the 
following students: Elisa Niz- Cynthia Urriola -Stephanie Concepcion - Baderlin Castaneda- Liz Gonzalez. 

Motion and second to approve Recommendation 1 - Discussion 

After discussion about Recommendation #1, a motion was made to amend the former motion to read: 
"We move to accept the changes of the WNAC Constitution and By-Laws, with the understanding that we 

further study Article #2 and Article #7 for clarification." 

Motion carried to adopt the amendment to Recommendation #1. 

Motion carried to adopt Recommendation #2. 

Sheila Harris (AR), Resolutions Committee Chairman, read the Resolution Report: 

Be it resolved that we would like to express our gratitude and appreciation to the women of Tennessee for 
their hospitality and hosting of WNAC. We would also like to thank all our national members for attending. 

Motion carried to adopt Resolution #1. 

Sarah Fletcher, Editor ofTreasure Study Guide, presented the theme for the coming year, "God's Mighty Hand," 
through a power point presentation. 

Motion carried to adjourn. Meeting was closed in prayer. 

Worship Service 
9:30a.m. 

The congregation sang songs and recited scripture led by Susan Forlines and Rejoice Ensemble. Special music 
was presented by Rejoice Ensemble. A message was delivered to the group by Mrs. Terri Roberts of Lancaster 
County, Pennsylvania. 

And offering was taken in the amount of $1,613.08. 
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Seminars 
10:45 a.m. 

t. part.lcipants were given a choice of 3 seminars: Conven 1on 
·oepression" - Neil Gilliland 
"Parenting"- Janie Campbell, Debe Taylor, Pam Hackett 
"Finances/Budgeting" -Amy Johnson, Jonda Patton 

WNAC fellowship Luncheon 
12:00 p.m. 

. at noon Participants ate their meals to the piano and violin music 
The annual Fellowship Luncheon convened d. d h. "f Ruth Bivens as our speaker for the luncheon. 

d M. h 1 Kear Bud Bivens intro uce IS WI e, ' db 
of Susan Forlines an IC ae . h h l"fe leading her to enter the Peace Corps an ecome 
Mrs. Bivens spo~e ab?u~ God's Might~ Handdt~~o~g a~~:h :;e~king people of the United States. 
a Free Will Baptist MISSionary to MexicO an e p 

Workshops 
1:30 p.m. 

Convention participants were given a choice of two workshops: 

"WNAC Survey Results"- Diana Bryant 

"Exchange of Ideas"- Sarah Fletcher 

WNAC Executive Committee Meetings and Actions 

. . . mber 10-12, 2011. Members present were Diana Bryant, 
The Executive Committee met m Nashville, TN, Noved E cutive Director Elizabeth Hodges. 

Pam Hackett, Jan Clay, Amy Johnson, Jonda Patton an xe 

November 10, 2011 
. d the ro osed 2013 budget, discussed the new WNAC 

Executive Committ:e Members met and revl~~eAC Con~en~ion and the Executive Director's performance 
reporting forms, possible speakers for the 2.012 T Hill as WNAC Auditor. The motion was seconded and 
evaluation results. A motion was made to hire Mr. erry 
carried. 

November 11, 2011 
. . ted in a Leadership Growth and Development Session led by 

Executive Committee Members met and partiCipa It d implications of the 2011 WNAC Survey. Mem-
independent consultants, an~ viewe~ and discuss.ed r~su 2~1~ WNAC Convention in Memphis, TN, and discussed 
bers took part in a brainstormmg sessiOn. for.plannmg t e 

revisions of the WNAC Convention ConstitUtion and Bylaws. f I t dents and student wives the "Treasure" 
A motion was made to send our Free Will Ba~tist College ema e s u 

G ·d Th f n was seconded and earned. . d 
Study u1 e. e mo 1o 1 p r . s The motion was seconded and carne · 

. d t prove the revised WNAC Personne o ICie . . 
A mot1on was rna e o ap . . 

1 
P r . The motion was seconded and earned. 

A motion was made to approve the revised WNAC FmanCia o ICies. 
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. November 12 2011 
. Executive Committee Members met and d. , tlonal items and theme songs lscussed 2013 WNAC Convention Schedule booth set · ' u~prom~ 

. February 17 2012 

Ex~cut~ve Committee conducted email discussion and v , . 
Constrtutron with changes and to present them to the b ~t\ Motron was made to ampt the proposed WNAC 
earned. 0 Y or a vote m July. The motion was s d d econ e and 

Motion was made to provide the WNAC p b . d d rogram and Plan Book f f h 
a n ge WNAC manual and new ministry guide in that T T~e o c. arge to subscribers and to include the mal mg. e motion was seconded and carried. 

. . February 28, 2012 
Executive Committee participated in a conference call . . 

speaker, WNAC survey input from state officers WNAC fi meetmg to discuss MIR House status, WNAC Convention 
retreats. , nances and the upcoming Master's Men/WNAC Couples 

M?tion was made to give choice of the MIR house fu . . . 
furnish their house for missionaries, missionary's childr r;ls~mgs to Clmt and L~nette Morgan to use to help 
seconded and carried. en co ege students stateside ministry. The motion was 

. July 15, 2012 

The WNAC Executive Committee met in Marriott's St Louis R 
Hackett, Jan Clay, Janie Campbell, Amy Johnson, Jonda. Patt oom. Mem.bers .present were Diana Bryant, Pam 
staff members Phyllis York and Sarah Fletcher were res n on and Executive Director Elizabeth Hodges. WNAC 

Auditor Terry Hill explained financl·al· f . p e t for the first part of the meeting. 
n H f m ormation and recomme d d h 
I y. e urther recommended billing our Treasure sub . . .n e t at WNAC become an incorporated en-

have not been paid by December. scnptiOns m September in order to delete accounts that 

Executive Director Elizabeth Hodges went o h 
Ron Hunter, Randall House CEO d .ver er report with the committee. 
d D' . . , presente mformation to th . . an . rgrtal Rrghts Management (DRM). He explained Rand I e com~rttee concernrng digital literature media 

tentiOn to sell licenses to those who wish to prod d' . I al Houses research and development and their in-
Com · . uce 1g1ta ly. 

. . mltte~ discussed offering Treasure in a PDF format to . 
digital matenal. Subscribers to have choice of printed 'I ~~ldfge the gap between printed material and total 

Devotion was given by Jan Clay fro 1 K. . , mal a e or mat or PDF email or online format by 2013. 
d. m mgs 18.40-46 about "G d' M. h 

or mary, but He may be doing a mighty work that o s lg ty Hand" sometimes being seen as c · we are unaware of 
ommlttee Members dismissed with a circle of prayer. . 

A-230 

Women Nationally Active for Christ 
2012 

Jeremiah, the prophet, proclaimed, "Great is thy 
faithfulness," in Lamentations 3:23. That has been 
proven over and over again through the 77 -year 
history ofWNAC. It has been my privilege to visit 

women in 21 of our 22 reporting states comprised of our 4,720 

members. Giving to the national office was down in 2011 by nine percent. 
The office is solely funded by dues and gifts to the general fund. Please 
pray with us as we seek to rebuild the financial base of support. 

Our women are active in support of missions and ministry causes 
in their homes, churches, communities, and around the world, giving a 
total of $499,877.46. Support for the Steward Provision Closet 
continues to be strong and our missionaries and Bible Institutes are the 
beneficiaries. It was our privilege to supply items for the Chame' 
Institute's kitchen and cafeteria which enhanced the 50th celebration in 

Panama. The recipients of the Cleo Purcell Foreign Student Scholarship, 
Ester and Gabriela, were students at Seminary of the Cross in Reynosa. 
We also have two recipients of the Dr. Mary R. Wisehart Student 
Scholarship monies. Bre Reierson is a sophomore at Hillsdale FWB 
College, and Dominique Ward is a sophomore at Southeastern FWB 
College. We are thankful for the opportunity to support these young 
ladies who are training to effectively serve the Lord. 

In the fall of 2011, we surveyed our state officers seeking input for 
the overall program. The 2012 convention program was structured to 
meet the five major needs identified during the survey. There is an 
excitement among the ladies as they see the incorporation of their ideas 

and suggestions. Phyllis York and Sarah Fletcher, my staff members, work tirelessly 
to accomplish all that God has for us to do. I deeply appreciate their 
expertise and efforts. We are looking forward to the many ways God will 

exhibit His Mighty Hand in the coming year. 

Elizabeth C. Hodges, Ed.S. 
WNAC Executive Director 
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\\\\ .\ Hill, Harper & Associates 
Certified Public Accountants 

Executive Committee of 

!J!dcpendeAl Aqdjtoa' Report 

Women Nationally Active for Christ 

We have audited the statement of financial position of Women Nationally Active For Christ (a nonprofit 
organization) (hereafter WNAC) as of December 31, 20 II, and the related statements of activities and changes 
in net assets and cash floWll for the year then ended These financial statements are the responsibility of 
WNACs management Our responsibility is to expn:ss an opinion on these financial statements based on our 
audit. 

We conducted our audit io accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Those standards requiTe that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assUI'Illl« about 
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining. on a test 

basis, evidence supporting the amounts and di~losures in the financial statements. An audit also includes 
assessing the acx:ounting principles used and significant estimates made by management. as well as evaluating 
the oveTalJ fUWlcial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our 
opinion. 

ln our opinion, the financial statements refeTTed to above present fairly, in all material respectS, the 
financial position of WNAC, as of December 31, 20 II, and changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the 
year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

~~6~VV"-f~ 
I 

Frallldia, Telllleaee 
M.y 1, 2012 

~ .. gw .... ' ce- ..... ,.. '8 ... 
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LLY ACTIVE FOR CHRIST 
WOMEN NATION~ ~tlonol'free\\iU8aptb1sl 

\An Au~iliaf) ol' The !'<IIUOflllt 

Statement of Financial Position 

[)t>cemher 31, 2011 

ca~h and ca~h cqui\illenh 

Ca'h in bani.. W ll B·'pll'l Fnllndat!On t:On,,d~rcd ca,h 
f ds held bv Fret: 1 " - d l 

un. d' - Sl"3 'i({' ultemporanl) restm:ted \un ' 
(mclu mg " .. -

Accounts rcce~vablc 

Jnventory and prepaad .:xpen~c' 

Office equipment and lurniturc· 

Co~t b~i~ 
u.-..' aL-cumulatcd dcprcuaunn 

Fund' held by Free Wtll Bo~pti~l rounc.lauon for entlO\I<Olenl' 

CwTeotliabllities: 
bl d . ·crul-d c'<pen'~ 

Account~ pay.l c an ,u; . 
ntl ancncn:' Fumb held for other llrganllallllll' a "' . . 

I• t _ _, tO m.JOUZIIIC ~uh~cnpUOll' 
Deferred revenue' re a L'U " -

Net assets:: 
Unrestricted 
Temporarily restnctetl 

Permanently r~tnt.:ted 

Total current liahilities 

Total net assets 

-· notes to fi nancial statements. See accompanymg 
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$ 27 .:!~7 

I 9-t.7M 

:! :! L990 

15.731 

3.788 

:! 1.723 
:! 1,723 

51.827 

293.342 

3.:!67 
878 

:n.ROK 

36.951 

:! I JJ()(l 
1117 .:!71 

48.1 18 

:!56.J89 

293.34:! 
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WOME~ NA TIONALI, y ACTIVE FOR CHRIST 
tAn AU>nlian of Th ~· · 

• e •Mloon a l A'-o;ociation of~ l'1'e Will Oapti•t.o.J 

Statement or Cas h tlows 

For tbc )ear ended lk«mber 3 1.1011 

~ flo~s from Ooer~ Acthities 
f'><..>crca't.' m net a~~ct~ 

t\djU\liiJenc' lo rEX'tlllcile change 111 net <L\~Cl' 
111 

net nperaung actc\ Hie~ . 
Dcpr.:.:catcon 

I.(,,, on t'ndowrncnc fund' hdd h F w· . 
Clncrea,e 1 dL't:rca\C in Y ree ell Baptc\l Found,Jllon 

Ru-t.>t\ablc~ 

Jn,cntol) and prcpaid c'pen'c' 
lnnea .. c 1 docrc<hc 1 en 

F
Dd"crred rt:'.enuc~ related to magMinc ~ub,L·npuun' 

und., held lor othe J• · 
A r cnonunatcunal agenctc\ and organcratton' 
ccount~ payable and uc~.:rued .:-xpctl\o.:~ 

Net operating activHic\ 

{.Jl£!! 1-lqws from lnvesti!ljU\ctivitie~ 
Net dbLribution fro . d 

men owment cme~lnlCnL\ held b~ Free V' II B· 
J • ., I apU~l ri>UOU<tliOO 

Net in'.e~ting aclJ\ lilt!!> 

Decreu~e in cash and C<tJ>h equhalent!> 
Cash and ca.~h equivalents: 

Beginning or .tear 

End or year 

Cash and cash equh alents consist of· 
Ca,h en bank · 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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s 

s 

$ ( 16.220) 

529 
{iJJ 

IR.140J 
1.651 

5.392 
(17,955) 

1.956 

02.154) 

1.518 

1.518 

(10,636) 

252.632 

221.996 

27,287 
194.709 

221,996 

WOME~ NATIONALLY ACTIVE FOR CHRIST 
tA n Au\lllary of l'he Nwtional Associwllon of ~ ret! Will Ka pllst.sl 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31 , 2011 

women National!) Activt.' For Christ (hercaftcr WNAC) operate~ a~ an auxchary of the National A\~ociallon ol Frt:!t: 
Wtll Baptist~. Inc and i, g.ovcm~'<l b) the h1..'CUli\ c Commiucc The El(\.'CUli\C Commlllcc i' compri~<XI uf the lour 
elected ofliccf\ and three member'> elected frnmthe body at large. WNAC i~ an unincorporated nnn pmtit cntit) 

The purpose ol the urganintltons ~hall be 10 assll>l the ,·anoul> bode~ compmmg the WNAC in pro\tdmg opponuncue,::, 
for each woman 10 luJfill the Gre.al Comnu,scun through her Gtld-dc,tgned rule m the home. Church. comncunit) and 

world. 

(J) Summary of Sienifk ant Arcountilt2 PQiicies 
Busi~ or PresentatiQD 
The lin<~nccal 'latemcnts ol \\"'\!\(' hav.: hccn prt.'p.HI..'ll on the accrual h;.N\ of a~..couming. 

As required by general!) accepted accounung principlt.'s, W AC n·pons infomtatton regarding th finam:tal 
position and acuviucs accordmg lClthrcc cla,,t.'., ol net ~st.'ls. as arplicablc: 

UnrC\trict~..'l.l net a"c" Net a~:.ct:.. nut suhjl'Cl tn donor cmpo'>ed 'lipuhnion,. Unrc,trictcd net asset' n1<sy he 
destgnatcd for ~~ci lic rurpo\cs b) action ol the govenung body. 

Tcmporartl)' J'e'.lnctcd net a~scc.. - Net a~\ct' who'e usc.., subJL"CI to donor tmpo'cd ~tipulation' anJ I nr 1hc 
passage of time. 

Pcm1unentl} restncted net as~cts - Net a'>\ets to he mamtacn<XI en pcrpctutty a.s dcrcctcd h) donor impo'cd 
stipulations 

The amount ol each of the classes of net asl>ets are pi'CI>ented tn the 'tatements of financial po:.iuon and the 
change en each class of net a\\ets " pr~cnted en the '''uemc:nts ol activitce-.. 

rund~ rcccivct.l which arc dc~ignated hy th.: donor to be transferred to third punic~ are accounted for a~ liahcltty 
transactloru.. WNAC •~ ctlcouraging donoP.> to male their contnhuuon~ dcrect to tbc re.\pa.'lcve beneficial). 

Cash apd Cash EqujvaJenl5 
For purpose:. of the \tatcrncnts of ca:.h nows. all ca~h fund,, cash hank account-; and hcghly ltquid dcbtcn~truments 
pure~ with an onginal maturity of thn.:e months or le<>s un: con,idcrcd to be cash and cash equivalent,. 

Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statement' rcqusrcs management 10 make estimate<> and as~umptions that affect the 
reported anmunts of asset!. and liabi l iue.~ and di!>closure of comcngenl asset<; and liabi hlces at the date of the 
financial Matcmem' and the rcpuned amounts of revenues and expen'cs during the reponing period Actual 
result~ could dcffcr from tho~c cstimatl!l.. 

fair Yalue Measurement.<; 
Farr ,aJue is defined as the price that would be recctved to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liabtbty m an orderly 
transaction between market pantctpants at the mea..uremcnt date and o;cts out a fatr value hierarchy which gcves 
the highest priority co observable cnputs l>UCh as quoted pnces in ac11vc markets for cdentical a\!.ets or liabchtces 
(Level I). the next htghest priont} to tnpuls from observable data other than quoted prices (Level 2) and the 
lowest priority to unohservable inputs (Level l). Inputs arc broadly defined a.s assumptions market participant~ 
would U\C in pncing an asset or liabilil} For the yc~ ended Dccemhcr 31. 20 I I. endowment funds held by Free 
Will Bapti~t Foundauon were valued at market Ul>ing Level 2 input\. 

The carrymg value of cash, accounts n."Ceivahle. accounl\ payahle and accrued expensl!l. appm"tcmatc fair \Uiuc 
becau.o;c of rhc ~hort maturity of these instruments. The carrying values of liabilities arc not materially different 
from the esumated facr value\ of these m\lrumcnts. 
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WOME~_NATIONALLY ACTIVE FOR CHRIST 
I An Au:otrary ofThp .'llational Assoda • • 

N t:iOn of f ret> Will Rapti<.1S) 
otcs to Financial S tatements, continued 

( I ) i"~ry of Si&nificant Accquntin& Policies. continued 
0 OW01fnt Funds 

ln~l~Lmc~l\ of endowment funds arc held h . Free w· . . . . 
(a~ dcscnbcd above) ba~cd on ~ . .... } rll Bapusr Found<rrron and arc valued .· Lc he . . , rarr rna, .. ct value quotes A . . usmg vel 2 mpu 
~ • ongmal donor conrnbution i~ matntaincd . ' . lo l"ei.JUir~ by generally accepted ac.-counring rin ts 
rnVCMrnent gain\ or Jos:.Cl> arc maintained eith ~~ .pcrrnancmJ~ rcMnctcd net Ul>~CI~. All rC~>ultrng net ar..!u CI,PICS, 
ncr asset.~ (if net losses) The b· I Ia cr a:. temporarily fC.\Iricrcd ncr a"~ (if net ". l mu ated 

. a ante\ re lJD{! to endowment "u d . .-arn:. or ~lnl1ed 
" n ' are a~ follow, · 

Permanently restricted net asset· 
Original donor rnvC~>tmenr (cor~u_') 

Balance at hcginning of year 
Donor gifL\ 

Temporarily restricted net as.'itts: 
Balance at beginning of year 
Investment earn · .1 · . 
D "b mgs. me udmg mv~rmenr gains and loss~ 

r~tn utron~ of earn· · ~ 
rnglo to unresrncred ncr assets 31 'i"' f . 

• " 0 accoum balance 

s 47.232 
886 

s __ 4..:..:8:.:..:.1...:.;1 8~ 

s 

$ 

6.747 
(633) 

(2.4{)5) 

3.709 
Totalrnvesred funds with Free Will BaptiSt Found· t' . . 

Accounts Receh•able a ron as endowment $ 51.827 

WNAC extends c.Tcdit to churchc., and ind· 'd I I -
and lrt lVI ua ' ocated rhmugho I the U . c .d cr;:trc. Account:-. receivable are deemed to be full . u II . nued State. for rnagoume ~ub,criptions 
on~r cr. necessary. All accounts arc reviewed b . } co ectrblc hy managerncm and no fC$CTVC is 

uncolltX:ubl~" as may be nece.~sary wh" h .. y management and wriuen off as "refunds all . . 
. . IC IS reponed a:. a reduction conlra to the . . . . owanccs and 

fixed Assets resptX:t 1 ve revenue. 

Furniture and equipment are recorded . 
acq · · at co~r or ar f~r val f 

ursuron of assets in excess of S500 . . ue a' n the date contributed E d 
method Ex . arc caprtahzed and depTeCJated . · .xpen rturcs for 

. pcnditures for maintenance and rc arrs over !herr usable lives on the Sl.raJ hr line 
the usefullrfc\ of a\set arc expensed as incurred~ . rcnewah, and bcuennents that do not signilicanrly ~xtcnd 
Deferred &venues 
Deferred revenues relat 1 

e o magazrnc suhscriptions billed in November fi h 
loco!Dt' Taxt:li or t c next calendar year. 

.WNAC IS exempt from FcderJI and •tate . 
J · ·' Income taxe~ · accord" 1 
'-X:ou~r~. There is no unrelated bu~lnes~ tnco . lng y. no provisron for mcume falCes i~ made in th 

acliVJIIe\ which will lead to income taxes being :i:_r 201 I. Funher. management bchev~ that WNAC ha~ n; 

CompeRSJted Abse!'!C§ 

Emp~Oyt!e!. of the WNAC arc emitle.d t . . . . . 
classification, length of ~ice and orherof!%~ va~~on. Sick days and ~onal days off. depending on job 

~~~C~sbse~~es and accor~ingly, no liability h~s ~~m== :~ ~rna~~ the a~unt of cornpen.~ation for 
po ICY IS to recognue the c~t of compensated ab t accornpanymg financia l statements 

Subseauegt Eyenl§ ~ences when actually paid to the employees. . 

Sub~uent events have been evaluated for potential reo . 
linanctal statements were available to be issued. ognluon and dlscl~ure through May I. 2012, the dare these 
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2) 

(3) 

(4) 

(5) 

(6) 

(7) 

WOMEN NATIONALLY ACTIVE FOR CHRIST 
(A n Auxiliary of Th t Nation1t Association of l"ru WIU Blpti.\t.•) 

Notes to Financial S tatements, continued 

Temoornrilv Restricted Net Assets 
Net as~e~ were relea:.ed from donor ~Lricuoru. dunng the year ended DeL-ember 31. 20 II by incurring cxpen~c<. 
satisfying lbc rc~trictcd purpo~c.'> or by occurrence of other events 'pccificd by dono~ : 

Mary Wisehart Student Scholarshtp Fund 
C. Purcell Foreign Scholarc.hip Fund 
Stewan Prov1sion cloo;cst 
Free Wrll Baptist Bihle College Mission Home 

Net assets released 
M. Workman Endowment funds available for diblributions 

Remaimng balances of temporarily r~trictcd net a~~ets arc as follows: 
Mary Wisehart Student Scholarship l--und 
C. Purcell Foreign Schola~hip Fund 
Stewart Provi'>ion clo\CSI 
Free Will Baptist Bible College Mi<;sion Home 
M. Wort.. man Endo"ment funds available for dl\tnbutron\ 

Pension 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2.432 
1,205 

10.599 
604 

14.8-W 
2.4{)5 

17.245 

104.601 
309 

7U42 
4.910 
3.709 

$ 187.271 

WNAC participates in the master pension plan of the Board of Retirement and Insurance of the National 
Association of Free W1ll Baprrsts. lnc. Tile plan 1s conlriburory and ~~ matched up to a rnax.imum of 5~ of 
of compensation. Employees may participate at dare of employmt:nl. Pen~ion expen:.e amounted 10 $2.803. The 
pension plan rs a defined cuntriburron plan. Under the plan, an account is maintained for each participant and 
upon retirement the participant can either rr..'Ceive a lump-sum dislributron or purcha'e of one of !>Cveral types of 
annuity contracts. 

Qperalin& Leases 
WNAC ~ entered into noncancelable a lease arrangement relaung to u copy machine. Leu~ expe~e amounted 
to $ 1.980 in 20 II . The l~e expire.' Augu~t 2012 and Wlll require paymenLs of $1.320. 

Further, WNAC rent<; office -:pace from the National Office Burlding located rn Anlloch. Tennessee The lease 
agreement is ctml-elable with 90 day wrmen notice. Oniec lease expense amounted to $18,167 ro 2011. 

Concentration or Credit Risk 
WNAC has an accounting risk of loss to the extent of uno;ccured accounLs receivable and funds held by Free Will 
Baptist Foundation. Funher, bank bal~ 1n excess of the amount of FDIC insurance are sub.JCCt to mk of 
accounting loss. Management does not antictpate nonperformance by the financial institution~. 

One Maeazine of the National Association oC Free WW Baptist§ 
11le denomination began the publication - One Magazine - in 2005 to combine the publications of ccnain Free 
W1U BaptiSt agencie~ and organizauons. One Mag!Ui.oe t$ funded by conlribulloos from each of these agencies 
and organizations. WNAC provided support of S5.588 in 20 II. 

Reclassjficatioo ofBe&innin& Net Assets 
Cenain reclassification.~ were made among and bt:tween ner a~set group~. these recla~~ilicarions had no effect on 
total beginning net assets as reported. 
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WOMEN NATIONALLY ACTIVE FOR CHRJST 
2013 Proposed Operating Budget 

Pro~ected Revenue 
Gifts, offerinQs, support 

2011 Budget 2011 Actuals 2012 Budget 
Dues & deleQate fees 

44,750.00 54,837.00 
Publications 

75,000.00 70,798.00 
50,250.00 

Literature 
56,000.00 36,928.00 

75,000.00 

Convention Revenues 
7,800.00 3,193.00 

52,000.00 

Interest Income 
26,500.00 33,709.00 

7,500.00 

E~dowment Income 
5,500.00 462.00 

27,750.00 

Miscellaneous Income 
3,000.00 2,405.00 

1,000.00 

Total 
450.00 1,731 .00 

3,000.00 

219,000.00 204,063.00 
450.00 

216,950.00 
Pr~ject_ed Operating Expenses 

alanes and WaQes 
~=~~oil Taxes and Employee Benefits 

80,117.00 57,184.00 79,077.00 
14,236.00 18,570.00 

Travel 
26,000.00 

21,71 4.00 

Promotion 
10,000.00 

18,167.00 19,200.00 
13,622.00 

Office Expense 2,087.00 
10,209.00 

Professional Service I Audit 
21 ,522.00 9,945.00 17.500.00 

PostaQ~ and shippinQ 
6,000.00 8,674.00 

Execot1ve Committee 
5,000.00 5.035.00 

6,250.00 

Cost of Literature 
5,000.00 4,490.00 

4,000.00 

~es, ~u~scriptions , Cont. Education 
1.810.00 

5,000.00 

prec1atJon 
925.00 1,563.00 800.00 

Conventions & Retreats 529.00 

Cost of ~ubllcatlons : 
Total Expenses 

23,000.00 24,026.55 21 ,000.00 
191,800.00 165,702.00 

MaQazme PrintinQ 
11U,750.00 

Editor · 20,346.00 
PostaQe 23,200.00 
One MaQazine 1,405.00 

27,200.00 
5,588.00 

50,539.00 32,200.00 

Total 219,000.00 216,241 .00 216,950.00 

Executive Director 2012 WNAC SALARIES AND BENEFITS BREAKDO 
Salary 2012 WN 
Social Security/Medicare $ 44,437.00 
~~~t $ 3.~.00 
Insurance $ 2,222.00 

TraveUUfe $ $ 6,852.00 
Hospital $ 200.00 $ 
Dental 6,306.00 $ 

200.00 
6,306.00 

346.00 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

2013 BudQfl 
55,000.00 
70,000.00 
40,000.00 
3,200.00 

27,750.00 
500.00 

2,500.00 
2,800.00 

201,750.00 

55,877.00 
20,062.00 
19,200.00 
10,000.00 

461.00 
8.500.00 
4,500.00 
4,000.00 
4,000.00 

500.00 
500.00 

-
23,000.00 

150,600.00 

18,000.00 
23,450.00 

1,300.00 
8,400.00 

51 ' 150.00 

201 ,750.00 

2013 
44,437.00 
3,465.00 
2,222.00 
6,852.00 

Christmas Bonus $ 346.00 $ 
Total Salary and Benefits $ 855.00 

Admlnlatratlve Assistant ------~$=--~5~7 .~83~11:.QOOQ_ _____ _jL_~~lli~ 
Salary 
Scx:ial Security/Medicare $ 11 ,440.00 

$ 855.00 
$ 57,831.00 

RetJ~ment $ 876.00 

Christmas Bon~~surance• : 4.~~~ :88 
Total Sa,.ry and Benefits.. $ 250 
Editor $ 18,108:~ 

$ 11,440.00 
$ 876.00 
$ 572.00 
$ 4,970.00 
$ 250.00 
$ 18,108.00 

Salary 
Christmas Bonus $ 23 200 00 

Tot.l Sa,.~ and S.neftts $ '2oo·oo 
*WN~c" Total of Saliries and Benefits I 23~o:oo 

$ 23,200.00 
$ 250.00 

I 23,450.00 
99,389.00 ·-wNACpavs 114 of the family's p~mium 99~9.00 

pays 1/2 of the total package for the administrative assistant. 
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FWB Music Commission Report 

The Music Commission has been active in planning the music for the 2012 National Convention 

10 

Memphis, TN. The colllJTllssion held its annual meeting at the Free Will Baptist National 
offices. on February 20-21. 2012. The following agenda was presented by Chris Truett. Music 

Commission Chainnan: 

1. Evaluate and discuss the 2011 National Association Convention music 
A. Evaluated all aspects of the 20 II National Convention music 
B. Met with Executive Secretary Keith Burden and Executive Administrator Ryan Lewis 

to evaluate the 201 1 National Convention music 

II. Plan the entire music program for the 2012 National Association Convention 
A. Discussed preliminary information on 20 12 National Convention Music 
B. Selected Worship Leaders for 2012 National Convention 
C. Selected choir songs for 2012 National Convention 
D. Selected special music for the 20 12 National Convention (others to be selected as 

suggestions were submitted) 
E. Met with Executive Secretary Keith Burden and Executive Administrator Ryan Lewis to 

discuss logistics of 2012 National Convention and set-up. 

m. Discuss futu re projects and vision for the commission 
A. This year's Music Commission prOJeCt involves SIX different seminars to be 

presented at the 2012 National Convention: 
1. Tuesday 10 AM Joshua Riggs 
2. Tuesday I PM Chris Truett 
3. Wednesday 9 AM Jame~ Stevens 
4. Wednesday 10 AM James Stevens 
5. Wednesday 11 AM Corey Hawkins 

6. Wednesday I PM Music Commission 

Resources for Worship 
Effective Choir Rehearsals 
Piano /mprovismion: Be~:inner 
Piano lmprol'isation: Advanced 
Bricks and Mortar of the Mu sic & 
Worship Ministry 
Q & A Session 

B. The Music Commission has a heart for reaching out to our local churches to assist them 
in the music and worship ministry of their church. Commission members actively seek 
to help by presenting workshops and seminars for churches in the area of music and 
worship. The commission is passionate about putting practical ideas and resources into 
the hands of our local churches to provide Christ-centered , energetic, and organized 
music and worship. We welcome the possibility helping you in your local church. lt is 
our desire to lead vibrant. Christ-honoring music during the convention and to help 
motivate and educate our people to take that passion home with them to their local 
church . Members of the Music Commission stand ready to help you in your church or 

local association . 
There are numerous opportUnities to participate in the convention music every year. The 
commission would like to encourage more people to participate in the convention music. 
An advance schedule is printed each year in the convention edition of ONE Maga:.ine . 
Please make plans to be involved next year and encourage others to use their talents for the 

Kingdom in Tampa, FL. 

Respectfully submitted , 
The Free Will Baptist Music Commission 

Chris Truett, Chairman 
Donnie Burke 
Daron Dwyer 
Doug Little 
James Stevens 
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MUSIC COMMISSION FINANCIAL SUMMARY 2011 

B~lnnlng Balance (01/01/2011) 
--~-~-_! 

Income 
Together Way 

2010 Rest of the Family 
Convention Booth/Wkshops 
Other gifts/income 

Expenses 
Meetings 

Annual meeting 
Convention meeting 

Convention 

Pre-convention planning 
Convention musicians 
Booth expenses 
Workshop expenses 
Digest of Reports 

Office Expenses 

Postage/miscellaneous 

$ 1,794.54 
$ 105.93 

$ 92.14 
$ 1,500.00 
$ 

$ 45.81 
$ 171.52 

$ 

$ 2,740.28 
$ 24.30 
$ 
$ 

$ 1,900.47 

$ 1,809.47 

$ 

$3,709.94 

Ending Balance c1213112011) 
-~-~~~--_ __.$ 4,783.08 

MUSIC COMMISSION BUDGET COMPARISONS 

Income 
2011 Budget 2011 Actual 2012 Budget 2013 Budget 

Together Way (undesignated) $ 2,500.00 $ 2,740.28 
Together Way {designated} $ 

$ 2,600.00 $ 3,000.00 

Rest of the Family Offering 
750.00 $ included $ 

$ 25.00 
900.00 $ 1,000.00 

Convention BoothJWkshops 
$ 24 30 $ 

$ 500.00 
25.00 $ 25.00 

Other 
$ $ 500.00 $ 

TOTALS 
$ 100.00 $ 
$ 3,875.00 

$ 100.00 $ 75.00 
$ 2,764.58 $ 4,125.00 $ 4,100.00 

Expenses 
Meetings $ 2,000.00 
Convention 

$ 1,900.47 $ 
$ 1,675.00 

2,025.00 $ 2,000.00 

Office and Mise Expenses 
$ 1,809.47 

$ 200.00 
$ 2,000.00 $ 2,000.00 

TOTALS 
$ $ 

$ 3,875.00 $ 3,709.94 
100.00 $ 100.00 

$ 4,125.00 $ 4,100.00 
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2012 Historical Commission Report 

The Historical Commission will distribute copies of the fifth and sixth in a series 
of historical pamphlets to delegates at the 20 12 national convention. Both pamphlets. 
Free Will Baptists and Predestination and Free Will Baptists and Total Abstinence were 
written by Robert Picirilli, a member of the Historical Commission and a well-known 

Free Will Baptist author. 
The Commission's seventh pamphlet. Free Will Baptists and the Sufficiency of 

Scripture, to be written by Matt Pinson. will be distributed at the 2013 national 
convention. The historical pamphlets can be purchased through RandaJI House 

Publications. 
Commission members are in ongoing discussions about the possibility of 

developing a Historical Commission website to make important historical documents 

available to the denominational constituency. 
The Historical Collection can be accessed online at the Pree Will Baptist Bible 

College website in order to see what is available in the History Room at Welch Library. 
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Financial Report 2011 

Balance on hand ( h k . c ec mg at Regions Bank) 12/3 1/2010 
Deposits . . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · .$16,4 70.07 

Together Way (13 months) 
Interest (R · · · .. · .. · · · .. $2 966 4 7 eg10ns Bank) ' · 
Sale of Pamphlets.. · ·· · .. . .. ..... · .. .. .. $8.93 
Rest of Family Off; ... ... .... .. .. · ....... $1 ,158.23 

Total enng .... .. · · · ·-- .. .... $12.57 
.. .. . . . . . . . .. . .. . . . . .. . . . . . ······· ..... .. ..... .. ... ······ ..... . .. ' .... .... ...... ..... ... . .. .... ... $4,146.20 

Expenditures 
20 I 1 Digest of Reports .. .. .. .. . . 
Randall House (printing)..... · ........... .. · .... .... · .. $87 .02 
Roben Picirilli (writing Pred .. ~ : ... ·: .... · .. ... .. · ... $1 ,11 8.86 
FWBBC (vinyl book covers)~~- ~~-~~~-~~) .. . . . .... ..... $500.00 . 
Jeff Cockrell (meeting ex nse . .......... .. . .. $315.00 
Books for collection pe s) · .. ...... · ...... .. .. .. $207 .00 

To tal ........... ... .. ... $93 2 .. ...... . . .. .. .. ..... ... ...... 3 .. ' . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . .. .. . . . . . 
Balance on hand . . .. .. · ...... .. ............. · .. · .. $2,321.1 I 

(checkmg at Regions Bank) 12/31/20 11 . . 
Trust Fund · .. .... · ...... .. --.. · .. · $18,295.16 

at FWB Foundation 12/3 J /20 I t 
Total on hand 

1213 112011 

........... .. .... .................. .. ..... $30,454.64 

.... ... .. .. .. . . . . . . .. . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . Note· Of th ..... ........ .. . · ·· · · · ... · .. .. $48,749.80 

· e sales of book] ts · than 20 I I b e mcome Jisted abov $860 • ut received in 201 1 bee e. .50 was for sales in 2010 h 
the mail and a use two 2010 checks f R rat er 

were covered by payment in 2011. rom andaiJ House got lost in 

2013 Budget 

Income 

Gifts (Together Way) .. . .. .. . . 
Interest .. . . .. · .. $3,000 
Sale of p~·p· ;;1~ · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ... $1 0 

T 
ts. · .... · $550 otaJ ······"····· ········ ... .... ......... ... . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . Expenses . ..... . ... .... . .... . .. ..... .. ... ..... . . .... $3 j60 

Books. Materials, Bindin Labo 
PamphletPro 'e g, r .... . . . . $710 

~ ct........ $2 c:oo 
Meeting Ex n .. · · .. · .. · .. ...... ,..J 

pe ses. .. .. $2S 
2012 Digest of Re rt;" · · ...... · .. · " .... · 0 

Total . .. po · ... " .. ... .. ... .. .... $100 .. .. .. .. .. ..... ... ' .. .. .. ........ . . . . . . . ... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ' . . .... .. ... ... ....... . ....... .. $3 ,5<5() 
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Media Commission Report 

In 2011, the Media Commission continued its focus on streaming convention services to enable 
viewers from all over the country and even a few from different parts of the world to participate 
in the National Association of Free Will Baptists. In 2011, we had dose to 2400 viewers lrom22 

countries. We are excited to be a part of delivering these services around the globe . 

There has been quite a bit of transition on the Media Commission this year. We would like to 
thank Keith Fletcher, Monte McKenzie and Kevin Norris for their years of service and expertise. 
They will be sorely missed. We want to say a special thank you to Keith for helping the live 

Streaming of the convention services to come to pass, and for his vision to expand these 
services in the future. Adam Carnes has taken over the position of treasurer, and Travis Penn 

will now serve as chairman. 

In order to continue to wisely use funds and limited personnel available at the 2012 convention, 

the Media Commission has decided not to set up an exhibitor's booth. To contact the 
commission please feel free to use our Face book page or the website: www.fwbmedia .com. 

We having been working with the Executive Office to see how we might expand or enhance 
the sharing of our convention workshops as well as services. We are looking at the possibility 

of archiving services and workshops and then providing them for download from the Media 
Commission website. We welcome input and suggestions about offering such a service. 

This year we have purchased software that will allow us to actually push out two separate 
streams-one for mobile devices and a higher quality stream for users with faster connections. 

This should allow churches with broadband to watch a high quality stream of the services. 

Due to all of the transition, the Media Commission will propose its annual budget during the 
convention. Financial reports and proposed annual budget will be distributed at the General 

Board meeting and in the regular business session. 

Travis Penn, Chairman (IN) 
Adam Carnes, Treasurer (NC) 

Kevin Norris, (MI) 
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Media Commission Financial Summary 2012 

Beginning checking account balance (4/20/12)* 

. *New account started due to change in treasurer 

Income 

Expenses 

Together Way (Undesignated) 
Together Way (Designated) 
Rest of the Family Offering 
Misc. Income 

Postage Reimbursement (Monte) 

Current checking balance on hand (7111112) 

Trust Fund at FWB Foundation 

Endowment at FWB Foundation 

Total assets on hand 

A .. 248 

395.57 

62.30 

50.00 

8.80 

3,490.33 

507.87 

8.80 

3,989.40 

16,302.48 

. 751.25 

21,043.13 

Commission for Theological Integrity Report 

The purpose of this commission is: (I) To alert our people to theological trends that could 
threaten our theological integrity as a denomination, (2) To prepare materials that will contribute 
to the continued preservation of the theological integrity of the denomination. and (3) As the 
need and the opportunity arises, to conduct seminars on subjects which are pertinent to the 

purpose of the commission . 
Our first Theological Symposium was conducted in 1996. Our Seventeenth Annual 

Theological Symposium will be conducted at Free Will Baptist Bible College in Nashville, 

Tennessee, October 22-23.2012. 
What we know as the Theological Commission was first called Commission on 

Theological Liberalism. Since 1985 it has been called Commission for Theological Integrity. l 
was elected to the Commission in 1962. 1 have served on the Commission from then until the 
present time, 2012. Most of that time. I have served as Chairman. 

The atmosphere in the theological world has changed considerably since the National 
Association of Free Will Baptists birthed the Commission on Theological Liberalism. 
TheologiCal Liberalism had devastated most Theological Seminaries. In my experience, as a 
student at Free Will Baptist Bible College, I observed that most of the highly academic works 
that were theologically sound had been written in the nineteenth century . 

ln 1960 when I entered seminary, there were few seminaries that 1 would have chosen to 
attend at that time. Even some of the seminaries that had survived the onslaught of Liberalism 
during the days of the Fundamentalist-Liberal Controversy (c.l915-c.1935) were by 1960 
beginning to show signs of compromise. Within the Evangelical community, challenges were 

being made to the doctrine of bib I ical inerrancy. 
In the twenty-flfst century, it is much easier to find seminaries that are remaining true on 

the doctrine of inerrancy and what we might call the "fundamentals of the faith." But the moral 
conditions that we are facing in the Evangelical community are cause of far greater concern than 

was the case fifty years ago . 
In recent years, there has been serious concern expressed in our denomination about how 

we are being affected by the negative influences of Secularism, Postmodcmism. Cheap Easy­
Believism, Moral Relativism, and Nihilism. This influence is subtle. It is in the Evangelical air 
we breathe. The detrimental influence of these movements can be felt in the culture of the 

Evangelical Church World. 
The challenge that we are facing today is far more difficult to deal with than the 

challenge that we faced 50 years ago. Those of us who are on the Commission appreciate the fact 
that many of you have responded by sending financial gifts to help us strengthen our ministry. 

As a means of helping us to deal with the challenge we are facing, Dr. Craig Shaw will be 
conducting a seminar at this convention entitled: "A Traditional View of Hell: A Response to 

LA>ve Wins by Rob Bell." 

Leroy Forlines, Chairman 
Matt Pinson, Vice-chairman 
Paul Harrison, Secretary 
Steve Ashby 
Craig Shaw 
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2011 
Commission for Theological Integrity 

Financial Report 

Bank Balance - January 1, 2011 

Commission Income 
The Together Way 

$3,011 .69 Theological Symposium Papers 
252.00 Other Gifts 

2.451.30 Rest of the Family Offering 
34.11 Total Commission Income 

5,749.10 

Journal Income 
123.00 

Total Income 

Commission Expenses 
Bookkeeping 

400.00 Convention Speaker/Digest of Reports 
906.22 Annual Meeting and Symposium Expenses 
497.65 Miscellaneous Office Expenses 
85,0§ Total Commission Expenses 

1,888.93 

Journal Expenses 
1,215.30 

Total Expenses 

Bank Balance • December 31, 2011 

2013 
Commission for Theological Integrity 

Budgets 

Income 
Gifts 
Jouma/ Income 

Theological Symposium Papers 
Together Way Plan 

Total Income 

Expenses 
Annual Meeting 
Bookkeeping 

Journal Expenses 
NationaiConvenlion 
Office Expenses 
Theological Symposium Printing 

2011 
Budget 

$520.00 
3,000.00 

400.00 
3.300.00 

Z.22Q,QQ 

1,120.00 
400.00 

4,500.00 
700.00 
100.00 
400,0Q 

2011 
Actuals 

$2,485.41 
123.00 
252.00 

3,011.69 

5.672.10 

497.65 
400.00 

1,215.30 
906.22 
85.06 
0.00 

2012 
Budget 

$3,150.00 
1.500.00 

500.00 
2,900.00 

a.o:2o.oo 

1,000.00 
400.00 

5 ,200.00 
700.00 
250.00 
SOO.QQ 

$1,730.86 

5.872.10 

3.104.23 

$4.498.73 

2013 
Budget 

$4.550.00 
100.00 
250.00 

3.000.00 

Z.9QQ,QQ 

1,000.00 
400.00 

5,000.00 
900.00 
100.00 
SOO,QQ 

Total Expense& $7.220.00 $3,104,23 SB.OSO,QQ $7,9QO.QQ 
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